
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Rich Hillis
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: Hearing moved to Board Chambers
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 11:45:08 AM

Commissioners,
I just received authorization for us to meet in the Board Chambers, Room 250. Hopefully a bit cooler.
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC);

Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Rich Hillis; Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Jonathan
Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE SUCCESSFUL REHABILITATION OF 436

AFFORDABLE HOMES FOR FAMILIES IN BAYVIEW-HUNTERS POINT NEIGHBORHOOD
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 10:18:34 AM
Attachments: 09.12.19 Hunters Point East West & Westbrook Grand Reopening.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2019 10:18 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE SUCCESSFUL
REHABILITATION OF 436 AFFORDABLE HOMES FOR FAMILIES IN BAYVIEW-HUNTERS POINT
NEIGHBORHOOD
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, September 12, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES THE SUCCESSFUL

REHABILITATION OF 436 AFFORDABLE HOMES FOR
FAMILIES IN BAYVIEW-HUNTERS POINT NEIGHBORHOOD
Former public housing at Hunters Point East West and Westbrook were renovated under the

Rental Assistance Demonstration program
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and community leaders today celebrated the
grand reopening of 436 units at Hunters Point East West (HPEW) and Westbrook, two former
public housing properties that were originally built in the 1950s and together comprise nearly
35 acres of land. These are two of 28 sites previously owned by the San Francisco Housing
Authority that were renovated under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, which allows for a
voluntary, permanent conversion of public housing to privately-owned, permanently
affordable housing.
 
“Thanks to the rehabilitation of these homes at Hunters Point East West and Westbrook,
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
public housing properties that were originally built in the 1950s and together comprise nearly 35 
acres of land. These are two of 28 sites previously owned by the San Francisco Housing 
Authority that were renovated under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program 
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, which allows for a voluntary, 
permanent conversion of public housing to privately-owned, permanently affordable housing. 
 
“Thanks to the rehabilitation of these homes at Hunters Point East West and Westbrook, 
hundreds of families have a new, safe place to live,” said Mayor Breed. “For too long, our public 
housing units have been left behind and have fallen into disrepair. The RAD program enables us 
to improve the conditions of our City’s public housing, and ensure that our most vulnerable 
residents can remain in their neighborhood with a place to call home.” 
 
This project is part of the City’s commitment to preserving and revitalizing nearly 3,500 
distressed public housing units across San Francisco. To date, more than 3,200 apartments have 
been converted and renovated under the RAD program. 
 
The substantial rehabilitation of HPEW and Westbrook focused on safety and accessibility 
improvements, and the modernization or replacement of original building systems. These 
improvements include roof and window replacement, a new automatic fire sprinkler system, 
exterior painting, landscaping, washer/dryer additions, replacement of sewer system, apartment 
renovations and energy use reductions. A new playground was added, along with improved 
sidewalks, parking, and renovation of the community space at 90 Kiska Rd.  
 
“Completing the much-needed renovation of 436 affordable homes marks a significant milestone 
in the City’s work to transform its public housing assets,” said Daniel Adams, Acting Director of 
the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development. “We are thrilled so many 
deserving families can now thrive in safe, high-quality and permanently affordable apartments 
with essential on-site services.”  
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Related California, The John Stewart Company, the San Francisco Housing Development 
Corporation, and Ridge Point Non-Profit Housing Corporation collaborated to complete the 
$127 million comprehensive rehabilitation. 
 
“This public-private partnership with the City is providing new life for long-neglected public 
housing, enabling over 430 low-income families to have state-of-the-art homes,” said Bill Witte, 
Chairman and CEO of Related California. “Rehabilitating San Francisco’s public housing stock 
is critical for making inroads in the Bay Area’s affordable housing crisis, especially when it 
comes to providing homes for the most vulnerable families.” 
 
“We are pleased to have partnered with the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community 
Development, the San Francisco Housing Authority, Related California, San Francisco Housing 
Development Corporation, and Ridge Point Non-Profit Housing Corporation on the 
recapitalization and renovation of this crucial housing,” said Jack Gardner, Chairman and CEO 
of The John Stewart Company. “This project wonderfully demonstrates the City’s commitment 
to leaving none of its residents behind, and we are incredibly proud to have played a part in 
dramatically improving the quality of life for our residents.” 
 
“It has been extremely gratifying to witness the transformation of this dilapidated housing into 
beautifully renovated apartment homes that are cleaner, safer and healthier for the families who 
reside here, while also ensuring long-term affordability,” said David Sobel, CEO of the 
San Francisco Housing Development Corporation. “We have also greatly enjoyed and felt the 
positive impact of working closely with all residents throughout this multi-year process to ensure 
that they participate in the rehabilitation of their homes and help build community through 
successful engagement and service connection.” 
 
As part of the City’s Fiber to Housing program and Digital Equity initiative, the City is 
providing free, high-speed internet and a variety of onsite technology trainings for residents at 
HPEW and Westbrook. Through partnerships with local Internet provider Monkeybrains and 
local nonprofits Community Tech Network and Dev/Mission, among others, the City works to 
eliminate the digital divide in San Francisco by bringing free high-speed internet to residents 
living in affordable housing. 
 


### 







hundreds of families have a new, safe place to live,” said Mayor Breed. “For too long, our
public housing units have been left behind and have fallen into disrepair. The RAD program
enables us to improve the conditions of our City’s public housing, and ensure that our most
vulnerable residents can remain in their neighborhood with a place to call home.”
 
This project is part of the City’s commitment to preserving and revitalizing nearly 3,500
distressed public housing units across San Francisco. To date, more than 3,200 apartments
have been converted and renovated under the RAD program.
 
The substantial rehabilitation of HPEW and Westbrook focused on safety and accessibility
improvements, and the modernization or replacement of original building systems. These
improvements include roof and window replacement, a new automatic fire sprinkler system,
exterior painting, landscaping, washer/dryer additions, replacement of sewer system,
apartment renovations and energy use reductions. A new playground was added, along with
improved sidewalks, parking, and renovation of the community space at 90 Kiska Rd.
 
“Completing the much-needed renovation of 436 affordable homes marks a significant
milestone in the City’s work to transform its public housing assets,” said Daniel Adams,
Acting Director of the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development. “We are
thrilled so many deserving families can now thrive in safe, high-quality and permanently
affordable apartments with essential on-site services.”
 
Related California, The John Stewart Company, the San Francisco Housing Development
Corporation, and Ridge Point Non-Profit Housing Corporation collaborated to complete the
$127 million comprehensive rehabilitation.
 
“This public-private partnership with the City is providing new life for long-neglected public
housing, enabling over 430 low-income families to have state-of-the-art homes,” said Bill
Witte, Chairman and CEO of Related California. “Rehabilitating San Francisco’s public
housing stock is critical for making inroads in the Bay Area’s affordable housing crisis,
especially when it comes to providing homes for the most vulnerable families.”
 
“We are pleased to have partnered with the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community
Development, the San Francisco Housing Authority, Related California, San Francisco
Housing Development Corporation, and Ridge Point Non-Profit Housing Corporation on the
recapitalization and renovation of this crucial housing,” said Jack Gardner, Chairman and
CEO of The John Stewart Company. “This project wonderfully demonstrates the City’s
commitment to leaving none of its residents behind, and we are incredibly proud to have
played a part in dramatically improving the quality of life for our residents.”
 
“It has been extremely gratifying to witness the transformation of this dilapidated housing into
beautifully renovated apartment homes that are cleaner, safer and healthier for the families
who reside here, while also ensuring long-term affordability,” said David Sobel, CEO of the
San Francisco Housing Development Corporation. “We have also greatly enjoyed and felt the
positive impact of working closely with all residents throughout this multi-year process to
ensure that they participate in the rehabilitation of their homes and help build community
through successful engagement and service connection.”
 
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
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 399 Fremont St. Correspondence - 2018-001446CUA
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 10:13:03 AM
Attachments: EXTERNAL FW 399 Fremont follow up.msg

EXTERNAL FW follow up parking.msg

 
 
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
 

From: Jennings, Megan <mjennings@coblentzlaw.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2019 10:08 AM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Liang, Xinyu (CPC) <xinyu.liang@sfgov.org>; 'Tiffanie Byrd (tbyrd@udr.com)' <tbyrd@udr.com>
Subject: 399 Fremont St. Correspondence - 2018-001446CUA
 

 

Dear President Melgar and Commissioners:
 
On behalf of the project sponsor for the proposed non-accessory use of an existing parking garage at
399 Fremont St.  (#8 on today’s Commission agenda), please see the attached responses from the
sponsor to building residents who have submitted comments to date.  I’m available to discuss any
questions you may have. 
 
Thanks, Megan
 
Megan Jennings 
Coblentz Patch Duffy & Bass LLP
One Montgomery Street, Suite 3000
San Francisco, CA 94104
415-772-5763 | Office 415-391-4800
mjennings@coblentzlaw.com

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
mailto:mjennings@coblentzlaw.com

[EXTERNAL] FW: 399 Fremont follow up

		From

		Tensaye Alemayehu

		To

		Jennings, Megan

		Recipients

		mjennings@coblentzlaw.com



 



 



Tensaye Alemayehu | Sr. Community Director



399 Fremont | 388 Beale



399 Fremont Street



San Francisco, CA 94105



415-842-4105 Office | Lease399.com



415-495-4181 Office | Lease388.com 



 



 



From: Tensaye Alemayehu 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 6:34 PM
To: jameshgj@gmail.com
Subject: 399 Fremont follow up



 



Dear James,



 



Thank you for your email regarding the proposed parking garage proposal at 399 Fremont Street, and in particular your comments regarding building security and pedestrian safety.  



 



As described in the public notice, the 399 Fremont Street parking garage has a consistently unused portion of approximately 50 spaces, or a balance of 30 when including 20 spaces for fluctuating resident demand.  We are proposing to convert 30 of the 251 existing parking spaces in the garage to non-accessory use. By adding new public parking spaces at the existing facility, the project will decrease demand for surface street parking, helping to reduce traffic congestion in the Rincon Hill area.



 



With respect to building security, we take these issues very seriously.  We already manage similar non-accessory parking programs at other properties, including 388 Beale and 2000 Post, and would work with the same reputable parking management firm to manage access to the parking garage.  Our preference is that the 30 non-accessory parking spaces be available for monthly lease, however it is possible that the San Francisco Planning Department could require the spaces be made available only for short-term parking.  Either way, parking spaces would be rented via online reservation system that requires a user to input not only payment details but also personal and vehicle info before obtaining access to the garage, which provides a level of screening and oversight.  Together with security cameras in the garage, 24/7 concierge staffing, fob-restricted access to the elevator banks, and the fact that we will need to receive Police Department sign-off on a detailed security plan before getting a permit to operate, we are confident that we will maintain the same high level of resident and staff security.  That said, we are also evaluating options to secure the doors from the garage into the building, but need to ensure these would meet fire and safety requirements for egress.  



 



With respect to pedestrian safety, we are not aware of any injuries or serious close calls involving vehicles entering or exiting the garage since the building opened in 2016.  The building and garage at 399 Fremont were recently constructed and were built in accordance with all applicable code requirements about ingress/egress, street frontage, etc.  The proposal is to use the garage for the uses it was designed and constructed for, with only a modest increase in daily trips in and out of the garage compared with current conditions.  As an extra precaution, we are also looking into options to add a buzzer and/or light to the gate that would alert pedestrians when vehicles are entering or exiting the garage.



 



Best Regards,



 



Tensaye Alemayehu | Sr. Community Director



399 Fremont | 388 Beale



399 Fremont Street



San Francisco, CA 94105



415-842-4105 Office | Lease399.com



415-495-4181 Office | Lease388.com 
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[EXTERNAL] FW: follow up / parking

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
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 8:12 PM
To: Marina Mogilko <marinamogilko@gmail.com>
Cc: d@linguatrip.com
Subject: RE: follow up / parking



 



Including Dmitrii in my response below. 



 



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
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 8:08 PM
To: Marina Mogilko <marinamogilko@gmail.com>
Subject: follow up / parking



 



Dear Marina,



 



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
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this transmittal in error, please email a reply to the sender and delete the transmittal and any attachments.

 

http://www.coblentzlaw.com/


 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Environmental Review Case No.: 2017-00254ENV Project Address: 2417 Green Street
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 10:12:53 AM
Attachments: 2019 09 11 Letter to SF Planning Commission .docx

ATT00001.htm

 
 
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
 

From: Mark Lampert <Lampert@bvflp.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2019 10:08 AM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>
Cc: Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
richhillissf@gmail.com; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
Stefani, Catherine (BOS) <catherine.stefani@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>;
May, Christopher (CPC) <christopher.may@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>
Subject: Environmental Review Case No.: 2017-00254ENV Project Address: 2417 Green Street
 

 

Myrna,

Please see our attached letter. 
Thank you. 

Sincerely,

Mark Lampert / Susan Byrd
2415 Green St.

 
 
 
 
Confidentiality Note:  This email (including attachments, if any) is intended only for the designated recipient(s). It may contain
information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise protected from disclosure. If you are not a designated recipient, you may not

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/





September 11, 2019 

President Myrna Melgar

San Francisco Planning Commission 

1650 Mission Street, #400 

San Francisco, CA 94103 



Re: 2417 Green Street Discretionary Review — September 19, 2019 Hearing 



Dear President Melgar and Commissioners: 



We have lived at 2415 Green Street for over 20 years. Our home is immediately adjacent and to the east of 2417 Green Street, which was purchased by a developer approximately three years ago and is held by the 2417 Green Street LLC. 



We object to this project and request that you take Discretionary Review based on (1) the oversized, insensitive design that significantly impacts our family and our neighbors, (2) the illegal and unauthorized activities the developer has engaged in over the past two years, and (3) the deliberate actions taken to make the structure uninhabitable.  We worry that the developer deliberately made conditions so dangerous that the building would be deemed uninhabitable and he would be able to demolish the home and build a completely new structure onsite.  



The building has been classified by the City as abandoned due to the deteriorated condition created by the developer.  This spring, DBI issued a notice of Order of Abatement that the building was unsafe and/or a public nuisance because the developer failed to address violations.  (Please see Attachment 1 to this letter for the violation records.)

The developer applied for planning and building permits for a largescale alteration to try to maximize the value of the property. He met with the neighbors who requested that he revise the design to mitigate the impacts on neighbors and comply with the Cow Hollow Neighborhood Design Guidelines, as most if not all of the other neighbors on the street have done when remodeling their homes.   The developer did not agree to make the requested changes in response to neighbor concerns or to comply with the City or neighborhood design guidelines. 

Since originally applying for permits, instead of going through the prescribed permit process, the developer has demolished portions of the building without permits, created large openings in the roof and left windows open throughout the 2017-18 rainy season leaving the house to deteriorate. For more than a month this past spring, he let streams of water pour out of the home and down the sidewalk causing dangerous conditions for the neighbors putting them, particularly children and the elderly, as risk for falls. (Please see Attachment 1 for photo.)



[bookmark: _GoBack]The developer has ignored enforcement actions by DBI and engaged in work without permits.  Numerous NOVs from DBI, and a NOC from the Planning Department, Orders of Abatement, and liens recorded on the property have been ineffective in doing anything to prevent the destruction and deterioration of this property. We are grateful that neighbors have observed and reported illegal activity, and that DBI and Planning have tried to do what they can to make sure the entire house was not demolished. Unfortunately, this hasn’t prevented the continuation of the developer’s circumvention of the process and dishonest behavior. 

Attachment 1 includes documentation of the NOVs, NOC, and liens. The Commission should be aware that this developer has engaged in a similar scheme — engaging in work exceeding permits for at least one other property in the City (See Attachment 2 — 1055 Ashbury). 

Discretionary Review by the Planning Commission is warranted when there are exceptional and extraordinary circumstances. As detailed in our application for DR and documented in this letter, the insensitive project design that significantly impacts the neighbors and actions of the developer justify Discretionary Review of the project. While the developer has made some minor changes to the original project design by slightly altering the façade design and inserting a 1,023 square-foot ADU on the ground level in the rear of the property, the 7,467 gross square-foot project remains inconsistent with the San Francisco Residential Design Guidelines and the Cow Hollow Neighborhood Design Guidelines for the reasons detailed in our DR Application. 

We respectfully request that you take DR and deny the project or modify the design as we request in our DR Application.  If the developer were to remodel the home within the existing footprint as shown in the drawings of the alternative project attached to the DR Application, he would have a six-bedroom, 5,279-square-foot home with a two car garage that could accommodate a large family without significantly impacting the immediate neighbors and larger neighborhood. This alternative design could also be modified to accommodate an ADU. Such an alternative would still allow the developer to make a reasonable profit by developing a large house while also protecting (a) the neighbors by preserving some of their access to light and air and privacy, and (b) the neighborhood by maintaining the mid-block open space. And, unlike the proposed project, this alternative would comply with the San Francisco Residential Design Guidelines and Cow Hollow Neighborhood DGs. 



Sincerely,



Susan Byrd and Mark Lampert

2415 Green Street



cc: Members of the Planning Commission, Hon. Catherine Stephani, Chris May, Jonas Ionin



Enclosures





















[bookmark: _Hlk19104426]ATTACHMENT 1

2417 Green Street Violations, Complaints, and Records of Liens, and Associated Email Records



2





Although an NOV was issued by DBI on 1/8/18, holes in the roof created by the illegal removal of chimneys and windows left open to the elements was not acted upon until May of 2018, well after the rainy season, purposely creating a state of disrepair and deterioration.







[image: ]



[bookmark: First_Illegal_Chimney_Removal_–_Complain]First Illegal Chimney Removal – Complaint Filed December 11, 2017











[bookmark: Second_Illegal_Chimney_Removal_–_roof_le][bookmark: elements_until_May_2018]Second Illegal Chimney Removal – roof left unrepaired and open to the elements until May 2018



[image: ]



[bookmark: Windows_continually_left_open_to_the_ele]Windows continually left open to the elements also during 2017-18 rainy season
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[bookmark: From:_McHugh,_Kevin_(DBI)_[mailto:kevin.]Spring 2019 – Water streaming out of the housing onto the sidewalk 
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From: McHugh, Kevin (DBI) [mailto:kevin.mchugh@sfgov.org]

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 8:40 AM

To: Deborah Holley <deborah@holleyconsulting.com>

Cc: May, Christopher (CPC) <christopher.may@sfgov.org>; Scott Emblidge

<emblidge@mosconelaw.com>; Power, Robert (DBI) <robert.power@sfgov.org>; O'Riordan, Patrick (DBI) <patrick.oriordan@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: 2417 Green Street Hi Deborah,

At a site visit on 12/27 conducted with Chu Liu a DBI engineer to address the details for the shoring repair we observed holes in the roof created by the chimney demolition. We advised the owner/developer (Chris) to seal these holes immediately as rain was in the forecast.

Chu Liu's field report from the same date and which is attached confirms this.

Chris was fully aware of what was required and copied me an email saying he would start the work on December 28th.

I was off work for a week and when I returned Chief O Riordan inquired about the progress at the property. Inspector Power confirmed that no work had taken place so I Sent Chris an email 1/5 authorizing him to proceed.

On 1/8 Inspector Power issued a violation concerning the roof penetrations with the corrective actions being to waterproof within 24 hrs. The corrective action on the NOV did not require a permit. No permit was or is required for what was being asked and as of this time nothing has been done.

My email to Chris on 1/5 is also attached which should answer any questions you have concerning the chimney/facade shoring.



Regards



Kevin Mc Hugh

Senior Building Inspector.
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Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!

Top of Form

COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

		Complaint Number:

		201920322



		Owner/Agent:

		OWNER DATA SUPPRESSED

		 

		Date Filed:

		

		



		Owner's Phone:

		--

		 

		Location:

		2417 GREEN ST

		



		Contact Name:

		

		 

		Block:

		0560

		



		Contact Phone:

		--

		 

		Lot:

		028

		



		Complainant:

		COMPLAINANT DATA SUPPRESSED

		 

		Site:

		

		



		 

		

		 

		Rating:

		

		



		 

		

		 

		Occupancy Code:

		

		



		 

		

		 

		Received By:

		SLWONG

		



		Complainant's Phone:

		 

		 

		Division:

		BID

		



		Complaint Source:

		WEB FORM

		

		

		

		



		Assigned to Division:

		BID

		

		

		

		



		Description:

		date last observed: 17-JAN-19; time last observed: Daily x2years; identity of person performing the work: Chris Durkin, developer; Eric ; floor: Third; exact location: Main Bldg; building type: Residence/Dwelling WATER INTRUSION; VACANT STRUCTURE; ; additional information: Windows on East side and at rear of vacant building remain open to rain and animal intrusion past 2 years. Neighbors have filed numerous complaints. ;

		 



		 

		

		



		Instructions:

		

		



		 

		

		



		INSPECTOR INFORMATION

		

		



				DIVISION

		INSPECTOR

		ID

		DISTRICT

		PRIORITY



		BID

		BIRMINGHAM

		6330

		4

		 







		

		



		 

		

		



		REFFERAL INFORMATION  

		

		



		

		

		



		 

		

		



		COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS

		

		



				DATE

		TYPE

		DIV

		INSPECTOR

		STATUS

		COMMENT



		01/18/19

		CASE OPENED

		BID

		Birmingham

		CASE RECEIVED

		 



		01/18/19

		OTHER BLDG/HOUSING VIOLATION

		BID

		Birmingham

		CASE CLOSED

		Case closed and referred to CES by email per MH; slw







		

		



		 

		

		



		COMPLAINT ACTION BY DIVISION  

		

		



		

		

		



		 

		

		



		NOV (HIS):

				







		 

		NOV (BID):

				







		

		








Bottom of Form















Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!

Top of Form

COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

		Complaint Number:

		201937943



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

		OHUANG

		



		Complainant's Phone:

		 

		 

		Division:

		BID

		



		Complaint Source:

		WEB FORM

		

		

		

		



		Assigned to Division:

		BID

		

		

		

		



		Description:

		date last observed: 19-MAR-19; time last observed: Continual; identity of person performing the work: CHRISTOPHER DURKIN & ; floor: All storie; unit: Single res; exact location: Common Area; building type: Residence/Dwelling WATER INTRUSION; ABANDONED/DERELICT STRUCTURE; STRUCTURAL PROBLEMS; WORK BEING DONE IN DANGEROUS MANNER; ; additional information: WATER IS POURING OUT OF VACANT BUILDING MAKING THE FRONT SIDEWALK SLICK AND DANGEROUS;

		 



		 

		

		



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



		03/19/19

		CASE OPENED

		BID

		Birmingham

		CASE RECEIVED

		 



		03/19/19

		OTHER BLDG/HOUSING VIOLATION

		INS

		Birmingham

		CASE CLOSED

		Case reviewed, to be referred to CES. mh/oh







		

		



		 

		

		



		COMPLAINT ACTION BY DIVISION  































Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!

Top of Form

COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

		Complaint Number:

		201976112



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

		Edward Greene

		



		Complainant's Phone:

		 

		 

		Division:

		CES

		



		Complaint Source:

		TELEPHONE

		

		

		

		



		Assigned to Division:

		CES

		

		

		

		



		Description:

		vacant building

		 



		 

		

		



		Instructions:

		

		



		 

		

		



		INSPECTOR INFORMATION

		

		



				DIVISION

		INSPECTOR

		ID

		DISTRICT

		PRIORITY



		CES

		GREENE

		1127

		 

		 







		

		



		 

		

		



		REFFERAL INFORMATION  

		

		



		

		

		



		 

		

		



		COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS

		

		



				DATE

		TYPE

		DIV

		INSPECTOR

		STATUS

		COMMENT



		08/09/19

		ABANDONED BUILDING

		CES

		Greene

		CASE UPDATE

		ok to send wn eg



		08/09/19

		CASE OPENED

		CES

		Greene

		CASE RECEIVED

		 



		09/09/19

		GENERAL MAINTENANCE

		CES

		Greene

		CASE UPDATE

		Sent Warning notice to owners on file. BY MF







		

		



		 

		

		



		COMPLAINT ACTION BY DIVISION  

		

		



		

		

		



		 

		

		



		NOV (HIS):

				







		 

		NOV (BID):

				







		

		








Bottom of Form





		

		





Bottom of Form



























Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!

Top of Form

COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

		Complaint Number:

		201920683



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

		Marcella Fields

		



		Complainant's Phone:

		 

		 

		Division:

		CES

		



		Complaint Source:

		BID REFERRAL

		

		

		

		



		Assigned to Division:

		CES

		

		

		

		



		Description:

		VACANT BUILDING

		 



		 

		

		



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

		 



		02/07/19

		ABANDONED BUILDING

		CES

		Chung

		FIRST NOV SENT

		Site Verification,1st NOV, Photos



		03/06/19

		ABANDONED BUILDING

		CES

		Greene

		CASE UPDATE

		Prepared case file and cert mailed 1st NOV w/ app-jp



		03/12/19

		ABANDONED BUILDING

		CES

		Chung

		FINAL WARNING LETTER SENT

		Ok to issue FWL-mc



		03/22/19

		ABANDONED BUILDING

		CES

		Greene

		CASE UPDATE

		FWL mailed-jp



		04/10/19

		ABANDONED BUILDING

		CES

		Greene

		CASE ABATED

		permit suspended case abated TO COMPLY NOV201708032, ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT TO FACILILATE DCP REVIEW, REVISION TO PA#201705116316, DELETE FREESTANDING RETAINING WALL AT REAR YARD. NO WORK UNDER THIS PERMIT. N/A MAHER ORDINANCE







		

		



		 

		

		



		COMPLAINT ACTION BY DIVISION  

		

		



		

		

		



		 

		

		



		NOV (HIS):

				







		 

		NOV (BID):

				02/07/19







		

		





Bottom of Form













ATTACHMENT 2





NOV Issued for another Durkin project – 1055 Ashbury
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION

. of the San Francisco Municipal Codes Regarding Unsafe,
Substandard oy Noncomplying Structure or Land or Occupancy

OF BUILD

EPARTME LINSPECTIC NOTICE: | iR: 201830371
Y and County of San Francise NUMBER:

1660 Mission St. San Francisco, CA 94103

ADDRESS: 2417 GREEN 81

DCCUPANCY/USE: R-3 (RESIDENTIAL- 1 & 2 UNIT DWELI INGS, I’O\\“NH()U.\‘I'JS“[ OCK: 0560 LOT: 028

] :“l;:'l::‘:::lm‘\'l‘“ information is hased upons site-observation only, Further research may indicate that legal use is different. 1f so, a revised Notice of Violati
JWNER/AGENT: 2417 GREEN STREET LLC PHONE #:
A ~ 2 SR
MAILING 2417 GREEN STREET LLC
ADDRESS 474 EUCLID AVE
SAN FRANCISCO CA
04118
PERSON CONTACTED @ SITE: PHONE #: --
VIOLATION DESCRIPTION: | copesECiion
L WORK WITHOUT PERMIT 106.1.1
NAL WORK-PERMIT REQUIRED | 106.4.7

s [ |CANCELLED PERMIT PA#: 106.4.4
[V]UNSAFE BUILDING | | SEE ATTACHMENTS 102.1
Penetrations in roof made when chimneys were removed. Have not been sealed, rain water entering building. Also penetrations in walls
at rear.

A monthly monitoring fee will be assessed on NOV's.

Code/section: 102A

CORRECTIVE ACTION:
[ISTOP ALL WORK SFBC 104.2.4 s -

]FILE BUILDING PERMIT WITHIN DAYS (WITH PLANS) A copy of This Notice Must Accompar ermit Applicat
| JOBTAIN PERMIT WITHIN DAYS AND COMPLETE ALL WORK WITHIN DAYS, INCLUDING FINAL INSPECTION AN
SIGNOFF.

JCORRECT VIOLATIONS WITHIN DAYS. NO PERMIT REQUIRED

}\()l‘ FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE NOTICE(S) DATED | THEREFORE THIS DEPT, HAS INITIATED ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS

® FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS NOTICE WILL CAUSE ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS TO BEGIN.
SEE ATTACHMENT FOR ADDITIONAL WARNINGS.

INVESTIGATION FEE OR OT

| 2x FEE (WORK EXCEEDING SCOPE OF PERMIT)

E] 9x FEE (WORK W/O PERMIT AFTER 9/1/60) |

NO PENALTY
E’}O’I“HF.R: [ ] REINSPECTION FEE § (WORK W O PERM
APPROX. DATE OF WORK W/O PERMIT VALUE OF WORK PERFORMED W/O PERMITS S

BY OODIR OF THE IMRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF RUILDING INSPECTION
CONTACT INSPECTOR: Robert ] Power el
PHONE # 415-558-6008 DIVISION: BID DISTRICT : 4
By:(Inspectors's Signature)
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Home Permit Services Plan Review Inspection Services  Most Requested Key Progra

Home  lost Reauested

Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!
COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

Complaint e
Number:
Ouner/Agent  OWNER DATA SUPPRESSED Date Filed:
Ouners Phone:  — Location 2417 GREEN ST
Contact Name: Block 0580
Contact Prone: Lot 028
COMPLAINANT DATA
Complainant.  SOMTLANAN ste:
Rating
Oceupancy Code
Recewved By Czarina Blackshear
Complainants
ok Division D
Complaint Source: TELEPHONE
Assionedto g
Diision
Descripton Working beyond scope of PA #201705115316. Doing horizontal addifon
Instructons:
INSPECTOR INFORMATION
DIVISION INSPECTOR D DISTRICT _ PRIORITY
BD [POWER 6270 4
REFFERAL INFORMATION
COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS
DATE TYPE DIV INSPECTOR _ STATUS COMMENT
ICASE
0927117 [CASE OPENED BID |Power oA D
(OTHER BLDGHOUSING ;
osgn7  [OTHERBLE NS [Power |cASE UPDATE 15t NOV mailed & cc'd o DCP <ran
[OTHER BLOGHHOUSING [FIRST NOV
e e BiD |Power T Inov issued kmn
Inew permit as been ssusd fo comply with
|OTHER BLDGHHOUSING lcomplaint. DCP approved scope that was
U081 1oL ATiON D < ower |CASE CLOSED iriialy not reviewed by thei depariment.
e

COMPLAINT ACTION BY DIVISION
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Home  ost Reauested
TAN FRANCISCO

Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!
COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

Compiaint
Number: 2as BUILDING INSPECTION
OuwnerlAgent  OWNER DATA SUPPRESSED Date Fied: .
Ovner's Phone: Locstion 2417 GREEN ST
Contact Name: Block: 0560
Contact Phone: Lot 028
COMPLAINANT DATA
Compianant.  SOMPLANANT Site
Rating
Oceupancy Code
Received By Meet Tesfaye
Complainants it o
Phone
Complaint Source: TELEPHONE
Assignedto g
Division
Descripton:  Beyond scope of work $500. Tomporing shoring

Instructions:

INSPECTOR INFORMATION
DIVISION INSPECTOR
BID BIRMINGHAM /6330

ISTRICT PRIORITY

REFFERAL INFORMATION

COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS

DIV INSPECTOR  STATUS e
oonors [ossE oPENED o [omingram (O
COMPLANT ACTION BY DWVISION
NOV (HIS): NOV (BID):

Inspector Contact Information

Oniine Permit and Complaint Tracking home page.

for Online Service:
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

NOTICE OF COMPLAINT

August 03,2018

Property Ovener.
2417 Green Strest LLC
474 Eucid Ave

San Francisco, CA 94118

Site Address: 2417 Green St
BlockLat: 0360/ 025

Zoning District RE1, Residential- House, One Family
Complaint Number:  2017-012992ENE

Stat Contact Tina Tam, (415) $58-6325, tina tam@ségov.org.

You axe receiving this courtesy notice because the Plnning Department has received 3 complaint
Slleging that one or more viclations of the Planning Code exist on the sbove-referenced property. As
the property owner you sre s responsible party.

It has been reported to us there is unpermitted construction, alteration, and/or addition work at the
subject property. As such, you have the option to

1. File 3 permit to remove and restore the work back to ts sst authorized condition; o
2. File a permt to legalice the work, if permissible by the Planning Code. Please note additional
application may also be required.

Plesse submit yous permit within 30 days of this notice.

‘The Plasning Depastment requires complisnce with the Planning Code in the development and use of
Isnd and structures. Any new building permits or other spplications sre notissusd untl  vielation is
corrected. Penalties may also be assessed for verified violations. Therefore, your prompt action to
sesalve the complaint is important.

Please contact the staff planner shown sbove for information on the slleged viola
assistance on how to resolve the complaint.

www sfplanning org

T Msin s
S0
Sinfanssco,
cAsATaT

Fecson
e

o
55805409
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o

aisssasa
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Home. Permit Services Plan Review Inspection Services  Most Requested Key Programs

Home » Most Reauestes

Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!
COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

Complaint
e, 201721261
Ouner/Agent  OWNER DATA SUPPRESSED Date Filed
Oumers Phone:  — Location: 2417 GREEN ST
Contact Name: Block 0560
Contact Phone:  — Lot 028
COMPLAINANT DATA
Complainant:  GILERACAT site
Rating
Occupancy Code:
Received By, Syvia Thai
Complainant's
Fthuin Division: NS
Complaint Source: TELEPHONE
Assigned to &b
Division:
Description Planning Depariment suspended two permits: 201705116316 and 201710020114
Instructions:
INSPECTOR INFORMATION
DIVISION INSPECTOR D DISTRICT PRIORITY
BID BIRMINGHAM 6330 la
REFFERAL INFORMATION
COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS
DATE TYPE DIV INSPECTOR _ STATUS COMMENT
OTHER BLDGIHOUSING
our | IEEET NS [Power |CASE UPDATE |Mailed 15t NOV; s thai,
OTHER BLDGIHOUSING FIRST NOV.
oy (GRSt NS [Power e lsent 1t NOV.
(CASE
1221117 |CASE OPENED BID [Pover .
OTHER BLDGIHOUSING
ozoing  DTHERES [BID [Birmingham {CASE UPDATE fon going
OTHER BLDGIHOUSING
oytong  DTHERAS [BID [Birmingham {CASE UPDATE fon going
OTHER BLDGIHOUSING
owtine R [BID [Birmingham {CASE CLOSED fpermits have been suspended

COMPLAINT ACTION BY DIVISION

NOV (HIS): NOV (BID): 122117

Inspector Contact Information

g 5
About Us

TAN FRANCISCO
—

BUILDING INSPECTION
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Home » Most Requested

TAN FRANCISCO

Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!
COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

Complaint
Number: 201308 BUILDING INSPECTION
Ouner/Agent  OWNER DATA SUPPRESSED Date Filed
Ouners Phone:  — Location 2417 GREEN ST
Contact Name: Block 0580
Contact Prone: Lot 028
COMPLAINANT DATA
Complainant.  SOMTLANAN ste:
Rating
Occupancy Code:
Recewved By Mehret Tesfaye
Complainants e o
Prone
Complaint Source: TELEPHONE
Assionedto oo
Diision
Descripton Beyond scope of work $500. Tomporing shoring
Instructons:
INSPECTOR INFORMATION
DIVISION INSPECTOR STRICT _ PRIORITY
BD [BIRMINGHAM /6330

REFFERAL INFORMATION

COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS

DIV INSPECTOR  STATUS e E
oonors[ossE oPENED o fomingram (O
COMPLANT ACTION BY DWVISION
NOV (HIS): NOV (BID):

Inspector Contact Information

Oniine Permit and Complaint Tracking home page.

for Online Service:
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Government onli

ST e
City and County of
San Francisco

Home » Most Requested
TAN FRANCISCO

Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!
COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

Compiaint
‘Number: s BUILDING INSPECTION
OwnerlAgent  OWNER DATA SUPPRESSED Date Filed —
Ovners Prone: Locstion 2417 GREEN ST
Contact Name: Block 0550
Contact Phone: Lot 028
COMPLAINANT DATA
Compianant.  SOMPLANANT site
Rating
Oceupancy Code
Received By TTRUONG
Complainants L =
Phone:
Complaint Source: WES FORM
Assignedto oo
Division

Gate last observed: 20-SEP-18; time last observed: For the past year. identity of person performing the woric
Christopher Durkin; exact location: Main Bidg; buiding type: Residence/Dweling ABANDONED/DERELICT

Description: STRUCTURE: WORK WIO PERMIT. WORK BEYOND SCOPE OF PERMIT, OTHER BUILDING; ; additional
information: The windows have been Isft open to the elements for over a year. there are animals, mold
asbestos; the building vindows are adjacent to our home's windows.

Instructions:

INSPECTOR INFORMATION
DIVISION INSPECTOR D
BID BIRMINGHAM /6330

PRIORITY

REFFERAL INFORMATION

COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS

DIV INSPECTOR  STATUS eE
oonts [ossE oPENED o [amingram (O
o ‘Sgﬂlg?emouswc ‘ms T ‘c;«sgupmg T )
COMPLANT ACTION BY DWVISION
NOV (HIS): NOV (BID):
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Home Permit Services Plan Review Inspection Services | Most Requested Key Programs.

Home » Mst Resuestas

Welcome to our Permit / Complaint Tracking System!
COMPLAINT DATA SHEET

Complaint
Pin 201891801
Ouner/Agent  OWNER DATA SUPPRESSED Date Filed
Owners Phone:  — Location: 1085 ASHBURY ST
Contact Name: Block 1269
Contact Phone:  — Lot 167
COMPLAINANT DATA
Complainant: G ILERANAT site:
Rating
Occupancy Code:
Received By OHUANG
Complainants e e
Phone:
‘Complaint Source: WEB FORM
Assigned to sio
Division:

Gate last observed: 13-SEP-13; time last observed: 0900: identity of person performing the work: Vella Glass:

Description floor roof: exact location: Main Bldg: building type- Residence/Dwelling WORK W/O PERMIT:  additional
information: Apparent instalation of glass on roof w/o permi

Instructions;

INSPECTOR INFORMATION
DIVISION INSPECTOR D DISTRICT PRIORITY
BID HERNANDEZ /6340 18

REFFERAL INFORMATION

COMPLAINT STATUS AND COMMENTS

DATE TYPE DIV INSPECTOR _ STATUS COMMENT
OTHER BLDGIHOUSING (Case reviewsd, to be investigated by district
ognang  DTHERES NS |Hemandez  |cASE UPDATE 252 [Bre et
(CASE
09114118 [CASE OPENED BID Hemandez [SAOE

\Visited site, unable {0 see any one working
latsie at time of vist. Contacted complainant

|OTHER BLDGHOUSING \via-phone to gather addilonal information
e |VIOLATION Benkiaondecs | CAREUERINE [complainant e-mailed photos of work
lcurently being done. Wil do project
research
[OTHER BLDGHOUSING IFIRSTNOV

0911918 INS |Hemandez [First NOV issued: hivoh

TAN FRANCISCO
—

BUILDING INSPECTION
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Sent from my iPhone




review, copy, or distribute this email. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately by reply email, delete
it, and do not disclose its contents to anyone.



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for Item 11, 33 Capra Way
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:52:50 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Eduardo Sagues <eduardo.sagues@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 4:04 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Dito, Matthew (CPC) <matthew.dito@sfgov.org>
Cc: hello@northernneighbors.org; StefaniStaff, (BOS) <stefanistaff@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support for Item 11, 33 Capra Way
 

 

To the members of the Planning Commission:
 
I support the project to replace a single-family home with a 3-home building at 33 Capra Way. This
project is 100% code compliant and adds badly needed housing in San Francisco. We are in a
housing shortage and we should not delay projects that conform to the planning code.

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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
Subject: FW: 9/12/2019 PC Meeting - Balboa Reservoir
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:52:38 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Dennis Hong <dennisj.gov88@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 4:13 PM
To: Poling, Jeanie (CPC) <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>; Gibson, Lisa (CPC) <lisa.gibson@sfgov.org>; Board
of Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>
Subject: 9/12/2019 PC Meeting - Balboa Reservoir
 

 

Hello Poling, as promised, here are a view of my comments to this project; Please
use this as my continued support for this project. I live in District 7, just on the boarder
of this Project. I'm a long time resident of the city, seventy plus years. Born and raised
here in SF. I attended CCSF in the early 60's. Used public transit most of the time.

Hello Planning Commissioners, I'm sorry I will be unable to attend your Thursday
meeting to address this item on your agenda. Here are my preliminary thoughts with
the project for this case: 2018-007883ENV, BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT –
(Assessor’s Block 3180, Lot 190).

 

1. We desperately need housing. The city can not afford to do this work. The
sponsors and the community have worked hard on this project. This project fits the bill
as it address' our housing issues.

2. We need to address the parking for the college.

3. I'm concerned with the traffic exiting this site on to Ocean Ave. and how it may
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impact this retail section.

4. During the construction period, this massive project will need a lot of daily
communication from the sponsor to the community . All to often this process fails.

5. I would like your comments good or bad so that the sponsor and the community
can continue to work together to get this project moving with out further delays. In my
opinion by working together and solving these issues before the DEIR is certified only
makes sense so there aren't any road blocks before it is certified. As I see it, these
road blocks all too often hold up the progress and some times we loose the project
completely.

6. I'm not too sure how the current SB's and other bills will impact this wonderful
project.

7. I like the open space. Since this project focus on family, I would like to see a few
four bedroom units.

8. Finally, we must move quickly before we loos another project like this. I will be
submitting additional comments for the RTC.

If any one has any questions to my rambling email, please feel free to reach back to
me.

Sincerely, Dennis

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Hello Poling, as promised, here are a view of my comments to this project; Please
use this as my support for this project. I live in District 7, just on the boarder of this
Project. I'm a long time resident of the city, seventy plus years. Born and raised here
in SF. I attended CCSF in the early 60's. Used public transit most of the time.

 

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

 

1. We desperately need this housing. This project fits the bill as it address' our
housing issues.

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

5. I would like your comments for this project so that the sponsor and the community
can continue to work together to get this project moving with out further delays. By
working with these groups it only makes sense so there aren't any road blocks. As I
see it, these road blocks all too often hold up the progress and some times we loose
the project completely.

6. I'm not too sure how the current SB's and other bills will impact this wonderful
project.

7. I like the open space. Since this project has a focus on family, I would like to see a
few four bedroom units.

I will be submitting further Responses and comments for the RTC next week or so.

 

Finally, I too would like your support.

 

 

 

 
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for Item 11 - 33 Capra Way
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:52:30 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Jason Pellegrini <jasonpellegrini@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 5:09 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Dito, Matthew (CPC) <matthew.dito@sfgov.org>
Cc: hello@northernneighbors.org
Subject: Support for Item 11 - 33 Capra Way
 

 

To the members of the Planning Commission, 
 
I support the project to replace a single-family home with a 3-home building at 33 Capra Way. This
project is 100% Code Compliant and adds badly needed housing in San Francisco. We are in a
housing shortage and we should not delay projects that conform to the planning code.
 
Housing should be a human right and we must force all districts in San Francisco to play a role.  This
project would allow for two additional families to live and stay in District 2.
 
Thank you,
Jason Pellegrini
 
--
Jason Pellegrini
JasonPellegrini@Gmail.com
 
 
It is never too late to be what you might have been.  -George Eliot
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
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:52:14 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Cliff Bargar <cliff.bargar@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 6:37 PM
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
 

 

Dear Members of the Planning Commission, 

As a San Francisco renter I support the fully compliant project at 33 Capra Way. We're in a housing
shortage and need to add units wherever we can. Please don't delay! 

Thanks,
Cliff
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Tomorrow"s hearing. 9/12/2019
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:52:07 AM
Attachments: Gen"l Public Comment 91219.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Thomas Schuttish <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 4:18 PM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis (CPC)
<dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@yahoo.com
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Merlone, Audrey (CPC) <audrey.merlone@sfgov.org>
Subject: Tomorrow's hearing. 9/12/2019
 

 

Dear President Melgar, VP Koppel, Commissioner Moore, Commissioner Fung, Commissioner
Johnson, Commissioner Richards and Commissioner Hillis:
 
Good evening.
 
In the interest of saving time tomorrow (9/12) at the General Public Comment as I see that you have
an intense schedule with the Reservoir project, I am sending you a four page pdf about Demolitions
to read at your convenience.
 
Attached are the following:
 
Page 1:  May 17, 2007 Memo to the Commission from Staff re Sect. 317 (see paragraphs 4-7).
 
Page 2:  Building Code Sect. 103A.3.1 entitled “Demolition without permit”.
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Page 3:  Building Code Section 106A.3.2.2 entitled “Demolition".  Also note Sections 106A.3.2.2.1;
106A.3.2.2.2; 106A.3.2.3.
 
Page 4:  DBI Information Sheet S-04 dated June 22, 2015.
 
Sincerely,
Georgia Schuttish
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 33 Capra Way -2018-001940DRP-02 Planning Commission hearing date
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:51:21 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Callie Weber <calliedweber@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 4:50 PM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>;
Dito, Matthew (CPC) <matthew.dito@sfgov.org>; maurice1950@comcast.net
Subject: 33 Capra Way -2018-001940DRP-02 Planning Commission hearing date
 

 

To: Planning Commission

From: Callie Weber

Living across the street from the 33 Capra Way proposed project location, I have a handful
of serious reservations. 

1) The 4-story building next to the proposed project is a corner building. The traditional
pattern of the Marina architecture involves 4 or 5 stories high corner apartment buildings
 and two to three story lower scale buildings in between. The proposed four story
conversion of a classic Marina Bungalow would set a precedent for further development
and the gradual loss of this neighborhood defining pattern. 

2) The building that I live in (10 Capra Way) will be directly blocked from sunlight as a result
of this project. Not to mention obstructing any sort of view. You can build 3 units at 33
Capra Way without having to go so high and so deep.

3) The mid block open space needs to preserved for the benefit of all residents of the block
and neighborhood. 
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4) I am not against adding more units to this site.  I welcome utilizing the lot to its maximum
density.-more units can be built without building so high and deep. 
 
5) 33 Capra and 39 Capra were built in 1925 and  represent, hard to find, twin Marina
bungalows. These were found to be contributors to the Marina Corporation Residential
Historic District, according to the Preservation Review dated 10/5/18.
 
Thank you for taking the time to read my concerns,
 
Callie Weber
10 Capra Way
 
 



 
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
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:51:13 AM

 
 
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
 

From: murielle Robert <muriellerobert@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 7:08 PM
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
 

 

Dear President Melgar and fellow Commissioners,

 

My name is Murielle Robert, and I live across the street from the project, and I have serious
reservations about the proposed 3-unit development that will be going up at 33 Capra Way. 

a)      The proposed project seems like it will take away the natural light and the air in the
street, as it seems a massive construction that will go so high up.

 

b)      I am also concerned that with a roof deck being built on top of these 3 units, it will
impact my own privacy. I am not opposed to have more units being built in San
Francisco as the city needs them, but why do we need a roof deck in this new
construction? It will not add any housing.

 

c)       33 Capra and 39 Capra that are across the street from me were built in 1925 and
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represent, hard to find, twin Marina bungalows. These were found to be contributors to
the Marina Corporation Residential Historic District, according to the Preservation
Review dated 10/5/18.

 

d)     The traditional pattern of the Marina architecture involves 4 or 5 stories high corner
apartment buildings and two to three story lower heights buildings in between. The
proposed four story conversion of a classic Marina Bungalow would change the
neigborhood look.

            

 

d)      I am just wondering if it's not possible to build a 3 units at 33 Capra way without
going so high, and reduce some of the mass of this proposed development and
removing the roof deck? Right now, we have a mid-block open space in the street and
it’s kind of nice to have some buildings that are not so tall so we can have some light.

 

    

Thank you for reading.

 

Sincerely,

Murielle Robert



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Rich Hillis
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 33 Capra Way Item No. 11 on 9/12 Agenda case #2018-001940DRP-02
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:50:47 AM

 
 
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
 

From: SchuT <schuttishtr@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2019 8:32 AM
To: Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>
Cc: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: 33 Capra Way Item No. 11 on 9/12 Agenda case #2018-001940DRP-02
 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear David,
Good morning.
Sorry for the late email on this.
Below are photos of a similar project to Capra Way that is currently for sale at 4061-4063 Cesar Chavez. (RH-2 Zoning)
Similar in the fact that it was also a one story over garage single family home that had a two level vertical extension as well as the horizontal expansion as this one today on Capra is proposing.
I am sending these photos of Chavez Street for comparison. Please see below.
The project on Chavez is included in my list of over 70 projects mostly in Noe Valley that I think should have been reviewed as Demolitions.
The project on Capra Street sold for $2.605 million nearly two years ago in October 2017.    I would imagine that the three new condos there will have to be pretty pricey in order for the developer of this project to make a profit.
These two condos on Chavez are selling for $3.499 million and $2.769 million.  The original house sold for much less....but then it sold again after the entitlement. ($1.5 million on 4/2016 and then $2.35 on 6/2018)
I think the Demo Calcs for the front and rear facades for the Capra project are probably more accurate and honest than they were for the Chavez project but there are still parallel questions about both of these projects under the current values for the Demo Calcs.
Also the original house on Chavez was built in 1923 and the Capra house was built in 1926 which may raise issues about the construction methods necessary for each.
Also there are a group of similar houses in style and massing uphill towards Noe Street from the one on Chavez.
The one on Chavez really should have had a DR, but that is another story.
Actually if I want to be consistent it should have had a CUA as this one on Capra Way probably should.
One more comparison.
The Site Permit for Capra Way is valued at $881,437 and the Site Permit for Cesar Chavez Street is valued at $740K.
Thanks and have a good day.
Sincerely,
Georgia
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Sent from my iPad



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Winslow, David (CPC)
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support for tomorrow"s Item 11, 33 Capra Way
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 3:12:23 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Molly Alarcon <mollyalarcon@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 2:52 PM
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
Subject: Support for tomorrow's Item 11, 33 Capra Way
 

 

Dear Members of the Planning Commission:

I support the project to replace a single-family home with a 3-family building at 33 Capra Way, within
an area already zoned RH-3. This project is 100% code compliant and adds badly needed housing in
San Francisco. We are in a housing shortage and we should not delay projects that conform to the
planning code.

Thank you!
 
Molly Alarcon 
District 2 resident 
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
Subject: FW: I support beautiful infill in the Marina
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 3:12:15 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Caroline Bas <caroline.m.bas@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 3:02 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; Rich Hillis <richhillissf@gmail.com>; Dito, Matthew (CPC)
<matthew.dito@sfgov.org>
Cc: hello@northernneighbors.org; StefaniStaff, (BOS) <stefanistaff@sfgov.org>
Subject: I support beautiful infill in the Marina
 

 

To the members of the Planning Commission:

I support the project to replace a single-family home with a 3-home building at 33 Capra Way. This project is 100%
code compliant and adds badly needed housing in San Francisco. We are in a housing shortage and we should
not delay projects that conform to the planning code.

Thank you,
 
Caroline Bas
Northern Neighbors
 
--
--
Caroline Baş
+1 (415) 203-0642
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
Subject: FW: Support for Item 11 at the Planning Commission, 33 Capra Way
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 3:12:03 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Michael Chen <michael.yoon.chen@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 3:06 PM
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
Cc: hello@northernneighbors.org; Melanie Stein <melanie@marchcapitalfund.com>
Subject: Support for Item 11 at the Planning Commission, 33 Capra Way
 

 

To the Planning Department and the Planning Commission,

Northern Neighbors supports the proposed project at 33 Capra Way, to replace a single-
family building with a code-compliant 3-home multifamily building in RH-3 zoning. San
Francisco is in an acute housing crisis that contributes to severe unaffordability. We believe
the new housing would be a great addition to the city.

We would also like to note that this is a 100% code compliant project that adds housing,
and therefore this project is protected by the state Housing Accountability Act. If the
Planning Commission denies the project, overly delays the project, or makes this project
financially infeasible, the city will be liable for financial damages. 

Northern Neighbors is a neighborhood group based in San Francisco’s District 2 that
advocates for lively, livable neighborhoods. We support dense, walkable, transit-oriented
and vibrant places for people to live, work and play.

Thank you,
Michael Chen
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

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; STACY, KATE (CAT); JENSEN, KRISTEN
(CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT); RUIZ-ESQUIDE, ANDREA (CAT); WONG, VICTORIA (CAT)

Subject: RE: CPC & HPC Joint Agenda for September 26, 2019
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 2:36:20 PM
Attachments: 20190926_joint_offsite.docx

20190926_joint_offsite.pdf

Commissioners,
Attached is the Corrected Agenda sent out to the public.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:08 PM
To: Dennis Richards (dennis.richards@sfgov.org) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<Frank.Fung@sfgov.org>; Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC)
<Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Myrna Melgar
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Rich Hillis <richhillissf@gmail.com>; Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC
<aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; Black, Kate (CPC) <kate.black@sfgov.org>; Diane Matsuda
<dianematsuda@hotmail.com>; Jonathan Pearlman <jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com>; Richard
S. E. Johns <rsejohns@yahoo.com>
Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>; CTYPLN -
SENIOR MANAGERS <CPC.SeniorManagers@sfgov.org>; STACY, KATE (CAT)
(Kate.Stacy@sfcityatty.org) <Kate.Stacy@sfcityatty.org>; JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)
<Kristen.Jensen@sfcityatty.org>; Yang, Austin (CAT) <Austin.Yang@sfcityatty.org>; RUIZ-ESQUIDE,
ANDREA (CAT) (Andrea.Ruiz-Esquide@sfcityatty.org) <Andrea.Ruiz-Esquide@sfcityatty.org>; WONG,
VICTORIA (CAT) (Victoria.Wong@sfcityatty.org) <Victoria.Wong@sfcityatty.org>
Subject: CPC & HPC Joint Agenda for September 26, 2019
 
Commissioners,
Attached is your Agenda for the Joint Training Session on Thursday, September 26, 2019.
 
Note the location and time.
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
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Pier 1, The Embarcadero
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Thursday, September 26, 2019

9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

Special Off-Site Training





PLANNING COMMISSION: 	President: 	Myrna Melgar

	Vice-President: 	Joel Koppel

	Commissioners		Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson, 

			                              	Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

COMMISSION:	

	President: 		Aaron Hyland 

	Vice-President: 	Diane Matsuda

	Commissioners:	Kate Black, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin



Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400



Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org



Disability accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (415) 558-6309 at least 48 hours in advance.





Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

[bookmark: _Hlk879281]Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are generally held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _GoBack]	

PLANNING COMMISSION:	President:	Myrna Melgar	

	Vice-President:	Joel Koppel

		Commissioners:	Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson, 

			Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards

HISTORIC PRESERVATION

COMMISSION:	President: 	Aaron Hyland

	Vice-President: 	Diane Matsuda

	Commissioners:	Kate Black, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman





A.	SPECIAL CALENDAR  



1. RACIAL & SOCIAL EQUITY TRAINING

The Bay Area Regional Health Inequities Initiative (BARHII) will lead a one-day Racial and Social Equity foundations training for the Commissions. The Department’s Racial & Social Equity Initiative included training for all staff. Commissioners will review core equity concepts and broadly discuss how the Historic Preservation Commission and the Planning Commission can more effectively communicate and advance equity to create opportunity for all San Franciscans through the use of shared language, the understanding of historical context, bias, and individual, institutional, and structural racism, and the application of a Racial and Social Equity Assessment Tool to relevant Commission decisions. All City Departments are undertaking similar efforts and participating in the Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE) through the newly created SF Office of Racial Equity under the SF Human Rights Commission.

Recommendation: None - Informational



ADJOURNMENT
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Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance 
Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the 
City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City 
operations are open to the people's review.  
 
For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of 
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 
554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San 
Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine. 
  
Privacy Policy 
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act 
and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.  
 
Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its 
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made 
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This 
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit 
to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
  
San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance 
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist 
Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about 
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are generally held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public 
Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are 
available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.   
 
Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness 
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, 
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311. 
 
Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking 
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.  
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, 
please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or 
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la 
audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo 
menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 


CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少


48個小時提出要求。 


TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o 
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang 
maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  


RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным 
слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум 
за 48 часов до начала слушания.
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ROLL CALL:   
  
PLANNING COMMISSION: President: Myrna Melgar  
 Vice-President: Joel Koppel 
  Commissioners: Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson,  
   Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
COMMISSION: President:  Aaron Hyland 
 Vice-President:  Diane Matsuda 
 Commissioners: Kate Black, Richard S.E. Johns, Jonathan Pearlman 
 
 
A. SPECIAL CALENDAR   
 


1. RACIAL & SOCIAL EQUITY TRAINING 
The Bay Area Regional Health Inequities Initiative (BARHII) will lead a one-day Racial and 
Social Equity foundations training for the Commissions. The Department’s Racial & Social 
Equity Initiative included training for all staff. Commissioners will review core equity 
concepts and broadly discuss how the Historic Preservation Commission and the Planning 
Commission can more effectively communicate and advance equity to create opportunity 
for all San Franciscans through the use of shared language, the understanding of historical 
context, bias, and individual, institutional, and structural racism, and the application of a 
Racial and Social Equity Assessment Tool to relevant Commission decisions. All City 
Departments are undertaking similar efforts and participating in the Government Alliance 
on Race and Equity (GARE) through the newly created SF Office of Racial Equity under the 
SF Human Rights Commission. 
Recommendation: None - Informational 


 
ADJOURNMENT 





		Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

		Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding...

		San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

		Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report l...
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
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:43:58 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Riley Avron <riley.avron@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:32 PM
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
housing shortage and we should not delay projects that conform to the planning code. Too often,
discretionary review serves simply as a pay-to-delay tactic (and a cost-effective one at that!). In
addition to approving this project, I hope that the planning commission can push for reform to the
DR process to reduce friction wherever possible for the housing our city desperately needs.

Thank you.

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/


From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 2017-003559ENV - 3700 CALIFORNIA DEIR Comments (Meeting on 9/19/2019?)
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:30:22 PM
Attachments: ContractorTransportationParkingPlan_7.18.14.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: gumby5@att.net <gumby5@att.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:25 PM
To: Poling, Jeanie (CPC) <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org>
Cc: Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>;
Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Rich Hillis <richhillissf@gmail.com>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: 2017-003559ENV - 3700 CALIFORNIA DEIR Comments (Meeting on 9/19/2019?)
 
Dear Ms. Poling,
Thank you for the acknowledgement.
The hardcopies have the “Contractor Transportation and Parking Plan” included.
I could not get this Plan to embed into my comments pdf due to technical difficulties.
I attach that Plan here & it is to be part of my comments.
Thank you again.
Rose
 
From: Poling, Jeanie (CPC) <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 12:04 PM
To: gumby5@att.net
Subject: RE: 2017-003559ENV - 3700 CALIFORNIA DEIR Comments (Meeting on 9/19/2019?)
 
Hello Ms. Hillson,
 
This is to acknowledge that I received the hard copies and this email and will route the hard copies
to the Planning Commission for distribution tomorrow. Your comments will also be addressed in the
EIR responses to comments document.
 
Thank you.

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
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mailto:gumby5@att.net















































































































 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

Jeanie Poling
Senior Environmental Planner
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9072 | www.sfplanning.org
San Francisco Property Information Map
 
 
 

From: gumby5@att.net <gumby5@att.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 11:55 AM
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
Subject: 2017-003559ENV - 3700 CALIFORNIA DEIR Comments (Meeting on 9/19/2019?)
 

 

Dear Ms. Poling,
Attached are my comments on the June 13, 2019-published 3700 California St. DEIR
(State Clearinghouse No. 2018092043).
 
15 hardcopies were dropped off at Planning Department earlier this morning for the
Commission packets.
It is my understanding that the Commission will hear this on 9/19 and that the
comment period ends on 9/24/2019.
 
Thank you for your time.
Sincerely,
/s
Rose (Hillson)
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
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:22:51 PM

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

-----Original Message-----
From: Scott Feeney <scott@oceanbase.org>
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:20 PM
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

Dear Planning Commissioners,

I support the proposal to build a triplex where a single-family home now stands at 33 Capra Way. This project is
code compliant and results in 2 more homes in San Francisco. We are in a housing shortage and shouldn't delay
code-conforming projects that add housing.

Thank you,
Scott Feeney
San Francisco District 9 resident

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
Subject: FW: Materials for 9-19-19 Planning Commission Hearing - Lozeau Drury Appeal MND (2017-002545ENV)
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:05:25 PM
Attachments: 1_2019.09.10.Planning Comm MND ComLtr.pdf

2_2019.07.15.2417 Green MND Appeal.pdf
3_Karp Resume 9-9-19.pdf
4_LBK to Stephan Leung 7-5-19.pdf
5_LBK to SFPC 1-17-19.pdf
6_CLK to SFPC 9-11-19.pdf
7_CLK Green Report Supplement to SFPC 1-14-19.pdf
8_2019.09.09.SWAPE MND Comment Letter.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Stacey Oborne <stacey@lozeaudrury.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:03 PM
To: Melgar, Myrna (CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Poling, Jeanie
(CPC) <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org>
Cc: 'Richard Drury' <richard@lozeaudrury.com>
Subject: Materials for 9-19-19 Planning Commission Hearing - Lozeau Drury Appeal MND (2017-
002545ENV)
 

 

Dear All,
 
Please find attached materials regarding Lozeau Drury’s appeal of the Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the 2417 Green Street project (2017-002545ENV), which appeal is to be heard at the
San Francisco Planning Commission meeting on September 19, 2019.  Please note that 15
hardcopies and one electronic copy of these documents are also being hand-delivered today to the
Planning Commission Secretary. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact our office.
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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http://www.sfplanning.org/



 
 
September 11, 2019 
 
Via Hand Delivery and Email 
 
President Myrna Melgar (myrna.melgar@sfgov.org) 
Vice-President Joel Koppel (joel.koppel.sfgov.org) 
Commissioner Frank Fung (frank.fung@sfgov.org) 
Commissioner Rich Hillis (richhillissf@gmail.com) 
Commissioner Milicent A Johnson (milicent.johnson@sfgov.org) 
Commissioner Kathrin Moore (kathrin.moore@sfgov.org) 
Commissioner Dennis Richards (dennis.richards@sfgov.org)  
 


Re: 2417 Green Street: Appeal of Preliminary Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (2017-002545ENV). September 19, 2019.  


 
 
President Melgar and Honorable Members of the Planning Commission: 
 
 On Thursday, September 19, 2019 you will have the opportunity to help save an 
historic home on a steep hill in San Francisco from a dangerous excavation that 
jeopardizes the safety of the historic Coxhead home. The historic Coxhead home may be 
irreparably harmed by the adjacent, speculative development. My client Philip Kaufman, 
the owner of the historic Coxhead home at 2421 Green Street, has lived there for thirty 
years and has preserved the historic house intact.  We respectfully urge you to save his 
home by voting to follow CEQA and demand that the downslope developer submit to an 
Environmental Impact Report for the proposed Project at 2417 Green Street, San 
Francisco. 
 
 A private for-profit developer, Christopher Durkin (“Developer”), has proposed to 
largely destroy the UNOCCUPIED home at 2417 Green Street, and construct a much 
larger home on the site (“Project”) that will adversely affect the neighborhood, including 
the historic home located at 2421 Green Street built in 1893 by noted architect Ernest 
Coxhead as his personal residence (“Coxhead House”).  The Coxhead House is 
immediately adjacent and uphill from the proposed Project, on a 24% slope. The 
Developer has prepared drawings for construction showing excavation on 2417 Green 
property up to the zero setback property line with the Coxhead House’s fragile, tall, 
single-width brick foundation at a depth of 13 feet.  The City’s own Preliminary Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (“PMND”) states, "the project construction could compromise 
the structural integrity of the historic adjacent foundation at 2421 Green Street. 
This would be a significant impact." (PMND pp. 18, 62-63).  The PMND further states, 
“The proposed project could directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture of a known earthquake 
fault, seismic ground shaking, ground failure, or landslides.” (PMND, p. 59).  Yet, the 
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PMND’s only “mitigation measure” is that "if unacceptable earth movement or evidence of 
structural settlement is encountered during construction … project excavation shall be 
halted and the geotechnical engineer shall evaluate if additional measures are required to 
prevent further movement." (PMND p. 62).  Of course, if “unacceptable earth movement” 
occurs, it may be too late to save the fragile and historically irreplaceable Coxhead 
House.  Dr. Lawrence Karp, Ph.D. concludes that the proposed Project will undermine the 
historic foundations of the Coxhead House, and that no adequate mitigation measures 
have been proposed to address this existential threat.   
  
 On September 19, 2019, the Planning Commission is scheduled to consider our 
appeal of the San Francisco Planning Department’s June 26, 2019 determination of no 
significant effect on the environment pursuant to the CEQA. We are writing on behalf of 
appellant Philip Kaufman, the thirty year resident of the historic “Coxhead House.” We 
urge the Planning Commission to reject the PMND and direct staff to prepare an 
environmental impact report (“EIR”) to analyze the proposed Project’s significant impacts, 
and to propose feasible and enforceable mitigation measures and alternatives to reduce 
the Project’s impacts.  These safeguards must be developed before Project approval and 
construction – not after.  This is the fundamental purpose of CEQA – to “insure the 
integrity of the process of decision by precluding stubborn problems or serious criticism 
from being swept under the rug.” (Concerned Citizens of Costa Mesa, Inc. v. 32nd Dist. 
Agric. Assn., 42 Cal. 3d 929, 935(1986).) 


 
A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 


The Developer proposes a large project at 2417 Green Street. Mr. Kaufman’s 
home, at 2421 Green Street, is directly adjacent to the proposed Project.  Mr. Kaufman’s 
home is the historically significant “Coxhead House,” constructed in 1893 by noted 
architect Ernest Coxhead as his own home.  Ernest Coxhead was the father of the First 
Bay Tradition of architecture and the home is one of the most historically significant 
properties in the City.  


 
The proposed Project would construct one- and three-story horizontal rear 


additions; and construct third and fourth floor vertical additions above the existing single-
family dwelling. The floor area would increase from approximately 4,118 square feet to 
approximately 5,115 square feet and would include a one-bedroom accessory dwelling 
unit measuring approximately 1,023 square feet on the first floor. The Project also 
proposes the partial excavation of the rear yard for a sunken terrace, façade alternations, 
and interior modifications, including the underground expansion toward 2421 Green of the 
existing basement level garage to accommodate three additional vehicles.1 Finally, “the 
property is on an approximately 24 percent slope,” and would require “excavation of 
approximately 408 cubic yards of soil and rock to a depth of 13 feet below grade.”2 
 


                                                 
1 Although the Project application states that the garage is intended to accommodate two 
cars, the large expansion creates space for up to four cars.  
2 Second exemption under CEQA at p. 1-2.  
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B. HISTORY 
 
 The planning staff has twice attempted to exempt the proposed Project entirely 
from CEQA review.  The Board of Supervisors has twice unanimously rejected the 
CEQA exemptions, holding:   
 


The proposed project at 2417 Green Street “presents unusual circumstances 
relating to historic resources and hazardous materials and it appears as a result of 
those circumstances the project may have a significant effect on the 
environment … therefore the project is not categorically exempt from CEQA.”3 
 
- Unanimous 11-0 Vote of the San Francisco Board of Supervisors (Feb. 6, 


2018) (emphasis added).  
 


Despite the Board of Supervisors ruling, Planning Staff has issued a mitigated 
negative declaration (“MND”) rather than an environmental impact report (“EIR”).  An 
MND is only appropriate if there is not even a “fair argument” that the Project may have 
any adverse environmental impacts.  However, the Board has already found that the 
proposed Project “may have a significant effect on the environment” related to impacts to 
“historic resources” and “hazardous materials.”  The MND does almost nothing to address 
these impacts.   


 
During the pendency of these proceedings, the Project Developer, Mr. Durkin, has 


racked up at least five separate Notices of Violation (“NOVs”) for “work without a permit." 
He removed two chimneys illegally without a permit and despite notices, left gaping holes 
in the roof  for many months, through an entire rainy season. This created an environment 
ripe for mold, rot, rodent infestations, etc. His apparent purpose may have been to 
dilapidate the house and create a tear-down situation.  Ultimately, on April 13, 2019, the 
City Department of Building Inspection, Code Enforcement Division issued a notice of 
Order of Abatement that the building was UNSAFE and/or a PUBLIC NUISANCE due to 
failure to remedy past violations. 


 
C. CEQA 
 


1. LEGAL STANDARD 


Under CEQA, an environmental impact report (“EIR”) is required rather than a 
mitigated negative declaration (“MND”) if there is even a “fair argument” that a proposed 
project “may have” any adverse environmental impacts   -- even if contrary evidence 
exists to support the agency’s decision.4  Put simply, “if there is a disagreement among 
experts over the significance of an effect, the agency is to treat the effect as significant 
and prepare an EIR.”5  The purpose of the EIR is to analyze significant environmental 
                                                 
3 Motion M18-012, pp. 3-4 (amended February 6, 2018) (Exhibit A).   
4 14 CCR § 15064(f)(1); Stanislaus Audubon Society v. County of Stanislaus (1995) 33 
Cal.App.4th 144, 150-15. 
5 Sierra Club v. County of Sonoma, 6 Cal.App.4th at pp. 1316–1317;  Moss v. Humboldt (2008) 
162 Cal. App. 4th 1041, 1049. 
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impacts and to propose feasible, enforceable mitigation measures and alternatives to 
reduce the proposed project’s impacts.   
 


2. SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS 


 The proposed Projects has many significant environmental impacts that have not 
been adequately mitigated, including the following: 
 


a. STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY:  After numerous comments from Dr. Lawrence Karp, 
Ph.D., the PMND admits that "the project construction could compromise the 
structural integrity of the historic adjacent foundation at 2421 Green Street. 
This would be a significant impact." (PMND pp. 18, 62-63).  Nevertheless, the 
city refuses even to require the Project to comply with the San Francisco Seismic 
Hazard Zone Protection Act.  Instead, the PMND merely states: "if unacceptable 
earth movement or evidence of structural settlement is encountered during 
construction, as determined by the geotechnical engineer, project excavation shall 
be halted and the geotechnical engineer shall evaluate if additional measures are 
required to prevent further movement." (PMND p. 62).  The sole mitigation 
measure, M-GE-1, simply requires "ongoing coordination" with the Planning 
Department and Department of Building Inspection during construction. (PMND p. 
79). This mitigation measure is plainly inadequate to reduce this impact to less 
than significant. The measure allows earth movement to occur first, and then the 
developer would possibly develop a plan after the fact to mitigate the harm.  The 
problem with this is that by the time "unacceptable earth movement" occurs, the 
thin Wythe brick foundation of the historic Coxhead House may already have 
suffered possibly catastrophic irreparable harm.  CEQA prohibits such "deferred" 
mitigation.  An EIR is required to analyze this admittedly significant impact and to 
develop enforceable mitigation measures prior to construction -- not after 
irreparable harm occurs. 
 


b. HISTORIC IMPACTS:  The PMND finally admits the historic significance of the 
Coxhead House, as established by Architectural Historian Carol Karp, AIA.  
However, the sole mitigation measure is the above-mentioned M-GE-1 - to require 
ongoing coordination with the Planning Department and DBI during construction.  
As discussed above, this is clearly inadequate to prevent structural damage to the 
Coxhead House given the steep slope and fragile historic foundation.  Also, the 
PMND ignores entirely the impact that the massive expansion will have on access 
to light and air from 24 windows at the Coxhead House, which contribute to its 
historic significance.  The PMND dismisses the fact that the massive project will 
block public views of the Coxhead House from Pierce and Green Streets.  While 
the PMND states that these are not the "primary views" of the Coxhead House, 
there is no distinction in CEQA law between primary and secondary views of 
historic resources.  Again, an EIR is required to analyze the project's impacts to 
the historic Coxhead House, and to propose feasible alternatives and mitigation 
measures to reduce the impacts. 
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c. SOIL CONTAMINATION:  As discussed by certified hydrogeologist Matthew 


Hagemann, C. Hg., formerly director of the US EPA Western Superfund program, 
the Project site is on the City's Maher Map of potentially contaminated sites. The 
developer proposes to excavate over 400 cubic yards of potentially contaminated 
soil. Despite this, neither the city nor the developer has conducted any additional 
soil testing.  The PMND continues to rely on 2 "co-located" soil samples taken in 
2018 from within the garage.  Mr. Hagemann has testified that these samples are 
inadequate because the garage was rebuilt in in the 1980s.  Therefore, this is the 
one area where the soil would be expected to be clean.  Instead, soil sampling is 
required in the areas proposed to be excavated, including the rear yard. This has 
not been done.  Again, an EIR is required to analyze and mitigate this impact.   
 


d. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS RESOLUTIONS:  The MND fails even to mention the 
unanimous resolutions of the Board of Supervisors, finding that the proposed 
Project at 2417 Green Street “presents unusual circumstances relating to historic 
resources and hazardous materials and it appears as a result of those 
circumstances the project may have a significant effect on the environment...”  
This finding itself creates a “fair argument” that the project may have adverse 
environmental impacts, thereby necessitating an EIR. Staff lacks the power to 
ignore the unanimous resolution of the Board of Supervisors, which is the City’s 
ultimate decision-making body.   


 After being ordered by the Board of Supervisors to prepare a CEQA document to 
investigate and disclose the proposed Project’s potentially significant impacts on the 
Coxhead House, the Planning Department prepared a bare bones mitigated negative 
declaration devoid of independent agency investigation and analysis. An EIR is required 
since eminently well-qualified experts have concluded that the proposed Project will have 
adverse impacts on the historic Coxhead House.   
 
D. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW. 
 
 The Commission should decline to reach the discretionary review issue.  It is 
premature to address discretionary review or any Project approvals until an adequate 
CEQA document is prepared for the Project.  See, Save Tara v. City of W. Hollywood, 45 
Cal. 4th 116 (2008).  
/// 
/// 
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E. CONCLUSION 


 
 For the above reasons, we respectfully request that the Planning Commission 
reject the Preliminary Mitigated Negative Declaration and direct staff to prepare an 
Environmental Impact Report for the proposed Project.  We also request that the 
Commission decline to consider Discretionary Review unless and until an adequate EIR 
is prepared for the Project.  


      Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
      Richard Drury  
      Lozeau Drury LLP 
 
cc:  Sup. Catherine Stefani 
 Sup. Aaron Peskin 








T 510.836.4200 
F 510.836.4205 


Via Hand Delivery and Email 


Lisa Gibson 
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
lisa.gibson@sfgov.org 


1939 Harr ison Street, Ste. 150 
Oakland. CA 94612 


www.lozeaudrury.com 
br ian@lozeaudrury.com 


July 15, 2019 RECEIVED 


JUL 1 5 2019 
CITY & COUNTY OF S.F. 


PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
RECEPTION DESK 


Re: 2417 Green Street: Appeal of Preliminary Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(2017-002545ENV) 


Dear Ms. Gibson: 


Please accept this appeal of the San Francisco Planning Department's June 26, 2019 
determination of no significant effect on the environment pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"). This appeal is submitted on behalf of Philip Kaufman of 
2421 Green Street (the "Coxhead House") in response to the preliminary mitigated negative 
declaration ("PMND") prepared for the proposed project at 2417 Green Street ("Project"). This 
appeal is accompanied by the required filing fee. 


Mr. Kaufman intends to submit additional comments in the coming weeks. The Planning 
Department provided just 20 days for public review of the PMND, over a major holiday 
weekend, preventing Mr. Kaufman's experts from fully responding by the deadline. 


A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


The Project would lower all floor plates by approximately 2 feet; construct one- and 
three-story horizontal rear additions; and construct third and fourth floor vertical additions above 
the existing single-family dwelling. The floor area would increase from approximately 4,118 
square feet to approximately 5,115 square feet and would include a one-bedroom accessory 
dwelling unit measuring approximately 1,023 square feet on the first floor. The Project also 
proposes the partial excavation of the rear yard for a sunken terrace, fa~ade alternations, and 
interior modifications, including the underground expansion toward 2421 Green of the existing 
basement level garage to accommodate three additional vehicles. 1 Finally, "the property is on an 
approximately 24 percent slope," and would require "excavation of approximately 408 cubic 
yards of soil and rock to a depth of 13 feet below grade."2 


1 Although the Project application states that the garage is intended to accommodate two cars, the large expansion 
creates space for up to four cars . 
2 Second exemption under CEQA at p. 1-2. 
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1. Project History 


 
 From the start, both the City’s Department of Building Inspection (“DBI”) and the 
Planning Department failed to communicate on this Project regarding various permit and 
reporting requirements. Then separately, each department appeared to cut corners in order to fast 
track the proposed Project, resulting in a lack of communication between the two departments 
which resulted in legally and factually deficient project documentation that persists to this day.  
 


 On May 16, 2017, the Planning Department issued a categorical exemption (2017-
002545ENV) for a proposed excavation/addition project for “Alterations to an existing 
four-story-over-basement, single-family residence with one vehicle parking space; 
excavate to add two vehicle parking spaces; three-story rear addition; facade alterations 
and foundation replacement; lower existing building.” 
 


 On May 18, 2017, the Department of Building Inspection (“DBI”) issued a permit for 
“Partial deteriorated basement wall and foundation replacement with new landscaping 
site wall at backyard.”3 DBI noted that the foundation work did not require planning 
department approval, and thus did not send the permit to the planning department for 
review. 
 


 On September 27, 2017, DBI determined that the scope of work occurring at the Project 
site warranted review by the Planning Department. The Planning Department in turn 
determined that the Project was subject to San Francisco Planning Code section 311 
neighborhood notification, which had not yet been completed. This is because the 
excavation of a rear retaining wall aligned with the proposed foundation of a proposed 
horizontal rear addition.” 
 


 On October 10, 2017, the Planning Department determined that the May 16, 2017 
categorical exemption covered existing excavation work, thus the Planning Department 
signed off on all excavation work “below the existing building without the side wall of 
the proposed rear addition.” 
 


 On October 23, 2017, the Planning Department issued neighborhood notification 
pursuant to Planning Code section 311 for the proposed horizontal rear expansion under. 
 


 On November 3, 2017, DBI issued BPA #201710020114 for legalization of the 
excavation work. 
 


 On November 17, 2017, Mr. Kaufman appealed the May 16, 2017 categorical exemption 
(categorial exemption No. 1) to the San Francisco Board of Supervisors. 


                                                 
3 Permit No. BPA #201705116316. 
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 On January 9, 2018, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors voted unanimously 
“reversing the determination by the Planning Department that the proposed Project at 
2417 Green Street is categorically exempt from further environmental review.” 
 


  On February 6, 2018, after considering expert evidence and public testimony, the Board 
of Supervisors again voted unanimously, finding that the proposed Project “presents 
unusual circumstances relating to historic resources and hazardous materials and it 
appears as a result of those circumstances the project may have a significant effect on the 
environment … therefore the project is not categorically exempt from CEQA.”4 
 


 On June 22, 2018, the Planning Department issued a second categorical exemption to 
CEQA despite the Board of Supervisors unanimous vote holding the Project subject to 
CEQA review.  
 


 On July 20, 2018, Mr. Kaufman appealed the June 22, 2018 categorical exemption 
(categorial exemption No. 2) to the San Francisco Board of Supervisors. 
 


 On July 30, 2018, the Planning Department determined Mr. Kaufman’s appeal of the 
second categorical exemption was not ripe because the Planning Commission had not 
made a final determination on the Project. 
 


 On January 15, 2019, the Planning Department withdrew its second categorical 
exemption and commenced an initial study of the proposed Project.  
 


 On June 26, 2019, the Planning Department issued a preliminary mitigated negative 
declaration, the subject of this appeal. 
 
2. Project Permitting, Notices of Violation and Stop Work Orders 
 
Throughout the City’s project approval process the developer conducted unpermitted 


work or violated existing permits leading to at least five formal notices of violation (NOVs).  
 


 On September 27, 2017, DBI received a complaint5 that the developer was “Working 
beyond the scope of its permit.”6 DBI contacted the Planning Department which in turn 
determined that aspects of the Project was subject to San Francisco Planning Code 
section 311 neighborhood notification, which had not yet been completed. 
 


 On October 2, 2017, the planning department opened enforcement action in response to 
the September 27, 2017 complaint. 


                                                 
4 Motion M18-012, pp. 3-4 (amended February 6, 2018).   
5 DBI Complaint No. 201708032. 
6 BPA Permit No. 201705116316. 
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 On December 12, 2017, DBI issued a formal NOV, citing the developer for engaging in 


“WORK WITHOUT PERMIT” and “WORK BEYOND SCOPE OF PERMIT.” The 
NOV was based on unpermitted work on December 10, 2017, when the developer 
removed a highly visible exterior chimney at 2417 Green.  
 


 On December 13, 2017, the developer unlawfully removed a second exterior chimney at 
the rear of the house – leaving two gaping holes in the roof of the property.  
 


 On Saturday, December 16, 2017, the developer conducted demolition activities in the 
foundation of the property, which was unlawful due to a pending CEQA appeal, which 
challenged the permit allowing foundation work. 
 


 DBI sent an emergency inspector to stop work that day, then DBI issued a formal NOV 
ordering the developer to “STOP ALL WORK.”  
 


 On January 8, 2018, the City issued a Notice of Violation directing the developer to 
repair illegal holes made in the roof of the property. 
 


 On January 9, 2018, the City issued a Notice of Violation Final Warning when the 
developer failed to repair the unlawful damage to the home.  
 


 On April 13, 2018, the City Department of Building Inspection, Code Enforcement 
Division issued a notice of Order of Abatement that the building was UNSAFE and/or a 
PUBLIC NUISANCE” due to failure to remedy past violations. 
 


 On February 7, 2019, the City posted yet another NOV for failure to comply with the 
City’s vacant or abandoned building ordinance.  


 
  The long line of NOV’s shows the developer allowed the property to fall into an 
irreversible state of disrepair, creating a “public nuisance.” This long-vacant building is plagued 
by rain, mold, and other forms of dilapidation, and has windows or doors that slam open and shut 
on windy nights, disturbing the sleep of neighbors. 
 
 In addition, the history of violations is relevant under CEQA. According to the California 
Supreme Court, “A project proponent's prior environmental record is properly a subject of 
close consideration in determining the sufficiency of the proponent's promises in an EIR.”7 
Given the Project’s history of environmental violations, decision makers and the public are 
entitled to full environmental review in an EIR that would include, among other things, specific, 
binding, and enforceable mitigation measures imposed through a full CEQA process not reliant 
on the developer’s promises that all necessary safeguards will occur.  
 


                                                 
7 Laurel Heights Improvement Assoc. v. Regents of the Univ. of Calif., 47 Cal.3d 376, 420 (1988). 
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B. LEGAL STANDARD 
 


1. California Environmental Quality Act 
 


 The ‘foremost principle’ in interpreting CEQA is that it must be read so as to afford the 
fullest possible protection to the environment within the reasonable scope of the statutory 
language.8 CEQA requires agencies to conduct a three-tier process to ensure that the 
environmental consequences of their decisions are fully considered.9 The first tier is 
jurisdictional, requiring an agency to complete a preliminary review to determine whether an 
activity is subject to CEQA.10 An activity that is not a “project” is not subject to CEQA.11 The 
second-tier concerns exemptions from CEQA review, both statutory and categorical.12 If a 
project does not fall within an exemption, the agency must “conduct an initial study to determine 
if the project may have a significant effect on the environment.”13  
 
 If there exists “no substantial evidence that the project or any of its aspects may cause a 
significant effect on the environment,” the agency prepares a “negative declaration” that briefly 
describes the reasons supporting its determination.14 CEQA's third tier applies if the agency 
determines substantial evidence exists that an aspect of the project may cause a significant effect 
on the environment. In that event, the agency must ensure that a full environmental impact report 
is prepared on the proposed project.15  
 


a. Distinction between Mitigated Negative Declarations and 
Environmental Impact Reports 


 
i. When Mitigated Negative Declarations Are Appropriate 


 
 CEQA only allows a negative declaration if there is no substantial evidence in light of the 
whole record before the lead agency that a project will have a significant effect on the 
environment.16 If the evidence shows there is no substantial evidence of a significant effect, the 
agency prepares a negative declaration.”17 Conversely, “if no EIR has been prepared for a 
nonexempt project, but substantial evidence in the record supports a fair argument that the 
project may result in significant adverse impacts, the proper remedy is to order preparation of an 


                                                 
8 Communities for a Better Env’t v. Cal. Resources Agency (2002) 103 Cal.App.4th 98, 109. 
9 No Oil, Inc. v. City of Los Angeles (1974) 13 Cal.3d 68, 74. 
10 CEQA Guidelines, § 15060; see Pub. Resources Code, § 21065. 
11 Public Resources Code (see § 21065. 
12 Pub. Resources Code, § 21080(b)(1) (2). 
13 CEQA Guidelines, § 15063(a). 
14 Id., §§ 15063(b)(2);15070 (emphasis added). 
15 CEQA Guidelines, § 15063(b)(1); see also Pub. Resources Code, §§ 21100, 21151; CEQA Guidelines, § 15080. 
16 Pub. Res. Code § 21080(c); See also CEQA Guidelines 15064(f)(3). 
17 Id. 
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EIR.”18 “Significant environmental effect” is defined very broadly as “a substantial or potentially 
substantial adverse change in the environment.”19 An effect on the environment need not be 
“momentous” to meet the CEQA test for significance; it is enough that the impacts are “not 
trivial.”20 Because “the adoption of a negative declaration . . . has a terminal effect on the 
environmental review process,” by allowing the agency “to dispense with the duty [to prepare an 
EIR],” negative declarations are allowed only in cases where “the proposed project will not 
affect the environment at all.”21 
 
 Finally, a mitigated negative declaration is proper only if the project revisions would 
avoid or mitigate the potentially significant effects identified in the initial study “to a point where 
clearly no significant effect on the environment would occur, and…there is no substantial 
evidence in light of the whole record before the public agency that the project, as revised, may 
have a significant effect on the environment.”22 In that context, “may” means a reasonable 
possibility of a significant effect on the environment.23 
 


ii. When Environmental Impact Reports are Required 
 


Whenever “there is substantial evidence, in light of the whole record before the lead 
agency, that the project may have a significant effect on the environment,” the agency must 
prepare an EIR.24 Particularly relevant here is the rule that CEQA places the burden of 
environmental investigation on government rather than the public. “An agency shall not be 
allowed to hide behind its own failure to gather relevant data.”25 An EIR should always be 
prepared in “doubtful cases,” so that agencies do not make decisions “without the relevant data 
or a detailed study of it.”26 In very limited circumstances, an agency may avoid preparing an EIR 
by issuing a negative declaration, only if there is not even a “fair argument” that the project will 
have a significant environmental effect.27  


 
  iii. Fair Argument Standard  


 
The “fair argument” standard creates a “low threshold” favoring environmental review 


through an EIR rather than through issuance of negative declarations or notices of exemption 
from CEQA.28 Under the “fair argument” standard, an EIR is required if any substantial evidence 
in the record indicates that a project may have an adverse environmental effect—even if contrary 


                                                 
18 Communities for a Better Env’t v. South Coast Air Quality Management Dist. (2010) 48 Cal.4th 310, 319-320. 
19 Id.  
20 No Oil, Inc., 13 Cal.3d at 83. 
21 Citizens of Lake Murray v. San Diego (1989) 129 Cal.App.3d 436, 440. 
22 PRC §§ 21064.5, 21080(c)(2); Mejia v. City of Los Angeles (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 322, 331. 
23 PRC §§ 21082.2(a), 21100, 21151(a); League for Protection of Oakland's etc. Historic Resources v. City of 
Oakland (1997) 52 Cal.App.4th 896, 904–05. 
24 PRC § 21080(d); see also Pocket Protectors v. City of Sacramento (2004) 124 Cal.App.4th 903, 927. 
25 Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal.App.3d 296, 311. 
26 No Oil, Inc. 13 Cal.3d at 84. 
27 PRC, §§ 21100, 21064; 14 Cal. Code Regs.§ 15371. 
28 Pocket Protectors, 124 Cal.App.4th at 928. 
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evidence exists to support the agency’s decision.29 Credible expert testimony that a project may 
have a significant impact, even if contradicted, is generally dispositive that an EIR must be 
prepared.30 An EIR is required precisely in order to resolve the dispute among experts. In fact, a 
disagreement among experts has been a factor in court decisions to require an EIR.31 The very 
uncertainty created by the conflicting assertions made by the parties … underscores the necessity 
of the EIR to substitute some degree of factual certainty for tentative opinion and speculation.32  
Put simply, “if there is a disagreement among experts over the significance of an effect, the 
agency is to treat the effect as significant and prepare an EIR.”33  
 


The “fair argument” standard is virtually the opposite of the typical deferential standard 
accorded to agencies. As a leading CEQA treatise explains: 


 
This ‘fair argument’ standard is very different from the standard normally 
followed by public agencies in making administrative determinations. Ordinarily, 
public agencies weigh the evidence in the record before them and reach a decision 
based on a preponderance of the evidence. The fair argument standard, by 
contrast, prevents the lead agency from weighing competing evidence to 
determine who has a better argument concerning the likelihood or extent of a 
potential environmental impact. The lead agency’s decision is thus largely legal 
rather than factual; it does not resolve conflicts in the evidence but determines 
only whether substantial evidence exists in the record to support the prescribed 
fair argument.34 


 
Courts are clear that “it is a question of law, not fact, whether a fair argument exists, and the 
courts owe no deference to the lead agency’s determination. Review is de novo, with a 
preference for resolving doubts in favor of environmental review.”35 
 


b. CEQA Requirements for Historical Resources 
 
California properties deemed eligible for listing on the national historic registry of 


historic places, like the Coxhead House, are protected under CEQA. An historical resource is a 
resource listed in, or determined to be eligible for listing in, the California Register of Historical 


                                                 
29 14 CCR § 15064(f)(1); Pocket Protectors, 124 Cal.App.4th at 931; Stanislaus Audubon Society v. County of 
Stanislaus (1995) 33 Cal.App.4th 144, 150-15. 
30 City of Livermore v. LAFCO (1986) 184 Cal.App.3d 531, 541-542. 
31 City of Carmel-by-the-Sea v. Board of Supervisors (1986) 183 Cal.App.3d 229, 
32 No Oil, Inc. v. City of Los Angeles (1974) 13 Cal.3d 68, 85. 
33 Sierra Club v. County of Sonoma, 6 Cal.App.4th at pp. 1316–1317;  Moss v. Cty. of Humboldt (2008) 162 Cal. 
App. 4th 1041, 1049. 
 
34 Kostka & Zishcke, Practice Under CEQA, §6.29, pp. 273-74.) 
35 Pocket Protectors, 124 Cal.App.4th at 928 (emphasis in original.) 
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Resources.36  Then the test is if a project may cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource, the project shall not be exempted from the statute.37   
 


For preparing CEQA documents for an historic resource, San Francisco adopted 
Preservation Bulletin No. 16. That Bulletin sets out a two-step process for evaluating the 
potential for proposed projects to impact historical resources. First, a Preservation Planner 
determines whether the property is an historical resource as defined by CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15064.5(a)(3); and, second, if the property is an historical resource, the Preservation 
Planner then evaluates whether the proposed action or project would cause a “substantial adverse 
change” to the historical resource.38 


 
 CEQA defines a ʺsubstantial adverse changeʺ as the physical demolition, destruction, 


relocation or alteration of the historical resource or its immediate surroundings such that the 
significance of the historical resource would be materially impaired. CEQA goes on to 
define ʺmaterially impairedʺ as work that materially alters, in an adverse manner, those physical 
characteristics that convey the resource’s historical significance and justify its inclusion in the 
California Register of Historic Places, a local register of historical resources, or an historical 
resource survey.39  It is also appropriate for a lead agency to consider not only the project site, 
but also the immediate surroundings. For example, under CEQA, a new fence was prohibited 
near a historic granite wall in Los Angeles because the fence would have detracted from the 
historic significance of the wall.40 
 


 c. CEQA Requirements for local Land use plans 
 
 A project deemed consistent with general or specific plans, such as design guidelines, or 
zoning ordinances, can still be subject to CEQA review.41 This is because findings in a CEQA 
document may differ from findings made in consistency determination for zoning or local and/or 
general plans. “Each answers different questions, such that different answers are not 
prohibited.”42 A public agency’s own design review is not a substitute for CEQA review.43 
Applying an agency’s threshold of significance may be useful, but will “not relieve a public 
agency of the duty to consider the evidence under the fair argument standard.”44 Courts have 
held “conformity with a general plan does not insulate a project from EIR review where it can be 
fairly argued that the project will generate significant environmental effects.45 
 


                                                 
36 See San Francisco Preservation Bulletin No. 16 (2004); CEQA §21084(e); CEQA Guidelines §15300.2(f). 
37 CEQA § 21084.1. 
38 San Francisco Preservation Bulletin No. 16, at p. 2. 
39 CEQA Guidelines 15064.5(b), Bulletin 16, p. 9. 
40 Committee to Save the Hollywoodland Specific Plan v. City of Los Angeles (2008) 161 Cal. App. 4th 1168.  
41 Georgetown Preservation Society v. County of El Dorado (2018) 30 Cal.App.5th 358 
42 Georgetown Preservation Society, 30 Cal.App.5th at 372. 
43 Id. see also Mejia v. City of Los Angeles (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 322, 342, 29. 
44 Mejia at 29. 
45 Citizens for Responsible & Open Government v. City of Grand Terrace (2008) 160 Cal.App.4th 1323, 1338. 
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  d. CEQA Requirements for Projects Listed on the Maher Map of   
   Potentially Contaminated Sites  
 


The Project site is located on the City’s Maher Map of potentially contaminated sites.46 
When public agencies issue environmental permits or approve environmental cleanups their 
actions are subject to CEQA unless an exemption applies.47  
 
C. Grounds for Appeal: The Planning Department Must Prepare an Environmental 
 Impact Report under CEQA 


 
 1. The PMND Did Not Adequately Evaluate Potentially Significant Impacts on  
  an Historical Resource 


 
On January 9, 2018, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors voted unanimously to 


reverse “the determination by the Planning Department that the proposed Project at 2417 Green 
Street is categorically exempt from further environmental review.”48 Then on February 6, 2018, 
after considering expert evidence and public testimony, the Board of Supervisors again voted 
unanimously to find that the proposed Project “presents unusual circumstances relating to 
historic resources and hazardous materials and it appears as a result of those circumstances the 
project may have a significant effect on the environment...”49 In response, after preparing and 
then withdrawing a second categorical exemption in mid-2018, the Planning Department 
conducted an initial study and prepared a preliminary mitigated negative declaration.   


 
 For this particular project, the distinction between a mitigated negative declaration and an 
environmental impact report is critical. The record is clear that the structural integrity of the 
Coxhead House’s original tall brick foundation could be severely compromised were the Project 
to go forward as proposed.50 In an EIR, the Planning Department would be required to conduct 
an independent, physical analysis of this highly technical issue and then propose feasible 
mitigation measures and project alternatives to alleviate such impacts. Instead the PMND merely 
contained a recitation of the developer’s materials, and then made the unsupported blanket 
assertion that “the project could not have a significant effect on the environment.”51  
 
 As shown below, the PMND is unlawful under CEQA because the record for this Project 
contains substantial evidence supporting a “fair argument” that a significant impact may occur. 
In fact, the Planning Department admitted in the initial study “that project construction could 
compromise the structural integrity of the historic adjacent foundation at 2421 Green Street. 
                                                 
46 PMND at p. 71. 
47 Citizens for Responsible Equitable Environmental Development v. City of Chula Vista (2011) 197 Cal.App.4th 
327 (Citizens asserted the record contained substantial evidence of a fair argument that the Project would have a 
significant environmental impact due to contaminated soil. The evidence did not show that the potential impact 
would be mitigated to a level of insignificance). 
48 Motion M18-012, pp. 3-4 (amended February 6, 2018).   
49 Id.  
50 Id. See Report of Dr. Lawrence Karp, Ph.D. Geotechnical Engineer (January 2018) 
51 PMND cover page.  
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This would be a significant impact.”52 Rather than preparing an EIR as required, the Planning 
Department included an unlawful mitigation measure in the PMND based on unsupported 
findings; a measure that would rely on a future report prepared by the developer and shielded 
from Planning Commission, Supervisor and public review.53 
 
 Likewise, the Planning Department omitted any discussion of project alternatives. 
However, an EIR is needed here in order to propose a reasonable range of Project alternatives 
that could feasibly attain the Project’s basic objectives while reducing or avoiding its significant 
impacts.54 The Planning Department has unfairly stacked the deck in favor the proposed Project 
by assuming the developer’s goals to maximize buildout (and profit) are immutable. Neither DBI 
nor the Planning Department has explored reducing the size of the proposed residential 
expansion in a manner less impactful on the Coxhead House. A discussion of alternatives that 
would allow the developer to meet his reasonable objectives while ensuring the integrity and 
safety of 2421 Green Street is required under CEQA.  
 
  The Planning Department must conduct a qualified, independent investigation of all 
potentially significant impacts then propose feasible project alternatives and substantive 
mitigation measures for public review in a draft EIR.  
 
  a. The PMND Unlawfully Concluded that the Project’s Direct Impacts  
   on the Coxhead House’s Structural Integrity Would be Insignificant 
 
 The PMND referenced the Project’s direct impacts on the structural stability and integrity 
of the Coxhead House in two sections: Adjacent Historic Resources; and Geology and Soils. 
Neither section was adequate because neither included a full, independent and physical analysis 
of: the Coxhead House’s 127 year-old brick foundation; the precise conditions the brick 
foundation requires to remain stable during Project excavation and construction; to what extent 
the developer’s foundation work, on a steep slope below the Coxhead House, could undermine 
the Coxhead foundation; and the characteristics of the underlying soil and rock. These critical 
omissions and others have been brought to the Planning Department’s attention repeatedly by 
geotechnical engineer Dr. Lawrence Karp.55   
 
   i. The PMND Failed to Show the Project Complies with Local  
    Safety Ordinances  
 
 The PMND omitted any discussion of how the Project would meet compliance with the 
following legal requirements: 
 


                                                 
52 PMND at pp. 18, 62-63. 
53 PMND at p.18. 
54 CEQA § 21100(b)(4); Guidelines § 15126.6.  
55 Dr. Karp has submitted expert reports to the City of San Francisco on January 9, 2018 and January 17, 2019.  Dr. 
Karp’s comment are incorporated herein in full by reference.  This situation presents similar circumstances to 125 
Crown Terrace, involving the same geologist.   







2417 Green Street (2017-002545ENV) 
City of San Francisco Planning Commission  
July 15, 2019 
Page 11 of 23 
 
 San Francisco’s Slope and Seismic Hazard Zone Protection Act applies to all property 
that exceeds an average slope of 4H:1V (25%) or falls within certain mapped areas of the City.56 
Therefore, the developer was required to submit a checklist describing the proposed construction, 
average slope of the property and the property location. None of this basic information was 
included in the PMND. Accordingly, neither the Planning Department nor the public have any 
technical information on whether Project construction could undermine slope stability at the 
Project site and what measures would be required to safeguard the Coxhead House. 
 
 Instead, the PMND proposed that the developer’s geotechnical report and construction 
plans undergo third-party review by a geotechnical engineer at some undefined future date.57 The 
purported purpose of this review is to “verify that appropriate geological and 
geotechnical issues have been considered and that appropriate slope instability mitigation 
strategies have been proposed.”58 It is unclear who would do the verifying or who would propose 
the appropriate strategies (other than the owner/contractor for the 2417 Green Project), but any 
independent third-party review was required to happen before the Planning Department issued its 
PMND not post-approval or during construction.  Decision-makers and the public must have the 
opportunity to review the entire record on this matter as part of the CEQA process for the 
project.59  
 
 Finally, the PMND dubiously asserted that the Project should not be subject to San 
Francisco Ordinance 121-18 because the initial application was filed in 2017. Had this been a 
straightforward project where the applicant followed the rules and was not required to repeatedly 
draft new plans and update applications that might be true. But here, the Project has had to 
undergo numerous revisions based on insufficient plans; and the developer will have to submit a 
new permit application to cover the new structural drawings, if it has not done so already. As of 
this writing, the owner states, as he has for years, those plans will be prepared by Holmes & 
Culley to replace earlier plans. Based on these facts, it would irresponsible for the Planning 
Department to try to grandfather this project in a manner that would allow it to avoid compliance 
with a new ordinance essentially tailored for it. The City must require the Project to comply with 
San Francisco’s Slope and Seismic Hazard Zone Protection Act. 
 
 The City should apply the law as it exists at the time of Project approval, not Project 
application.  Since the Project has not yet been approved structurally, it must comply with the 
Slope and Seismic Hazard Zone Protection Act.  Furthermore, the Project’s inconsistency with 
the Act is proof that the Project may have significant adverse impacts under CEQA.  Where a 
local or regional policy of general applicability, such as an ordinance, is adopted in order to 
avoid or mitigate environmental effects, a conflict with that policy in itself indicates a potentially 
significant impact on the environment.60  Indeed, any inconsistencies between a proposed project 


                                                 
56 San Francisco Ordinance 121-18. 
57 PMND at p. 62.  
58 Id.  
59 No Oil, Inc. v. City of Los Angeles, 13 Cal.3d at 84. 
60 Pocket Protectors v. Sacramento (2005) 124 Cal.App.4th 903; Georgetown Preservation Society v. County of El 
Dorado (2018) 30 Cal.App.5th 358. 
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and applicable plans must be discussed in an EIR.61  A Project’s inconsistencies with local plans 
and policies constitute significant impacts under CEQA.62 The Slope and Seismic Hazard Zone 
Protection Act is a plan of general applicability adopted to foresee and mitigate environmental 
effects.  The Project’s failure to comply with that plan means it will be skipped over, which is 
evidence that the Project may have adverse environmental impacts, requiring review and 
mitigation in an EIR.  
 
 San Francisco’s Building Code section 1803.5.7 (Soils and Foundations) covers 
projects where excavation would reduce support from any foundation. A registered design 
professional is required to: prepare an assessment of the structure as determined from 
examination of the structure, the review of available design documents and, if necessary, 
excavation of test pits (obviously the test pit locations must be where the potential danger is). 
The registered design professional must determine the requirements for underpinning and 
protection and prepare site-specific plans, details and sequence of work for submission. Such 
support must be provided by underpinning, sheeting and bracing, or by other means acceptable to 
the building official.  
 
 The PMND omitted any independent analysis applying this requirement to the specific 
Project conditions on Green Street. Instead, the PMND encouraged the developer to proceed 
with excavation activities without a determination from an independent registered design and 
construction professionals. Rather than finalize a plan to ensure the protection of the Coxhead 
House’s foundation, the PMND would allow the developer to figure it out along the way. The 
developer would “notify the geotechnical engineer and the building department five days prior to 
any excavation, and the geotechnical engineer shall periodically be present during excavation to 
observe the actual soil/rock conditions and to evaluate the stability of the cut.”63 The PMND 
goes on, “if unacceptable earth movement or evidence of structural settlement is encountered 
during construction, as determined by the geotechnical engineer, project excavation shall be 
halted and the geotechnical engineer shall evaluate if additional measures are required to prevent 
further movement.”64 
 
 The PMND’s unenforceable recommendations are wholly inadequate because the 
Planning Department is literally allowing the developer to wait until a serious problem arises 
with the stability of the slope and structure before an actual plan is formulated.  
 
 CEQA prohibits deferral of mitigation measures.  Feasible mitigation measures for 
significant environmental effects must be set forth in an EIR for consideration by the lead 
                                                 
61 14 CCR § 15125(d); City of Long Beach v. Los Angeles Unif. School Dist. (2009) 176 Cal. App. 4th 889, 918; 
Friends of the Eel River v. Sonoma County Water Agency (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 859, 874 (EIR inadequate when 
Lead Agency failed to identify relationship of project to relevant local plans).   
62 Endangered Habitats League, Inc. v. County of Orange (2005) 131 Cal.App.4th 777, 783-4, 32 Cal.Rptr.3d 177; 
see also, County of El Dorado v. Dept. of Transp. (2005) 133 Cal.App.4th 1376 (fact that a project may be 
consistent with a plan, such as an air plan, does not necessarily mean that it does not have significant impacts). 
 
63 PMND at p. 62 (emphasis added). 
64 Id.  
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agency's decision makers and the public before certification of the EIR and approval of a project. 
The formulation of mitigation measures generally cannot be deferred until after certification of 
the EIR and approval of a project. Guidelines, section 15126.4(a)(1)(B) states: "Formulation of 
mitigation measures should not be deferred until some future time. However, measures may 
specify performance standards which would mitigate the significant effect of the project and 
which may be accomplished in more than one specified way."   
 
 The City may not defer development of mitigation measures for this critical 
environmental impact that may undermine the very foundations of the Coxhead House.  The 
mitigation measures must be set forth in an EIR so that the public may analyze the adequacy of 
those measures.  
 
 San Francisco’s Building Code section 3307.1 (Protection of Adjoining Properties) 
requires the protection of adjoining properties during construction, remodeling and demolition 
work. Protection must be provided for footings, foundations, party walls, chimneys, skylights 
and roofs. The person conducting an excavation must provide written a 10-day written notice to 
the owners of adjoining buildings advising them that the excavation is to be made and that the 
adjoining buildings should be protected. The developer has commenced excavation activities at 
the Project site on several occasions absent proper notice under this ordinance.  The PMND 
omitted this requirement further encouraging the developer to ignore its obligations to ensure the 
protection of the Coxhead House.  
 
 As the foregoing shows, the Planning Department chose not to conduct an independent, 
physical investigation of the above issues and legal requirements. Instead, it is essentially giving 
the developer carte blanche to conduct a minimal amount of self-investigation and -reporting 
will little agency oversight. Rather than independently verifying any geo-technical evidence, the 
PMND focused on the difference of opinion of whether the two buildings’ foundations would 
physically attach.65 Focusing the PMND’s impact analysis on this point resulted in a deficient 
CEQA document by omitting analysis of the issues above. Moreover, evidence of a technical 
dispute on a key issue among the parties triggered the necessity to prepare an EIR. The 
“uncertainty created by the conflicting assertions made by the parties … underscores the 
necessity of the EIR.”66 A full EIR would resolve the issue of whether the two foundations 
would physically touch and numerous other critical concerns.  
 
   ii. There is a Fair Argument that the Proposed Project Could  
    Directly and Significantly Impact the Coxhead House  
 
 To repeat, the Planning Department’s initial study found that “project construction could 
compromise the structural integrity of the historic adjacent foundation at 2421 Green Street.”67 
And the PMND is correct that the Board of Supervisors already made the finding that “such an 


                                                 
65 PMND at pp. 17, 64 
66 No Oil, Inc. v. City of Los Angeles, 13 Cal.3d at 85. 
67 Id. at p. 18.  
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impact could be considered significant.”68 Based on the findings of the Board and the initial 
study, the Planning Department could no longer rely on a mitigated negative declaration. It was 
required to prepare an EIR. According to the Board: 
 
 “The Karp Report and other information submitted at and prior to the January 9, 2018, 
 appeal hearing constituted substantial evidence that the Project, if approved, may result in 
 one or more substantial adverse changes in the significance of the neighboring historic 
 resource located at 2421 Green Street that have not been sufficiently addressed in the 
 Categorical Exemption for the Project…The Board finds that the Karp Report and other 
 information submitted at and prior to the January 9, 2018, appeal hearing constituted 
 substantial evidence not previously identified that affect the CEQA evaluation set forth in 
 the Categorical Exemption regarding how the Project may impair the significance of an 
 historic resource by causing impacts to its immediate surroundings.69 
 


Courts have long rejected agency CEQA processes where a subsequent CEQA document 
reached the opposite conclusion of an earlier one absent any explanation.70 For example, when a 
county revised its initial study and issued a second which contradicted the first, the court held 
that the county was not free to “relegate[] the first initial study to oblivion.”71 According to the 
court, “We analogize such an untenable position to the un-ringing of a bell. The first initial study 
is part of the record. The fact that a revised initial study was later prepared does not make the 
first initial study any less a record entry nor does it diminish its significance.”72   


 
By definition, the conclusions from the Board of Supervisors and initial study both create 


a “fair argument” that the Project may have significant impacts, despite other evidence to the 
contrary, including the PMND. In this way, courts may rely on statements made in an initial 
study to establish a fair argument, even in the face of contradictory evidence.73 Here, expert 
opinion and other evidence demonstrated that the proposed Project is likely to cause significant 
impacts that must be analyzed in an EIR.   


 
Rather than prepare an EIR to independently investigate and disclose all potentially 


significant impacts on the Coxhead House, the Planning Department plans to “coordinate” in the 
future with the building department to obtain preliminary review of the developer’s geotechnical 
report and geologic hazard study.74 According to the PMND, DBI’s Plan Review Services 
Division staff reviewed a 2017 geotechnical investigation and made recommendations to revise 
the report. Apparently, DBI’s recommendations “are reflected” in the April 25, 2019 
geotechnical report. The Plan Review Services Division reviewed the revised report and found 
                                                 
68 Id.  
69 San Francisco Board of Supervisors, Motion No. M18-012, Adopting Findings Reversing the Categorical 
Exemption Determination – 2417 Green Street, Amended February 6, 2018, File No. 180123, available at 
https://sfgov.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=5792879&GUID=75361D57-546D-41F0-B0A3-D11B6083C3D2. 
70 Stanislaus Audobon Society, Inc. v. County of Stanislaus (1995) 33 Cal.App.4th 144. 
71 Id. at 154.   
72 Id.  
73 Gentry v. Murietta (1995) 36 Cal.App.4th 1359. 
74 PMND at p. 61. 
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that “the report generally meets the standards for professional practice of geotechnical 
engineering.”75 However, Project construction at this particular site presents an existential risk to 
the structural integrity of the Coxhead House. A hands-off departmental “coordination” scheme, 
along with its evasive finding that the report “generally” met profession standards, evidences a 
wholly unacceptable lack of action by a permitting agency. 


 
The Planning Department’s hands-off strategy which relied on the developer to prepare 


all of technical analysis resulted in a PMND lacking in rigor or third-party objectivity.  But 
CEQA requires negative declarations to reflect the lead agency’s “independent judgment.”76  
“Any . . . mitigated negative declaration prepared pursuant to the requirements of this division 
shall be prepared directly by, or under contract to, a public agency.”77 A mitigated negative 
declaration must “reflect the independent judgment and analysis of the lead agency.”78 The 
Planning Department’s failure to conduct independent analysis or exercise independent judgment 
was a violation of CEQA. 
 
   iii. The PMND Included an Inadequate and Unlawful Measure to  
    Mitigate the Project’s Significant Impacts on the Coxhead  
    House  
 
 As noted, the PMND contained a single mitigation measure purporting to address the 
potentially significant impacts on the Coxhead House. According to the PMND, any concerns 
over significant impacts would be resolved through an obligation by the developer to maintain 
ongoing coordination with DBI and the Planning Department prior to and during project 
construction: 
 


“Mitigation Measure M-GE-1: Ongoing Coordination with the Planning Department 
and the Department of Building Inspections Prior to and During the Construction Phase 
Regarding Compliance with Geotechnical Requirements.  
Pursuant to the San Francisco Department of Building Inspection process, the project 
sponsor (and their design team, geotechnical engineer, and contractor, as applicable) will 
be subject to ongoing coordination requirements with the planning department and the 
building department regarding plan check reviews and building inspections prior to and 
during construction work.” 


 
 According to the Planning Department, “Compliance with Mitigation Measure M-GE-1 
would ensure the security and stability of the project site and adjacent properties. Furthermore, as 
addressed under Impact CR-1, compliance with this mitigation measure would avoid any 
potential impacts to historic resources.”79 


                                                 
75 Id. (emphasis added). 
76 CEQA §21082.1(c); People v. County of Kern (1976) 62 Cal.App.3d 761, 775; Gentry v. Murietta (1995) 36 
Cal.App.4th 1359, 1397-98. 
77 CEQA §21082.1. 
78 Id.; CEQA Guidelines §15074. 
79 PMND at p. 63. 







2417 Green Street (2017-002545ENV) 
City of San Francisco Planning Commission  
July 15, 2019 
Page 16 of 23 
 
 
 The Planning Department’s ambiguous assurances notwithstanding, Measure M-GE-1 is 
an unlawful end run around CEQA for four reasons. First, the PMND claims the measure 
“ensures” the security and stability of the project site and the Coxhead House, but there is no 
way to objectively evaluate that assurance. The only measure of success is some level of future 
“coordination” between two departments that failed to communicate between one another on the 
Project for roughly one year; it was not until the complaints and NOVs became too numerous to 
ignore that the departments began to communicate on the Project. But even if the two 
departments did coordinate successfully, Measure M-GE-1 still lacks an evidence-based, 
measurable approach for success with real, physical requirements reviewable by the public and 
decision-makers. 
 
 Second, the measure defers important project scrutiny and mitigation until after all of the 
City’s approvals are final, eliminating Planning Commission, Board of Supervisors’ and public 
input and oversight. CEQA prohibits permitting agencies from deferring environmental 
mitigation until a future date after project approval.80 Specifically, courts have rejected agency 
promises of “future studies subject to review and approval by planning and building services.” 81 
According to established caselaw, “the requirement that the applicant adopt mitigation measures 
recommended in a future study is in direct conflict with the guidelines implementing CEQA.”82 
Indeed, for any “measures that will mitigate environmental effects, the project plans must be 
revised to incorporate these mitigation measures before the proposed negative declaration is 
released for public review ....”83 Post-approval analysis and potential project revisions relied 
upon as mitigation is forbidden. By deferring mitigation assessment until a future date, the 
Planning Department has violated CEQA’s requirement that environmental review must occur at 
the earliest feasible date in the planning process when “genuine flexibility remains.”84 
 
 Third, a lead agency may not base a negative declaration on the presumed success of 
mitigation measures that have yet to be formulated at the time of project approval. One purpose 
of a CEQA document is to ensure that the relevant environmental data is available to the agency 
and considered by it prior to the decision to allow a commitment of resources to the project.85  
 
 Finally, mitigation measures must be fully enforceable through permit conditions, 
agreements, or other legally binding instruments.86 None of these legal requirements or 
conditions is met with Mitigation Measure M-GE-1; therefore, the measure does not pass CEQA 
muster.   
 


                                                 
80 Fairview Neighbors v. County of Ventura (1999) 70 Cal.App.4th 238, 245. 
81 Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal.App.3d 296, 306–307. 
82 Id.  
83 Id.  
84 Mount Sutro Defense Committee v. Regents of University of California (1978) 77 Cal.App.3d 20, 34. 
85 No Oil, Inc., at p. 84. 
86 CEQA Guidelines §15126.4(a)(2). 
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  b. The PMND Unlawfully Concluded that the Project’s Aesthetic   
   Impacts on the Coxhead House would be Insignificant 
 
 The PMND finally acknowledged that the Coxhead House is an historical resource under 
CEQA,87 but it omitted any in-depth discussion or description of how and why the Coxhead 
house is significant to San Francisco and must be afforded protection. Instead, for purposes of 
evaluating impacts, the PMND purposefully treated the Coxhead House as a private residence 
with little cultural value to the City. As shown below, the PMND is incorrect. 
 


As background, the California Office of Historic Preservation deemed the Coxhead 
House “clearly eligible” for the National Park Service’s Register of Historic Places having found 
the Coxhead Residence “clearly eligible for the National Register of Historic Places,” because 
“the Ernest Coxhead house is in outstanding and original condition, and retains an unusually 
high degree of historic integrity.”88 


 
Properties deemed eligible for listing on the national historic registry of historic places, 


like the Coxhead House, are protected under CEQA. An historical resource is a resource listed 
in, or determined to be eligible for listing in, the California Register of Historical Resources.89  If 
a project may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource, that 
project shall not be exempted from the statute.90   


 
Mr. Kaufman’s house was designed by renowned California architect Ernest Albert 


Coxhead in 1893. Mr. Coxhead lived in the residence with his family while he practiced 
architecture in San Francisco. The house is considered one of the finest remaining examples of 
Late Victorian Shingle Style, and architecture of the First Bay Area Tradition. The property has 
been written about in notable books and scholarly works for decades. The house is one of the few 
Coxhead nineteenth century buildings to survive the devastating 1906 earthquake and fires. The 
house’s shingled architectural details greatly influenced the work of later renowned Bay Area 
architects including Julia Morgan and Bernard Maybeck.91 The house is a San Francisco 
treasure.  


 
The Coxhead Residence is located on steep, narrow Green Street between Cow Hollow 


and Pacific Heights. It is a three-story, wood-framed building clad in red cedar shingles trimmed 
with painted redwood Arts & Crafts fenestration and trim. It has steep pitched roofs and 
articulated dormers and ribbons of windows facing San Francisco Bay. The rear garden is 
contiguous with another Historic Landmark, the Casebolt House. Finally, “the Ernest Coxhead 
house is in outstanding and original condition, and retains an unusually high degree of historic 


                                                 
87 PMND at p. 17. 
88 Letter from Office of Historic Preservation, at p.1 (September 13, 2017).  
89 See San Francisco Preservation Bulletin No. 16 (2004); CEQA §21084(e); CEQA Guidelines §15300.2(f). 
90 CEQA § 21084.1. 
91 See Nomination for Listing National Register of Historic Places, August 28, 2017. 
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integrity.”92 The state of California has found the Coxhead Residence “clearly eligible for the 
National Register of Historic Places.”93 


 
San Francisco’s Preservation Bulletin No. 16 sets out a two-step process for evaluating 


the potential for proposed projects to impact historical resources. First, a Preservation Planner 
determines whether the property is an historical resource as defined by CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15064.5(a)(3); and, second, if the property is an historical resource, it then evaluates 
whether the proposed action or project would cause a “substantial adverse change” to the 
historical resource.94 


 
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
resource survey.95   


 
The question is whether the PMND properly investigated potential Project-induced 


alterations to the Coxhead House or its immediate surroundings that could materially impair its 
significance as a historical resource? The answer is no. The PMND identified several potentially 
significant impacts such as the loss of views from 24 windows, and admitted that “the intent of 
the original design of the 2421 Green Street was to take advantage of the views from the eastern, 
western and northern elevations.96 But it dismissed these impacts on an historic resource by 
making the conclusory statement that “the quality of views from the windows that would be 
blocked by the proposed project is not an aspect of historic significance and is not character-
defining to the architectural significance of the building.” But the PMND provided an 
unsupported opinion rather than presenting facts for decision makers and the public to weigh. 
Licensed architect and expert on historical resources, Carol L. Karp, submitted an expert report 
that found were the City to allow the developer to increase the existing building envelope it 
would obliterate views from the Coxhead House and the City has made no provision for 
protecting this important aspect of the Coxhead House.97 


 
Then the PMND concluded that even if the blocked windows were a significant impact, 


“loss of private views does not constitute a significant impact under CEQA and therefore is not 
included in this analysis.”98 The City’s conclusion ignores the fact that the Coxhead House is an 


                                                 
92 Id. 
93 Letter from Office of Historic Preservation, p. 1 (September 13, 2017) 
94 San Francisco Preservation Bulletin No. 16, at p. 2. 
95 CEQA Guidelines 15064.5(b), Bulletin 16, p. 9. 
96 PMND at p. 20. 
97 Carol L. Karp Report at p. 2 (Dec. 30, 2017).  Carol Karp’s report is incorporated herein in its entirety by 
reference. 
98 Id. at p. 19. 
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historic resource.  While it may be true that private views are generally not significant impacts 
under CEQA, this is ignores the fact that the views, light and air here at issue are integral parts of 
the historical significance of the Coxhead House.  CEQA protects the elements of the house, 
such as view, light and air which contribute to the house’s historical significance – unlike views 
from an ordinary private residence.  The issue is not whether the current resident of the Coxhead 
House is entitled to private views; rather the issue is whether the City should prioritize the short-
term economic interest of a private developer who does not intend to reside at 2417 Green Street 
over an important historic resource that would be materially impaired should the City allow the 
developer to overbuild the lot and permanently block 24 historic windows.  


 
Furthermore, story poles clearly show that the proposed Project will block public views 


of the Coxhead House from Pierce Street and Green Street.  While the MND acknowledges that 
public views of the Coxhead House would be impaired, it dismisses this impact since these are 
allegedly not the “primary views” of the house.99  However, CEQA has no provision that 
disregards secondary as opposed to primary views of an historic resource.100  There is no dispute 
that the proposed Project will block views of the historic Coxhead House from public streets.  
This is a significant impact requiring review under CEQA.   


 
The foregoing illustrates the need for comprehensive analysis in an EIR absent 


unsupported, conclusory statements and misstatements of the law.  
 
c. The PMND Unlawfully Concluded that the Project Would not 


Significantly Impact Land Use and Planning  
 
Even if a public agency has deemed a project consistent with general or specific plans, 


such as design guidelines, or zoning ordinances, it can still be subject to CEQA review.101 This is 
because findings in a CEQA document may differ from findings made in consistency 
determination for zoning or local and/or general plans. Thus, separate CEQA analyses may be 
required. The PMND got this rule exactly backwards: “Land use impacts could be considered 
significant if a proposed project conflicts with any plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the 
purpose of avoiding an environmental effect. However, a conflict with a plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of mitigating an environmental effect does not necessarily 
indicate a significant effect on the environment.”102 Then, absent any investigation, the PMND 
concluded, “the proposed project would result in a less-than-significant impact with regard to 
consistency with existing plans and policies adopted for the purpose of avoiding an 
environmental effect.”103  


 
Not only did the Planning Department fail to properly state the actual CEQA 


requirements for assessing land use impacts, the Project is inconsistent with numerous provisions 


                                                 
99 PMND at p. 21.  
100 See, e.g., Ocean View Estates Homeowners Assn., Inc. v. Montecito Water Dist., 116 Cal.App.4th 396 (2004).  
101 Georgetown Preservation Society v. County of El Dorado (2018) 30 Cal.App.5th 358 
102 PMND at p. 12. 
103 Id. at p. 13 
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of the Cow Hollow Neighborhood Design Guidelines (CHNDG) and the San Francisco Zoning 
Code, but it failed to include any consistency analysis in the PMND. In fact, the proposed Project 
violates the CHNDG and Zoning Code by, inter alia:  


 
 Encroaching on shared mid-block open space.  
 Obstructing access to light and air.  
 Creating a structure with volume and massing that is inconsistent with the 


neighborhood.  
 The proposed 5,115 square foot home on a 2500 square foot lot will result in a 


floor area ratio (FAR) of almost 2.5, in a neighborhood with an average FAR of 
approximately 1.0. 


 Failing to comply with terracing requirements.  
 Failing to respect the adjacent historic Coxhead House. 


 
 In addition, the proposed Project may be inconsistent with local land use requirements 
because it now includes two living units rather than one. The PMND only makes a passing 
reference to a newly-added first floor 1,023 square-feet, one-bedroom accessory dwelling unit 
(ADU).104 This is a significant change to the Project which under several sets of plans 
contemplated a single-family residence. The PMND does not describe the ADU nor does it 
disclose whether the ADU is compatible with state and San Francisco land use ordinances.  
 
 San Francisco allows ADUs as a means of addressing the City’s severe housing shortage. 
However, both state and local law place certain restrictions on such residences. CEQA analysis is 
required for this aspect of the Project because the Planning Department has utterly failed to meet 
its disclosure obligations to the public by refusing to describe the regulatory basis for the 
proposed ADU and by not providing the supporting drawings and plans for a second residence. 
To date, the entire discussion of the ADU is comprised of a single sentence: “a one-bedroom 
accessory dwelling unit measuring approximately 1,023 square feet on the first floor.”105  
 
 Under San Francisco’s 2017 ordinance covering the permitting requirements of ADUs, 
the ADU process is comprised of “Waiver” and “No Waiver” programs. 106 Homeowners must 
assess which program applies to their particular situation because each program entails different 
requirements and permitting paths. Absent any help from the Planning Department, the interested 
public is left to figure out which program might apply to 2417 Green Street.  
 
 For example, if the newly-proposed ADU falls within the waiver program, the developer 
must construct it entirely within the existing built envelope, i.e., the area within the walls of the 
existing building.107 The developer could increase the height of the building by three feet for 
ADU construction, but only if the building is also undergoing full seismic retrofitting for the 
                                                 
104 PMND at Cover Page.  
105 Id.; See also second exemption at p. 2.  
106 Construction of Accessory Dwelling, Ord. No. 162-17 (July 11, 2017). 
107 http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/accessory-dwelling-
units/Waiver_ADUFactSheet.pdf. 
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entire structure.108 Under this program, the developer would need to apply for compliance 
waivers from the zoning administrator to violate rear yard, parking, open space, density 
requirements or reductions in the amount of exposure currently required by San Francisco law.109 
All other Planning Code requirements would still have to be met.110 The Project cannot fall 
within the waiver program since it involves substantial expansion of the existing building 
envelope.   
 
 On the other hand, the ADU might fit within the no waiver program.111 Here the ADU 
can be an expansion to the existing building, by taking habitable space from within the existing 
single-family home, or by constructing a new structure within the buildable area of the lot.112 
However, if an expansion is proposed for the project as part of the no waiver program, 
neighborhood notice under Sections 311/312, and design review are required.113 Importantly, in 
order for the ADU to be eligible for this program, it must not require any waivers for open space 
(300-400 sq/ft per unit), rear yard setbacks (25 percent of the rear yard must remain open), 
density or light exposure.  
 
 The Planning Department did not provide any information on the design or floor plan of 
the proposed ADU so it is an open question which program applies. Still, it appears it may fall 
within the no waiver program because the project has always involved an expansion of an 
existing building (from 4,118 sq/ft to 5,115 sq/ft). In that case, the developer is required to 
provide Section 311 notice.  
 
 In addition, state law requires local governments to impose standards on ADUs that, 
among other things, “prevent adverse impacts on any real property that is listed in the California 
Register of Historic Places,”114 or, “any other known historical resource.”115 For historical 
resources, the Planning Department is required to modify the project to prevent or mitigate such 
impacts.116 The evidence already shows previous building plans would impact the Coxhead 
House. Therefore, the Planning Department is required to make an affirmative finding that 
adding an additional residence to the parcel will have no impact on the Coxhead House.   
 
 Finally, under California law, San Francisco may require the applicant for an ADU to be 
an owner/occupant.117 This makes for good public policy. Allowing a speculator to build two or 
more residences on a single-family parcel (RH-1) to maximize profits while taking advantage of 
less restrictive land use requirements violates the spirit of the statute, which was meant to allow 


                                                 
108 Id.  
109 Id. 
110 Id.  
111 http://default.sfplanning.org/plans-and-programs/planning-for-the-city/accessory-dwelling-
units/NoWaiver_ADUFactSheet.pdf 
112 Id.  
113 Id.  
114 Government Code § 65852.2(a)(1)(B)(i). 
115 San Francisco Ord. No. 162-17 § 207(6)(B)(v). 
116 Id.  
117 Government Code § 65852.2(a)(1)(D)(6) 
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existing homeowners to convert unused garage or basement space or legalize an existing in-law 
flat to provide additional living space to existing homes.  
 
 Given the many open questions surrounding this aspect of the Project, the only way 
decision makers and the public can assess the merits and legality of the proposal is to analyze its 
potentially significant impacts on land use and the Coxhead House in an EIR.  


 
d. The PMND Unlawfully Concluded that the Project would have No  
 Impacts Related to Hazardous Materials       


 
The Project site is located on the City’s Maher Map of potentially contaminated 


sites. Mr. Kaufman has already produced the City’s Maher Map showing the presence of 
numerous known contaminated sites within 100 feet of the proposed Project. In fact, the 
application materials indicate that the subject property would require 408 cubic yard of soil 
excavation and removal. Given the listing of the property on the Maher Map, this excavation 
may disturb potentially contaminated soil, which may expose nearby residents and/or 
construction workers to hazardous chemicals. Thus, there is a fair argument that the Project may 
have adverse environmental impacts that must be analyzed under the Maher Ordinance and 
CEQA.  
 


The administrative record shows that the City’s Maher Waiver was improper and 
required:  


 Site Mitigation Plan,  
 An Environmental Health and Safety Plan,  
 Dust Control Plan, and  
 Other documents, as required under the Maher Program.  


 
 To date, none of those documents have been produced. According to the PMND, the 
developer took soil samples from “two sample locations within the existing garage.”118 However, 
it appears that the garage area was renovated and expanded by the previous owner, during his 
tenure over the past thirty years. As a result, this is an area where the soil would be expected to 
have been removed and replaced with clean fill. Furthermore, the Maher Map clearly shows that 
the entire parcel is potentially contaminated. Two samples taken from “within the existing 
garage” are clearly insufficient to show that the entire parcel is not contaminated. In particular, 
the Project will involve significant soil excavation in the rear yard, which has not yet been tested. 
Unfortunately, this situation is reminiscent of the scandal plaguing Hunters Point Shipyard, 
where the “expert” consultant purposely tested soil from an area known to be clean. The 
Planning Department cannot repeat this grievous error. The City must develop a site mitigation 
plan as part of a full and independent EIR investigation prior to Project approval. The plan must 
be made available to the public so the public and decision-makers can determine if the plan is 
adequate or if additional mitigation is necessary. 
  


                                                 
118 PMND, p. 72.  
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CONCLUSION 


After being ordered by the Board of Supervisors to prepare a CEQA document to 
investigate and disclose the proposed Project' s potentially significant impacts on the Coxhead 
House, the Planning Department prepared a bare bones mitigated negative declaration devoid of 
independent agency investigation and analysis. An EIR is required since eminently well­
qualified experts have concluded that the proposed Project will have adverse impacts on the 
historic Coxhead House. As the Court of Appeal has stated, "It is the function of an EIR, not a 
negative declaration, to resolve conflicting claims, based on substantial evidence, as to the 
environmental effects of a project." 11 9 


Indeed, the PMND deferred to the developer to provide information on potential impacts 
and to choose solutions to address problems should they arise. CEQA was enacted in 1970 for no 
greater reason than to avoid such behind the scenes, backroom deals between developers and 
permitting agencies. Well-conceived projects should have nothing to hide so that in a proper 
CEQA analysis decision makers and the public can be assured approved projects will be safe for 
people and the environment. The Planning Department must do its job as an independent agency 
charged with protecting the people of San Francisco, not private developers. The PMND 
provides no assurances it understands that miss· 


cc: Sup. Catherine Stefani 
Sup. Aaron Peskin 


119 Pocket Protectors, 124 Cal.App.4th at 935. 


inc rely, 


Richard Drury 
Lozeau Drury LLP 
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Notice of Availability of and Intent to 
Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration 


 
Date: June 26, 2019 
Case No.: 2017-002545ENV 
Project Title: 2417 Green Street 
Zoning: RH-1 [Residential-House, One Family] Use District 
 40-X Height and Bulk District 
Block/Lot: 0560/028 
Project Sponsor: Chris Durkin, 2417 Green Street, LLC 
 (415) 407-0486 
Staff Contact: Jeanie Poling – (415) 575-9072 
 jeanie.poling@sfgov.org 
 


This notice is to inform you of the availability of the environmental review document concerning the 
proposed project as described below. The document is a preliminary mitigated negative declaration 
(PMND), containing information about the possible environmental effects of the proposed project. The 
PMND documents the determination of the Planning Department that the proposed project could not 
have a significant adverse effect on the environment. Preparation of a mitigated negative declaration does 
not indicate a decision by the City to carry out or not to carry out the proposed project. 


Project Description: The project site is on the south side of Green Street on the block bound by Green, 
Pierce, Scott, and Vallejo streets in the Pacific Heights neighborhood. The 2,500-square-foot project site 
contains a vacant four-story single-family residential building constructed circa 1905. The property at its 
Green Street frontage slopes with an elevation of approximately 150 feet along the western (up slope) side 
to 145 feet along eastern (down‐slope) side. The project would lower building floor plates by 
approximately 2 feet, construct one- and three-story horizontal rear additions, and construct third and 
fourth floor vertical additions above the existing building. The floor area would increase from 
approximately 4,118 square feet to approximately 5,115 square feet. A one-bedroom accessory dwelling 
unit measuring approximately 1,023 square feet would be added on the first floor. The project also 
proposes a partial excavation of the rear yard for a sunken terrace, façade alterations, interior 
modifications, and expansion of the existing basement level garage to accommodate one additional 
vehicle, for a total of two vehicle parking spaces. The proposed project requires issuance of building 
permits by the Department of Building Inspection (DBI) and has been scheduled for a 
discretionary review hearing before the Planning Commission. 


The PMND is available to view or download from the Planning Department’s environmental review 
documents web page (https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents). Paper copies are also 
available at the Planning Information Center (PIC) counter on the ground floor of 1660 Mission Street, 
San Francisco. 
 



https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents
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Case No. 2017-002545ENV 
2417 Green Street 


If you have questions concerning environmental review of the proposed project, contact the Planning 
Department staff contact listed above. 


Within 20 calendar days following publication of the PMND (i.e., by 5:00 p.m. on July 16, 2019, any 
person may: 


1) Review the PMND as an informational item and take no action; 


2) Make recommendations for amending the text of the document. The text of the PMND may be 
amended to clarify or correct statements and may be expanded to include additional relevant issues 
or to cover issues in greater depth. This may be done without the appeal described below; OR 


3) Appeal the determination of no significant effect on the environment to the Planning Commission in 
a letter which specifies the grounds for such appeal, accompanied by a $617 check payable to the San 
Francisco Planning Department.1 An appeal requires the Planning Commission to determine whether 
or not an Environmental Impact Report must be prepared based upon whether or not the proposed 
project could cause a substantial adverse change in the environment. Send the appeal letter to the 
Planning Department, Attention: Lisa Gibson, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103 
or emailed to lisa.gibson@sfgov.org. The letter must be accompanied by a check in the amount of 
$617.00 payable to the San Francisco Planning Department, and must be received by 5:00 p.m. on 
July 16, 2019. The appeal letter and check may also be presented in person at the PIC counter on the 
first floor of 1660 Mission Street, San Francisco. 


In the absence of an appeal, the mitigated negative declaration shall be made final, subject to necessary 
modifications, after 20 days from the date of publication of the PMND. If the PMND is appealed, the final 
mitigated negative declaration (FMND) may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors. The first approval 
action, as identified in the initial study, would establish the start of the 30-day appeal period for the 
FMND pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.16(h).   


Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they 
communicate with the Commission or the Department. All written or oral communications, including 
submitted personal contact information, may be made available to the public for inspection and copying 
upon request and may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents. 


                                                           
1  Upon review by the Planning Department, the appeal fee may be reimbursed for neighborhood organizations 


that have been in existence for a minimum of 24 months. 
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APPEAL OF REINSTATED IMPROPER 
CEQA CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION 


2417 GREEN STREET PROJECT, SAN FRANCISCO 
CONTINUED FOUNDATION & SIDEWALL DAMAGES 


TO THE ARCHITECTURALLY & STRUCTURALLY UNIQUE 


HISTORICAL RESOURCE AT 2421 GREEN STREET 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT REQUIRED 


LAWRENCE B. KARP CONSULTING ENGINEER 







LAWRENCE B. KARP 
CONSULTING GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER 


January 17,2019 


C&CSF Planning Commission 
Rich Hillis, President 
City Hall, Room 400 
San Francisco, CA 94102 


Subject: Appeal of Reinstated Improper 
CEQA Categorical Exemption 
241 7 Green Street Project [Block 560 - Lot 028] 
Brick Foundation & Sidewall Fenestration Damage 
To the Architecturally and Structurally 
Unique Historical Coxhead House at 2421 Green 
Environmental Impact Report Required 


Dear President Hillis and Members of the Commission: 


FOUNDAnONS, WALLS, PILES 
UNDERPINNING, TIEBACKS 


DEEPRETAJNEDEXCAVAnONS 
SHORING & BULKHEADS 
EARTHWORK & SLOPES 


CAISSONS, COFFERDAMS 
COASTAL & MARINE STRUCTURES 


SOIL MECHANICS, GEOLOGY 
GROUNDWATER HYDROLOGY 


CONCRETE TECHNOLOGY 


This report supplements, with updated facts and further professional evaluation, the assessment 
of the intended building enlargement project at 2417 Green with respect to CEQA, State of 
California, and City of San Francisco design and construction requirements under the respective 
Building Codes as well as convention as reported to the Board of Supervisors on 1/9/18. 


Recognizing the consistent failure of the developers of 2417 Green to acknowledge their historic 
environment with the serious effects of excavating into a hillside under a building, and the 
permissiveness of City Planning in their issuance of an improper Determination of Categorical 
Exemption contrary to CEQA prohibitions, the Board unanimously granted the appeal of the 
owner of the Coxhead House at 2421 Green on 1/9/18 and ordered return of the inappropriate 
document to the Planning Department. Instead of preparing the required CEQA document for 
review and public comments, the Planning Department chose to reissue the Determination. 


What is bizarre about the reissue of the Determination, after the Bo~d of Supervisors granted the 
appeal11-0 ruling the Determination was contrary to CEQA (significant potential damages to a 
building proven to be a unique architectural resource) is that the Planning Department, knowing 
that they had no intention of complying with CEQ A, and furthermore having received the 
information contained in the 1/9/18 engineering report for the Board of Supervisors that showed 
the permitted construction at 2417 Green (the "Project") encroached on the land and foundation of 
2421 Green (the "Historic Resource"), never revoked their approval of the building permit for 
construction; instead they caused the Building Department to merely suspend the permit which 
means that it could be quickly activated in an instant without any correction of the construction 
approved on 2421 Green. The wrongfully reinstated Determination notes (page 2 ~6): "Building 
permits for excavation that were suspended pending CEQA compliance may also rely on this 
exemption." In short, by ignorance or corruption, the Planning Department always intended to 
allow illegal construction that would not only affect the stability of the foundation at 2421 Green, 
but would also allow construction over the property line to support the new foundation for the 
2417 Green basement garage by attaching it to the 125 year old brick foundation of2421 Green. 
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City Planning Approved & Continues Approving Permits Encroaching on a Neighbor 


In addition to approving the project at 2417 Green that damages an historic resource entitled by the 
National Register of Historic Places by way of obliterating the windows on the major east elevation 
of2421 Green and taking away the lateral and subjacent support of 125 year old brick foundation 
walls including anchoring new construction at 2417 Green to the foundation of2421 Green, the 
Planning Department approved building permit issuance based on drawings which clearly show 
new construction on the uphill neighboring property at 2421 Green that is intended to support the 
enlarged basement at 2417 Green which stands today as it did on 119/18 when the Board of 
Supervisors repealed the Categorical Exemption that allowed the building permit to be issued. 


Exhibit 1 shows this week's printouts of the permit records for Permit Application 2017.10.02.0114 
(1 012117). Control by City Planning. Checked 10/10/17 by CP Christopher May "Approved ... 
Garage excavation in basement level ... unchanged." Rubber stamped by Building Department (DBI) 
"Approved" (without comment), and then mechanically stamped by office of the director of building 
inspection for construction on 1113118. 2017.10.02.0114 is the operative building permit for the 2417 
Green project; it was suspended on 10/20117 which was and is a temporary act that can be set aside at 
any time but then finally approved on 1113/18. It was NOT revoked after the Board of Supervisors 
reviewed the 12/30117 architectural report and the 119118 engineering report, and granted the appeal 
of the Determination of Categorical Exemption. The director ofDBI should have been notified and 
the permit should have been revoked immediately upon the reversal by the Board of Supervisors, and 
a proper environmental review should have been performed. Instead, the Determination was reissued. 


Exhibit 2 shows the title comer of the cover (Sheet Sl.O, 4115117) for PIA 2017.10.02.0114 
(10/2117) as a revision to PIA 2017.05.11.6316 "Approved Planning Dept. Christopher May" 
10110117 and rubber stamped approved by DBI (without comment) on 10/12/17 and "Approved" 
(mechanical stamp) by the director ofbuilding inspection on 11/3/18. PIA 2017.10.02.0114 is the 
basis for the current operative building permit, construction underway, for the 2417 Green project. 


Exhibit 3 is Permit Application 2017.10.02.0114 (shorthand for application filed 10/2117) as a 
revision to PIA 2017.05.11.6316 rubber stamped "Approved" by the director ofDBI, 1113/18. 
2017.10.02.0114 is the current operative building permit (construction underway) for 2417 Green. 


Exhibit 4 are excerpts from the permit drawings for PIA 2017.10.02.0114, each and every one 
approved by City Planning, original signatures all by Christopher May and then all the drawings 
were mechanically stamped "Approved" by the director ofDBI. The stamps on the drawings show 
that only City Planning reviewed and approved the drawings with DBI then rubber stamping them 
without even initialing them in the stamp block provided by intake. DBI abrogated their responsibility 
for policing engineering to City Planning. The California Department of Consumer Affairs has no 
record of Christopher May being licensed now or ever as a professional engineer or as an architect. 


The drawings, intent crystal clear, show that support for the new excavation for construction of an 
underground garage at 2417 Green crosses the property line for the purpose of fastening to the 125 
year old brick foundations of the historic Coxhead House at 2421 Green to provide support for 
2417 Green. The notes in red are those annotated by the undersigned. The approved construction 
is illegal under the California and San Francisco building codes, and California law. The fact that 
this is the only way the 2417 project can be built is immaterial, the owner should have envisioned 
and commissioned a design that was not intrusive upon the neighboring historic building. 


LAWRENCE B. KARP CONSULTING ENGINEER 
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The Proposed Construction is Illegal Under California Codes 


Exhibit 5 is a section of the 2016 California Building and San Francisco Building Code §1803.5.7 
entitled "Excavation Near Foundations." Building code violation is negligence per se. This code 
section has been ignored by City Planning in their approval of the project on 10/10/17, and with 
reliance on City Planning approval was DBI rubber stamped "Approved" 11/3/18. Law requires: 


§ 1803.5.7. "Excavation near foundations. Where excavation will reduce support from any 
foundation, a registered design professional shall prepare an assessment of the structure as 
determined from examination of the structure, the review of available design documents 
and, if necessary, excavation of test pits. The registered design professional shall 
determine the requirements for underpinning and protection and prepare site-specific plans, 
details and sequence of work for submission. Such support shall be provided by 
underpinning, sheeting and bracing, or by other means acceptable to the building official." 


Exhibit 6 are seCtions from the 2016 City & County of San Francisco Building Code: §3307 
"Protection of Adjoining Property" incorporating Civil Code §832 (duty to maintain lateral 
and subjacent support). Exhibit 4 shows excerpts of drawings by owner/developer/engineer 
Durkin submitted for permit; none of the drawings has any specifications or details for 
pmtecting. undet:pimiing and shoring or bracing the neighbor's building as reguired by 2016 
SFBC §3307 "Protection of Adjoining Property" incorporating Civil Code §832 (duty to 
maintain lateral and subjacent support) and Exhibit 5, CBC & SFBC §1803.5.7 "Excavation 
near foundations." Details on Sheet S4.1 (Exhibit 4) show the proposed foundation for 2417 
Green encroaching into the neighboring property by being anchored past the property line into 
the foundation for 2421 Green (illegal construction occurring directly on neighboring property). 


The Proposed Construction is Illegal Under CEQA 


Exhibit 7 are summarized portions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
which was enacted more that 35 years ago to protect the environment which includes historic 
places and their surroundings. The CEQA regulations City Planning ignores are: 


14 Cal Code Regs §15300.2[c]: "Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not 
be used for an activity where there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have 
a significant effect on the environment due to unusual circumstances." 


14 Cal Code Regs §15300.2[f]: "Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall 
not be used :for a project which may cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource." (Emphasis adde~.) 


14 Cal Code Regs §15064.5[b][1]: "Substantial adverse change in the significance of 
an historical resource means physical demolition, destruction, relocation, or alteration 
of the resource or its immediate surroundings such that the significance of an historical 
resource would be materially impaired." (Emphasis added.) 


The 2417 Green project and the historic 2421 Green Coxhead House both have zero setback 
distances from the property line between them. City Planning has approved blocking of the 
2421 Green window wall and crossing the property line to construct support for 2417 Green. 


LAWRENCE B. KARP CONSULTING ENGINEER 
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Excavation for the proposed basement and underground garage at 241 7 Green cannot be 
accomplished without construction on 2421 Green because the intended excavation will 
compromise the lateral and subjacent support (required by California Civil Code §832 to be 
maintained) for the existing Coxhead House at 2421 Green. 1bis building withstood the 1906 
earthquake and fire without damage; now it is threatened by a neighbor who intends to 
construct an unreasonably large building at 241 7 Green undermining below and looming 
above windows of the Coxhead House. 


To further Planning Department's approval of damaging and substandard illegal construction, 
where they have been given the lead to approve by the Department of Building Inspection, 
City Planning has now reissued their Determination of Categorical Exemption in gross 
violation ofCEQA. None ofthe various excuses they give for insisting on their determination 
has any validity. The design for construction that City Planning has approved for 2417 Green 
will cause extensive damage to the physical and historic nature of 2421 Green with its 
impairment ofthe stability of its existing 125 year old brick wythe wall foundations that now 
properly support the Coxhead House. 


Summary 


There is no procedure available to the developer of 2417 Green to build the underground 
portion ofthe proposed project at 2417 Green without obtaining the written permission ofthe 
owner of the Coxhead House at 2421 Green to enter and construct foundation underpinning 
and shoring on property adjacent to the project, which will not happen. The changes to the 
historic Coxhead House, both to its foundation and its major window wall superstructure, will 
be significant and adverse, and are not allowed under CEQA. The developer has sought to 
circumvent the building codes by not obtaining a land survey and avoiding a geotechnical 
exploration of the site. The resubmittal of a wrongful Determination of Categorical 
Exemption is nothing but another ruse to develop 2417 Green without compliance with CEQA 
and the building codes. 


Yours truly, 


LAWRENCE B. KARP CONSULTING ENGINEER 
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Welcome to our Permit I Complaint ltacking System! 


Report Date: 


AppHcalion Number: 
Form Number: 


Address(es): 


Desaiplion: 


Cost 
Occupancy Code: 
Building Use: 


Colllact Details: 


ColllnldDr DefBis: 


Ucense Number. 
Name: 
Company Name: 
Adchss: 
Phone: 


111312019 9:12".48 AM 


201710020114 
8 
0560 /028 /0 2417 


Pennlt Details Report 


GREEN ST 


TO COMPLY N0V201708032, ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT TO FACIULATE DCP REVIEW, REVISION TO 
PAJ:201705116316, DELETE FREESTANDING RETAINING WALl. AT REAR YARD. NO WORK UNDER 
THIS PERMIT. NIA MAHER ORDINANCE 
$1.00 
R-3 
27- 1 FAMILY DWELUNG 


1012620 
PATRICK DURKIN 
DURKIN INC. 
1055 ASHBURY ST • SAN FRANCISCO CA 94117-<1000 


Appointment Date Appointment AMJPM Appomtment Code I I It Descnption 1 Time Slots 


Inspections: 


Activity Date Inspector Inspection Description Inspection Status 


Special Inspections: 


Addenda No. 1 Completed Date Inspected By Inspection Code Description : Remarks 


For informaHon. or to schedule an inspection. call 558-6570 between 8:30 am and 3:00 pm. 


[ ~ation Code Des~plions and Phone J'lu.rn.bers 


Online Permll and ComDiaint Trae!Cjna home page. 







Application Number: 
Form Number: 
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Desaiption: 


Cost 
OcaJpanc:y Code: 


BuHIJng Use: 


Act1on Date 
5111/2017 
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PARTIAL DETERIOATED BASEMENT WALL AND FOUNDATION REPLACEMENT WrTH NEW 
LANDSCAPING SITE WALL AT BACKYARD 
$100,000.00 
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Stage Comments 


tmw;e 
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SUSPEND 
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department of dly planning review required 
permit reins1ated see pa 201710020114 
SUspended per DCP letter dated 12120J2017. O'Riordan 
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Appomtment Date Appointment AMJPM Appo111tment Code I Appointment Type I Description 1 l1me Slots 


Special Inspections: 


Addenda, Completed I dB !Inspection Description I Remarks 
No. Date nspeclc y Code 


0 1 CONCRETE (PLACEMENT & placement 
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0 4 REINFORCING STEEL AND reinforcing steel 
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PROFESSIONAL OF RECORD start ofEA art 
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0 18A BOLTS INSTALLED IN EXISTING 
CONCRETE 


For information, or to schedule an inspection, call 558-6570 between 8:30 am and 3:00 pm. 
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


• I . 
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I . 
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trRIAGE 
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Kevin Birmingham 
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DURKIN INC. 


. 


1055 ASHBURY ST *SAN FRANCISCO CA 94117-0000 


FINAL INSPECT/APPRVD FINAI...INSPECT/APPRVD 


For information. or to schedule an inspection, call558-6570 between 8:30am and 3:00pm. 


I station Code Desaiplions and Phone Numbers 
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Technical Support for Online Services 
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11812018 Department of BuDding Inspection 


You seleeted: 


Address: 2417 GREEN sr 8lock/Lot: o.sfio I ozs 


Pleue select amonz the following links, the~ of permit fur which to view address information: 


Bleclriall Pennlta Plumbi~~& Permits Building Pennits Complaints 
(BuDdin& permita matehlna rhe lleleeted addrms.) 


Penmt• Block ...... Slftet.ll ~Mmne 
201'110020114 f056o 028 2417 GREHNlrr 
20.l?'D5U~l6 ~~ 0118 ~7 GtumNST 
201'1121."16376 osoo 028 2417 GRimNST 
M'83152'7 QS(iO 011.8 2417 GRRENST 
201704285244 0560 028 12417 GR.BENST 
20l?'D411.~ osoo 02.8 [~7 ' GREBNST 


21:)09~924Q8 o&6o o28 2411 GREBNST 
2007o:7o661UO os6o o28 12417 GREBNST 
20 14 DS6o 0~8 [~17 GRB£NST 
86Qo46o _os6o o28 1417 GRJmNS'f 
82o6146 0560 028 [1!417 GRBENST 


Online Permit and Complalnt Tracltlne home page. 


'IW:Imical8upport for OaUne Services 


Unit 


Jfyou need help or baw a question about tbls ~ pleQII visit our FAQ area. 


Contect SFOov Ailceailn1U:y Po)lcle& 
City and CollJJ.I:Y ufSan PnmciscoCil!lftll 


http://dbiweb.sfgov.org/dblpls/Defaull2.aspx?page=Addrass0ala2&ShowPanei=BID 


:Stage 
SUSPEND 
SUSPEND 
FILBD 
ISSUJ!D 
FILED 
ISSUED 
ISSUED 
ltXPOUID 
ISSUED 
OOMPLHTE 
COMI!LBTE 


i 
~ 


ISm&eDate 
12/20/2Dl7 
12/20/201'} 
12/13/2017 
09/lS/2017 
104128/2017 
I04/n/20i7 
02/19/2009 
05/01/20,08 
o6/21Z/2001 
104/11/1986 
03/04/198-S 
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P~SEMENT 
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NOV 0 3 2017 


h c. 14· 
TOM C. HUI, S.E. 


DIRECTOR 
DEPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION 


Cyril Yu, OBI 


OCT 11..217 


1. WHEilE arMAllOH SHORING IS NECESSARY, A SHORING PERWfT MUST BE 
PREMD'EO' NiP Af'PR(NED 9Y THE DEPNmtENT OF BUILDING INSPECT10N 
- TO EXCAVATION. NOTIFY ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNER IN WRmNG 
at ~ EXCAVATION ~ REQUIRED BY tAW, SECTION 832 CML 
coot SfATE Of ~ AU. SHORING TO BE SUPEFMSm BY 
R£GiSlERED ENGINEER INClUDING SEQUENCE OF' OPERATION. 


u 
_j 
_j 
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OAT! 05/05/2017 


SCALE 1/4"=1'-0" 
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JOe 2017.501.00 


SHEET 
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f.i\~( ........ E)~TR~AN~S~VE;;..;....;;.R ....... SE..._ 
~ SECTION 


k c. f4. 
PL TOM C. HUI, S.E. 


D DIRECTOR 
EPT. OF BUILDING INSPECTION 


Cyril Yu, D 


OCT 11 21 


ao /1b I,.., 


~ 
1, WHERE EXCAVATION SHORING IS NECESSARY, A SHORING PERMIT MUST BE 


PROVIDED AND APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING INSPECTION 
PRIOR TO EXCAVATION. NOTIFY ADJOINING PROPERlY OWNER IN WRffiNG 
OF PROPOSED EXCAVATION ~ REQUIRED BY LAW, SECTION 8J2 CML 
CODE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA. All. SHORING TO BE SUPERVISED BY 
REGISTERED ENGINEER INCLUDING SEQUENCE OF OPERATION. 
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DIWNAGE BY OTHERS, TYP • 


~ ILLEGAL CONSTRUCTION BY 2417 ON 2421 GREEN 
:J 
~ SUPPORT OF 2417 SHOWN DEPENDENT 
ffi ON 2421 GREEN FOUNDATION 
a.. --NO UNDERMINING OF 2421 FOUNDATON ALLOWED 
~ --NO UNDERPINNING OF 2421 BUILDING PERMITTED 
Q. --EXCAVATING UNDER 2421 GREEN PROHIBITED 


~ {N) TRANSVERSE 
\J SECTION 
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PROP()SED S1\.N FRi\NC:ISC~() BLiJl~lliN(; 
(~()f) I~ i\J\1 E~Dl\1 ENrrs 


2016 Edition 


Chapter 1 
SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 


Division I 
CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATION 


No San Froncisco Building Code Amendments. 


Division II 
SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION 


See Chapter 1 A for the Administration provisions of the San Francisco Building Code. 


Chapter lA 
SAN FRANCISCO ADMINISTRATION 


The City a.od County of San Francisco adopts the following Chapter 1 A for the purpose of 
administration of the~ 2016 San Francisco Building Code. Certain specific administrative and 
general code provisions as adopted by various state agencies may be found in Chapter 1, Divisions I 
and II of this code. 


SECTION lOlA- TITLE, SCOPE AND GENERAL 


lOlA. I Title. These regulations shall be known as the "aet3 2016 San Francisco Building Code," 
may be cited as such and will be referred to herein as "this code." The~ Bl!.San Francisco 
Buildmg Code amends the~ 2016 CaJifomia BuDding Code and the Hl-31016 California 
Residential Code "'bleb is Part 2 & 2.5 respectively of the 12 parts ofthe official compilation and 
publication of the adoption amendment and repeal of the building regulations to the California 
Code of Regulations, Title 24, also referred to as the California Building Standards Code. The 
Califomia Building Code and California Residential Code incorporates by adoption the ~ 1!Ui. 







created by Building Code Section 106A.4.1.3; provided, however, that, until the special inspection 
reports required by Building Code Section 1704.2.4 are submitted to and approved by the 
Department, the phase of construction subsequent to the phase or element for which the report was 
completed cannot commence. 


1705.22 Add the following section: 


1705.22 Crane Safety. No owner or other person shall operate, authoriu or permit the operation 
of a tower crane on a high-rise building structure until a signed Crane Site Safety Plan, Submittal 
Form and Crane Safety Compliance Agreement have been accepted by the Building Official. 


Chapter 17A 
SPECIAL INSPECTIONS AND TESTS 


No San Fl'llncisco Building Code Amendments 


Chapter 18 
SOILS AND FOUNDATIONS 


No San Francisco Building Code Amendments 


Chapter 18A 
SOILS AND FOUNDATIONS 


No San Francisco Building Code AMendments 


Chapter 19 
CONCRETE 


No San Francisco Building Code Amendments 


Chapter 19A 
CONCRETE 


No San Francisco Building Cotk Amendments 
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3302.4 Fencing. Pro,•ide for the enclosing, fencing, and boarding up or by fire watch or other mean:s 
of preventing access to the site by unauthorized persons when work is not in progres~. 


SECTION 3303- DEMOLITION 


3303.1 Add new seclirms asJol/nws: 


3303.1.1 Buildings other than Type\'. The demolition ofstructures of Types I, II, Ill and IV 
construction greater than two stories or 25 feet (7.62 m) in height shall comply with the 
requirements of this section. 


The requirements ofthis section shall also apply to the demolition of post-tensioned and 
pre- tensioned concrete structures. 


3303.1 .2 Required plans. Prior to approval of an application for a demolition permit, two sets of 
detailed plans shall be submitted for approval, showing the following: 


I. The sequence of operation floor by floor, prepared by a registered civil engineer or licensed 
architect. 


2. The location of standpipes. 
3. The location and detaUs of protective canopies. 
4. The location of truck crane during operation. 
5. Any necessary fence or barricade with lights. 
6. Any floor or wall left standing. 
7. The schedule of the days when the demoUtion will be done, i.e., on weekdays or on Sundays. 


3303.4 Replace tlris section with the following: 


3303.4 Vacant Lot. When a building is demolished, the permittee must remove aU debris and 
remove all parts of the structure above grade except those parts that are necessary to provide 
support for the adjoining property. 


3303.8 Add a new section us follows 


3303.8 Special inspection. A registered civil engineer or licensed architect shall supervise the 
demolition work in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the Building Official 
pursuant to Section 104A.2.1 to assure the work is proceeding in a safe ma,nner and shall submit 
written progress reports to the Department in accordance with Sec;Uon 1704.2.4. 


SECTION 3304- SITE \\'ORK 


3304.1 Add a second paragraph as.fi.JI/uws 
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The City and County of San Francisco adopts Appendix J for the purpose of regulating 
excavation and grading. 


3304.1 Add a third paragraph as follows. 


Temporary wood shoring and forms. All wood used for temporary shoring, lagging or 
forms that will be backfilled against or otherwise left permanently in place below grade shall be 
treated wood as deOned in Section 2302. 


SECTION 3306- PROTECTION OF PEDESTRIANS 


3306.10 Add a section as follows. 


3306.10 Chutes. Chutes for the removal of materials and debris shall be provided In all parts of 
demolition operations that are more than lO feet (6.096 m) above the point where the removal of 
material is effected. Such chutes shall be completely enclosed. They shall not extend ln an unbroken 
line for more than 2S feet (7.62 m) vertically but shall be equipped at intenals of 2S feet (7.62 m) or 
less with substantial rtops or offsets to prevent descending material from attaining dangerous 
speeds. 


The bottom of each chute shall be equipped with a gate or stop with a suitable means for 
closing or regulating the flow of material. 


Chutes, Ooon, stairways and other places affected shall be watered sufficiently to keep 
down the dust. 


3306.11 Add a section as follows: 


3306.1 J Falling debris. Wood or other ~onstruttion materials shall not be allowed to fall in large 
pieces onto an apper floor. Bulky materials, such as beams and columns, shall be lowered and oot 
aUowed to fall. 


3306.12 Add a section as follows: 


3306.12 Structure stabiUty. In buUdings of wood frame construction, Uul supporting structure 
shaD not be removed until tbe parts of the structure being supported have been removed. 


In buildings with basements, the first Ooor construction shall not be removed until the 
basement walls are braced to prevent overturning, or an analysis acceptable to the Building Official 
is submitted which shows the walls to be stable without bracing. 


SECTION 3307- PROTECTION OF ADJOINING PRO~ERTY 


3307.1 Insert a note at the end of this section as follows : 


3307.1 Protection required. Adjoining public and private property shall be protected from damage 
during construction, remodeling and demolition work. Protection must be provided for footings. 
foundations, party walls, chimneys, skylights, and roofs. Provisions shall be made to control water runoff 
and erosion during construction or demo! ilion activities. The person making or causing an excavation to 
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be made shall provide written notice to the owners ofadjoining buildings advising them that the 
excavation is to be made and that the adjoining buildings should be protected. Said notification shall be 
delivered not less than J 0 days prior to the scheduled starting date of the excavation. 


Note: Other requirements for protection of adjacent property of adjacent and depth to 
yvhlch protection is requested are defined by California Clvtl ode ection 832, and is reprinted 
herein for convenience. 


Section 832. Each coterminous owner is entitled to the lateral and subjacent support which 
his land receives from the adjoining land, subject to the right of the owner of the adjoining land to 
make proper and usual euavations on the same for purposes of construction or improvement, 
under the following conditions: 


1. Any owner of land or his lessee intending to make or to permit an enavation shall 
give reasonable notice to the owner or owners of adjoining lands and of buildings or other 
structures, stating the depth to which such excavation is intended to be made, and when the 
excavating wiD begin. 


2. In making any excavation, ordinary care and skill shall be used. and reasonable 
precautions taken to sustain the adjoining lan·d as such, without regard to any building or other 
structure which may be thereon, a11d there shall be no liability for damage done to any such 
building or other structure by reason of the excavation, except as otherwise provided or allowed by 
law. 


3, If at any time it appears that the excavation Is to be of a greater depth than a~ the 
walls or foundations of any adjoining building or other structure, and is to be so close as to 
endanger the building or other structure in any way, then the owner of the building or other 
structure must be allowed at least 30 days, If he 10 desires, In which to take measures to prot~t the 
same frona any damage. or in which to enead tile foundations thereof, and be must be given for the 
same purpost,ll reasonable license to enter on the land on which the excavation is to be or is being 
made. 


4. If the exca"ation is intended to be or Is deeper than the standard depth of 
foundations, which depth i1 defined to be a depth of nine feet below the adjacent curb level, at the 
point where the joint property line intersects the curb and if on the land of the coterminou1 owner 
there is any buDding or other strueture the wall or foundation of which goes to standard depth or 
deeper then the owner of the land on wbich tbe excavation ls being made shall; tf given the 
necessary license to enter on the adjoining land, protect the said adjoining land and any such 
building or other structure thereon without cost to the owner thereof, from any damage by reason 
of the excavation, and shall be liable to the owner of such property for any such damage, euepting 
only for minor settlement cracks In buildings or other structures. 


SECTION 3311-STANDPIPES 


3311.2 Replace this section and title with the following: 


3311.2 BuildiRg& ~eiRg detReUahed.Fire Safety During Demolition WheFI! 8 ewi iEiiR! is heit~g 
'*m~a a SloAEif)ipe eMis•s will1if1 !;1:1eh olt~:~iJdirtg. s~eb s1aatlp•13e 6ht1ll b~ RtaiAiaiRetl-i-R-&a­
epsF9hlr oeRElitien sn as fa be a..,&J iab l~ ffint~e hy 1he firt! Elepartme:RI. Sueh RhmEI~if'e shall be 
~iiYheEI wiiR the lmi iEiing btll ARBII IH~ I ee demolished FF\9Fe llum OFte rleor b&lew lhe near aemg 
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The California Environmental Quality Act 


1itle 14. California Code of Regu/atinns 
Chapter 3. Guidelines for Implementation of the 


California Environmental Quality Act 


Article 19. Categorical Exemptions 


Sections J 5300 to 15333 


15300. Categorical Exemptions 


Section 21084 of the Public Resources Code requires these Guidelines to include a list of classes of 
project.<> which have been determined not to have a significant effect on the environment and which 
shall , therefore, be exempt from the provisions ofCEQA. 


fn response to that mandate, the Secretary for Resources has found that the following classes of 
projects listed in this article do not have a significant effect on the environment, and they are declared 
to be categorically exempt from the requirement for the preparation of environmental documents. 


Note: Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code; Reference: Section 21084, Public 
Resources Code. 


15300.1. Relation to Ministerial Projects 


~ection 21 080 of the Public Resources Code exempts from the application of CEQA those projects 
over which public agencies exercise only ministerial authority. Since ministerial projects are already 
exempt, categorical exemptions should be applied only where a project is not ministerial under a 
public agency's statutes and ordinances. The inclusion of activities which may be ministerial within 
J}Jc- classes and examples contained in this article shall not be consbued as a finding by the Secretary 
for Resources that such an activity is discretionary. 


Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code; Reference: Section 21084, Public 
Resources Code. 


15300.2. Exceptions 


(a) Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and II are qualified by consideration of where the project is to be 
located -- a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment may in a 
raniculerly sensitive environment be significant. Therefore, these classes are considered to apply all 
instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental resource of hazardous or critical 
concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, 
or local agencies. 


Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the cumulative impact 
f successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is significant. 


(c) Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall QOt be used for an ~vity where lbef~ is a 
rcns nahle pos10ibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment due to unusual 


-
(d) Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which may result in 
damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, rock outcroppings, 


hltp:/lwNw.resources.ca.gov/ceqalguidelilles.lart19.html 1/16 
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or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic highway. This does not 
apply to improvement'> which arc required as rnitigalion by an adopted negative declaration or 
ccnified EIR. 


(e) Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project located on a site 
which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code. 


1 Hu.t neal R . oun:e A at g neal "" ·m1>tl n tal l nut ht: u ·en tnr pro ect wlu rna" c usc a 
ub<itanlllil adverse change in the significanc:c: of a historical resource. 


1\olt: Authority cited: Section 21 083, Public Resources Code; References: Sections 21 084 and 
21084.1, Public Resources Code; Wildlife Alive v. Chickering ( 1977) 18 Cal.3d 190; League for 
/'mlt'Ciit ''' of Oakland's Architectural and Historic Resource~ ~( City of Oakland ( 1997) 52 
Cai.App.4th 896; Citizens for Responsible Development in West Hol~vwood v. City of West Hollywood 
(1995) 39 Cal.App.4th 925; City a,( Pasadena v. Stale ofCa/ifumia (1993) 14 Cai.App.4th 810; 


ssoctalrlonfor the Protection etc. Value.Y v. Cily of Ukiah ( 1991) 2 Cai.App.4th 720; and Baird v. 
County of Contra Costa (1995) 32 Cai.App.4th 1464 


Discussion: In McQueen v. Mid-Peninsula Regional Open Space (1988) 202 Cal. App. 3d 1 J 36, the 
c~u.n reiterated that categorical exemptions are construed strictly, shall not be unreasonably expanded 
beyond their tenns, and may not be used where there is substantial evidence that there arc unusual 
circumstances (including future activities) resulting in (or which might reasonably result in) 
significant impacts which threaten the environment. 


Public Resources Code Section 21084 provides several additional exceptions to the use of categorical 
exemptions. Pursuant to that statute, none of the following may qualify as a categorical exemption: (I) 
a project which may cesult jn damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic 
buildings rock 0\]tcroppings, or similar resources within a scenic highway (this does not apply to 
improvements which are required as mitigation for a project for which a negative declaration or EIR 


previously been adopted or certified; (2) a project located on a site included on any list compiled 
pun;u~tnt to Government Code section 65962.5 (hazardous and toxic waste sites, etc.}; and (3) a project 
which may cause a substantial adverse change in tbc significance of a historical resource. 


15300.3. Revisions to List of Categorical Exemptions 


A public agency may, at any time, request that a new class of categorical exemptions be added, or an 
existing one amended or deleted. This request must be made in writing to the Office of Planning and 


and shall contain detailed infonnation to support the request. The granting of such request 
hall be by amendment to these Guidelines. 


Note: Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code; Reference: Section 21084, Public 
Resource.s Code. 


15300.4. Application By Public Agencies 


Each public agency shall, in the course of establishing its own procedures, list those specific activities 
ich fall within each of the exempt classes, subject to the qualification that these lists must be 


· with both the letter and the intent expressed in the classes. Public agencies may omit from 
their implementing procedures classes and examples that do not apply to their activities, but they may 
not require ETRs for projects described in the classes and examples in this article except under the 
provisions ofSeetion 15300.2. 


Note: Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code; Reference: Section 21084, Public 
Resources Code. 


15301. Existing Facilities 
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§ 15064.5. Detenninlng the Significance of Impacts to Archaeological and Historical Resources. 
14 CAADC § 15064.5 


BARCLAYS OFFICIAL CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS 


Barclays Official California Code of Regulations Currentness 
Title 14. Natural Resources 


Division 6. Resources Agency 
Chapter 3. Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act 


Articles. Preliminary Review of Projects and Conduct of Initial Study 


14 CCR § 15064.5 


§ 15064.5. Determining the Significance of Impacts to Archaeological and Historical Resources. 


(a) For purposes of this section, the term "historical resources" shall include the following: 


(1) A resource listed ln. or determined to be eligible by the State Historical Resources Commission, for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Reso1.1rces (Pub. Res. Code §5024.1, TIUe 14 CCR, Section 4850 et seq.). 


(2) A resource included in a local register of historical resources, as defined in section 5020.1 (k) of the Public Resources Code 
or identified as significant in an historical resource survey meeting the requirements section 5024.1 (g) of the Public Resources 
Code, shall be presumed to be historically or culturally significant. Public agencies must treat any such resource as significant 
unless the preponderance of evidence demonstrates that it is not historically or culturally significant. 


(3) Any object, building, structure, site, area, place, record, or manuscript which a lead agency detennlnes to be historically 
significant or significant In the architectural, engineering, scientific, economic, agricultural, educational, social, political, military, 
or cultural annals of California may be considered to be an historical resource, provided the lead agency's determination is 
supported by substantial evidence In light of the whole record. Generally, a resource shall be considered by the lead agency to 
be "historically significant• If the resource meets the criteria for listing on the California Register of Historical Resources (Pub. 
Res. Code, § 5024.1, Title 14 CCR, Section 4852) Including the following: 


(A) Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of California's history and cultural 
heritage; 


(B) Is associated with the lives of pen;ons important in our past; 


(C) Embodies the distinctive characteristiC$ of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of an 
important creative Individual, ur possesses high artistic values; or 


(D) Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. 


(4) The fact that a resource is not listed In, or determined to be eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical 
Resources, not included in a local register of historical resources (pursuant to section 5020.1 (k) of the Public Resources Code), 
or identified in an historical resources survey (meeting the criteria in section 5024.1 (g} of the Public Resources Code) does not 
preclude a lead agency from determining that the resource may be an historical resource as defined in Public Resources Code 
sections 5020.1 (j) or 5024. 1. 


(b) A proJect with an effect that may cause a substantial adverse change 1n the significance of an historical resource Is a proJect that 
may have a significant effect on the environment. 


(1 ).Substantial adverse change in the significance of an histQrjcal resource means physical demolition, destrUction, ~location, or 
alteration of the resource or its immediate surroundings such that the signifiCance of an historical resource would be materially 
impaired. 


(2) The significance of an historical resource is materially impaired when a project: 


(A) Demolishes or materially alters in an adverse manner those physical characteristics of an historical resource that convey its 
historical significance and that jusUfy Its Inclusion In, or eligibility for, Inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources; 
or 


(B) Demolishes or materially alters in an adverse manner those physical characteristics that account for its Inclusion In a local 
register of historical resources pursuant to section 5020.1 (k) of the Public Resources Code or its identification In an historical 
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resources survey meeting the requirements of section 5024.1 (g) of the Public Resources Code, unless the public agency 
reviewing the effects or the project establishes by a preponderance of evidence that the resource Is not historically or culturally 
significant; or 


(C) Demolishes or materially alters in an adverse manner those physical characteristics of a historical resource that convey its 
historical significance and that justify its eligibility for inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources as determined 
by a lead agency for purposes of CEQA. 


(3) Generally, a project that follows the Secretary of the Interior's Standards tor the Treatment of Historic Properties with 
Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings or the Secretary of the Interior's 
Standards for Rehabifltation and Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings (1995), Weeks and Grimmer, shall be 
considered as mitigated to a level of less than a significant impact on the historical resource. 


(4) A lead agency shall identify potentially feasible measures to mitigate significant adverse changes in the significance of an 
historical resource. The lead agency shall ensure that any adopted measures to mitigate or avoid significant adverse changes 
are fully enforceable through permit conditions, agreements, or other measures. 


(5) When a project will affect state-owned historical resources, as described in Public Resources Code Section 5024, and the 
lead agency is a state agency, the lead agency shall consult with the State Historic Preservation Officer as provided in Public 
Resources Code Section 5024.5. Consultation should be coordinated in a timely fashion with the preparation of environmental 
documents. 


(c) CEQA applies to effects on archaeological sites. 


(1) When a project will impact an archaeological site, a lead agency shall first detennlne whether the site is an historical 
resource, as defined in subdivision (a). 


(2) If a lead agency determines that the archaeological site is an historical resource, it shall refer to the provisions of Section 
21084.1 of the Public Resources Code, and this section, Section 15126.4 of the Guidelines, and the limits contained in Section 
21083.2 of the Public Resources Code do not apply. 


(3) If an archaeological site does not meet the criteria defined in subdivision (a), but does meet the definition of a unique 
archeological resource in Section 21083.2 of the Public Resources Code, the site shall be treated in accordance with the 
provisions of section 21083.2. The lime and cost limitations described in Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 (c-f) do not 
apply to surveys and site evaluation activities intended to de- !ermine whether the project location contains unique 
archaeological resources. 


(4) If an archaeological resource is neither a unique archaeological nor an historical resource, the effects of the project on those 
resources shall not be considered a significant effect on the environment. It shall be sufficient that both the resource and the 
effect on it are noted In the Initial Study or EIR, if one is prepared to address impacts on other resources, but they need not be 
considered further in the CEQA process. 


(d) When an initial study identifies the existence of, or the probable likelihood, of Native American human remains within the project, 
a lead agency shall work with the appropriate Native Americans as identified by the Native American Heritage Commission as 
provided In Public Resources Code section 5097.98. The applicant may develop an agreement for treating or disposing of, with 
appropriate dignity, the human remains and any Items associated with Native American burials with the appropriate Native 
Americans as identified by the Native American Heritage Commission." Action implementing such an agreement is exempt from: 


(1) The general prohibition on disinterring, disturbing, or removing human remains from any location other than a dedicated 
cemetery (Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5). 


(2) The requirements of CEQA and the Coastal Act. 


(e) In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains in any location other than a dedicated cemetery, the 
following steps should be taken: 


(1) There shall be no further excavation or disturbance or the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent 
human remains until: 


(A) The coroner of the county in which the remains are discovered must be contacted to determine that no investigation of the 
cause of death is required, and 


(B) If the coroner determines the remains to be Native American: 


1. The coroner shall contact the Native American Heritage Commission within 24 hours. 


2. The Native American Heritage Commission shall identify the person or persons it believes to be the most likely 
descended from the deceased Native American. 


3. The most likely descendent may make recommendations to the landowner or the person responsible for the 
excavation work, for means of treating or disposing of, with appropriate dignity, the human remains and any associated 
grave goods as provided in Public Resources Code section 5097.98, or 
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(2) Where the following conditions occur. the landowner or his authorized representative shall rebury the Native American 
human remains and associated grave goods with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further 
subsurface disturbance. 


(A) The Native American Heritage Commission is unable to identify a most likely descendent or the most likely descendent failed 
to make a recommendation within 24 hours after being notified by the commission. 


(B) The descendant identified fails to make a recommendation; or 


(C) The landowner or his authorized representative rejects the recommendation of the descendant. and the mediation by the 
Native American Heritage Commission fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner. 


(f) As part of the objectives, criteria, and procedures required by Section 21082 of the Public Resources Code, a lead agency should 
make provisions for historical or unique archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction. These provisions 
should include an immediate evaluation of the find by a qualified archaeologist. If the find Is determined to be an historical or unique 
archaeological resource, oonUngency funding and a time allotment sufficient to allow for implementation of avoidance measures or 
appropriate mitigation should be available. Work could continue on other parts of the building site While historical or unique 
archaeological resource mitigation takes place. 


Note: Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections 21083.2.21084 and 21084.1, Public Resources 
Code; and Citizens for Responsible Development in West Hollywood v. City of West Hollywood (1995) 39 Cai.App.4th 490. 


HISTORY 


1. New section filed 10-26-98; operative 10-26-98 pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21087 (Register 98, No. 44). 


2. Change without regulatory effect amending subsections (c)(1), (c)(3), (d) and (e)(1)(8)2.-3. and amendingNote filed 1()..6..2005 
pursuant to seclion 100, tiUe 1, California Code of Regulations (Register 2005, No. 40). 


This database is current through 12122117 Register 2017, No. 51 


14 CCR § 15064.5, 14 CA ADC § 15064.5 


END OF DOCUMENT 


---------- - - - - - ----- -
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California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 


CEQABasics 


The Cel!lomla fnylronmental Ouilllry Atl ICEOAI lhHp• lfwM m£[;w 'mnlci!IC!!.!!-SIBoowwJ! prx/L41t[mQ14/C ali!ru no;.{mlea!Rey..itl!llfoml 


flllll~I!!SClN.A7QL"lM81)Llf:BL02!>'3tC60 L t (!!!Ut•m•Cfndhqn'Pou:xt • d !Kom nuq<f'•trammqnlyps---'Og[.J Llit&tont< ltt DPsa~• 'IU) fay\! II has a number or functions; two major 


runctlons are described here. One is to provide decision makers with information about the environmental impacts of projects prior to granting approval. The second is to 


allow the public to comment on the impact~ of projects In their community. Through the comment process, citizens can help projects avoid and minimize impacts by 


developing project alternatives and mitigation measures. 


Just because significant environmental impacts are Identified, CEQA does not require that pro)etts be denied. That decision to approve or deny Is left to elected officials or 


appointed decision makers. It is Important for concerned citizens to participate in the CEQA comment process if they want to play a role. Without public partkipatlon, decision 


makers will rind It difficult determining what a t~erable or Intolerable environmental Impact looks like in their community. 


Local governments with a permit approval (cities, counlies. special districts) are referred to In CEQA as "Lead Agencies" and are tasked under CEQA with carrying out the 


environmental Impact analysis. Once a lead agency has acted, the citizen or other entity must turn to the courts to determine the adequacy of the CEQA document. 


HiSiat1tal resoiJrCti (bulldinp, structures. or all:heotocical rl!sources} are considered par1 of the l!nvil'onment and are suDject to review under CEQA. Pll!ase contact the OHP If 


you have questions about how to partiCipate In Llle CEQA process or how to Identify and e\laluate lllstorlcal resources dllf1ng an environmental Impact analysis. 


CEQA l!i encoded in Sections 21000 et seq of the Public Resources Code (PRCI wltll Guidelines for implementation codified In the Cafifornba Code of Rerulations !CCRl Tille 14 


chamar 3 Scnron~ 15000 gs seq i hnp·/iresourre~ cas:oyte.:Wll WtddirwsJao 1 .bsmu .• requ~res state and local public agencies to identify the environmental Impacts ol 


proposed discretionary activities or projects, determine if the Impacts will be significant, and Identify alternatives and mitigation measures that win substantially reduce or 


eliminate significant Impacts to the environment State owned properties are subject to the provisions of public Resources Code Sgction 5024 apd 5024 5 


t I /pages/] 071/files/pub!lc'M!20respyrrgs%20code%205024 pdO 


Historical resources are considered part of the environment and a project that may cause a substantilll adverse effect on the significance of a historical resource is a project 


that may have a significant effect on the enlllronment. The definition of "historical resources" Is contained In Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines. 


C£QA Guidelines lhn ps:lltl!M,.Westaw eorol{,'!trc~fl!rowsell:fomt/Gt !J fom!gfCvlilornlaCodr:or!leL\'' ' a!lnnsi 


C wil• l9!1QllM70a488 1 I DEBC!121!31 Cf!Qt.C lOll f&or i!!lOi!l!OOk®tl!!i! '"d0CUOJemtOc.IIUJD5 tlon tync--.P<!f.wlt&c ODLPl!tOd( as:s<.fll:lau!! I! 


Publlc Rnqum:s Cpdg S!;Wpn 2.1DU.z.2JOI4.1 r W W!j' t:s/lP!t4/fllc::stoyl.tflt!la20respyr(fi'&20u!de.tulO 


Public RDpLjrUs Ci)de Sectlgn 5024 !. !, roagtlflOlll!l!l•sfmJUI)ai.ZQresoyr!ies,.,2Ckoc!t'l!zZ!JSU2A,pd0 


C£0A Prgcess Flowchart (.I /pages/1071/ij!es/cega flow chart odD 


AB52 Tribal Cultural Resources and CEQA 


Office af e/anolne and Researt h TedJinkal Advisory · A851 and Tribal cullu.Cill sesou eM In CfOA !hUp:lfnabc,ca eoytwp-conu:nttypload;!aonm6acchn!cel· 


Adyj$O(Jl·AE!:52,.nd· Tr!bal-CuJturai-Rcsources-iD=CEQA,pdO 


Office pi Pl;;mntna and &euarch · Tribal ( u!tu ral Rnpyrqtl and CEOA t htmcf/wWI,II,ollr,~.rovls ab52phA} 


CEOA AppendiX G c.beckllst w11 b A8 52 Cbgncu tbup·llppr,ct govtdog rAopendl!t G AB 52 Update 2016.od0 


Nor lye: American Hcdtaee Commission · The Basics or PcOJe, !lnJ: Tdbal CyJtural Resources Under AB 52 !bup:Uoah c ca,J:oy/20 17104/tbr-boslts-.of·orotenlo~!Cibal: 
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CEQA Q&A 


When does CEOA i!PPb'Z I7am• ~e l - l! U31 


What Is the C£0A review process and who Initiates IL C7pagr- ld 2362Zl? 


Whpllsthc: Callfornl a Beclsl CI..and what docs It hal( 


Arc, a rchcolo!!.lc"l..sltes oan or tl 


ijow con substlnt!a! adverse chanrc be. ayolded or ml!ll;ned? (7pi!t•g • tl~ ~ 1 ZJjJ 


WJli.Urc exemptions under CEOA and hpW ue they used? C?pag~: 1LI=21n81 


WbaL are loCi! I CEOA Guidelines? auace id". I T>~l 


Wb11. e ns.uw CEOA Is btln&followed prooerM Qlh'i!t 10"'217301 


!:jow sbpuld • c!tlun-approa cb adltocatlnR for historical mourcp uodt• CEOAZ C?Qave !d :!ID!I 


Whi.Linformatton Is. useful to h1ve when <ool~etlnll OHP 1bpyt a CEOA proJect? ap;uJ<• td•:> 1 rn1 


This inform.1rlon Is Intended to merely Illustrate the process outlined In CEQA statute and guidelines relatiVe to historical and cuiNral resources. These msterials on CEQA and 


other laws ilre offered by the State Office of Historic Preservation for informational purposes only. Th;s informatiOn does not have the force or law or regulation and should 


nor b~ cited In legal briefs as rhe authority for any proposition. In the case of discrep.Jncles between the information provld~d on this website and the CEQ"' stai!Jte or 


guidelines, the language of the CEQII sutvre and Guidelines (PHC Section 21000 et seq. and 14 CCR SectiOn 15000 et seq.) Is conrrolllng. Information contained In this site does 


nor off~r nor constitute legal advke. You should contact an attomey for technical guidance on current legal requirements. 


CEQA Case Studies 


The Callfomlil! Office of Historic Preservation comments on CEQA documents as an authority on historic and cultural resouRes. The publications below use case studll!'s taken 


from enVIronmental document5 produced in California to help environmental analysts illnd lead agencies understand historical and cultural resource Identification and 


evaluation. 


Volume 1: Hpw rp ldcnrff,y and Eyalutte Hlstpr!c 1nd Cultural Landscapes 


I. /./paces/1Q71101cs/ccqa'lll20si11JIOE;Inl11120lmpacu'I\20cultuCJ""20!ondsgpes,.2DVI.pdD 


Volume !!• C.onsldec !he Whole Action ' How to AVoid Seplent loe·! J .. /pates/1071/0!esJcega'lt2QhoW'>I'2DtD'l!r20nyo!d"'20sqment lnc»200'IIIZOV·il.pd0 


Volume Ill: Usln& Dlscretjon to tdcntl{y Historic Rcspurces U.,/pallesf1071lfllcs/E;tqa,.2Qcas~20stydi~2!HI20ldcntfOctuon.pdfl 


Volurne JV: toni! peyelopment Prolem: understandlne lmpacu to Hlsror!cal Resources 1 I.Jpaees/1Q711fllesllv%20yrbaowotnOII.odn 


Volume V: Understand In& ldentlflatlon of Histprltal Resources 1 I [Jla&cs[10711fl!cs""'20yoderstandlne"t21Udrol0til1JQn.UD 


Volume Yt: Understanding the SP.ycar Threshold ! .. (..lpues(1Q71/ft!esNJ Understanding the SP.ycar Jbreshold.pdO 
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Sea)on 106. federal f\8ency Compliance tnpau id=1071l 


Amerjcan Recoyerv Act & Section 106 Reviews IIZpage !d-280351 


The FCC & Section 1 06 ReView tnwuu: ld=ZB034J 


Staff Contacts 


Rpn parspns !ma!lto·ron parsons@parks ca goy! 


State Historian II 


CEQAIEducation and OutreachJCLG Coordinator 


916-445-7042 


suff Dlrutcu:y 


Rpap !fMQ15l 


Main Addrn1: 


Office of Historic Preservation 


1725 23rd Street, Suite 100 


sacramento, CA 95816 


1916) 445-7000; fax: (916) 445· 7053 


calshpo phpWpadss ca goy lmailto-calsbpp pbp®!)arlls ca goyl 


CEQA LINKS 


"CEQA Where to Start?" I./ lpages/1Q11/IIIu/g!ql,pd0 


California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 


CEOA Gu!dtllnts lbttps:IIBQYt,wtstl•w,cpmtcalrtp!Brpwu/Home/Cal!foml•tc•llforo!aCpdcpfBciUI•tlpnsz 


guld•I9SPAAA10D4881 1 DEBC02831 C6D6C10BE&odglnatlonCootext•documenttoc&transltlonlypeoefay!t&conlextoata•lsc,Defiu!tU 


Callfwnla R•ister pf Historical Rupyrqa Opage !d-212381 


Office pf Planning& Research/Stat• C!ur!ngbpuse ChUp.,ppr.c.a Bpv/) 


pac 5024 • 5024.5 - 5t•te Agency Cpmpl!ance Rgp ld•27J64l 


Scrtlpn 1Q6- Fcc!crtl Agency Cpmpl!ance IZRIP ld•1Q111 


9 Address: 1725 23rd StrHt. SUite 100, Sacramento, CA 95816 


\. Public lnformttlon lnqulrtes: (916)445·7000 
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Carol L. Karp 
Architect A.I.A. 


January 14, 2019 


C&CSF Planning Conunission 
Rich Hillis, President 
Commission Chambers, City Hall, Room 400 
San Francisco, CA 94102 


Subject: Appeal of CEQA Categorical Exemption (Resubmitted 6/22/18) 
Proposed Contiguous & Interference Construction 
2417 Green Street Project [Block 560 - Lot 028] 


RE: Coxhead House, 2421 Green Street 
Planned Significant Impact to Historic Architectural Resource 


Dear President Hollis & Commission Members: 


On 119/18 the Board of Supervisors granted appeal of the CBQA Categorical Exemption issued 5/16/17 
allowing intrusive excavation to undermine foundations and ~mlarging superstructure to block windows, 
and returned the project to Planning for proper environmental review (still circumvented). Substantial 
evidence was submitted to the Board attesting to the significaht adverse impact and irreparable hann 
from the project, if implemented, would cause to Ernest Albelt Coxhead' s own residence, designed and 
built 1892-1893. Included was my report of 12/30/17 (attached) summarizing the National Register. 


I was co-author (with Kathryn Shaffer AlA) of the nominatioJ of the Cox.head House to the National 
Park Service' s placement in the National Register of Historic Places, full document submitted to the SF 
Planning Department 11/17/17, including Nancy Pelosi's lettr·r. The Coxhead House' s qualification for 
inclusion in the Register has its architecture as its basis; that architecture consists of the appearance of 
the building, its site and environment, and its history. CEQA' 14 Cal Code Regs §15300.2(t), does not 
permit a categorical exemption for an activity that interferes , t,ith an historical resource. Obliteration of 
architectural fenestration and view of the major elevation is s1evere damage. The project's approval by 
Planning, resulting in issuance of the current-in-place building permits, is why the Board of Supervisors 
unanimously granted appeal of the determination of categoriclal exemption, now wrongfully reinstated. 


The Coxhead house is not merely an historical resource; it is Ja unique architectural resource of the San 
Fr~cisco Bay Area. Architecture does not begin or stop at the property line; architecture is concerned with 
the relationships among components with emphasis on their ei:xternally visible properties. Site planning is a 
vita) part of architecture because building systems are viewed! in context with inte~ation of their 
surroundings, which in CEQA "E" means "Environmental". rA.rchitects are traine(t and experienced in their 
profession and if qualified in California they are licensed to ~ actice architecture. The Business & 
Professions Code defines "qualification" as "licensure". Nonte of the persons in the Planning Department 
signing the determination of Categorical Exemption, which emphasizes the 2417 project but ignores its 
environment, is listed with the Department of Consumer Affa irs as an architect. Their opinions about the 
Coxhead House' s functional architecture are excuses to avoid the required Environmental Impact Report. 


Yours .truly, 


~ 


,,, .... .,,,,, 
,,,._, sED ARc~-~,'''' , ... v~•······· V)'~,,.. 


~ ..:;) •• ~\'\.Ol L. ~·· •• o,....~ 
~ •ur •• -;. - . . ... = : ~ : 


E : No. 17665 : : - . -:, ~ . ~ 
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Carol L. Karp 


100 Tres Mesas Orinda, CA 94563 (925) 254-6676 :1' • • ~ fax: ~-w.Diflltt,~~ e-Mail: carol@lcarp.ca 
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Carol L. Karp 
Architect A.I.A. 


December 30,2017 


C&CSF Board of Supervisors 
London Breed, President 
City Hall, Room 250 
San Francisco, CA 941 02 


Subject: 


RE: 


Subject: 


Appeal of CEQA Categorical Exemption 
2417 Green Street Project [Block 560 - Lot 028] 


Coxhead House 
2421 Green Street 
Tirreatened Historic Resource 


Contiguous Proposed Construction 
2417 Green Street, San Francisco 


Dear President Breed & Supervisors: 


This correspondence concerns the negative impact that the subject project will have on the building 
at 2421 Green Street, which is immediately adjacent to the project site. This information is 
additional to the National Park Service's nomination for placement in the national register of 
historic places. Ernest Albert Coxhead's own residence, designed and built 1892-1893, has been 
declared eligible for listing with copies of the final draft nomination papers being part of the appeal 
lodged with the San Franciso Planning Department 11/17/17 which includes a letter of support from 
House Minority Leader Nancy Pelosi. 


The Coxhead house is renowned as the forefather of the "First Bay Tradition" of architecture which 
began in San Francisco at the end of the 19th century. Coxhead, as most of his following architects 
(e.g. Bernard Maybeck, Julia Morgan) who emigrated to California, utilized their training to adopt 
and integrate their designs with the use of native and locally made materials such as redwood, red 
cedar shingles, and brick. Coxhead's house manifests unique roof profiles and sidewall fenestration 
predicated on emphasizing views from the house and views of the house that have been punctuated 
with Cotswald detailing. Subsequent Second Bay and Third Bay Traditions were derivatives that 
followed. 


As covered in our nomination papers, the Shingle Style exterior of the house is an exemplary expression of 
adaption ofCoxhead's classical training with local features and materials into a new California 
architectural style. Cox.head recognized there would be enough open space on the east and west 
elevations to glaze much of these elevations. He then carefully positioned bands of windows to 
capture San Francisco Bay views and sunlight from the East and West. Promoters of the project at 
2417 Green, which is intended to enlarge the adjacent house, believe the views are not important. 
Views from the Coxhead house, which the fenestration was carefully designed around, are reciprocated 
by views from the house; everything vjewed has viewers that can see the Coxhead House. 
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The building is a unique solution for a house on a typical narrow lot in San Francisco's Pacific Heights 
and Cow HoUow. It is urban in character in the front and a relaxed freestanding house in the country 
at the rear. The entry portico and staircase that join the building with the street leads one to a classical 
style front door that provides an articulated entry into the residence. Architectural rustorians have 
written about this specific design feature and how it brought European design to the San Francisco Bay 
Area. The building is so significant to American archite.cture that the seminal book on this subject lists 
two houses by architects (Frank Lloyd Wright and Ernest Albert Coxhead) that were designed and 
built for themselves. 


The nomination papers have extensive photographic coverage of the exterior of the bouse including 
drone imagery of the environment surrounding the 2417 project. The Coxhead house is threatened by 
the contiguous development and the developers have questioned the historic value of the Coxhead 
House even though it is officially historic. As the nomination papers do not have copies of the unusual 
published coverage of the house due to copyright, I am attaching copies of the chapters from the major 
books that prominantly cover the Coxhead House, as well as the letter of support by San Francisco's 
congresswoman and my letter with resume to the owner, who has allowed the nomination, as follows: 


1. "Shingle Style- Innovation and Tradition in American Architecture 1874 to 1982", 
author Leland Roth, photograher Bret Morgan, Norfleet Abrams 1999. 


2. "Bay Area Style- Houses of the San Francisco Bay Region, author David Weingarten, 
photographer Alan Weintraub, Rizzoli 2004. 


3. "On the Edge of the World- Four Architects in San Francisco at the Turn of the 
Century", author Richard Longstreth, MIT Press 1983. 


4. Letter from Rep. Nancy Pelosi to California Office of Historic Preservation, 2017. 


5. Letter with resume from Carol Karp AlA to owner of the Coxhead House, 2017. 


According to the architectural drawings submitted to the City by the developer of 2417 Green, the project 
increases the existing envelope of the building which will obliterate views to and from 2421 Green which 
will profoundly affect the historic nature of the building. According to the engineering drawings submitted 
to the City by the developer of2417 Green Street, the project has no provisions for protecting the 125 year 
old historic brick fmmdations, that survived the 1906 Earthquake intact, from damage from loss of lateral 
and subjacent support due to the planned excavations. There is no survey or geotechnical investigation or 
any provisions to protect the historic resource. The project is certainly not entitled to a CEQA Categorical 
Exemption and an Enviommental Impart Report should be prepared under CEQA regulations. 


Yours truly, 


Carol L. Karp 


Carol L. Karp Architect A. I.A. 
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FRANK LLOYD WRIGHT 
HOME AND STUDIO 


The living room, inglerrook, and hallway are 
broadly colrnected yet individuated spaces. 


OPPOS1Tfl: Perhaps the ultlmole expression 
rif the dornitlaill front gable first seer1 in 
Richardson's rMztts Sfterman house. 
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Oak Park, nlinois1 1889-1914 


V incent Scully's now-classic study, The Shingle Style: Arclritectural 


T7~eory and Design from Richardson to the Origins of Wright, concludes with a 


discussion of Frank Lloyd Wright. It gives Wright's house in Oak Park a place 


of honor, marlcing the end of the inventive freedom of the r87os and r88os 


and at the same time announcing the beginning of what would become 


Wright's Prairie Houses in the early tWentieth century. 


Wright says nothing in his Autobiography about any consideration of 


Japanese art or architecture in the office of his first employer. joseph Lyman 


Silsbee, which Wright entered during r887. Silsbee, however, was the close 


boyhood friend and later brother-in-law of Ernest Fennelosa, who was then 


becoming the foremost American authority on Japanese art and culture. 


Regardless of the origins of the Japanese influence, clearly Wright was 


Ltl.Spired, for in his own house he opened up the rooms to one another, like 


a Japanese house with the sliding screens pushed back, and he employed a 


continuous upper molding, running around each room, like the Japanese 


kamoi rail, linking the rooms together. 


The most obvious influence on Wright was the East Coast Shingle Style, 


then being introduced in Chicago by Silsbee, a recent transplant from Syracuse 


and BuffaJo, Ne~ York. Silsbee's houses of this period were largely Shingle 


Style designs, similar to those of eastern architects John Calvin Stevens, 


McKim, Mead & Wlute, and Lamb & Rich. Silsbee came to the attention 


of developer J. L. Cochran , who was about to Jay out a model suburban 


community to be called Edgewood, about six miles north of the heart of 


Chicago. In 1887 he engaged Silsbee to design the houses for this community. 


Wright, just months in Silsbee's employ, executed a perspective drawing of 


Cochran's own house from Silsbee's design. Like Bruce Price's houses for 


Pierre Lorillard in the New York suburb Tuxedo Park, the Edgewood houses 


were to be relatively small and compact. As in the case ofPricc., Silsbee was 


inspired to devise simple dramatic forms jn which large dramatic triangular 


gables predominated. 


Wright was aware, too, of the boldly triangular shingled houses being bLtilt 


in Austin, a new suburb just west of Chicago and immediately east of Oak 


Park, where he lived. Rare photographs survive of the earliest building;; 











J!Vrig/11 achieved n 1111ique syur!tcsis <?(the dassiml a11d orie11tnl itiflue11ccs thac pervaded Shi11gle Style desig11. 
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then~-boldly massed broad-gabled shingled designs by freder:ick Schock 


(fig. 26). A brief mention of Schock in Wright's Autobiography suggests that 


Wright knew these buildings as well. But rhe most obvious models for 


Wright's house in Oak Park were Price's shingled houses at Tuxedo Park 


(fig. 4). The:ir simple design program encouraged bold, simple, dramatic 


forms composed or large triangular gables with long sweeping roof lines. 


One of these houses in particular seems to have been the inspiration for 


Wright's design : the Chandler house. Its dramatic gable appeared as a linear 


photoengraving, togetht>r with a plan, in Building (September 1886). 


The changes that Wright made in moving beyond his apparent models 


anticipate the direction his work would take in the next two decades. As Neil 


Levine notes in writing about Wright's dramatically abstract Oak Park house .. 


it is the "projection of an image" of what a house could be, ar once familiar 


and yet strikingly simple, and outside the limits proscribed by conventional 


types. Indeed, Wright comments in the Autobiography that his neighbors 


were perplexed and asked .if the design "were Seaside or Colonial." 


Wright's first signjficaut itmovation was placing his house not on a light 


framed porch but on a solid elevated terrace, enclosed by a continuous 


masonry wall and gained by broad low stone stairs, making a far stronger 


connection to the earth. Wright used continuous surfaces of shingles 


throughout, on both the walls and long roof planes. He also enlarged and 


abstracted Price's near-Pallad1an window, making it a broad strip of windows 


illuminating his studio. The great overhang of the front gable portends the 


extended cantilevers of the eaves of Wright's subsequent Prairie Houses. 


Wright's plan was a pinwheel of spaces arranged around a small cenaaJ 


hearth sheltered within a diminutive inglenook. The round-arched fireplace, 


with its long tapered brick voussoirs, speaks of Wright's admiration for 


Richardson and Louis Sullivan. In the four corners of the living room ceiling, 


electric lighting flXtures are integrated into square-paneled flourishes of 


foliate ornament, recalling the similarly integrated ornament and lighting 


used by Sullivan in his Auditorium theater. The staircase in the adjoining 


entry stair-hall, incorporating a built-in seat and rising in gentle stages with 


many landings, exemplifies the Queen Anne house. And jn the stair- hall, 


placed over the upper molding, is a continuous plaster frieze, a miniature 


near-replica of the imposing high relief sculptUre of the great Altar of Zeus 


of Pergamon, whose classical reference is reinforced by the denticulated 


cornice in the living room, 


What began as a compact cottage house was modified repeatedly by 


Wright to accommodate his family, and then to house his office and studio, 


so that its original simplicity has been somewhat obscured . Nonetheless, the 


dramatic west facade gable and the interconnected extruded spaces wichin 


still her;ald Wright's incipient early modernism. 
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ERNEST COXHEAD'S 
HOUSE 


Sart Francisco) Califomia1 1893 


A.chitecture "on cbe edge of the world" was what architectural 


historian Richard Longstreth called tbe work of several highly imaginative 


architects who moved to San Francisco at the turn of the last century. Almost 


at once that city was blessed with the inventive genius of five remarkable 


designers- Ernest Coxhead, Willis Polk, Bernard Maybeck,A. C. Schwein­


furth, and A. Page Brown. All came from the East. Maybeck had worked in 


New York City in the office of Carrere & Hastings; and Brown for McKim, 


Mead &White. 


Tlu:jireplace at the rear if tire long gfJ/Iery. 


Ernest Coxhead, however, carne from much farther east. Born in 1863 in 


Eastbourne, Sussex, England, Coxhead had srudied under an engineer and 


then at the Royal Academy and the Architectural Association in London. 


T hanks to his work and education Coxhead possessed a solid grounding in 


classical design, with its emphasis on clear expression ofche building program 


and its emphasis on proportions, as well as a sound introduction to English 


medieval architecture, wich its attention to detail. He was involved in the 


restoration of several centuries-old churches and seems to have developed 


some associations with the young leaders of the English Arts and Crafts 


movement in London. ln 1886 he and his brother, Almeric,left Great Britain 


and headed west, crossing the Americ-.ln continent and settling first in Los 


Angeles. California. Why he made so decisive and dramatic a break from 


family and country may never be known, but he may have been given 


encouragement by the Episcopal Diocese in California. Between 1887 and 


1898 he and Alrneric, who managed their practice, designed most of southern 


California's new Episcopal churches and enjoyed a field of action far greater 


than would have been afforded them in England. 


PPPOS JTE: Wi11dingjliglw if steps /eat/ 
lo lht-jrcmt door. 
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While in England Coxhead had been i.ntroduced to the American Shingle 


Style. Longstreth notes tha.c a major exhibition of such American work was 


mounted by the Royal Institute of British Architects shortly before Coxhead 


left. One of Coxhead's early churches, All Saints in Pasadena, 1888-89. 


employed a fusion of English Arts aod Crafts with the rounded, biomorphic 


forms made possible by shingle work. Other churches followed, but rhe 


building boom in Los Angeles ended in about r889 as Coxhead was given 


commissions for three new Episcopal churches in the San Fransicso Bay area. 











ABOVE: Eschewing symmetry and formality, 
Cox/read made his living room a collage of 
cozy comers. 
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His first project in San Francisco, and perhaps his masterwork in church 


design, was the massive C hurch of St.John the Evangelist, r89o-9r (fig. 28). 


It was dynamited to prevent the spread of fire following the earthquake of 


r906. Indebted to Richardson, it was based on a compact Greek cross plan 


but had a center dome capped by a b~oad squat square shingle-covered 


tower, vented by deep louvers that ran in continuous bands around the base 


of the pyramidal roof The shingled roof surface also wrapped over the gable 


ends, fusing with the wall surfaces in a unique organic way. Although his 


other major urban churches were of masonry, Coxhead's smaller parish 


churches exploited shingles, which seemed to flow over the building surface, 


around corners, up and over doors and windows, and over gable ends, 
merging wail and roof into one plastic envelope. 


By t 891 the Cox head partnership began to receive commissions for small 


houses in San Francisco, such as that for James McGauley on Pacific Heights. 


for these Coxhead continued to use wood frame construction, and in the 


McGauley house he used an exposed half- timber frame, interrupted by a 







AI the rear of the long galler}~ 


broad brick chimney mass, and a tall, steep roof that [Jrompted Longstreth ro 


call the house a "transplanted English cottage." By 1893 Coxhead's house 


designs had become more abstracted, their geometric shapes emphasized by 


continuous coverings of shingles over the walls and roofs. Windows were 


grouped and placed strongly off-center ar what appear to be odd locations 


bur which actually reflect the pragmatic arrangements of the interiors. l n 


some instances, the unusual character of these houses was dramatized by 


curiously overscaled details. Certainly, a contributing factor in Coxhead's 


distinctive work were the steeply pitched building sites he worked on, as in 


Pacitic Heights, for the front f.1cades of the houses would automatically be 


thrown off center by the incline of rhe srreel. 


In 1891-92., adjacent to the McGauley house, Coxhead designed an 


extremely tong and narrow house for himself and his brother. The narrow 


street facade, rising four stories, becomes almost a tower, whjJe the entry side 


(reached by steps and a runnel-like passage through the base retaining wall), 


stretches almost 94 feet, with the steep roof plane putled deliberately low to 
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ABOVE: With the door dosed, this corner 
of the bedroom becomes an intimate sitting 
area. 


OPPOSITE: Tire tiny staircase demonstrates 
Cox/read's skill in tumi11g the exigencies of 
a narrow lot to pictr1resque advantage. 
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emphasize its horizontal extension. The narrow site gave rise to some unusual 


innovations, such. as a long entrance corridor that Coxhead broadened a bit 


to evoke memories of an English long gallery. With two hearths introduced, 


this gallery divides itself into separate sitting areas. The rear area is especially 


pleasant. A bay window and French doors bring in abundant light even on 


gray, foggy days. At every turn the exigencies of the narrow site, and the low 


roof, are turned to advantage to produce unexpected nooks and cozy recesses. 


Dark wood, broadly and blockily detailed, dominates the interior spaces, 


further bringing down the scale. Although dark and encompassing, the 


rooms are opened up by broad window groupings, which once afforded 


panoramic views of San Francisco Bay. As neighboring buildings began to 


impinge on his views, Coxhead moved away, but his rustic aerie survives, an 


enchanced little world of domestic delight. 
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Ernest Coxhead Cox head House .;::. =-, n f-1-::jn r_,c:. 1su 


Though less rustic (and spooky) 


than his friend Willis Polk's 


place, Ernest Coxhead's nearly 


contemporaneous Pacific Heights 


dwelling is similarly eccentric 


The end of this house overhangs 


a tall concrete wall <md .. like 


Polk's, is a large, shingled bay 


with a steeply sloping pitched 


roof A comer window without 


precedent (or sequel fo r that 


mauer) is this street facades 


most diverting feature 


The entire effect is of Enghsb 


Arts and Crafts without the 


stifling decorum. We can 


imagine how well this suited 


Coxhead, an Englishman 


transplanted to California 


lt is the path through the house, 


though, wide and narrow, 


careering along the edges of 


some rooms, and through the 


middle of others - a kind of 


dark ride of the early Bay Region 


style- that is the singular 


achievement here. The historian 


john Beach , in Bay Area Hous~s. 


describes it this way, "It is as 


if the house had been trimmed 


away, leaving only the 


circulation space. Then a step 


here and a landing there are 


extruded horizontally, expanded 


from a small space to a larger 


By this curious process the stair 


sequence ceases to be simply 


an element of a larger building, 


but is transformed into the 


building itseiL" • 


OPPOSITE Street facade with 


shingled bay overhanging rough 


stucco wall. 


ABOVE LEFT Path to front door 


ABOVE RIGHT Garden facade 
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OPPOSITE 


Living room with large redwood 


fireplace surround, partially 


hidden high window to its right, 


and carefully finished redwood 


beam ceiling 


ABOVE LEFT 


Large fireplace by the front door 


opens to wide haJJ. 


ABOVE RIGHT 


Long redwoOd gallery leading from 


toyer to rear garden. 


Ef1NEST CO'IHEAD 31 







A90Vt= L.::r=T 


D'ning room looking onto 


conservatory-like gall9ry 


32 ctrl ( ;..Ac-,. ST'~- 1: 


ABOVE MIDDLE 


Bedroom with exposed beams 


is open to the steep gaols o f the 


roof 


ASOV!::RIGHT 


Hall opens to two-story redwood 


stairw ell M ysterbus stair to third 


floor spills into hall 


OPPOSITE 


Dining room witl1 large wondows to 


the garden and buoit-;n redvvood 


cabonets. 
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Cm.hl!ad began to rccei'e commtsstuns lor ... mall huus\!s in 
Pacilll' I kights at about the time ot P<,lk·., fir.,! '~urk un Ru-..si<tn Hill. 
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( 18lJ I), auhcn: to the prevailing pancrn in lhctr use of -.uburban imag­
ery Mc(iauky's house is, 1n effect, a lransplantetl Cngl1sh cottage. 
By I H9.3 an Important shift occurred in Coxhcm.J's approach, cv tdent 
in the adjacent residence built for html-tclt' ant! Almcnc (f:ig. 7Jl. Like 
Ill<.! Wilh~Hlll-t -Polk huu~e. it exploits a difllc:ult 1-. ilc to achieve a dramutic 
d'fcct. The dt::),ign is also a more sophisticawd interpretation ot English 
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b} r~..·c.:nl London work of Shaw and other-.. lluwever, the compostl1on 
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yard. with at:. dominant horizontality and rural chara~o:tcr, contr.t,l'i with 
the facade and under<;cores the transition frurn public to privat~ spac~. 
Expanse'> or -.hinglcd waJI and roar ..;urfacc-., interrupted only by the 
simple..,t wmdov. articulation. extend l"rom a pivotal clu-.tcring of" 
ck·menh grouped around the front door. The curnposatinn m<~y well 
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THE RUSTIC CITY HOUSE 


74. Coxhead house. rear view. (Courtesy John Beach) 


have been inspired by Voysey 's early projects, but Coxhead' s version 
is more compact and mannered a t its focal point and less regimented 
elsewhere. 211 Toward the rear, the house looks somewhat like a Surrey 
barn that has been remodeled in a straightforward way, Jack ing the 
studied poise of the street facade (Fig. 74) . Front and rear are set in 
oppos ition . while the overriding simplicity of detail lends cohesiveness 
to the whole . Bo th the imagery and the studied casualness present in 
this design owe a major debt to English arts-and-crafts work, which 
became a guidepost for Coxhead's work during the next several years. 21 


But neither Coxhcad nor Polk considered the Arts and Crafts Move­
ment to be a discrete entity; instead they appear to have viewed it as a 
potent source for expression in rust ic design-an updated equivalent 
of the Shingle Style-that was appropriate to the design of modest 
houses. 


Coxhead's plans remained more American. In his own resi­
dence there is an ever-changing path up to and through the premises, 
inspired by Polk 's work but developed in a differetit way. The e ntrance 
is reached by a series of wind ing steps and landings that become 
progressively constricted, with the final run wedged between a retain­
ing wall and the basement, as if it were an alley in an Italian hill town 


L29 







75. Coxhead house, plan. 
(Drawn by Howard Moise) 


76. Coxhead house, front steps. (Author) 


(Figs. 75, 76). A transition occurs at the front door, spatially echoing 
the ch<tnge in character betwe.en the front and rear portions of the 
house . Inside, the emphasis is wholly horizontal. The long gallery, the 
plan's one English component, is unlike its prototypes in that it gener­
ates a sense of continuity while dramatizing the site's narrow form 
through variations in space and light (Fig. 77). From the dark vestibule 
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THE RUSTIC CITY HOUSE 


the conidor gradually becomes brighter, expanding into a glazed bay 
that serves as a secondary sitting area, with a borrowed vista of 
McGauley 's yard. The gallery brightens further at the end, where 
windows on two sides open into a secluded garden. In the other direc­
tion the space unfolds more rapidly, lapping down a broad turn of steps 
in a circuitous path to the living room . Although the stair is directly 
opposite the entrance, it is encased so as not to interrupt the horizontal 
emphasis. The living room is unusually large for a house of this size 
and is made even more expansive by grandly scaled redwood paneling 
and beams (Fig. 78). The living room windows are placed only at the 
corners, and each one is at a different height. Like a periscope, the 
highest window bank catches a segment of the McGauley house. At 
the far corner, the platform and attendant bench offer an observation 
deck from which to vi_ew houses across the street and catch glimpses 
of the Bay beyond. Paralleling the Williams-Polk house interiors, the 
sequence and manipulation of each zone imply an extension of space, 
mitigating the property 's narrow confines. 


77. Coxhead house, gallery. (Author) 
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78. Coxhead house, living room. (Author) 


An equally unconventional solution is present in the Charles 
Murdock house around the corner, which Coxhead had designed several 
months earlier. A native of Boston, Murdock moved to CaHfornia in 
1855 and became a widely respected elder of the intellectual commu­
nity. Murdock ran a small printing business; he considered bookmak­
ing an art and was patronized by some of the region's most gifted 
writers. Among his friends were Bret Harle , Robert Louis Stevenson, 
John Muir, and William Keith. While active in the Unitarian church, 
he bad been married by Joseph Worcester and frequently attended his 
services . Murdock was abo an ardent supporter of the younger gener­
ation , including Bruce Porter, Gelett Burgess, and Coxhead. Since 
Murdock, like many of his friends, could not afford to spend much for 
his house , it was designed with about as much floor area as Coxhead's 
residence. and at an even lower cost. 22 


The studied asymmetry of the facade recalls those of E . W. 
Godwin's well-known artists ' houses in Chelsea from a decade earlier, 
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State of California 
Office of Historic Preservation 
Department of Parks and Recreation 
P.O. Box 942896 
Sacramento, CA 94296-0001 


Attention: Ju lianne Polanco 


!TlllU.V 1Ffwsi 
~mncrafu; 'tfi.eabl!r 


August 7~ 2017 


State Historic Preservation Officer 


Subject: 


R£: 


Nomination for Listing 
National Register of Historic P laces 


Architect Ernest Coxhead's Residence & Studio, I 893 
2421 Green Street, San Francisco, California 


Dear Ms. Polanco: 


It is with great enthusiasm that I write in support of the nomination of Ernest Coxhead's own house for listing in the 
National Register of Historic Places. I have had the pleasure of visiting Archrteo1 Coxhead' s residence and studio located 
at the juncture of Cow Hollow and Paci fic Heights. This area in California's I 21h Congressional District which I represent 
in Congress. I take special pride in San Francisco's architectural treasures and .recognize the Coxhead house as a first of 
an architectural tradition in the Bay Area. It happens to be in excellent original condition, including brickwork, having 
survived amazingly intact, the 1906 San Francisco earthquake and fire. 


Designed and built before automobiles and never retrofitted with a garage. both the house entry and garden are quietly 
accessed from the street via a twisting stairway to the west side. The classical entry conceals an ingenious interior with a 
long glazed entrance gallery running from a high-ceilinged living room at the north to a dining area on the southern rear 
garden that shares an eastem property line with the garden ·of the 1867 Casebolt House, San francisco Landmark No. 51. 


The house is shingle style integrated with subtle Cotswold features that Coxhead broughtto Northern California . T he 
beautifu l non-symmetrical exterior design that is fitted to the land and view was the beginning of what became the First 
Bay Area Tradit ion that evolved into Second and Third Bay Area Traditions taught at the University of California, 
Berkeley, and practiced by the most heralded Bay Area arch itects. The importance of the house to the evolution of local 
a rchitecture cannot be overemphasized. 


I believe the nomination papers a re well done and the Ernest Coxhead's Residence & Studio should be included in the 
National register of Historic Places. 


Tlu~nk you for your attention to tbe remarkable and still beautifully functioning personal home of Ernest Coxhead . 


best regard~ 


N~~~\ f~ 
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Carol L. Karp 
Architect A.I.A. 


December 29, 2017 


Philip Kaufman 
2421 Green Street 
San Francisco, CA 94123 


Subject: Ernest Coxhead House 
2421 Green Stree~ San Francisco 
Historic Status 


Dear Mr. Kaufman: 


This correspondence memorializes our understanding for providing architectural research services 
for the residence Ernest Albert Coxhead designed and built for himself in 1892-1893 Green Street, 
San Francisco, which you have owned for about 30 years. Your consulting engineer, Lawrence 
Karp, had suggested to you in early 2017 that a col1eague of ours, Kathryn Marsh Shaffer AlA 
Architect, prepare a nomination for inclusion of the Coxhead House in the National Park Service's 
Registry of Historic Places to be lodged with the California State Park's Office of Historic 
Preservation (OHP) in Sacramento. OHP relies on CEQA for protection of historic resources. 
Kathryn Shaffer was a distinguished architect, artist, and author, having both written and illustrated 
by hand the book ''Houseboats of Sausalito - Aquatic Architecture of Sausalito" published by 
Schiffer in 2007. Kathryn had also been a student of Richard Longstreth, author of the book on 
American architecture "At the Edge of the World", a history of the four important architects that 
shaped California architecture at the tum of the century, pubJishe_d by MIT Press in 1983. On April 
111h 2017 Longstreth gave the NPS written permission to use copyrighted material in the Coxhead 
nomination. Kathryn worked on the Coxhead House project and submitted drafts of the nomination 
to the OHP until she could no longer serve due to personal reasons. On August 28111 2017 Kathryn 
wrote an assignment of the nomination duties to my office. 


I submitted a fmal draft of the nomination to OHP. On September 13th 2017, OHP advised us the 
Coxhead House was "clearly eligible" for inclusion in the National Registry of Historic Places. 
This eligibility gives the Coxhead House official historic status in the City & County of San 
Francisco pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code §31.08(e)3. Sadly, Mrs. Shaffer passed 
away on October 2"d 2017. 


My credentials include attending Vassar College as an undergraduate and in March 1970 I received 
the professional Bachelor of Architecture degree from the University of California, Berkeley. 
Subsequently, I studied at Harvard University' s Graduate School of Design, Cambridge. I am 
licensed as an architect in California and Hawaii and I am a Member of the American Institute of 
Architects. I am a native of San Francisco and I have more than 40 years oflocal experience in 
design, construction, and historic preservation. As a public service, I have provided the nomination 
services to the California Park Services Office of Historic Preservation, and reports to the City & 
County of San Francisco's Planning Department and the Board of Supervisors, without compensation. 


Yours truly, 


c~~ 
100 Tres Mesas Orinda, CA 94563 (925) 254-6676 fax: (925} 253,.0101 e-Mail: carol@karp.ca 
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
~* ··. .~.$ 


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


100 Tres Mesas Orinda, CA 94563 (925) 254-6676 fax: (925) 253-0101 e-Mail: carol@karp.ca 







Board of Supervisors RE: Coxhead House. CEOA Historic Resource: 12/30/ 17 Page 2 of 2 


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







ATTACHMENT 5 







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
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2656 29th Street, Suite 201 
Santa Monica, CA 90405 


 
Matt Hagemann, P.G, C.Hg. 


   (949) 887‐9013 
  mhagemann@swape.com 


September 9, 2019 
 
Richard Drury 
Lozeau Drury LLP 
410 12th Street, Suite 250 
Oakland, CA 94607 
 
 


Subject:  2417 Green Street Project, San Francisco, California 


                                                                                                                                                                                                


Dear Mr. Drury: 


 


I have reviewed the June 26, 2019 Preliminary Mitigated Negative Declaration for 2417 Green Street, 


Case No. 2017‐002545ENV.  After a brief discussion of soil sampling conducted at the Project site (p. 73), 


the MND finds “the project would not result in a significant hazard to the public or the environment 


through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials.”  


I previously commented that the soil sampling was not adequate to provide the basis for the San 


Francisco Department of Public Health to have concluded “there is no possibility of a significant effect 


on the environment related to exposure to hazardous materials.”1  Since I made that comment, no 


additional sampling has been conducted.   


I maintain that a program of sampling should be undertaken across the property consisting of at least 


eight locations and at two depth intervals.  Only a property‐wide investigation would allow for the 


conclusion, as made in the MND, that there was no possibility of a significant effect from exposure to 


hazardous materials.   


An environmental impact report should be prepared to include results of a property‐wide sampling 


program to allow for disclosure of any contamination that may be present, and to identify any 


mitigation that would be necessary for the protection of the public, including construction workers and 


adjacent residents. 


 


 


                                                            
1 See letter to Mr. Richard Drury, September 27, 2018, p. 2 







2 
 


 


Sincerely,  


 


Matt Hagemann, P.G., C.Hg. 
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2656 29th Street, Suite 201 
Santa Monica, CA 90405 


 
Matt Hagemann, P.G, C.Hg. 


   (949) 887‐9013 
  mhagemann@swape.com 


 
 
 
November 27, 2018 
 
Richard Drury 
Lozeau Drury LLP 
410 12th Street, Suite 250 
Oakland, CA 94607 
 
 


Subject:  2417 Green Street Project 


                                                                                                                                                                                                


Dear Mr. Drury: 


 


I have reviewed the February 27, 2018 report1 that documents soil sampling results obtained from the 


2417 Green Street property in San Francisco.  The two samples, collected from a single surficial depth 


interval two locations, were analyzed for parameters that are required under San Francisco Health Code 


article 22A (Maher Ordinance).  The report summarized the results and concluded that hazardous 


materials were not present at the 2417 Green St. property.  The San Francisco Department of Public 


Health (DPH) determined in a June 22, 2018 letter2: 


Based on review of the documents, DPH found the project in compliance with San Francisco 


Health Code article 22A, and requires no further investigation. Thus, there is no possibility of a 


significant effect on the environment related to exposure to hazardous materials. (p. 11.) 


I have reviewed the soil sampling requirements of Health Code article 22A and have concluded that the 


sampling was not adequate to provide the basis for DPH to conclude that “there is no possibility of a 


significant effect on the environment related to exposure to hazardous materials.”  The soil sampling 


that was conducted was limited to two co‐located samples.  Instead, a program of sampling should have 


been undertaken across the property consisting of at least eight locations and at two depth intervals (0‐


0.5 ft. and 3.0‐3.5 ft).  This is especially important because a source of potential contamination that led 


                                                            
1 Site Characterization, 2417 Green St., San Francisco, California, Innovative and Creative Environmental Solutions, 
February 27, 2018 
2 Certificate of Determination Exemption from Environmental Review, San Francisco Planning Department, June 
22, 2018 
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to the Maher listing is not known.  Only a property‐wide investigation would allow for the conclusion 


that there was no possibility of contamination, as made by DPH.   


An amended workplan should be submitted by the applicant to DPH that would set forth a 


comprehensive soil and groundwater (if present) sampling program to determine if the property has 


been impacted by contamination.  A thorough evaluation, made available to the public for review in 


report format, is necessary to allow for disclosure of any contamination that may be present, and to 


identify any mitigation that would be necessary for the protection of the public, including construction 


workers and adjacent residents. 


Sincerely,  


 


Matt Hagemann, P.G., C.Hg. 
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Matt Hagemann, P.G, C.Hg. 


   (949) 887‐9013 
  mhagemann@swape.com 


 
 
 
September 27, 2018 
 
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


 
 
 
December 27, 2017 
 
Richard Drury 
Lozeau Drury LLP 
410 12th Street, Suite 250 
Oakland, CA 94607 
 
 


Subject:  Comments on the 2417 Green Street Project 


                                                                                                                                                                                                


Dear Mr. Drury: 


 


I have reviewed the City of San Francisco’s documentation for the May 16, 2017 Categorical Exemption 


for proposed excavation and construction work at a residence at 2417 Green Street in San Francisco.  


The City’s determination that the project is exempt from CEQA review is erroneous because the subject 


property occurs on the 2015 Maher Map,1 which identifies areas within 100 feet of current or historical 


underground storage tanks.  Properties with potential subsurface chemical contamination that require 


grading of 50 cubic yards of material are regulated under the San Francisco Maher Ordinance (Article 


22A of the San Francisco Health Code and Article 106A.3.4.2 of the San Francisco Building Code)2.  


 


The applicability of the Maher Ordinance to the project at 2417 Green Street is clear.  As shown in the 


map below, excerpted from Maher Map, the project is atop a mapped site.    


                                                            
1 http://www.sf‐planning.org/ftp/files/publications_reports/library_of_cartography/Maher%20Map.pdf  
2http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/health/article22aanalyzingsoilsforhazardouswast?f=templa
tes$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca  
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Because the project area occurs on the Maher map, requirements under the ordinance include: 


 Preparation of a Maher Ordinance application 


 Submittal of a Subsurface Investigation Work Plan prepared by your Environmental Consultant 


 Receipt of Work Plan approval and performance of the work described in the Work Plan 


 Submittal of a Subsurface Investigation Report prepared by a qualified Environmental 


Consultant 


 Preparation and submittal of a Site Mitigation Plan including description and design for any 


required mitigating measures (approval is required before earthwork). 


 


No documentation was provided for the Categorical Exemption to show that the City has conducted the 


required Maher Ordinance work.   


 


The application materials indicate that the proposed project on the subject property would require 408 


cubic yard of soil excavation and removal (Environmental Evaluation, p. 7).  Given the listing of the 


property on the Maher Map, this excavation may disturb potentially contaminated soil, which may 


expose nearby residents and/or construction workers to hazardous chemicals.  Given this, there is a fair 


argument that the proposed project at 2417 Green Street may have adverse environmental impacts that 


must be analyzed under the Maher Ordinance and CEQA. 


 


 A full CEQA analysis should be invoked to allow for the Maher process to be completed, to allow for 


public disclosure of any contamination that may be present, and to identify any mitigation that would be 


necessary for the protection of the public, including construction workers and adjacent residents. 
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Sincerely,  


 


Matt Hagemann, P.G., C.Hg. 


 







 


 
2503 Eastbluff Dr., Suite 206 


  Newport Beach, California 92660  


  Tel: (949) 887‐9013 


Fax: (949) 717‐0069 


      Email: mhagemann@swape.com 


 


Matthew F. Hagemann, P.G., C.Hg., QSD, QSP               


  Geologic and Hydrogeologic Characterization 


Industrial Stormwater Compliance 


Investigation and Remediation Strategies  


Litigation Support and Testifying Expert  


CEQA Review  


 


Education: 


M.S. Degree, Geology, California State University Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA, 1984. 


B.A. Degree, Geology, Humboldt State University, Arcata, CA, 1982. 


 


Professional Certification: 


California Professional Geologist 


California Certified Hydrogeologist 


Qualified SWPPP Developer and Practitioner   
 


Professional Experience:   


Matt has 25 years of experience  in environmental policy, assessment and  remediation.   He  spent nine 


years with  the U.S.  EPA  in  the RCRA  and  Superfund  programs  and  served  as  EPA’s  Senior  Science 


Policy Advisor in the Western Regional Office where he identified emerging threats to groundwater from 


perchlorate and MTBE.  While with EPA, Matt also served as a Senior Hydrogeologist in the oversight of 


the assessment of seven major military facilities undergoing base closure.  He led numerous enforcement 


actions under provisions of  the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act  (RCRA) while also working 


with permit holders to improve hydrogeologic characterization and water quality monitoring.   


 


Matt  has worked  closely with U.S.  EPA  legal  counsel  and  the  technical  staff  of  several  states  in  the 


application and enforcement of RCRA, Safe Drinking Water Act and Clean Water Act regulations.  Matt 


has trained the technical staff  in the States of California, Hawaii, Nevada, Arizona and the Territory of 


Guam in the conduct of investigations, groundwater fundamentals, and sampling techniques. 


 


Positions Matt has held include: 


 Founding Partner, Soil/Water/Air Protection Enterprise (SWAPE) (2003 – present); 


 Geology Instructor, Golden West College, 2010 – present;  


 Senior Environmental Analyst, Komex H2O Science, Inc (2000 ‐‐ 2003); 
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 Executive Director, Orange Coast Watch (2001 – 2004); 


 Senior Science Policy Advisor and Hydrogeologist, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (1989– 


1998); 


 Hydrogeologist, National Park Service, Water Resources Division (1998 – 2000); 


 Adjunct Faculty Member, San Francisco State University, Department of Geosciences (1993 – 


1998); 


 Instructor, College of Marin, Department of Science (1990 – 1995); 


 Geologist, U.S. Forest Service (1986 – 1998); and 


 Geologist, Dames & Moore (1984 – 1986). 


 


Senior Regulatory and Litigation Support Analyst: 


With SWAPE, Matt’s responsibilities have included: 


 Lead analyst and testifying expert in the review of numerous environmental impact reports 


under CEQA that identify significant issues with regard to hazardous waste, water resources, 


water quality, air quality, greenhouse gas emissions and geologic hazards.  


 Lead analyst and testifying expert in the review of environmental issues in license applications 


for large solar power plants before the California Energy Commission. 


 Stormwater analysis, sampling and best management practice evaluation at industrial facilities.  


 Manager of a project to provide technical assistance to a comunity adjacent to a former Naval 


shipyard under a grant from the U.S. EPA.  


 Technical assistance and litigation support for vapor intrusion concerns. 


 Manager of a project to evaluate numerous formerly used military sites in the western U.S. 


 Manager of a comprehensive evaluation of potential sources of perchlorate contamination in 


Southern California drinking water wells. 


 Manager and designated expert for litigation support under provisions of Proposition 65 in the 


review of releases of gasoline to sources drinking water at major refineries and hundreds of gas 


stations throughout California. 


 Expert witness on two cases involving MTBE litigation. 


 Expert witness and litigation support on the impact of air toxins and hazards at a school. 


 Expert witness in litigation at a former plywood plant. 


 


With Komex H2O Science Inc., Matt’s duties included the following: 


 Senior author of a report on the extent of perchlorate contamination that was used in testimony 


by the former U.S. EPA Administrator and General Counsel. 


 Senior researcher in the development of a comprehensive, electronically interactive chronology 


of MTBE use, research, and regulation. 


 Senior researcher in the development of a comprehensive, electronically interactive chronology 


of perchlorate use, research, and regulation. 


 Senior researcher in a study that estimates nationwide costs for MTBE remediation and drinking 


water treatment, results of which were published in newspapers nationwide and in testimony 


against provisions of an energy bill that would limit liability for oil companies.  


 Research to support litigation to restore drinking water supplies that have been contaminated by 


MTBE in California and New York. 


 Expert witness testimony in a case of oil production‐related contamination in Mississippi. 


 Lead author for a multi‐volume remedial investigation report for an operating school in Los 


Angeles that met strict regulatory requirements and rigorous deadlines. 
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 Development of strategic approaches for cleanup of contaminated sites in consultation with 


clients and regulators. 


 


Executive Director: 


As  Executive Director with Orange Coast Watch, Matt  led  efforts  to  restore water  quality  at Orange 


County  beaches  from multiple  sources  of  contamination  including urban  runoff  and  the discharge  of 


wastewater.    In  reporting  to  a  Board  of Directors  that  included  representatives  from  leading Orange 


County universities and businesses, Matt prepared issue papers in the areas of treatment and disinfection 


of wastewater and control of the dischrge of grease to sewer systems.   Matt actively participated in the 


development of  countywide water quality permits  for  the  control of urban  runoff and permits  for  the 


discharge  of  wastewater.   Matt  worked  with  other  nonprofits  to  protect  and  restore  water  quality, 


including Surfrider, Natural Resources Defense Council and Orange County CoastKeeper as well as with 


business institutions including the Orange County Business Council.   


 


Hydrogeology: 


As a Senior Hydrogeologist with  the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Matt  led  investigations  to 


characterize and cleanup closing military bases,  including Mare  Island Naval Shipyard, Hunters Point 


Naval  Shipyard,  Treasure  Island Naval  Station, Alameda Naval  Station, Moffett  Field, Mather Army 


Airfield, and Sacramento Army Depot.  Specific activities were as follows: 


 Led efforts to model groundwater flow and contaminant transport, ensured adequacy of 


monitoring networks, and assessed cleanup alternatives for contaminated sediment, soil, and 


groundwater.  


 Initiated a regional program for evaluation of groundwater sampling practices and laboratory 


analysis at military bases.  


 Identified emerging issues, wrote technical guidance, and assisted in policy and regulation 


development through work on four national U.S. EPA workgroups, including the Superfund 


Groundwater Technical Forum and the Federal Facilities Forum. 


 


At  the request of  the State of Hawaii, Matt developed a methodology to determine the vulnerability of 


groundwater to contamination on the islands of Maui and Oahu. He used analytical models and a GIS to 


show  zones of vulnerability,  and  the  results were  adopted  and published by  the State of Hawaii  and 


County of Maui.  


 


As a hydrogeologist with the EPA Groundwater Protection Section, Matt worked with provisions of the 


Safe  Drinking  Water  Act  and  NEPA  to  prevent  drinking  water  contamination.    Specific  activities 


included the following: 


 Received an EPA Bronze Medal for his contribution to the development of national guidance for 


the protection of drinking water.  


 Managed the Sole Source Aquifer Program and protected the drinking water of two communities 


through designation under the Safe Drinking Water Act. He prepared geologic reports, 


conducted public hearings, and responded to public comments from residents who were very 


concerned about the impact of designation. 







 


 4  
 


 Reviewed a number of Environmental Impact Statements for planned major developments, 


including large hazardous and solid waste disposal facilities, mine reclamation, and water 


transfer.  


 


 


Matt served as a hydrogeologist with the RCRA Hazardous Waste program.  Duties were as follows: 


 Supervised the hydrogeologic investigation of hazardous waste sites to determine compliance 


with Subtitle C requirements. 


 Reviewed and wrote ʺpart Bʺ permits for the disposal of hazardous waste.  


 Conducted RCRA Corrective Action investigations of waste sites and led inspections that formed 


the basis for significant enforcement actions that were developed in close coordination with U.S. 


EPA legal counsel.  


 Wrote contract specifications and supervised contractorʹs investigations of waste sites.  


 


With  the National  Park  Service, Matt  directed  service‐wide  investigations  of  contaminant  sources  to 


prevent degradation of water quality, including the following tasks: 


 Applied pertinent laws and regulations including CERCLA, RCRA, NEPA, NRDA, and the 


Clean Water Act to control military, mining, and landfill contaminants.  


 Conducted watershed‐scale investigations of contaminants at parks, including Yellowstone and 


Olympic National Park. 


 Identified high‐levels of perchlorate in soil adjacent to a national park in New Mexico 


and advised park superintendent on appropriate response actions under CERCLA. 


 Served as a Park Service representative on the Interagency Perchlorate Steering Committee, a 


national workgroup. 


 Developed a program to conduct environmental compliance audits of all National Parks while 


serving on a national workgroup.  


 Co‐authored two papers on the potential for water contamination from the operation of personal 


watercraft and snowmobiles, these papers serving as the basis for the development of nation‐


wide policy on the use of these vehicles in National Parks. 


 Contributed to the Federal Multi‐Agency Source Water Agreement under the Clean Water 


Action Plan. 


 


Policy:  


Served senior management as the Senior Science Policy Advisor with the U.S. Environmental Protection 


Agency, Region 9. Activities included the following: 


 Advised the Regional Administrator and senior management on emerging issues such as the 


potential for the gasoline additive MTBE and ammonium perchlorate to contaminate drinking 


water supplies.  


 Shaped EPA’s national response to these threats by serving on workgroups and by contributing 


to guidance, including the Office of Research and Development publication, Oxygenates in 


Water: Critical Information and Research Needs. 


 Improved the technical training of EPAʹs scientific and engineering staff. 


 Earned an EPA Bronze Medal for representing the region’s 300 scientists and engineers in 


negotiations with the Administrator and senior management to better integrate scientific 


principles into the policy‐making process. 


 Established national protocol for the peer review of scientific documents.  
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Geology: 


With the U.S. Forest Service, Matt led investigations to determine hillslope stability of areas proposed for 


timber harvest in the central Oregon Coast Range. Specific activities were as follows: 


 Mapped geology in the field, and used aerial photographic interpretation and mathematical 


models to determine slope stability.  


 Coordinated his research with community members who were concerned with natural resource 


protection.  


 Characterized the geology of an aquifer that serves as the sole source of drinking water for the 


city of Medford, Oregon.  


 


As a consultant with Dames and Moore, Matt led geologic investigations of two contaminated sites (later 


listed on the Superfund NPL) in the Portland, Oregon, area and a large hazardous waste site in eastern 


Oregon.  Duties included the following: 


 Supervised year‐long effort for soil and groundwater sampling.  


 Conducted aquifer tests. 


 Investigated active faults beneath sites proposed for hazardous waste disposal. 


 


Teaching: 


From 1990 to 1998, Matt taught at least one course per semester at the community college and university 


levels: 


 At San Francisco State University, held an adjunct faculty position and taught courses in 


environmental geology, oceanography (lab and lecture), hydrogeology, and groundwater 


contamination.  


 Served as a committee member for graduate and undergraduate students. 


 Taught courses in environmental geology and oceanography at the College of Marin.  


 


Matt  currently  teaches  Physical  Geology  (lecture  and  lab)  to  students  at  Golden  West  College  in 


Huntington Beach, California. 


 


Invited Testimony, Reports, Papers and Presentations: 


Hagemann, M.F., 2008.  Disclosure of Hazardous Waste Issues under CEQA.  Presentation to the Public 


Environmental Law Conference, Eugene, Oregon. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2008.  Disclosure of Hazardous Waste Issues under CEQA.  Invited presentation to U.S. 


EPA Region 9, San Francisco, California. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2005.  Use of Electronic Databases in Environmental Regulation, Policy Making and 


Public Participation.  Brownfields 2005, Denver, Coloradao. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2004.  Perchlorate Contamination of the Colorado River and Impacts to Drinking Water 


in Nevada and the Southwestern U.S.  Presentation to a meeting of the American Groundwater Trust, Las 


Vegas, NV (served on conference organizing committee). 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2004.  Invited testimony to a California Senate committee hearing on air toxins at 


schools in Southern California, Los Angeles. 
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Brown, A., Farrow, J.,  Gray, A. and Hagemann, M., 2004.  An Estimate of Costs to Address MTBE 


Releases from Underground Storage Tanks and the Resulting Impact to Drinking Water Wells.   


Presentation to the Ground Water and Environmental Law Conference, National Groundwater 


Association.  
 


Hagemann, M.F., 2004.  Perchlorate Contamination of the Colorado River and Impacts to Drinking Water 


in Arizona and the Southwestern U.S.  Presentation to a meeting of the American Groundwater Trust, 


Phoenix, AZ (served on conference organizing committee). 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2003.  Perchlorate Contamination of the Colorado River and Impacts to Drinking Water 


in the Southwestern U.S.  Invited presentation to a special committee meeting of the National Academy 


of Sciences, Irvine, CA. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2003.  Perchlorate Contamination of the Colorado River.  Invited presentation to a 


tribal EPA meeting, Pechanga, CA. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2003.  Perchlorate Contamination of the Colorado River.  Invited presentation to a 


meeting of tribal repesentatives, Parker, AZ. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2003.  Impact of Perchlorate on the Colorado River and Associated Drinking Water 


Supplies.  Invited presentation to the Inter‐Tribal Meeting, Torres Martinez Tribe. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2003.  The Emergence of Perchlorate as a Widespread Drinking Water Contaminant.  


Invited presentation to the U.S. EPA Region 9. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2003.  A Deductive Approach to the Assessment of Perchlorate Contamination.  Invited 


presentation to the California Assembly Natural Resources Committee. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2003.  Perchlorate: A Cold War Legacy in Drinking Water.  Presentation to a meeting of 


the National Groundwater Association. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2002.  From Tank to Tap: A Chronology of MTBE in Groundwater.  Presentation to a 


meeting of the National Groundwater Association. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2002.  A Chronology of MTBE in Groundwater and an Estimate of Costs to Address 


Impacts to Groundwater.   Presentation to the annual meeting of the Society of Environmental 


Journalists. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2002.  An Estimate of the Cost to Address MTBE Contamination in Groundwater  


(and Who Will Pay).  Presentation to a meeting of the National Groundwater Association. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2002.  An Estimate of Costs to Address MTBE Releases from Underground Storage 


Tanks and the Resulting Impact to Drinking Water Wells.  Presentation to a meeting of the U.S. EPA and 


State Underground Storage Tank Program managers. 


 


Hagemann, M.F.,  2001.    From  Tank  to  Tap: A Chronology  of MTBE  in Groundwater.   Unpublished 


report. 







 


 7  
 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2001.   Estimated Cleanup Cost  for MTBE  in Groundwater Used as Drinking Water.  


Unpublished report. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., 2001.  Estimated Costs to Address MTBE Releases from Leaking Underground Storage 


Tanks.  Unpublished report. 


 


Hagemann,  M.F.,  and  VanMouwerik,  M.,  1999.    Potential  Water  Quality  Concerns  Related  to 


Snowmobile Usage. Water Resources Division, National Park Service, Technical Report. 


 


VanMouwerik, M. and Hagemann, M.F. 1999, Water Quality Concerns Related  to Personal Watercraft 


Usage. Water Resources Division, National Park Service, Technical Report. 


 


Hagemann, M.F.,  1999,  Is Dilution  the  Solution  to  Pollution  in National  Parks?  The George Wright 


Society Biannual Meeting, Asheville, North Carolina. 


 


Hagemann, M.F.,  1997,  The  Potential  for MTBE  to  Contaminate  Groundwater. U.S.  EPA  Superfund 


Groundwater Technical Forum Annual Meeting, Las Vegas, Nevada. 


 


Hagemann, M.F.,  and Gill, M.,  1996,  Impediments  to  Intrinsic Remediation, Moffett  Field Naval Air 


Station, Conference on Intrinsic Remediation of Chlorinated Hydrocarbons, Salt Lake City. 


 


Hagemann, M.F., Fukunaga, G.L., 1996, The Vulnerability of Groundwater to Anthropogenic 


Contaminants on the Island of Maui, Hawaii. Hawaii Water Works Association Annual Meeting, Maui, 


October 1996. 


 


Hagemann, M. F., Fukanaga, G. L., 1996, Ranking Groundwater Vulnerability in Central Oahu, 


Hawaii.  Proceedings, Geographic  Information  Systems  in  Environmental Resources Management, Air 


and Waste Management Association Publication VIP‐61. 


 


Hagemann,  M.F.,  1994.  Groundwater  Characterization  and  Cleanup  at  Closing  Military  Bases  in 


California. Proceedings, California Groundwater Resources Association Meeting. 


 


Hagemann, M.F.  and Sabol, M.A.,  1993. Role of  the U.S. EPA  in  the High Plains States Groundwater 


Recharge Demonstration Program. Proceedings, Sixth Biennial Symposium on the Artificial Recharge of 


Groundwater. 


 


Hagemann, M.F.,  1993. U.S. EPA Policy on  the Technical  Impracticability of  the Cleanup of DNAPL‐


contaminated Groundwater. California Groundwater Resources Association Meeting. 
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Hagemann, M.F., 1992. Dense Nonaqueous Phase Liquid Contamination of Groundwater: An Ounce of 


Prevention... Proceedings, Association of Engineering Geologists Annual Meeting, v. 35. 


 


Other Experience:  


Selected as  subject matter expert  for  the California Professional Geologist  licensing examination, 2009‐


2011. 
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2656 29th Street, Suite 201 
Santa Monica, CA 90405 


 
Matt Hagemann, P.G, C.Hg. 


   (949) 887‐9013 
  mhagemann@swape.com 


 
 
 
November 20, 2017 
 
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
Stacey
 
Stacey Oborne
Paralegal
Lozeau | Drury LLP
1939 Harrison Street, Suite 150
Oakland, CA 94612
510-836-4200 (Phone)
510-836-4205 (Fax)
stacey@lozeaudrury.com
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
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:05:24 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Robert <rfruchtose@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 12:49 PM
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
Robert Fruchtman

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
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:05:20 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Daniel Cohen <dccohe@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 1:01 PM
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
 
Please approve the 3-home project at 33 Capra Way. Here in San Francisco, we have the most
severe housing shortage in the United States, and it is really squeezing renters like myself. There is
no good reason to block projects such as this one. 

Thank you,
Daniel Cohen

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR VALLIE BROWN CELEBRATE SIGNING

OF THEIR SMALL BUSINESS STREAMLINING LEGISLATION
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 11:42:38 AM
Attachments: 09.11.19 Small Business Streamlining Signing.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 11:21 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR VALLIE BROWN
CELEBRATE SIGNING OF THEIR SMALL BUSINESS STREAMLINING LEGISLATION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, September 11, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SUPERVISOR VALLIE

BROWN CELEBRATE SIGNING OF THEIR SMALL BUSINESS
STREAMLINING LEGISLATION

As part of the Mayor’s Storefront Vacancy Strategy, the legislation streamlines the permitting
process for small businesses and allows retailers to diversify their offerings to adapt to

challenges contributing to retail vacancies
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Supervisor Vallie Brown were joined
today by local business leaders to sign their small business streamlining legislation, which
makes it easier for small businesses to open and operate in San Francisco.
 
Across the nation, cities are grappling with storefront vacancies caused by changes in
shopping habits over the past few years. To address this issue, Mayor Breed and Supervisor
Brown announced a Storefront Vacancy Strategy last year to ensure that business corridors in
San Francisco remain vibrant. As part of that strategy, this legislation streamlines the often
burdensome and confusing permitting process that small businesses face by clarifying
ambiguous provisions in City codes and eliminating redundant requirements for different uses,

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:dennis.richards@sfgov.org
mailto:Frank.Fung@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:richhillissf@gmail.com
mailto:aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:kate.black@sfgov.org
mailto:dianematsuda@hotmail.com
mailto:jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:rsejohns@yahoo.com
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
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Supervisor Vallie Brown were joined today 
by local business leaders to sign their small business streamlining legislation, which makes it 
easier for small businesses to open and operate in San Francisco. 
 
Across the nation, cities are grappling with storefront vacancies caused by changes in shopping 
habits over the past few years. To address this issue, Mayor Breed and Supervisor Brown 
announced a Storefront Vacancy Strategy last year to ensure that business corridors in 
San Francisco remain vibrant. As part of that strategy, this legislation streamlines the often 
burdensome and confusing permitting process that small businesses face by clarifying 
ambiguous provisions in City codes and eliminating redundant requirements for different uses, 
such as live music and food services. 
 
“Despite our strong economy, it’s clear from the number of storefront vacancies throughout the 
City that our small businesses are struggling to open and operate,” said Mayor Breed. “I’ve heard 
from countless business owners that our City’s complicated, redundant permitting process delays 
them from opening and is often too restrictive when a business wants to do something like start 
serving food. We need to be flexible to adapt to the challenges they’re facing, and this legislation 
will help do that.” 
 
“I am a huge believer in the importance of small businesses to our neighborhoods, and this 
legislation honors that,” said Supervisor Brown. “It simplifies our permitting and zoning rules to 
make it easier for small businesses here to get open and stay open. I’m also proud of the changes 
we’ve made to better recognize and respect the uniqueness of neighborhood commercial 
corridors.” 
 
The new law will support small businesses as they open, expand, and adapt their offerings to 
remain competitive in the retail landscape. It will remove barriers and support modern business 
models so that local entrepreneurs can provide residents and visitors with experiences and 
services that are reflective of each neighborhood’s unique character. Specifically, the legislation: 
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• Enables retail businesses to diversify their offerings by reducing costs and barriers in 
order to serve to-go food and to incorporate entertainment and events. 


• Increases opportunities for retail, restaurant, and nightlife businesses to fill vacant 
storefronts and enhance neighborhood vibrancy by enabling open air food service, 
removing barriers for arcades, and relaxing the impacts of zoning restrictions designed 
for other neighborhoods. 


• Supports live music venues by eliminating duplicative inspections and reducing 
burdensome food service requirements for entertainment venues. 


• Clarifies multiple previously ambiguous Planning Code provisions in order to bring 
greater clarity and consistency to the permitting process. 
 


“With many pressures facing small businesses, creating opportunities for them to succeed is 
essential to the economic and cultural vibrancy of San Francisco,” said Joaquín Torres, Director 
of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “Tailored to the specific needs we’ve 
heard directly from entrepreneurs, this legislation will support creative uses, eliminate redundant 
processes, and provide much needed flexibilities that will allow our small business communities 
and their neighborhoods to thrive.” 
 
The legislation signing ceremony was held at Wooden Coffeehouse, a small business in Cole 
Valley. Owned by Steve Wickwire, the small business will now be able to apply for a beer and 
wine license to expand its offerings for customers during evening comedy shows. Prior to the 
legislation, Wooden Coffeehouse was not able to pursue this license due to zoning restrictions 
designed for Haight Street that also applied to Cole Valley. 
 
“This legislation addresses several imperative revisions in current zoning structure, and marks a 
triumph for the future of small businesses in San Francisco,” said Steve Wickwire, owner of 
Wooden Coffeehouse. 
 
The business permit streamlining legislation was introduced as part of the Mayor’s Citywide 
Storefront Vacancy Strategy, a multi-pronged approach to retain, strengthen, and attract 
businesses to commercial corridors throughout San Francisco. The strategy is guided by findings 
in a 2018 report from the Office of Economic and Workforce Development released called “State 
of the Retail Sector: Challenges and Opportunities for San Francisco’s Neighborhood 
Commercial Districts.” This ongoing initiative also includes an investment of nearly $1 million 
in program investments and the implementation of administrative reforms to ensure the ongoing 
vibrancy and vitality of neighborhood commercial districts. The program investments include: 
 


• Vacant storefront and corridor-wide assessments to determine the cause of a vacancy and 
developing a roadmap to fill vacancies. 


• Case management services by facilitating property owner relationships and generating a 
pipeline of prospective tenants to fill vacant storefronts. 


• Leveraging existing city programs and services to support small businesses with technical 
and financial services and lease negotiations to help small businesses succeed and thrive. 
 



https://oewd.org/sites/default/files/Invest%20In%20Neighborhoods/State%20of%20the%20Retail%20Sector%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf

https://oewd.org/sites/default/files/Invest%20In%20Neighborhoods/State%20of%20the%20Retail%20Sector%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf

https://oewd.org/sites/default/files/Invest%20In%20Neighborhoods/State%20of%20the%20Retail%20Sector%20-%20Final%20Report.pdf
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Administrative reforms adopted as part of this strategy now make it easier for small businesses to 
obtain more permits over-the-counter, allowing entrepreneurs to open their business more 
quickly, reducing their startup time and costs and positioning them for future success. These 
reforms strengthen coordination between City agencies to help small businesses avoid waiting 
months for their applications to be processed by all of the necessary City departments. 
 
“One of the most difficult parts of starting a small business in San Francisco is getting through 
the City permitting process,” said Rodney Fong, President and CEO of the San Francisco 
Chamber of Commerce. “This legislation is an important step in making it easier for new 
businesses get off the ground. The SF Chamber of Commerce commends Mayor London Breed 
and Supervisor Vallie Brown for being SF small business champions and bringing forward this 
critical legislation.” 
 


### 







such as live music and food services.
 
“Despite our strong economy, it’s clear from the number of storefront vacancies throughout
the City that our small businesses are struggling to open and operate,” said Mayor Breed. “I’ve
heard from countless business owners that our City’s complicated, redundant permitting
process delays them from opening and is often too restrictive when a business wants to do
something like start serving food. We need to be flexible to adapt to the challenges they’re
facing, and this legislation will help do that.”
 
“I am a huge believer in the importance of small businesses to our neighborhoods, and this
legislation honors that,” said Supervisor Brown. “It simplifies our permitting and zoning rules
to make it easier for small businesses here to get open and stay open. I’m also proud of the
changes we’ve made to better recognize and respect the uniqueness of neighborhood
commercial corridors.”
 
The new law will support small businesses as they open, expand, and adapt their offerings to
remain competitive in the retail landscape. It will remove barriers and support modern
business models so that local entrepreneurs can provide residents and visitors with experiences
and services that are reflective of each neighborhood’s unique character. Specifically, the
legislation:
 

Enables retail businesses to diversify their offerings by reducing costs and barriers in
order to serve to-go food and to incorporate entertainment and events.
Increases opportunities for retail, restaurant, and nightlife businesses to fill vacant
storefronts and enhance neighborhood vibrancy by enabling open air food service,
removing barriers for arcades, and relaxing the impacts of zoning restrictions designed
for other neighborhoods.
Supports live music venues by eliminating duplicative inspections and reducing
burdensome food service requirements for entertainment venues.
Clarifies multiple previously ambiguous Planning Code provisions in order to bring
greater clarity and consistency to the permitting process.

“With many pressures facing small businesses, creating opportunities for them to succeed is
essential to the economic and cultural vibrancy of San Francisco,” said Joaquín Torres,
Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “Tailored to the specific
needs we’ve heard directly from entrepreneurs, this legislation will support creative uses,
eliminate redundant processes, and provide much needed flexibilities that will allow our small
business communities and their neighborhoods to thrive.”
 
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
 
“This legislation addresses several imperative revisions in current zoning structure, and marks
a triumph for the future of small businesses in San Francisco,” said Steve Wickwire, owner of
Wooden Coffeehouse.
 
The business permit streamlining legislation was introduced as part of the Mayor’s Citywide



Storefront Vacancy Strategy, a multi-pronged approach to retain, strengthen, and attract
businesses to commercial corridors throughout San Francisco. The strategy is guided by
findings in a 2018 report from the Office of Economic and Workforce Development released
called “State of the Retail Sector: Challenges and Opportunities for San Francisco’s
Neighborhood Commercial Districts.” This ongoing initiative also includes an investment of
nearly $1 million in program investments and the implementation of administrative reforms to
ensure the ongoing vibrancy and vitality of neighborhood commercial districts. The program
investments include:
 

Vacant storefront and corridor-wide assessments to determine the cause of a vacancy
and developing a roadmap to fill vacancies.
Case management services by facilitating property owner relationships and generating a
pipeline of prospective tenants to fill vacant storefronts.
Leveraging existing city programs and services to support small businesses with
technical and financial services and lease negotiations to help small businesses succeed
and thrive.
 

Administrative reforms adopted as part of this strategy now make it easier for small businesses
to obtain more permits over-the-counter, allowing entrepreneurs to open their business more
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
businesses get off the ground. The SF Chamber of Commerce commends Mayor London
Breed and Supervisor Vallie Brown for being SF small business champions and bringing
forward this critical legislation.”
 

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
Subject: FW: SUPPORT of 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 10:51:53 AM

 
 
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
 

From: kloos jennifer <jenniferkloos@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 3:57 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)
<jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Board of
Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>
Subject: SUPPORT of 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
 

 

Dear SF Planning Department and District Supervisor Mandelman,

 

I am writing to ask for your yes vote on the Conditional Use request for a cannabis retail store at 258 Noe
Street scheduled for hearing on September 19, 2019.  Cannabis retail at 258 Noe will be a positive impact
on the surrounding businesses, bringing new and much needed shoppers, add heightened security, offer
good paying jobs and give a boost to the commercial diversity of the Upper Market and Castro areas. 

 

 
My support for this project comes from my personal experience with the principals, watching and sharing
in their involvement in the positive connection cannabis had on community ravaged by the crisis of AIDS. 
I know them by their commitment to an inclusive family, diverse community and City, their hands-on
knowledge of operating a small business in San Francisco and positive role in the three-year civic
conversation that resulted in the establishment of the Office of Cannabis and the Equity Program of San
Francisco.

 

 
Please register my support and I urge your vote “Yes.”
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Sincerely,
Jennifer Parlett
September 10, 2019
 



 
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
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)
Subject: FW: Support of 258 Noe Street Cannabis Case # 2018-002460CUA
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 10:51:41 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Gene Best <gbest@hughes.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 8:22 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Support of 258 Noe Street Cannabis Case # 2018-002460CUA
 

 

Dear SF Planning Department and District Supervisor Mandelman,
 
I am writing to ask for your yes vote on the Conditional Use request for a cannabis
retail store at 258 Noe Street scheduled for hearing on September 19, 2019. 
Cannabis retail at 258 Noe will be a positive impact on the surrounding businesses,
bringing new and much needed shoppers, add heightened security, offer good
paying jobs and give a boost to the commercial diversity of the Upper Market and
Castro areas. 
 

My support for this project comes from my personal experience with the principals,
watching and sharing in their involvement  in the positive connection cannabis had
on community ravaged by the crisis of AIDS.  I know them by their commitment to
an inclusive family, diverse community and City, their hands-on knowledge of
operating a small business in San Francisco and positive role in the three-year civic
conversation that resulted in the establishment of the Office of Cannabis and the
Equity Program of San Francisco.
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
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 10:51:33 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Alice Troy <bluegown13@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 10:05 PM
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
 
I am writing to ask for your yes vote on the Conditional Use request for a cannabis retail store
at 258 Noe Street scheduled for hearing on September 19, 2019.  Cannabis retail at 258 Noe
will be a positive impact on the surrounding businesses, bringing new and much needed
shoppers, add heightened security, offer good paying jobs and give a boost to the commercial
diversity of the Upper Market and Castro areas. 
 My  name is Alice Troy and I know Aaron and Denae Silverman.
My support for this project comes from my personal experience with the principals, watching
and sharing in their involvement  in the positive connection cannabis had on community
ravaged by the crisis of AIDS.  I know them by their commitment to an inclusive family,
diverse community and City, their hands-on knowledge of operating a small business in San
Francisco and positive role in the three-year civic conversation that resulted in the
establishment of the Office of Cannabis and the Equity Program of San Francisco.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
 
-- 
Alice R. Troy
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
Subject: FW: DNA Support Vote - Dogpatch Power Station - Tuesday, 9/10/19
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 10:51:27 AM
Attachments: 2019.09.10 - Support Vote - Dogpatch Power Station.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Bruce Kin Huie <brucehuie@me.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 10:34 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC)
<frank.fung@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Johnson, Milicent (CPC)
<milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Richards, Dennis
(CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>
Cc: Susan Eslick <susan.thebookkeeper@gmail.com>; Jared Doumani <jared@doumani.net>;
vanessa r aquino <vanessa.r.aquino@gmail.com>; Francis, John (CPC) <john.francis@sfgov.org>; Lau,
Jon (ECN) <jon.lau@sfgov.org>; Mathew Kochmann <mk@associatecapital.com>; Enrique Landa
<e5@associatecapital.com>
Subject: DNA Support Vote - Dogpatch Power Station - Tuesday, 9/10/19
 

 

 
September 10th, 2019
 
SF Planning Commissioners - 
 
The Dogpatch Neighborhood Association (DNA) has worked with Associate Capital on the Dogpatch Power Station
for the past three years.
 
Background
Associate Capital spent time to understand our neighborhood community, meeting multiple times with DNA
members on an informal basis as well as in formal community meetings and have made several presentations to our
organization. We appreciated this approachable, open-minded and collaborative style.
 
The project plan that resulted from this outreach process reflects the priorities of the adjacent Dogpatch community
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
members on an informal basis as well as in formal community meetings and have made several presentations to 
our organization. We appreciated this approachable, open-minded and collaborative style. 
 
The project plan that resulted from this outreach process reflects the priorities of the adjacent Dogpatch 
community and the DNA membership supports the inclusion of key requirements in the current direction of the 
project - housing equity (Homeless Prenatal Program inclusion), historic preservation (Station A) , open space 
(active recreation), community centric services (e.g. YMCA), grocery store and transportation investment options 
for land and water.  All of these are Dogpatch community asks and necessary for the growth in population planned 
for this area. 
 
Support Vote 
DNA appreciates the commitment by the developer to work collaboratively on addressing areas of concern for our 
community. We expect this collaboration to continue at each step of the development process. 
 
DNA understands that updates to the D4D and Development Agreement (DA) are necessary to further secure the 
deeply needed community benefits promised by the Power Station, including benefits related to child-care, 
housing, active recreation, historic preservation and transportation spending. 
 
DNA further understands that members of our community, including the Potrero Boosters Neighborhood 
Association, are actively negotiating with Associate Capital and the City and County of San Francisco to draft key 
language to better ensure the delivery of promised benefits. 
 
Therefore, we continue to work with the developer on details and issues as they arise and look forward to 
confirming our support at the next San Francisco Planning Commission meeting to approve its entitlement. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have further questions. 
  
Best regards, 
Bruce Kin Huie - President 
Dogpatch Neighborhood Association 
Email: ​brucehuie@me.com  
Twitter: @brucehuie  
Web: ​http://www.mydogpatch.org  
Facebook: ​https://www.facebook.com/DogpatchNeighborhoodAssociation  


1459 18​th​ Street • #227 • San Francisco • California 94107  
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and the DNA membership supports the inclusion of key requirements in the current direction of the project - housing
equity (Homeless Prenatal Program inclusion), historic preservation (Station A) , open space (active recreation),
community centric services (e.g. YMCA), grocery store and transportation investment options for land and water. 
All of these are Dogpatch community asks and necessary for the growth in population planned for this area.
 
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
deeply needed community benefits promised by the Power Station, including benefits related to child-care, housing,
active recreation, historic preservation and transportation spending.
 
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
Email: brucehuie@me.com 
Twitter: @brucehuie 
Web: http://www.mydogpatch.org    
Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/DogpatchNeighborhoodAssociation 
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
Subject: FW: Comment on Initial Study: Land Use
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 10:51:10 AM
Attachments: Comment 10.docx

 
 
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
 

From: aj <ajahjah@att.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 11:23 PM
To: Poling, Jeanie (CPC) <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org>; CPC.BalboaReservoir
<CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org>
Subject: Comment on Initial Study: Land Use
 

 

COMMENT ON INITIAL STUDY:

LAND USE

 

The Initial Study’s B. PROJECT SETTING states: The project setting and existing site land
use characteristics are provided in SEIR Chapter 2, Project Description.  

Going to the referred Ch.2 Project Description produces this:

Project Description

2.A Project Overview

The proposed Balboa Reservoir Project is located on a 17.6-acre site in the West of Twin Peaks area

of south central San Francisco (see Figure 2-1, Location Map). The site is north of the Ocean Avenue
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COMMENT ON INITIAL STUDY: 

LAND USE



The Initial Study’s B. PROJECT SETTING states: The project setting and existing site land use characteristics are provided in SEIR Chapter 2, Project Description.  

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

commercial district, west of the City College of San Francisco Ocean Campus, east of the Westwood

Park neighborhood, and south of Archbishop Riordan High School. The project site is owned by

the City and County of San Francisco (City) under the jurisdiction of the San Francisco Public

Utilities Commission (SFPUC).

This constitutes the entire description of the Project Setting’s baseline existing condition for the Initial Study/SEIR.   

This fails to acknowledge that schools are central feature in the immediate vicinity of the Reservoir:  City College, Riordan, Lick Wilmerding.

The Reservoir site has historically been used by City College for decades.  The Initial Study/SEIR fail to acknowledge this fact.

City College is the main educational, economic, cultural feature of the immediate Reservoir vicinity.   The Initial Study/SEIR fail to acknowledge this fact.

City College, Riordan, Lick Wilmerding are the main target destinations for the immediate Reservoir vicinity.  The Initial Study/SEIR fail to acknowledge this fact.

I contend that these facts have been deliberately omitted from the description of the baseline existing condition because it is an inconvenient truth.  These facts are inconvenient truths that would inhibit the privatization of public assets (though disguised misleadingly as an affordable housing project).

CEQA requires a baseline determination of existing conditions upon which environmental impact of a project will be assessed.



From the Association of Environmental Professional's (AEP) CEQA Portal:



What Are Baseline and Environmental Setting?

Under CEQA, the impacts of a proposed project must be evaluated by comparing expected environmental conditions after project implementation to conditions at a point in time referred to as the baseline. The changes in environmental conditions between those two scenarios represent the environmental impacts of the proposed project. The description of the environmental conditions in the project study area under baseline conditions is referred to as the environmental setting.



Why Is Baseline Important?

Establishing an appropriate baseline is essential, because an inappropriately defined baseline can cause the impacts of the project either to be under-reported or over-reported. A considerable number of CEQA documents have been litigated over the choice of a baseline for a given project, and many CEQA documents have been invalidated for the use of an inappropriate baseline (see Important Cases below).



From 14 CCR 15125:

 (a)  An EIR must include a description of the physical environmental conditions in the vicinity of the project. This environmental setting will normally constitute the baseline physical conditions by which a lead agency determines whether an impact is significant. 



The draft SEIR/Initial Study is fundamentally defective because it fails to recognize the baseline condition of City College’s prominence and importance in the immediate vicinity of the Reservoir.

**********************************************************



Summary of Land Use Impacts in the PEIR (p. B-12)

The proposed project would not result in new or substantially more severe impacts than those identified in the PEIR.

For this to be accurate, the following question would have to be answered in the negative:



Would the project result in potentially significant effects not identified in the prior EIR? This question examines whether or not the proposed project would result in new significant or potentially significant environmental effects that were not identified in the PEIR. This could include significant effects that are due to: 

 Project-specific features of the proposed project. 

 Substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the project would be undertaken, such as real estate development trends in the surrounding area or major projects that were previously unanticipated. 



I contend that the answer to the question is YES, thus triggering Impact treatment in the SEIR.

The section acknowledges:  The project site was located within the Balboa Reservoir Subarea and was assumed to include up to 500 residential units. 

A later paragraph states:  The PEIR concluded that implementation of the area plan would not result in significant land use impacts and did not require any mitigation measures.  

SF Planning Dept professionals are aware that a program-level determination is not the same as a project-level determination.  Otherwise, the BPS FEIR would not have necessitated project-level reviews of the Kragen Project and the Phelan Loop Project within the FEIR.  

It is professionally dishonest for the Planning Dept to pretend that the BPS FEIR’s program-level determination for an BPS Area Plan area-wide target of 1,780 units could be legitimately used to insinuate that the Reservoir Project current numbers of 1,100-1,550 units had already gotten the thumbs-up from the PEIR.

Did you forget the earlier quote of the Reservoir sub-area “assumed to include up to 500 residential units” ?  

In the context of “Project-specific features of the proposed project”, by any objective measure, jumping from 500 units in the program-level PEIR to 1,100-1,550 units in the current two Reservoir options is a big increase of 120% and 210% respectively.

The area-wide target of 1,780 units is shown on the Area Plan Development Status Sept 2018 Update pdf.  It consists of 790 Tier 1 (0-5 yrs) units and 990 Tier 2 ( 5-20 yrs) units.  The pdf shows 482 units built or underway.  This leaves an area-wide shortfall of 1,298 units.

Although I can understand the desire to achieve this area-wide target, forcing a square peg into a round hole out of desperation will not succeed without imposing adverse impacts onto the Reservoir vicinity.   Trying to force the Reservoir Project--targeted for 500 units in the PEIR-- in order to fulfill the 1,298 unit area-wide shortfall is an objectively significant Reservoir impact.

The approval and certification of the program-level BPS Final EIR with an area-wide target of 1,780 units does not equate with a LTS determination for a project-level 1,100-1,550 Reservoir units.  The Initial Study merely manipulates words and paragraphs to imply and assert, without evidence, that: 

“The proposed project would not result in new or substantially more severe impacts than those identified in the PEIR.”

********************************************

Summary of Land Use Impacts in the PEIR (p. B-12)

This section omits the fact that a zoning change from P (Public) to a Special Use District is A BIG DEAL.	  Privatizing public land by a private developer is A BIG DEAL.

Since the certification of the BPS Final EIR, there has been a major change in the housing development environment for surplus public sites.  

At the time of the PEIR, only non-profit agencies were able to buy and build on public surplus lands.  

2015 Prop K Public Land for Housing ended the restriction that only non-profit builders could use public lands for housing.  With the passage of Prop K, private for-profit developers were allowed to cash in on a bonanza to  privatize public lands.

The change of zoning from P to SUD to enable privatization of public land is a new condition that did not exist at the time of the PEIR.  A LTS determination based on conditions that did not exist at the time of the PEIR requires fresh treatment in SEIR.

*****************************************

Impact LU-2: The proposed project would not conflict with any applicable land use plans, policies or regulations of an agency with jurisdiction over the project adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect. (Less than Significant)

The Initial Study fails to assess the PUC Land Use Policy.  The Land Use Framework adopted by the Public Utilities Commission in 2012 (PUC Resolution 12-0044) states: “ Use of the land sold is not to result in activities creating a nuisance.” 

 Given the limited street parking in the surrounding neighborhoods, and the fact that the main ingress/egress to the Reservoir Housing project will be Kahlo Way, the 1100-1550 unit Balboa Reservoir Project will result in creating a substantial traffic and parking nuisance [The word “nuisance” understates the problem].

From earlier submission to the Reservoir CAC and City Team:

PUC LAND USE POLICY 

1. The RFQ’s section on Applicable Land Use Policies makes no reference to the PUC’s own “Framework for Land Use and Management.” 

2. From the PUC website:  By adoption of the Framework, the Commission is seeking to advance the analytical and decision-making process surrounding the administration of real estate assets under the SFPUC’s exclusive jurisdiction.

3. PUC’s Land Use Framework policy allows sale only if:  “Use of the land sold will not result in creating a nuisance.”

4. Even though the PUC Land Use Framework was formulated to focus on “Land Management Guidance for…Disposition of SFPUC Lands,”  The City Team has dismissed the importance of this policy document:   “It is not necessary, or feasible, for an RFQ to name all of the City policies and procedures that apply to the project.”    [ from Staff Response to “Why doesn’t the RFQ discuss the SFPUC Land Use Framework?”  ]   



Importantly, Staff misstated the essence of the question.  The real question was whether or not the intended disposition of the PUC Reservoir property complies with PUC’s policy on “Disposition of SFPUC Lands”; the question was not whether the Land Use Framework policy is “named.”



The PUC Land Use Framework was adopted post-PEIR.  Its requirement that use of the Reservoir not result in a nuisance should be enforced.

***************************************

The entire Reservoir Project process has avoided discussion or application of the State Surplus Property Statute:

STATE SURPLUS PROPERTY STATUTE



The State Surplus Land Statute 54222   says: 

Any local agency disposing of surplus land shall send, prior to disposing of that property, a written offer to sell or lease the property as follows:

(c) A written offer to sell or lease land suitable for school facilities construction or use by a school district for open-space purposes shall be sent to any school district in whose jurisdiction the land is located.


PUC’s principle of market rate return is not absolute.  SF Administrative Code 23 for Real Property Transactions calls for:

SF Administrative Code 23.20 states

  Transfers of Real Property pursuant to this Article shall be paid for no less than 100% of the appraised value, except where the Board of Supervisors determines by resolution that a lesser sum will further a proper public purpose, and provided that the Public Utilities Commission shall be paid at least the historical cost of such Real Property. 


SF Administrative Code 23.3 for Real Property Transactions calls for:

 "... sales price of at least 100% of the appraised value of such Real Property, except where the Board determines either that (a) a lesser sum will further a proper public purpose, or..."

The Balboa Park Station Area Plan had called for  developing the Reservoir to "best benefit the Neighborhood,  City, Region as a whole."  Yet any analysis of what constitutes "best benefit" has been bypassed.   Instead, by fiat, the City declared that the Reservoir would be used for housing to be developed by private developers.  And despite the teacher shortage, consideration for teacher housing by school has been minimized.

[bookmark: _GoBack]

The Reservoir Project has apparently ducked the State Surplus Property Statute’s requirement that the property be offered for school facilities construction.  This omission should trigger treatment in the SEIR.

Submitted by:

Alvin Ja



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

This constitutes the entire description of the Project Setting’s baseline existing
condition for the Initial Study/SEIR.  

This fails to acknowledge that schools are central feature in the immediate vicinity of
the Reservoir:  City College, Riordan, Lick Wilmerding.

The Reservoir site has historically been used by City College for decades.  The Initial
Study/SEIR fail to acknowledge this fact.

City College is the main educational, economic, cultural feature of the immediate
Reservoir vicinity.   The Initial Study/SEIR fail to acknowledge this fact.

City College, Riordan, Lick Wilmerding are the main target destinations for the
immediate Reservoir vicinity.  The Initial Study/SEIR fail to acknowledge this fact.

I contend that these facts have been deliberately omitted from the description of the
baseline existing condition because it is an inconvenient truth.  These facts are
inconvenient truths that would inhibit the privatization of public assets (though
disguised misleadingly as an affordable housing project).

CEQA requires a baseline determination of existing conditions upon which
environmental impact of a project will be assessed.

 

From the Association of Environmental Professional's (AEP) CEQA Portal:

 

What Are Baseline and Environmental Setting?

Under CEQA, the impacts of a proposed project must be evaluated by comparing
expected environmental conditions after project implementation to conditions at a point in time referred
to as the baseline. The changes in environmental conditions between those two scenarios represent the
environmental impacts of the proposed project. The description of the environmental conditions in the
project study area under baseline conditions is referred to as the environmental setting.

 

Why Is Baseline Important?

Establishing an appropriate baseline is essential, because an inappropriately defined baseline can cause
the impacts of the project either to be under-reported or over-reported. A considerable number of CEQA
documents have been litigated over the choice of a baseline for a given project, and many CEQA
documents have been invalidated for the use of an inappropriate baseline (see Important Cases below).



 

From 14 CCR 15125:

 (a)  An EIR must include a description of the physical environmental conditions in the
vicinity of the project. This environmental setting will normally constitute the baseline
physical conditions by which a lead agency determines whether an impact is significant. 

 

The draft SEIR/Initial Study is fundamentally defective because it fails to
recognize the baseline condition of City College’s prominence and importance
in the immediate vicinity of the Reservoir.

**********************************************************

 

Summary of Land Use Impacts in the PEIR (p. B-12)

The proposed project would not result in new or substantially more severe impacts than
those identified in the PEIR.

For this to be accurate, the following question would have to be answered in the
negative:

 

Would the project result in potentially significant effects not identified in the prior EIR? This
question examines whether or not the proposed project would result in new significant or
potentially significant environmental effects that were not identified in the PEIR. This could
include significant effects that are due to:

· Project-specific features of the proposed project.

· Substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the project would be
undertaken, such as real estate development trends in the surrounding area or major projects
that were previously unanticipated.

 

I contend that the answer to the question is YES, thus triggering Impact treatment in
the SEIR.

The section acknowledges:  The project site was located within the Balboa Reservoir Subarea and
was assumed to include up to 500 residential units.

A later paragraph states:  The PEIR concluded that implementation of the area plan would not result in
significant land use impacts and did not require any mitigation measures.  

SF Planning Dept professionals are aware that a program-level determination is not
the same as a project-level determination.  Otherwise, the BPS FEIR would not have
necessitated project-level reviews of the Kragen Project and the Phelan Loop Project
within the FEIR. 



It is professionally dishonest for the Planning Dept to pretend that the BPS FEIR’s
program-level determination for an BPS Area Plan area-wide target of 1,780 units
could be legitimately used to insinuate that the Reservoir Project current numbers of
1,100-1,550 units had already gotten the thumbs-up from the PEIR.

Did you forget the earlier quote of the Reservoir sub-area “assumed to include up to 500
residential units” ? 

In the context of “Project-specific features of the proposed project”, by any objective measure,
jumping from 500 units in the program-level PEIR to 1,100-1,550 units in the current
two Reservoir options is a big increase of 120% and 210% respectively.

The area-wide target of 1,780 units is shown on the Area Plan Development Status
Sept 2018 Update pdf.  It consists of 790 Tier 1 (0-5 yrs) units and 990 Tier 2 ( 5-20
yrs) units.  The pdf shows 482 units built or underway.  This leaves an area-wide
shortfall of 1,298 units.

Although I can understand the desire to achieve this area-wide target, forcing a
square peg into a round hole out of desperation will not succeed without imposing
adverse impacts onto the Reservoir vicinity.   Trying to force the Reservoir Project--
targeted for 500 units in the PEIR--in order to fulfill the 1,298 unit area-wide shortfall
is an objectively significant Reservoir impact.

The approval and certification of the program-level BPS Final EIR with an area-
wide target of 1,780 units does not equate with a LTS determination for a
project-level 1,100-1,550 Reservoir units.  The Initial Study merely manipulates
words and paragraphs to imply and assert, without evidence, that:

“The proposed project would not result in new or substantially more severe impacts
than those identified in the PEIR.”

********************************************

Summary of Land Use Impacts in the PEIR (p. B-12)

This section omits the fact that a zoning change from P (Public) to a Special Use District is
A BIG DEAL.       Privatizing public land by a private developer is A BIG DEAL.

Since the certification of the BPS Final EIR, there has been a major change in the housing
development environment for surplus public sites. 

At the time of the PEIR, only non-profit agencies were able to buy and build on public
surplus lands. 

2015 Prop K Public Land for Housing ended the restriction that only non-profit builders
could use public lands for housing.  With the passage of Prop K, private for-profit
developers were allowed to cash in on a bonanza to privatize public lands.

The change of zoning from P to SUD to enable privatization of public land is a new
condition that did not exist at the time of the PEIR.  A LTS determination based on
conditions that did not exist at the time of the PEIR requires fresh treatment in SEIR.



*****************************************

Impact LU-2: The proposed project would not conflict with any applicable land
use plans, policies or regulations of an agency with jurisdiction over the project
adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect.
(Less than Significant)

The Initial Study fails to assess the PUC Land Use Policy.  The Land Use Framework
adopted by the Public Utilities Commission in 2012 (PUC Resolution 12-0044) states: 
"Use of the land sold is not to result in activities creating a nuisance." 
 
Given the limited street parking in the surrounding neighborhoods, and the fact that
the main ingress/egress to the Reservoir Housing project will be Kahlo Way, the
1100-1550 unit Balboa Reservoir Project will result in creating a substantial traffic and
parking nuisance [The word “nuisance” understates the problem].

From earlier submission to the Reservoir CAC and City Team:

PUC LAND USE POLICY

1.       The RFQ’s section on Applicable Land Use Policies makes no reference to the
PUC’s own “Framework for Land Use and Management.”

2.       From the PUC website:  By adoption of the Framework, the Commission is seeking to
advance the analytical and decision-making process surrounding the administration of real estate
assets under the SFPUC’s exclusive jurisdiction.

3.       PUC’s Land Use Framework policy allows sale only if:  “Use of the land sold will
not result in creating a nuisance.”

4.       Even though the PUC Land Use Framework was formulated to focus on “Land
Management Guidance for…Disposition of SFPUC Lands,”  The City Team has
dismissed the importance of this policy document:   “It is not necessary, or feasible,
for an RFQ to name all of the City policies and procedures that apply to the project.”  
 [ from Staff Response to “Why doesn’t the RFQ discuss the SFPUC Land Use
Framework?”  ]  

 

Importantly, Staff misstated the essence of the question.  The real question was
whether or not the intended disposition of the PUC Reservoir property
complies with PUC’s policy on “Disposition of SFPUC Lands”; the question
was not whether the Land Use Framework policy is “named.”

 

The PUC Land Use Framework was adopted post-PEIR.  Its requirement that
use of the Reservoir not result in a nuisance should be enforced.

***************************************

The entire Reservoir Project process has avoided discussion or application of

http://sfwater.org/modules/showdocument.aspx?documentid=2842


the State Surplus Property Statute:

STATE SURPLUS PROPERTY STATUTE

 

The State Surplus Land Statute 54222   says: 

Any local agency disposing of surplus land shall send, prior to disposing of that property, a written offer to
sell or lease the property as follows:

(c) A written offer to sell or lease land suitable for school facilities construction or use by a school
district for open-space purposes shall be sent to any school district in whose jurisdiction the land is
located.

PUC’s principle of market rate return is not absolute.  SF Administrative Code 23 for
Real Property Transactions calls for:

SF Administrative Code 23.20 states

  Transfers of Real Property pursuant to this Article shall be paid for no less than 100% of the appraised
value, except where the Board of Supervisors determines by resolution that a lesser sum will further a
proper public purpose, and provided that the Public Utilities Commission shall be paid at least the
historical cost of such Real Property. 

SF Administrative Code 23.3 for Real Property Transactions calls for:

 "... sales price of at least 100% of the appraised value of such Real Property, except where the Board
determines either that (a) a lesser sum will further a proper public purpose, or..."

The Balboa Park Station Area Plan had called for  developing the Reservoir to "best
benefit the Neighborhood,  City, Region as a whole."  Yet any analysis of what
constitutes "best benefit" has been bypassed.   Instead, by fiat, the City declared that
the Reservoir would be used for housing to be developed by private developers.  And
despite the teacher shortage, consideration for teacher housing by school has been
minimized.

 

The Reservoir Project has apparently ducked the State Surplus Property
Statute’s requirement that the property be offered for school facilities
construction.  This omission should trigger treatment in the SEIR.

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
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 10:50:54 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Robert Calkin <bob@pentasystem.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 9:51 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)
<jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Board of
Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>; 285NoeStore@gmail.com
Subject: SUPPORT of 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
 

 

 

Subject:  SUPPORT of 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
 
Dear SF Planning Department and District Supervisor Mandelman,

 
 

I am writing to ask for your yes vote on the Conditional Use request for a cannabis
retail store at 258 Noe Street scheduled for hearing on September 19, 2019.  Cannabis
retail at 258 Noe will be a positive impact on the surrounding businesses, bringing new
and much needed shoppers, add heightened security, offer good paying jobs and give a
boost to the commercial diversity of the Upper Market and Castro areas. 

 
My name is Robert F. Calkin. I have been in the cannabis industry for forty years, having started the
first branded cannabis delivery service collective in 1988 in West Hollywood, Green Dot.
 
We served the homebound and disabled for over 30 years there, paving the way for the current
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wave of licensed cannabis businesses.
 
I know about this project because I have worked with Aaron and Denae Silverman for over 20 years
as patient advocates and activists.
 
We have been serving the patient community in California in many ways over the years.
 
I have always fought for and believed in safe access for all people and made a lifetime of effort
advocating for such. Please allow the patients and good people of the Upper Market community to
have a safe place to obtain and use cannabis products. 

My support for this project comes from my personal experience with the principals,
watching and sharing in their involvement in the positive connection cannabis had on
community ravaged by the crisis of AIDS.  I know them by their commitment to an
inclusive family, diverse community and City, their hands-on knowledge of operating a
small business in San Francisco and positive role in the three-year civic conversation
that resulted in the establishment of the Office of Cannabis and the Equity Program of
San Francisco.

Please register my support and I urge your vote “Yes.”
 
Sincerely,

 
Robert F. Calkin
VP Human Resources
818 515 7600
9-11-19



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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SALESFORCE AND POSTMATES WILL

VOLUNTARILY CONTRIBUTE PROPOSITION C TAX FUNDS TO ADDRESS HOMELESSNESS
Date: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 10:49:56 AM
Attachments: 09.11.19 Prop C Waiver.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, September 11, 2019 6:06 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SALESFORCE AND
POSTMATES WILL VOLUNTARILY CONTRIBUTE PROPOSITION C TAX FUNDS TO ADDRESS
HOMELESSNESS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, September 11, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SALESFORCE AND

POSTMATES WILL VOLUNTARILY CONTRIBUTE
PROPOSITION C TAX FUNDS TO ADDRESS HOMELESSNESS
Under Mayor Breed’s Prop C Waiver legislation, companies can voluntarily contribute their

estimated tax liability while the ballot measure is held up in the courts
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that Salesforce and
Postmates will participate in her Proposition C Waiver legislation, co-sponsored by Supervisor
Vallie Brown, which allows companies subject to November 2018’s Proposition C gross
receipts tax to voluntarily agree to waive their right to a refund should that legislation be found
invalid by the courts.
 
The estimated contribution from the two companies represents $14 million that will now go to
fund programs to address homelessness. The new funding will be used to invest in building
more shelters, expanding problem-solving interventions to prevent homelessness and to
quickly stabilize those who become homeless, fund new behavioral health beds, deepen
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


 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that Salesforce and Postmates 
will participate in her Proposition C Waiver legislation, co-sponsored by Supervisor Vallie 
Brown, which allows companies subject to November 2018’s Proposition C gross receipts tax to 
voluntarily agree to waive their right to a refund should that legislation be found invalid by the 
courts. 
  
The estimated contribution from the two companies represents $14 million that will now go to 
fund programs to address homelessness. The new funding will be used to invest in building more 
shelters, expanding problem-solving interventions to prevent homelessness and to quickly 
stabilize those who become homeless, fund new behavioral health beds, deepen investments to 
help families who are newly homeless get rehoused quickly, and build new permanent supportive 
housing for adults, families, and youth exiting homelessness.  
  
“I want to thank Salesforce and Postmates for stepping forward to allow their tax revenue to start 
funding homelessness programs immediately while Prop C continues through the courts,” said 
Mayor Breed. “We know we have too many people suffering on our streets, including people 
with severe mental health and substance use issues. With these resources we can use targeted 
investments to get the care, shelter, and housing that people in our City need.” 
 
“I want to applaud Salesforce and Postmates for their leadership in committing these funds now 
to help address our homelessness crisis,” said Supervisor Vallie Brown. “Their decision to do so 
is in tune with everyday San Franciscans, and I hope we’ll see more of this leadership from 
across the private sector. These funds are going to make an immediate positive difference in the 
lives of San Franciscans struggling to survive on our streets, and I’m very grateful for that.” 
 
Proposition C, a tax to support homelessness and housing services, passed with roughly 61% of 
the vote and is currently held up due to legal uncertainty. The funding from the legislation is 
being collected, but due to litigation risk, the Controller is not authorizing the City to spend the 
funding. Should the courts rule that Prop C was required to meet a 2/3 vote threshold, the money 
being held by the Controller will have to be refunded. The funding will be held in escrow until a 
final decision is made by the courts. 
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“Companies like Salesforce and Postmates are part of the solution to this crisis,” said Jeff 
Kositsky, Director of the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “This is one of 
many examples of how the private sector and philanthropy help the thousands of San Franciscans 
struggling to move beyond homelessness.” 
 
With Mayor Breed’s legislation, companies subject to the Prop C gross receipts tax can choose to 
waive their right to have a portion or the total of their taxes refunded if the courts ultimately 
require the 2/3 threshold to be met. In return for waiving these recovery rights, the companies 
receive a 10% tax liability deduction. This frees up funding that the City would otherwise be 
unable to spend until the matter is settled in court. 
  
“The crisis of homelessness is the most urgent challenge facing our city—and it cannot be solved 
by government alone,” said Marc Benioff and Keith Block, co-CEOs of Salesforce. “We need 
more San Francisco companies to step up and participate in Mayor Breed’s Prop C Waiver 
legislation to give our homeless neighbors the help they desperately need.” 
  
“Homelessness in San Francisco is an all-hands-on-deck crisis. And in the city where I built my 
business and am raising my family—I recognize with unequivocal importance that individuals, 
businesses, and lawmakers alike all have a responsibility to do our part in creating access to 
opportunity for anyone who calls these seven square miles home,” said Postmates Co-Founder 
and CEO Bastian Lehmann. “That’s why I am proud to stand with Mayor London Breed and put 
Postmates’ tax dollars to work right away helping our homeless neighbors. A new generation of 
tech leaders must step up, do our part, and be working partners, not sparring partners, with the 
City in designing policies that accountably invest City dollars towards creative, effective, 
efficient new ways to take care of our fellow residents.” 
  
The City will use the $14 million in Prop C waiver funds in accordance with requirements in the 
ordinance. These resources will specifically be used to: 
  


1. $1.36 million to expand temporary shelter capacity by investing in the development of 
new shelter beds. 


2. $2.04 million to expand problem-solving interventions to prevent and quickly address 
homelessness for newly homeless households in crisis. 


3. $3.4 million to operate additional residential treatment beds for people experiencing 
homelessness and also suffer from behavioral health challenges. 


4. $800,000 to deepen our investment in rapid rehousing, which provides temporary rental 
assistance and wrap around services for families exiting homelessness. 


5. $6 million in permanent housing with services for adults, families and youth exiting 
homelessness. 


 
### 







investments to help families who are newly homeless get rehoused quickly, and build new
permanent supportive housing for adults, families, and youth exiting homelessness.
 
“I want to thank Salesforce and Postmates for stepping forward to allow their tax revenue to
start funding homelessness programs immediately while Prop C continues through the courts,”
said Mayor Breed. “We know we have too many people suffering on our streets, including
people with severe mental health and substance use issues. With these resources we can use
targeted investments to get the care, shelter, and housing that people in our City need.”
 
“I want to applaud Salesforce and Postmates for their leadership in committing these funds
now to help address our homelessness crisis,” said Supervisor Vallie Brown. “Their decision
to do so is in tune with everyday San Franciscans, and I hope we’ll see more of this leadership
from across the private sector. These funds are going to make an immediate positive
difference in the lives of San Franciscans struggling to survive on our streets, and I’m very
grateful for that.”
 
Proposition C, a tax to support homelessness and housing services, passed with roughly 61%
of the vote and is currently held up due to legal uncertainty. The funding from the legislation
is being collected, but due to litigation risk, the Controller is not authorizing the City to spend
the funding. Should the courts rule that Prop C was required to meet a 2/3 vote threshold, the
money being held by the Controller will have to be refunded. The funding will be held in
escrow until a final decision is made by the courts.
 
“Companies like Salesforce and Postmates are part of the solution to this crisis,” said Jeff
Kositsky, Director of the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “This is one
of many examples of how the private sector and philanthropy help the thousands of San
Franciscans struggling to move beyond homelessness.”
 
With Mayor Breed’s legislation, companies subject to the Prop C gross receipts tax can choose
to waive their right to have a portion or the total of their taxes refunded if the courts ultimately
require the 2/3 threshold to be met. In return for waiving these recovery rights, the companies
receive a 10% tax liability deduction. This frees up funding that the City would otherwise be
unable to spend until the matter is settled in court.
 
“The crisis of homelessness is the most urgent challenge facing our city—and it cannot be
solved by government alone,” said Marc Benioff and Keith Block, co-CEOs of Salesforce.
“We need more San Francisco companies to step up and participate in Mayor Breed’s Prop C
Waiver legislation to give our homeless neighbors the help they desperately need.”
 
“Homelessness in San Francisco is an all-hands-on-deck crisis. And in the city where I built
my business and am raising my family—I recognize with unequivocal importance that
individuals, businesses, and lawmakers alike all have a responsibility to do our part in creating
access to opportunity for anyone who calls these seven square miles home,” said Postmates
Co-Founder and CEO Bastian Lehmann. “That’s why I am proud to stand with Mayor London
Breed and put Postmates’ tax dollars to work right away helping our homeless neighbors. A
new generation of tech leaders must step up, do our part, and be working partners, not sparring
partners, with the City in designing policies that accountably invest City dollars towards
creative, effective, efficient new ways to take care of our fellow residents.”
 
The City will use the $14 million in Prop C waiver funds in accordance with requirements in



the ordinance. These resources will specifically be used to:
 

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

4. $800,000 to deepen our investment in rapid rehousing, which provides temporary
rental assistance and wrap around services for families exiting homelessness.

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
Date: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 3:02:18 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Olivia Salak <oliviasalak@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 2:55 PM
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
 

 

Honorable Planning Commission,

I am very alarmed by the proposed development at 33 Capra Way. I live directly across the street at
10 Capra Way and would like to voice my concern. The proposed 4 story building will not only
block my outward view of pacific heights entirely and directly impact the amount of light that comes
into my home, but will also be in conflict with the classic Marina architecture that we have all come
to enjoy (higher buildings only allowed on corners).  I am also worried that the proposed rooftop
deck will contribute much unnecessary noise and commotion.  To have to endure the construction
for such a significant time to then have a building that directly negatively impacts my home life
would be very upsetting. 

I am not against developing/updating the 33 Capra home, but I ask that the commission take into
account that the lot has enough space to expand the building without such significant vertical
expansion.

It is my sincere hope that we can work together to find a better solution that will be for the benefit of
all involved. Please excuse my physical absence at the hearing, as I will be out of town for business.

Sincerely,

Olivia Salak (10 Capra Way)
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
Date: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 1:07:20 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Sam Sheehan <ssheehan@iconiqcapital.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 12:21 PM
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

Having lived in the Marina for 2 years at 10 Capra Way, I am concerned with the proposed
development at 33 Capra way.
 
I am concerned for a number of reasons. The proposed project would have a major impact in the
mid block open space, severely limiting light into 12 units at 10 Capra Way. The scale of this project
far exceeds the scale of new builds that keep the Marina so cherished. Allowing a developer to build
4 stories + a roofdeck is detrimental to the privacy our neighbors are entitled to.
 
Please consider changing the proposed plan to help preserve the light of the entire block.
 
Thank you,
Sam Sheehan
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES RECORD LOW NUMBERS OF NEW HIV

DIAGNOSES
Date: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 11:51:28 AM
Attachments: 09.10.19 HIV Annual Report.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 11:49 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES RECORD LOW NUMBERS OF
NEW HIV DIAGNOSES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, September 10, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES RECORD LOW

NUMBERS OF NEW HIV DIAGNOSES
2018 Annual HIV Epidemiology Report shows progress on Getting to Zero new HIV

infections, and Department of Public Health announces $8 million in grant funding to make
further improvement in areas where disparities persist among African Americans, Latinx,

people who experience homelessness, and people who inject drugs
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, joined by Supervisor Rafael Mandelman,
Dr. Grant Colfax, and public health officials, today announced the results of the 2018 Annual
HIV Epidemiology Report at Ward 86 at San Francisco General Hospital. The report shows
encouraging trends on many fronts and identifies some continuing disparities and areas for
targeted improvements.
 
The record-breaking decline in new HIV diagnoses and improvements in HIV care outcomes
are encouraging and show a positive trend towards achieving San Francisco’s goal of zero new
HIV infections. In 2018, new diagnoses dropped below 200 to 197, which is a 13 percent
decrease from 227 new diagnoses in 2017. There has also been progress on reducing
disparities among populations, with three groups seeing significant improvement—the number
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
2018 Annual HIV Epidemiology Report shows progress on Getting to Zero new HIV infections, 


and Department of Public Health announces $8 million in grant funding to make further 
improvement in areas where disparities persist among African Americans, Latinx, people who 


experience homelessness, and people who inject drugs 
 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, joined by Supervisor Rafael Mandelman, 
Dr. Grant Colfax, and public health officials, today announced the results of the 2018 Annual 
HIV Epidemiology Report at Ward 86 at San Francisco General Hospital. The report shows 
encouraging trends on many fronts and identifies some continuing disparities and areas for 
targeted improvements.  
 
The record-breaking decline in new HIV diagnoses and improvements in HIV care outcomes are 
encouraging and show a positive trend towards achieving San Francisco’s goal of zero new HIV 
infections. In 2018, new diagnoses dropped below 200 to 197, which is a 13 percent decrease 
from 227 new diagnoses in 2017. There has also been progress on reducing disparities among 
populations, with three groups seeing significant improvement—the number of new diagnoses 
declined among Asians, women, and men who have sex with men (MSM). 
 
“The results of the Annual HIV report are encouraging and show that we are on our way to 
Getting to Zero new infections,” said Mayor Breed. “That said, we know that some 
San Franciscans need additional care and outreach in order to receive the treatment they need. 
Our health care professionals and community partners will continue working to reduce 
disparities among populations and improve HIV care for everyone in our City.”  
 
Disparities by race and ethnicity, age, gender, housing status, and risk group remain. The number 
of new diagnoses increased among four populations: people who inject drugs, people 
experiencing homelessness, African Americans and Latinx people. In 2014, San Francisco City 
agencies and organizations came together in a collective impact initiative known as Getting to 
Zero. This initiative brings together people and resources from throughout the city with three 
goals in mind: zero new HIV infections, zero HIV-related deaths and zero stigma and 
discrimination. These disparities highlight the need to address and achieve the Getting to Zero 
goals.  
 
To strengthen San Francisco’s ability to tackle these disparities, the San Francisco Department of 
Public Health (DPH) this week will launch a competitive process to allocate $8 million in 
funding to community organizations primarily serving African Americans, Latinx, transgender 



http://www.gettingtozerosf.org/

http://www.gettingtozerosf.org/
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people and people who inject drugs. With grant funding, organizations will be able to develop 
new Health Access Points and strengthen their work on HIV prevention and care in their 
respective communities. The new Health Access Points will address the social determinants of 
health through a whole person care approach. This approach will help people with their basic 
needs, such as food and mental health, and also providing HIV, Hepatitis C, and sexually 
transmitted disease testing and treatment.  
 
“As the record-breaking decline in this year’s Annual HIV Epidemiology Report shows, we’ve 
made enormous strides towards our Getting to Zero goals,” said Supervisor Rafael Mandelman. 
“But the increase in new diagnoses among injection drug users, African Americans, Latinx, and 
unhoused people is deeply troubling. This is not a moment for complacency or 
self-congratulation. Innovative models like Ward 86’s POP-UP Clinic, which provides accessible 
and low barrier care to homeless and unstably housed HIV positive San Franciscans, are 
essential to ensuring the health of our most marginalized communities. We need more of that, 
and fast.” 
 
“We began as a world leader in care for AIDS patients more than 30 years ago,” said Dr. Grant 
Colfax, Director of Health. “Together with our community partners, scientists, academics, 
providers and the City’s leaders, we are confident in our pledge to be the first city to Get to Zero. 
But we can’t get there until we close the disparities gaps and focus on equity to ensure that all 
San Francisco communities have access to HIV prevention and care that works for them.” 
 
“We know Getting To Zero’s strategy of expanding PrEP, treatment upon diagnosis, and re-
engagement in care is working,” said Dr. Diane Havlir, co-founder of Getting To Zero. “We are 
now doubling down to ensure we reach those affected by the gaps in housing, mental health and 
substance use services.” 
 
There are several efforts underway to address the disparities facing people who are experiencing 
homelessness. In January 2019, Ward 86 at San Francisco General Hospital launched a new 
medical program that provides flexible, comprehensive and patient-centered care. The POP-UP 
(Positive-health Onsite Program for Unstably-housed Populations) program specifically aims to 
reduce health disparities among homeless and unstably housed individuals living with HIV in 
San Francisco. The POP-UP clinic provides low-barrier care for patients who are not virally 
suppressed and require urgent care or other drop-in needs. The team consists of physicians, 
nurses, and a social worker. POP-UP is open in the afternoons five days a week. No appointment 
is necessary and patients in this program can come any time for care. POP-UP provides 
incentives for linkage and retention in care, enhanced patient outreach, and referrals for 
emergency and permanent HIV housing in coordination with the Department of Homelessness 
and Supportive Housing. 
 
DPH also has a $2 million grant from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) to 
focus on HIV and Hepatitis C prevention and care among people experiencing homelessness, and 
people who inject drugs. The grant, called OPT-IN, supports the provision of medical and social 
services to this population. A highlight of OPT-IN is DPH’s team of street outreach workers that 
not only link people to health services daily, but also set up stationary health services in 
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neighborhoods. The team develops relationships with people in the Bayview, Hunters Point, 
SOMA, and the Tenderloin, enabling them to link to the services they need.  
 
San Francisco’s existing efforts to reduce disparities in the African American and Latinx 
populations have focused on increasing PrEP access for African American and Latinx men who 
have sex with men. PrEP, or pre-exposure prophylaxis, is medication that is proven to prevent 
the transmission of HIV. These efforts include lowering barriers to PrEP, social marketing 
campaigns, provider education, and partnering with community. Since 2014, the uptake of PrEP 
has been steadily increasing among all ethnic groups. For example, at San Francisco City Clinic, 
the municipal STD clinic, the proportion of MSM who reported using PrEP increased from 2017 
to 2018. PrEP among Latino and White MSM increased from 47-48 percent to 53 percent, while 
PrEP among African American MSM increased from 41 percent to 49 percent. Racial and ethnic 
disparities are lessening, but more work remains. 
 
On September 30, 2019, San Francisco will be awarded a planning grant from the CDC to 
partner with existing initiatives, including the HIV Community Planning Council, the Getting to 
Zero Consortium, and End Hep C SF. The City and partnering initiatives will engage with all 
communities—especially the African American and Latinx communities, people who use drugs 
and people who are experiencing homelessness—to strengthen successful methods and devise 
additional ones to help these populations get to zero. The one-year plan will address overlapping 
vulnerabilities, health disparities and inequities. Racial and social justice will be at the forefront 
of the planning process, which will inform the new Health Access Points mentioned above. 
 
The Annual Report is the first in a series of announcements that the City will be making 
regarding HIV/AIDS initiatives over the next year. San Francisco and Oakland will be hosting 
the AIDS 2020 Conference in July next year.  
 
Read the full 2018 Annual HIV Epidemiology Report here. 
 


### 



http://www.sfdph.org/dph/files/reports/default.asp





of new diagnoses declined among Asians, women, and men who have sex with men (MSM).
 
“The results of the Annual HIV report are encouraging and show that we are on our way to
Getting to Zero new infections,” said Mayor Breed. “That said, we know that some
San Franciscans need additional care and outreach in order to receive the treatment they need.
Our health care professionals and community partners will continue working to reduce
disparities among populations and improve HIV care for everyone in our City.”
 
Disparities by race and ethnicity, age, gender, housing status, and risk group remain. The
number of new diagnoses increased among four populations: people who inject drugs, people
experiencing homelessness, African Americans and Latinx people. In 2014, San Francisco
City agencies and organizations came together in a collective impact initiative known as
Getting to Zero. This initiative brings together people and resources from throughout the city
with three goals in mind: zero new HIV infections, zero HIV-related deaths and zero stigma
and discrimination. These disparities highlight the need to address and achieve the Getting to
Zero goals.
 
To strengthen San Francisco’s ability to tackle these disparities, the San Francisco Department
of Public Health (DPH) this week will launch a competitive process to allocate $8 million in
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
 
“As the record-breaking decline in this year’s Annual HIV Epidemiology Report shows,
we’ve made enormous strides towards our Getting to Zero goals,” said Supervisor Rafael
Mandelman. “But the increase in new diagnoses among injection drug users, African
Americans, Latinx, and unhoused people is deeply troubling. This is not a moment for
complacency or self‑congratulation. Innovative models like Ward 86’s POP-UP Clinic, which
provides accessible and low barrier care to homeless and unstably housed HIV positive San
Franciscans, are essential to ensuring the health of our most marginalized communities. We
need more of that, and fast.”
 
“We began as a world leader in care for AIDS patients more than 30 years ago,” said Dr.
Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “Together with our community partners, scientists,
academics, providers and the City’s leaders, we are confident in our pledge to be the first city
to Get to Zero. But we can’t get there until we close the disparities gaps and focus on equity to
ensure that all San Francisco communities have access to HIV prevention and care that works
for them.”
 
“We know Getting To Zero’s strategy of expanding PrEP, treatment upon diagnosis, and re-
engagement in care is working,” said Dr. Diane Havlir, co-founder of Getting To Zero. “We
are now doubling down to ensure we reach those affected by the gaps in housing, mental
health and substance use services.”
 
There are several efforts underway to address the disparities facing people who are
experiencing homelessness. In January 2019, Ward 86 at San Francisco General Hospital

http://www.gettingtozerosf.org/


launched a new medical program that provides flexible, comprehensive and patient-centered
care. The POP-UP (Positive-health Onsite Program for Unstably-housed Populations) program
specifically aims to reduce health disparities among homeless and unstably housed individuals
living with HIV in San Francisco. The POP-UP clinic provides low-barrier care for patients
who are not virally suppressed and require urgent care or other drop-in needs. The team
consists of physicians, nurses, and a social worker. POP-UP is open in the afternoons five days
a week. No appointment is necessary and patients in this program can come any time for care.
POP-UP provides incentives for linkage and retention in care, enhanced patient outreach, and
referrals for emergency and permanent HIV housing in coordination with the Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing.
 
DPH also has a $2 million grant from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
to focus on HIV and Hepatitis C prevention and care among people experiencing
homelessness, and people who inject drugs. The grant, called OPT-IN, supports the provision
of medical and social services to this population. A highlight of OPT-IN is DPH’s team of
street outreach workers that not only link people to health services daily, but also set up
stationary health services in neighborhoods. The team develops relationships with people in
the Bayview, Hunters Point, SOMA, and the Tenderloin, enabling them to link to the services
they need.
 
San Francisco’s existing efforts to reduce disparities in the African American and Latinx
populations have focused on increasing PrEP access for African American and Latinx men
who have sex with men. PrEP, or pre-exposure prophylaxis, is medication that is proven to
prevent the transmission of HIV. These efforts include lowering barriers to PrEP, social
marketing campaigns, provider education, and partnering with community. Since 2014, the
uptake of PrEP has been steadily increasing among all ethnic groups. For example, at San
Francisco City Clinic, the municipal STD clinic, the proportion of MSM who reported using
PrEP increased from 2017 to 2018. PrEP among Latino and White MSM increased from 47-48
percent to 53 percent, while PrEP among African American MSM increased from 41 percent
to 49 percent. Racial and ethnic disparities are lessening, but more work remains.
 
On September 30, 2019, San Francisco will be awarded a planning grant from the CDC to
partner with existing initiatives, including the HIV Community Planning Council, the Getting
to Zero Consortium, and End Hep C SF. The City and partnering initiatives will engage with
all communities—especially the African American and Latinx communities, people who use
drugs and people who are experiencing homelessness—to strengthen successful methods and
devise additional ones to help these populations get to zero. The one-year plan will address
overlapping vulnerabilities, health disparities and inequities. Racial and social justice will be
at the forefront of the planning process, which will inform the new Health Access Points
mentioned above.
 
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
Subject: FW: Comment on C-TR-4. Cumulative Transit Delay
Date: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 8:58:49 AM
Attachments: Comment 8.docx

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 12:37 AM
To: Poling, Jeanie (CPC) <jeanie.poling@sfgov.org>; CPC.BalboaReservoir
<CPC.BalboaReservoir@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: BRCAC (ECN) <brcac@sfgov.org>
Subject: Comment on C-TR-4. Cumulative Transit Delay
 

 

COMMENT ON 3.B.6 IMPACT AND MITIGATION MEASURES  (continued)--also
attached as WORD file herein:

 

2040 Cumulative Conditions (p. 3.B-91)

The geographic context for the analysis of cumulative impacts is the transportation study area
shown on Figure 3.B-1, p. 3.B-7.

 

The geographic context for the analysis shown in Fig. 3.B-1 is limited to an eastern
boundary of Frida Kahlo Way.  This eastern boundary is inappropriately restrictive.

 

The Reservoir Project SEIR is a project-level document that falls within the Balboa
Park Station Area Plan.  To cut off the boundary at Frida Kahlo strangles the
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COMMENT ON 3.B.6 IMPACT AND MITIGATION MEASURES  (continued)



2040 Cumulative Conditions (p. 3.B-91)

The geographic context for the analysis of cumulative impacts is the transportation study area shown on Figure 3.B-1, p. 3.B-7.



The geographic context for the analysis shown in Fig. 3.B-1 is limited to an eastern boundary of Frida Kahlo Way.  This eastern boundary is inappropriately restrictive.



The Reservoir Project SEIR is a project-level document that falls within the Balboa Park Station Area Plan.  To cut off the boundary at Frida Kahlo strangles the possibility of a thorough assessment of the Reservoir Project effects on the entire BPS Area Plan area—an area of which the Reservoir Project is a part.



The SEIR can only have the potential to be fair if the geographic context for analysis is the Balboa Park Station area.  From the BPS FEIR (p. 72) the area is:



The “Project Area” of the Balboa Park Station Area Plan is generally bounded by parcels along

the northern edge of Ocean Avenue, the southern boundary of Riordan High School, Judson

Avenue, and Havelock Street to the north; the northeastern edge of the City College campus, and

San Jose and Delano Avenues to the east; Niagara and Mount Vernon Avenues, and parcels along

the southern edges of Geneva and Ocean Avenues to the south; and Manor Drive to the west (see

Figure 2: Project Area Plan).



[image: ]



The SEIR is deficient in its selection of the parameters of geographic context for analysis.

************************************************

Impact C-TR-4: The proposed project, in combination with reasonably foreseeable

future projects, may result in a potentially significant cumulative impact related to

public transit delay and the project could contribute considerably. (Significant and

Unavoidable with Mitigation)    (p. 3.B-94)



In the PEIR, under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario, transit delay impacts were identified at Ocean Avenue/Geneva Avenue/Frida Kahlo Way and the new Geneva Avenue/I-280 NB Off-Ramp and Geneva Avenue/I-280 SB On-Ramp intersections. However, as discussed under Impact TR-4, p. 3.B-73, operation of the proposed project would not substantially delay public transit, and this  impact would be less than significant.



In my previous submission of 9/7/2019, I had presented a picture of the real-life impact, based on SEIR/Kittelson’s figures of Reservoir-related delay on the 43 Masonic.  Instead of just using the delay figures for the restrictive limits of geographic context in the Figure 3.B-2 map, the submission showed 27.4 to 33.6% increases in Reservoir-related travel time within the BPS Area Plan “Project Area”.     



Relative to the MUNI on-time-performance’s late criterion of 4 minutes, Reservoir-related delay contributes 48 to 58.8% of the 4 minutes.



The only way that the SEIR can conclude a less-than-significant transit delay impact is to change the standards.  



It did this by creating a quantitative “threshold of significance” of an additional 4 minutes over and above the SF Charter’s 4 minutes.  Thus, with this this creatively invented threshold of significance that totals 8 minutes, objectively significant delay relative to MUNI schedules are magically transformed into “less-than-significant.”



Here’s copy & paste from my previous submission:

This concluding determination regarding TR-4 Transit Delay is invalid for the reasons already presented above:



The SEIR is egregiously deficient in formulating its less-than-significant determination of the Project’s contribution to transit delay:  

· It omits applicability of the PEIR’s analysis of the Lee Extension causing significant impact;

· It arrogation of a four-minute Project-related delay standard is based on misapplication of City Charter 8A.103 (c)1 whose 4-minute standard is relative to the MUNI schedule;

· In the example of the 43 Masonic, the SEIR’s fails to account for the route segment between CCSF Bookstore and Balboa Park Station, thus grossly lowballing the Project’s contribution to transit delay.

· The Kittelson Travel Demand Memo and Kittelson Transit Delay Memo fail to evaluate EB left turns at Brighton.  It fails to assess the (high--aj) probability that BR residents will turn left at Brighton, cut through Whole Foods ingress/egress, and then turn left again onto Lee.



Finally, the TR-4 determination fails the substantial evidence standard of the Significance Criteria:

The guidelines implementing CEQA direct that this determination be based on scientific and factual data, including the entire record for the project, and not on argument, speculation, or unsubstantiated evidence.

*******************************************************



As discussed in Table 3.B-18, p. 3.B-74, under Impact TR-4, under existing plus project conditions, the

increase in transit delay associated with either the Developer’s Proposed Option and the Additional

Housing Option would not result in significant transit delay impacts. However, the transit delay

contribution from City College’s Ocean Campus, in combination with the proposed project options, is

unknown. For the purposes of a more conservative analysis, the addition of vehicle and transit trips

generated by the proposed project options in combination with the City College facilities master plan

projects and other cumulative developments is expected to increase transit delay and could exceed the

four-minute threshold of significance for individual Muni routes described in the Approach to Impact

Analysis Methodology.



As shown previously, that Reservoir-related delay “would not result in significant transit delay

Impacts” has been shown to be objectively false.



After the false assertion that portrays the Reservoir Project as blameless for transit delay, C-

TR-4 then throws the blame for cumulative Transit Delay on City College when its Facilities Master Plan gets up and running in the future.  The phrasing of the passage essentially shifts the blame for cumulative transit delay impacts on City College, instead of admitting that the primary/proximate cause for transit delay is the Project itself.



The main error in C-TR-4 is that the Reservoir is presumed to be the baseline condition when in fact  City College should be treated as the baseline condition.



Crucially, City College’s Facilities Master Plan is essentially a renovation and replacement program for existing deteriorated, end-of-useful life buildings/facilities. Other than normal growth, build-out of the FMP will not generate new, appreciably substantial vehicle trips above what exists today as the existing condition.  Furthermore any parking structures in FMP would be a direct result of the Reservoir Project’s elimination of student parking.  Although the Planning Dept would want to categorize FMP parking as new, objectively the FMP parking will be replacement parking, not “new.”



In contrast, it is the Reservoir Project’s new residents that will generate new vehicle trips that would cause transit delay.



The SEIR reverses cause and effect in C-TR-4.  It does this by treating the Reservoir Project as if it’s the existing setting in its assessment of cumulative effects and treats CCSF as the new kid on the block.  The fact of the matter is that CCSF must be treated as the baseline condition, and the Reservoir Project as the new kid on the block.  I offer as an example a critique of a 11/17/2016 Planning Dept letter that was sent to City College authorities:





HYPOCRISY OF BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT PLANNERS

In reviewing Sunshine Ordinance documents, I have come across a 11/17/2016 Planning Dept letter addressed to City College BOT signed by its Director, John Rahaim (attached for your convenience).

The 11/17/2016 letter provided the City’s input on the City College draft FMP.

Under the heading of “Access, Parking, and Transportation Demand Management”, the letter states: 



“CCSF has stated that it anticipates maintaining or increasing the number of parking spaces associated with the campus as on-and off-campus surface parking is replaced with buildings. This level of parking provision would have negative consequences for neighborhood congestion…”



Further down in the letter, under the heading “Balboa Reservoir Development Access & Interface”, the letter states:

“While the design of the Reservoir site has not yet begun, roadway access to the Reservoir site [cutting through City College property—aj] is a critical element that needs to be considered now as part of CCSF's master planning process…” 



Back in November 2016 when you first read this letter, I assume that BOT and Administration were able to discern the brazen hypocrisy contained in this letter to SFCCD.



ONE STANDARD FOR CITY COLLEGE………

The City had the audacity in this letter to blame the FMP for negative consequences of proposed FMP parking.  The City shows lack of self-awareness and dishonesty when the reason for needing replacement parking is ultimately the Balboa Reservoir’s own elimination of student parking—parking which constitutes the existing condition.



…………..ANOTHER STANDARD FOR BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT

The Planning Dept letter raises the importance for SFCCD to provide roadway access for the Reservoir Project.  The letter says “roadway access is a critical element that needs to be considered now…”



Since the City planners  say that the parking needs of CCSF stakeholders can be resolved with TDM, the TDM solution should obviate the need for roadway access for the Reservoir Project , too, doncha think?  



But, no.  A double standard applies.



Did you notice that the City’s concern for “negative consequences for neighborhood congestion” only applied to City College, but not to the Reservoir Project?  FYI, throughout the “public engagement process”, Reservoir Project has not shown serious concern for its own negative consequences.



If BOT and Administration allow the City to abuse the City College stakeholders whose interests you are supposed to represent, you are failing in your compliance with Accreditation Standard IV.C4.



--aj     10/9/2017

 

********************************************

To reduce the project’s considerable contribution, implementation of Mitigation Measure

M-C-TR-4, Monitor Cumulative Transit Travel Times and Implement Measures to Reduce Transit Delay was identified. This mitigation measure would require the project sponsor to monitor transit travel times and coordinate with the planning department and SFMTA to implement measures to keep transit travel times within four minutes of existing levels.



Mitigation Measure M-C-TR-4: Monitor Cumulative Transit Travel Times and Implement Measures to Reduce Transit Delay. The project sponsor, under either project option, shall monitor cumulative transit travel times for the identified route segments of the K/T Third/Ingleside, 29 Sunset, 43 Masonic, and 49 Van Ness/Mission lines to determine if a route does not meet its performance standard. If applicable, the project sponsor shall implement feasible measures (as developed in consultation with SFMTA) to reduce transit delay and meet the transit travel time performance standard.



Transit Travel Time Performance Standard. Existing transit travel times and performance standards for the routes subject to this measure, including study segment and time periods,are shown in Table M-C-TR-4. The routes and study segments shown in Table M-C-TR-4 represent routes and study segments most likely to have a cumulative impact to which the project would have a considerable cumulative contribution.



What is the “transit travel time performance standard” that is to be met? 



The SEIR presents Table M-C-TR-4 Transit Travel Time Performance Standard that, by appearance looks oh, so impressive and credible, and “quantitative”!  The Table presents “Existing Transit Travel Time” and “Performance Standard.”  And it looks SOOO legitimate and objective!



But the key is literally in the fine print of Performance Standards’ Footnote “b”. 



Footnote “b” states:  b The performance standard is calculated as the existing transit travel time plus four minutes, or half the headway of a route with headways of less than eight minutes.



As presented in earlier submissions this Performance Standard of “existing travel time plus four minutes” is based on the misappropriation and misuse of the Charter Section 8A.103 (c)1.



Here I present some examples of the increase in travel time that results from the generous “plus four minutes” Performance Standard based on figures from Table M-C-TR-4:

		Transit

Line

		Study Segment

		Existing Transit Travel Time--PM

		Performance Standard--PM

		Percent Increase in Travel Time



		K/T

		Jules Ave/Ocean Ave to Balboa Park BART

		8:42

		12:42

		46.0%



		29

		Mission St/Persia Ave to Plymouth Ave/

Ocean Ave

		9:55

		15:10

		52.9%



		43



		Gennessee St/Monterey Blvd to Frida

Kahlo Way/CCSF South Entrance

		4:23

		8:23

		91.3%



		49

		Frida Kahlo Way/CCSF South Entrance to

Mission St/Persia Ave

		10:04

		14:04

		39.7%



		

		

		

		

		









[bookmark: _GoBack] The  Planning Dept-created threshold of significance of an additional 4 minutes results in increases in Reservoir-related travel times of 46%, 52.9%, 91.3%, and 39.7% respectively for the K-T, 29, 43, and 49 line segments in the Table.  By any objective measure, these would be extremely substantial contributions to transit delay.



The only legitimate standard to be used to comply with the Transit First Policy is:   four minutes late as measured against a MUNI time point…….Not a “plus 4” creatively designed qualitative threshold of significance.  



Regarding Mitigation Measure M-C-TR-4’s “The project sponsor, under either project option, shall monitor cumulative transit travel times for the identified route segments…. the project sponsor shall implement feasible measures (as developed in consultation with SFMTA) to reduce transit delay and meet the transit travel time performance standard.



ARE YOU KIDDING ME?!!  Monitor and implement “feasible” measures?!!



Once the Project has been approved and built, monitoring will only confirm what people who have actual ground-level, real-life based experience in the area have been saying all along about traffic issues that would ultimately cause severe MUNI delay.



And at that point, there will be no feasible measures to implement because the damage will have already been done.  



There will be no feasible measures because the Reservoir Project the project area is characterized by  streets that cannot be widened.  There will be no feasible way to effectively reduce transit delay.  A 2012 Haas School of Business study about a possible Reservoir Project recognized the difficulties of “… limited access points and large influx of new residents”. for such a project.



To think that monitoring transit delay and implementing “feasible” measures such as TDM will be able to satisfactorily mitigate the impact of the Reservoir would be ludicrous.



Thankfully, the SEIR arrives at a realistic determination (except for the undue blame given to  a City College contribution to future transit delay) for C-TR-4:



In consideration of the uncertainty surrounding the development at City College’s Ocean Campus,

the uncertainty of the Balboa Reservoir Project’s TDM measure effectiveness, and the uncertainty

of SFMTA approval of other measures under their jurisdiction, the impact of the proposed project

options would remain significant and unavoidable with mitigation, even with implementation of

Mitigation Measure M-C-TR-4.



Significance after Mitigation: Significant and Unavoidable.





Submitted by: 

Alvin Ja
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possibility of a thorough assessment of the Reservoir Project effects on the entire
BPS Area Plan area—an area of which the Reservoir Project is a part.

 

The SEIR can only have the potential to be fair if the geographic context for
analysis is the Balboa Park Station area.  From the BPS FEIR (p. 72) the area is:

 

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

 

 

The SEIR is deficient in its selection of the parameters of geographic context
for analysis.

************************************************

Impact C-TR-4: The proposed project, in combination with reasonably
foreseeable

future projects, may result in a potentially significant cumulative impact related
to

public transit delay and the project could contribute considerably. (Significant
and

Unavoidable with Mitigation)    (p. 3.B-94)

 

In the PEIR, under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario, transit delay impacts were identified at Ocean
Avenue/Geneva Avenue/Frida Kahlo Way and the new Geneva Avenue/I-280 NB Off-Ramp and Geneva Avenue/I-
280 SB On-Ramp intersections. However, as discussed under Impact TR-4, p. 3.B-73, operation of the proposed
project would not substantially delay public transit, and this  impact would be less than significant.

 

In my previous submission of 9/7/2019, I had presented a picture of the real-life
impact, based on SEIR/Kittelson’s figures of Reservoir-related delay on the 43
Masonic.  Instead of just using the delay figures for the restrictive limits of geographic
context in the Figure 3.B-2 map, the submission showed 27.4 to 33.6% increases in



Reservoir-related travel time within the BPS Area Plan “Project Area”.     

 

Relative to the MUNI on-time-performance’s late criterion of 4 minutes, Reservoir-
related delay contributes 48 to 58.8% of the 4 minutes.

 

The only way that the SEIR can conclude a less-than-significant transit delay impact
is to change the standards. 

 

It did this by creating a quantitative “threshold of significance” of an additional 4
minutes over and above the SF Charter’s 4 minutes.  Thus, with this this creatively
invented threshold of significance that totals 8 minutes, objectively significant delay
relative to MUNI schedules are magically transformed into “less-than-significant.”

 

Here’s copy & paste from my previous submission:

This concluding determination regarding TR-4 Transit Delay is invalid for
the reasons already presented above:

 

The SEIR is egregiously deficient in formulating its less-than-
significant determination of the Project’s contribution to transit
delay: 

·         It omits applicability of the PEIR’s analysis of the Lee
Extension causing significant impact;

·         It arrogation of a four-minute Project-related delay standard
is based on misapplication of City Charter 8A.103 (c)1 whose 4-
minute standard is relative to the MUNI schedule;

·         In the example of the 43 Masonic, the SEIR’s fails to account
for the route segment between CCSF Bookstore and Balboa
Park Station, thus grossly lowballing the Project’s contribution
to transit delay.

·         The Kittelson Travel Demand Memo and Kittelson Transit
Delay Memo fail to evaluate EB left turns at Brighton.  It fails to
assess the (high--aj) probability that BR residents will turn left
at Brighton, cut through Whole Foods ingress/egress, and then
turn left again onto Lee.

 



Finally, the TR-4 determination fails the substantial evidence standard of
the Significance Criteria:

The guidelines implementing CEQA direct that this determination be based on scientific and
factual data, including the entire record for the project, and not on argument, speculation, or
unsubstantiated evidence.

*******************************************************

 

As discussed in Table 3.B-18, p. 3.B-74, under Impact TR-4, under existing plus project
conditions, the

increase in transit delay associated with either the Developer’s Proposed Option and the
Additional

Housing Option would not result in significant transit delay impacts. However, the transit delay

contribution from City College’s Ocean Campus, in combination with the proposed project
options, is

unknown. For the purposes of a more conservative analysis, the addition of vehicle and transit
trips

generated by the proposed project options in combination with the City College facilities master
plan

projects and other cumulative developments is expected to increase transit delay and could
exceed the

four-minute threshold of significance for individual Muni routes described in the Approach to
Impact

Analysis Methodology.

 

As shown previously, that Reservoir-related delay “would not result in
significant transit delay

Impacts” has been shown to be objectively false.

 

After the false assertion that portrays the Reservoir Project as
blameless for transit delay, C-

TR-4 then throws the blame for cumulative Transit Delay on City College when its
Facilities Master Plan gets up and running in the future.  The phrasing of the passage
essentially shifts the blame for cumulative transit delay impacts on City College,
instead of admitting that the primary/proximate cause for transit delay is the Project
itself.

 



The main error in C-TR-4 is that the Reservoir is presumed to be the baseline
condition when in fact  City College should be treated as the baseline condition.

 

Crucially, City College’s Facilities Master Plan is essentially a renovation and
replacement program for existing deteriorated, end-of-useful life buildings/facilities.
Other than normal growth, build-out of the FMP will not generate new, appreciably
substantial vehicle trips above what exists today as the existing condition. 
Furthermore any parking structures in FMP would be a direct result of the Reservoir
Project’s elimination of student parking.  Although the Planning Dept would want to
categorize FMP parking as new, objectively the FMP parking will be replacement
parking, not “new.”

 

In contrast, it is the Reservoir Project’s new residents that will generate new vehicle
trips that would cause transit delay.

 

The SEIR reverses cause and effect in C-TR-4.  It does this by treating the
Reservoir Project as if it’s the existing setting in its assessment of cumulative
effects and treats CCSF as the new kid on the block.  The fact of the matter is
that CCSF must be treated as the baseline condition, and the Reservoir Project
as the new kid on the block.  I offer as an example a critique of a 11/17/2016
Planning Dept letter that was sent to City College authorities:

 

 

HYPOCRISY OF BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT PLANNERS

In reviewing Sunshine Ordinance documents, I have come across a
11/17/2016 Planning Dept letter addressed to City College BOT signed
by its Director, John Rahaim (attached for your convenience).

The 11/17/2016 letter provided the City’s input on the City College draft
FMP.

Under the heading of “Access, Parking, and Transportation Demand
Management”, the letter states:

 

“CCSF has stated that it anticipates maintaining or increasing the
number of parking spaces associated with the campus as on-and
off-campus surface parking is replaced with buildings. This level
of parking provision would have negative consequences for
neighborhood congestion…”



 

Further down in the letter, under the heading “Balboa Reservoir
Development Access & Interface”, the letter states:

“While the design of the Reservoir site has not yet begun,
roadway access to the Reservoir site [cutting through City
College property—aj] is a critical element that needs to be
considered now as part of CCSF's master planning process…”

 

Back in November 2016 when you first read this letter, I assume that
BOT and Administration were able to discern the brazen hypocrisy
contained in this letter to SFCCD.

 

ONE STANDARD FOR CITY COLLEGE………

The City had the audacity in this letter to blame the FMP for negative
consequences of proposed FMP parking.  The City shows lack of self-
awareness and dishonesty when the reason for needing replacement
parking is ultimately the Balboa Reservoir’s own elimination of student
parking—parking which constitutes the existing condition.

 

…………..ANOTHER STANDARD FOR BALBOA RESERVOIR
PROJECT

The Planning Dept letter raises the importance for SFCCD to provide
roadway access for the Reservoir Project.  The letter says “roadway
access is a critical element that needs to be considered now…”

 

Since the City planners  say that the parking needs of CCSF
stakeholders can be resolved with TDM, the TDM solution should
obviate the need for roadway access for the Reservoir Project , too,
doncha think? 

 

But, no.  A double standard applies.

 

Did you notice that the City’s concern for “negative consequences for
neighborhood congestion” only applied to City College, but not to the
Reservoir Project?  FYI, throughout the “public engagement process”,
Reservoir Project has not shown serious concern for its own negative



consequences.

 

If BOT and Administration allow the City to abuse the City College
stakeholders whose interests you are supposed to represent, you are
failing in your compliance with Accreditation Standard IV.C4.

 

--aj     10/9/2017

 

********************************************

To reduce the project’s considerable contribution, implementation of Mitigation Measure

M-C-TR-4, Monitor Cumulative Transit Travel Times and Implement Measures to
Reduce Transit Delay was identified. This mitigation measure would require the project
sponsor to monitor transit travel times and coordinate with the planning department and
SFMTA to implement measures to keep transit travel times within four minutes of existing
levels.

 

Mitigation Measure M-C-TR-4: Monitor Cumulative Transit Travel Times
and Implement Measures to Reduce Transit Delay. The project sponsor, under
either project option, shall monitor cumulative transit travel times for the identified
route segments of the K/T Third/Ingleside, 29 Sunset, 43 Masonic, and 49 Van
Ness/Mission lines to determine if a route does not meet its performance standard. If
applicable, the project sponsor shall implement feasible measures (as developed in
consultation with SFMTA) to reduce transit delay and meet the transit travel time
performance standard.

 

Transit Travel Time Performance Standard. Existing transit travel times and
performance standards for the routes subject to this measure, including study segment
and time periods,are shown in Table M-C-TR-4. The routes and study segments shown
in Table M-C-TR-4 represent routes and study segments most likely to have a
cumulative impact to which the project would have a considerable cumulative
contribution.

 

What is the “transit travel time performance standard” that is to be met?

 

The SEIR presents Table M-C-TR-4 Transit Travel Time Performance Standard that,



by appearance looks oh, so impressive and credible, and “quantitative”!  The Table
presents “Existing Transit Travel Time” and “Performance Standard.”  And it looks
SOOO legitimate and objective!

 

But the key is literally in the fine print of Performance Standards’ Footnote “b”.

 

Footnote “b” states:  b The performance standard is calculated as the existing transit travel time plus four minutes, or half the headway
of a route with headways of less than eight minutes.

 

As presented in earlier submissions this Performance Standard of “existing travel time
plus four minutes” is based on the misappropriation and misuse of the Charter
Section 8A.103 (c)1.

 

Here I present some examples of the increase in travel time that results from the
generous “plus four minutes” Performance Standard based on figures from Table M-
C-TR-4:

Transit

Line

Study Segment Existing
Transit

Travel Time-
-PM 

Performance
Standard--PM

Percent Increase
in Travel Time

K/T Jules Ave/Ocean Ave to Balboa Park
BART

8:42 12:42 46.0%
29 Mission St/Persia Ave to Plymouth

Ave/

Ocean Ave

9:55 15:10 52.9%

43

 

Gennessee St/Monterey Blvd to
Frida

Kahlo Way/CCSF South Entrance

4:23 8:23 91.3%

49 Frida Kahlo Way/CCSF South
Entrance to

Mission St/Persia Ave

10:04 14:04 39.7%

         

 

 

 The  Planning Dept-created threshold of significance of an additional 4 minutes
results in increases in Reservoir-related travel times of 46%, 52.9%, 91.3%, and
39.7% respectively for the K-T, 29, 43, and 49 line segments in the Table.  By
any objective measure, these would be extremely substantial contributions to
transit delay.



 

The only legitimate standard to be used to comply with the Transit First Policy is:  
four minutes late as measured against a MUNI time point…….Not a “plus 4”
creatively designed qualitative threshold of significance. 

 

Regarding Mitigation Measure M-C-TR-4’s “The project sponsor, under either project option, shall
monitor cumulative transit travel times for the identified route segments…. the project sponsor shall implement
feasible measures (as developed in consultation with SFMTA) to reduce transit delay and meet the transit travel
time performance standard.

 

ARE YOU KIDDING ME?!!  Monitor and implement “feasible” measures?!!

 

Once the Project has been approved and built, monitoring will only confirm what
people who have actual ground-level, real-life based experience in the area have
been saying all along about traffic issues that would ultimately cause severe MUNI
delay.

 

And at that point, there will be no feasible measures to implement because the
damage will have already been done. 

 

There will be no feasible measures because the Reservoir Project the project area is
characterized by  streets that cannot be widened.  There will be no feasible way to
effectively reduce transit delay.  A 2012 Haas School of Business study about a
possible Reservoir Project recognized the difficulties of “… limited access points and large
influx of new residents”. for such a project.

 

To think that monitoring transit delay and implementing “feasible” measures such as
TDM will be able to satisfactorily mitigate the impact of the Reservoir would be
ludicrous.

 

Thankfully, the SEIR arrives at a realistic determination (except for the undue
blame given to  a City College contribution to future transit delay) for C-TR-4:

 

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
Subject: FW: Subject: SUPPORT of 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
Date: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 8:58:27 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Kierstin Kropp <kikikropp@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 6:48 AM
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
Cc: 285NoeStore@gmai.com
Subject: Subject: SUPPORT of 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
 

 

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
 
My name is Kierstin Kropp and I live in Danville, CA. I was born and raised in San Francisco
and spent a good chunk of my childhood hanging in the Castro. My Aunts and many friends
lived in this neighborhood, brunches were had at Cafe Flore (now Flore), I worked at the Gap
as a teen and when I was old enough, would enjoy drinks with the "boys" at the Lookout :). 
This neighborhood holds a special place in my heart.
 
I know about this project through Aaron and Denae Silverman who have become our
"framily" since moving to Danville. Their passion for this business is second to none and they
bring years of knowledge and expertise with them. I know how committed they have been to
this project.... and as time has passed we have all seen that  cannabis has had a positive impact

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


on a community ravaged by AIDS. I have witnessed this first hand, loosing many friends over
the years..... cannabis provided them with a means of pain management or a way of gaining
their appetites. Having a cannabis retail front in this community is the right fit and I can't think
of 2 better people to make this happen!
 
Thank you for your time!
Best Regards-
Kierstin Kroppas
 



 
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
Date: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 8:58:18 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Ryan Greves <ryan@eastbayfloorcovering.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 7:21 AM
To: Board of Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS]
<mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Horn, Jeffrey (CPC) <jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>
Subject: SUPPORT of 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
 

 

Dear SF Planning Department and District Supervisor Mandelman,

I am writing this email to ask for you to Vote YES on the Conditional Use request for a cannabis retail
store at 258 Noe Street scheduled for hearing on September 19, 2019. My name is Ryan Greves and
I am a Bay Area Native and have lived throughout the Bay Area My entire life and now reside in the
East Bay. I Have known the Silverman family for several years, and I think not only will this benefit
Patients and Adult Users throughout the bay area in need of cannabis but it will also create Jobs for
the community and we also need more Private Family owned businesses.
 
Thanks

--
Ryan Greves
East Bay Floorcovering Inc.
2215 National Ave
Hayward Ca. 94545
(510) 887-8444
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED, SUPERVISORS FEWER, MANDELMAN & BROWN ANNOUNCE PLAN

TO STABILIZE AND EXPAND CRITICAL MENTAL HEALTH RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 2:04:44 PM
Attachments: 09.09.19 Board & Care Facilities.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, September 09, 2019 2:03 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR BREED, SUPERVISORS FEWER, MANDELMAN & BROWN
ANNOUNCE PLAN TO STABILIZE AND EXPAND CRITICAL MENTAL HEALTH RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, September 9, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR BREED, SUPERVISORS FEWER, MANDELMAN &
BROWN ANNOUNCE PLAN TO STABILIZE AND EXPAND
CRITICAL MENTAL HEALTH RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES

Increased funding and site acquisition plan will address the closure crisis affecting Board and
Care Facilities that support people with behavioral health challenges

 

San Francisco, CA — Today, Mayor London N. Breed along with Supervisors Sandra Fewer,
Rafael Mandelman, and Vallie Brown announced a plan to address the closure crisis impacting
San Francisco’s Board and Care Facilities. These residential care facilities, which provide
homes and care for people with behavioral health challenges and who need help with daily
tasks like dressing and eating, have been closing due to increased operational costs and
development pressures from the housing market.  

 

The plan put forth by the Mayor and the Supervisors will stabilize existing Board and Care
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
San Francisco’s Board and Care Facilities. These residential care facilities, which provide homes 
and care for people with behavioral health challenges and who need help with daily tasks like 
dressing and eating, have been closing due to increased operational costs and development 
pressures from the housing market.   
 
The plan put forth by the Mayor and the Supervisors will stabilize existing Board and Care 
facilities by increasing operational funding, seek to purchase sites at risk of closure, and advance 
strategies that will reduce pressure to convert facilities to residential use.  
 
“As we reform our mental health system in San Francisco, we know that we must take action to 
stop Board and Care facilities from continuing to close,” said Mayor Breed. “These facilities 
treat people who would otherwise be at risk of homelessness, while providing the long-term, 
stable housing they need. I want to thank Supervisors Fewer, Mandelman, and Brown for 
stepping up to address this important issue as we work to purchase facilities that are at risk of 
closing so that they can continue to provide the care that our city so desperately needs.” 
 
“Board and Care facilities are critical to caring for our seniors and play a vital role in ensuring 
that vulnerable residents receive the service they need while remaining housed,” said Supervisor 
Fewer. “We need to take action to stop the loss of these beds and I’m happy to support this effort 
to purchase these sites so that they can continue operating in San Francisco.” 
 
“Housing the growing numbers of vulnerable elderly and disabled San Francisco residents is one 
of the urgent moral challenges of our time, and one we must meet if we are to reverse the 
alarming rise in homelessness among these populations. I commend Mayor Breed for her 
leadership in stabilizing our existing Board and Care facilities and her commitment to advancing 
housing solutions for the most vulnerable,” said Supervisor Mandelman.    
 
“Many of San Francisco’s remaining Board and Care facilities are in District 5. Too many across 
the City have now closed,” said Supervisor Brown. “We need to reverse this trend. By 
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purchasing facilities before they close, we can ensure vulnerable residents remain stable and in 
their homes, not in crisis on our streets and in our emergency rooms.” 
 
Board and Care facilities, otherwise known as Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly (RCFE) 
or Adult Residential Facilities (ARFs), provide higher levels of care for individuals to enable 
them to live in the community. These facilities are typically small—with as few as three or four 
beds—and are integrated into residential neighborhoods. They provide both short- and long-term 
placements for people with behavioral health challenges, including individuals who are 
conserved or have exited conservatorship. 
 
Board and Care beds represent an important piece of the overall portfolio of behavioral health 
beds in San Francisco, and the loss of these beds poses a significant challenge to our overall 
ability to respond to the behavioral health challenges in the city. The number of residential care 
facilities and the total number of beds that contract with the Department of Public Health (DPH), 
has shown a steady decline over the past five years, and an additional 71 beds will possibly be 
closing by the end of 2020. 
 
The plan from the Mayor and the Supervisors will do three things: 
 


• Stabilize Existing Board and Care Facilities  
o One of the primary reasons Board and Care facilities cite for closure is the 


increased cost of doing business. Today, most residents who occupy a bed receive 
some sort of supplemental income, and these sources typically provide a 
reimbursement for each placement. The City subsidizes this reimbursement for 
providers with an additional patch payment, which will be increased to help 
providers better afford the cost of services. For this year, costs will be covered 
using existing sources, and moving forward, this additional cost will be 
incorporated into the DPH’s budget. 
 


• Authorize City Acquisition of Facilities to Preserve and Expand Beds 
o The City will explore purchasing the buildings of existing providers that are at 


risk of closure, possibly expanding them to increase capacity, and partnering with 
a community partner for operation. 
 


• Reduce Pressure to Convert to Residential Use 
o Many of the Board and Care facilities that are closing are selling to parties that 


aim to convert them to residential uses. By placing interim controls on the 
conversion of any Board and Care use to residential use, the development 
incentive to go out of business is reduced. The Mayor supports Supervisor 
Mandelman’s legislation and thanks him for his leadership. 
 


“Board and care homes are a critical part of the continuum of behavioral health services that 
San Franciscans need to live in the community,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “The 
Department of Public Health is grateful to Mayor Breed and these Supervisors for taking steps to 
preserve these vital services.” 
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“Our family has served San Francisco residents with disabilities and behavioral health challenges 
for almost two decades,” said Joshua Taburaza, United Family Care Home Project Manager. 
“Our clients have worked in the San Francisco community, some of them are veterans, all of 
them need a home. We provide assistance with medication administration, nutritious meals and 
snacks, and coordinate their healthcare. We are thankful for Mayor Breed’s proposal and know 
that it will absolutely help continue the important work for all the Board and Care providers in 
the City.” 
 
Ensuring the continued operation of board and care facilities can help prevent homelessness for 
vulnerable people. This effort is part of Mayor Breed’s broader mental health reform initiative, 
which includes a plan to help the nearly 4,000 homeless San Franciscans who have serious 
mental illness and substance use disorders. The initial steps of the new initiative will provide 
enhanced care coordination, create a multi-agency program to streamline housing and health care 
for the most vulnerable, and increase access to behavioral health services by expanding hours of 
the City’s Behavioral Health Access Center.  
 


### 







facilities by increasing operational funding, seek to purchase sites at risk of closure, and
advance strategies that will reduce pressure to convert facilities to residential use. 

 

“As we reform our mental health system in San Francisco, we know that we must take action
to stop Board and Care facilities from continuing to close,” said Mayor Breed. “These
facilities treat people who would otherwise be at risk of homelessness, while providing the
long-term, stable housing they need. I want to thank Supervisors Fewer, Mandelman, and
Brown for stepping up to address this important issue as we work to purchase facilities that are
at risk of closing so that they can continue to provide the care that our city so desperately
needs.”

 

“Board and Care facilities are critical to caring for our seniors and play a vital role in ensuring
that vulnerable residents receive the service they need while remaining housed,” said
Supervisor Fewer. “We need to take action to stop the loss of these beds and I’m happy to
support this effort to purchase these sites so that they can continue operating in San
Francisco.”

“Housing the growing numbers of vulnerable elderly and disabled San Francisco residents is
one of the urgent moral challenges of our time, and one we must meet if we are to reverse the
alarming rise in homelessness among these populations. I commend Mayor Breed for her
leadership in stabilizing our existing Board and Care facilities and her commitment to
advancing housing solutions for the most vulnerable,” said Supervisor Mandelman.  
 
“Many of San Francisco’s remaining Board and Care facilities are in District 5. Too many
across the City have now closed,” said Supervisor Brown. “We need to reverse this trend. By
purchasing facilities before they close, we can ensure vulnerable residents remain stable and in
their homes, not in crisis on our streets and in our emergency rooms.”
 
Board and Care facilities, otherwise known as Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly
(RCFE) or Adult Residential Facilities (ARFs), provide higher levels of care for individuals to
enable them to live in the community. These facilities are typically small—with as few as
three or four beds—and are integrated into residential neighborhoods. They provide both
short- and long-term placements for people with behavioral health challenges, including
individuals who are conserved or have exited conservatorship.

 

Board and Care beds represent an important piece of the overall portfolio of behavioral health
beds in San Francisco, and the loss of these beds poses a significant challenge to our overall
ability to respond to the behavioral health challenges in the city. The number of residential
care facilities and the total number of beds that contract with the Department of Public Health
(DPH), has shown a steady decline over the past five years, and an additional 71 beds will
possibly be closing by the end of 2020.

 

The plan from the Mayor and the Supervisors will do three things:



 

Stabilize Existing Board and Care Facilities 
One of the primary reasons Board and Care facilities cite for closure is the
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

Authorize City Acquisition of Facilities to Preserve and Expand Beds
The City will explore purchasing the buildings of existing providers that are at
risk of closure, possibly expanding them to increase capacity, and partnering with
a community partner for operation.

Reduce Pressure to Convert to Residential Use
Many of the Board and Care facilities that are closing are selling to parties that
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
San Franciscans need to live in the community,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health.
“The Department of Public Health is grateful to Mayor Breed and these Supervisors for taking
steps to preserve these vital services.”

 

“Our family has served San Francisco residents with disabilities and behavioral health
challenges for almost two decades,” said Joshua Taburaza, United Family Care Home Project
Manager. “Our clients have worked in the San Francisco community, some of them are
veterans, all of them need a home. We provide assistance with medication administration,
nutritious meals and snacks, and coordinate their healthcare. We are thankful for Mayor
Breed’s proposal and know that it will absolutely help continue the important work for all the
Board and Care providers in the City.”

 

Ensuring the continued operation of board and care facilities can help prevent homelessness
for vulnerable people. This effort is part of Mayor Breed’s broader mental health reform
initiative, which includes a plan to help the nearly 4,000 homeless San Franciscans who have
serious mental illness and substance use disorders. The initial steps of the new initiative will
provide enhanced care coordination, create a multi-agency program to streamline housing and
health care for the most vulnerable, and increase access to behavioral health services by
expanding hours of the City’s Behavioral Health Access Center.



 

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
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Winslow, David (CPC)
Subject: FW: 50 Seward Street PA#201704194301 - DR Continuance Brief
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 12:08:53 PM
Attachments: Letter from James Pincow to Planning Commissioners.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: James Pincow <james.pincow@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, September 09, 2019 12:07 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: 50 Seward Street PA#201704194301 - DR Continuance Brief
 

 

Dear Commission Secretary,
 
I sent the attached document to the Commission by Federal Express and it was delivered last week. 
I have since learned that I should have also sent a PDF to your attention.  It is attached here.  This is
regarding a DR request hearing scheduled for this Thursday, September 12.  I will bring 10 copies for
distribution to the hearing as well.

Thank you.
 
Sincerely,
 
James Pincow

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: James Pincow <james.pincow@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Sep 5, 2019 at 4:49 PM
Subject: Fwd: 50 Seward Street PA#201704194301 - DR Continuance Brief
To: David Winslow <david.winslow@sfgov.org>
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Mr. Winslow,

Please see below and attached.  I am forwarding this to you as I see you are the staff contact named
on the continuance hearing packet.
 
Thanks.
 
Sincerely,
 
James Pincow

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: James Pincow <james.pincow@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Sep 5, 2019 at 3:56 PM
Subject: Re: 50 Seward Street PA#201704194301 - DR Continuance Brief
To: khoan duong <khoan@johnlumarchitecture.com>
Cc: Alissa M. Fitzgerald <amf@amfitzgerald.com>, Kenneth Hillan <khillan@yahoo.com>, Kelley
Friedgen <kelley.friedgen@gmail.com>, Kyle C. Johnson <kj8375@yahoo.com>, John Lum
<john@johnlumarchitecture.com>, Richard Klaja <richard@johnlumarchitecture.com>, Cathleen
Campbell <cathleen.campbell@sfgov.org>
 

Khoan,
 
I sent the attached letter to the Planning Commissioners in response to the brief your office
submitted yesterday.  I am copying the other DR requesters and Cathleen Campbell for their
reference.
 
Thanks.
 
Sincerely,
 
James Pincow
 
On Wed, Sep 4, 2019 at 5:09 PM khoan duong <khoan@johnlumarchitecture.com> wrote:

Alissa, James and Kenneth,
 
We submitted our brief to the Planning Department this afternoon to be included in the Planning
Commission Packet.  As part of the Discretionary Review process, we have attached a digital
version for you.  If you have any questions, don’t hesitate to contact us.
 
Warm Regards,

Khoan Duong, AIA
Principal
John Lum Architecture
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3246 17th Street
San Francisco, CA 94110
p:  415-558-9550 x0013
f:   415-558-0554 
e:  khoan@johnlumarchitecture.com
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
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC); Poling, Jeanie (CPC)
Subject: FW: Comment on 3.B.6 Transportation & Circulation Impacts & Mitigation Measures
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 8:42:35 AM
Attachments: 3.B.6.docx

 
 
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
Sent: Saturday, September 07, 2019 8:18 AM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: roger marenco <rmarenco@twusf.org>; Kirschbaum, Julie (MTA) <Julie.Kirschbaum@sfmta.com>
Subject: Fw: Comment on 3.B.6 Transportation & Circulation Impacts & Mitigation Measures
 

 

Planning Commission:
 
The Balboa Reservoir draft SEIR concludes that the Project will have insignificant
adverse impact on Transit Delay.  This LTS determination is based on incomplete
analysis and on improper authority.
 
In my comment below (also attached as WORD file), I present an example of the 43
Masonic which has two time point-to-time point route segments in the Balboa Park
Station Area plan area.  The SEIR examines only one route segment to arrive at its
LTS determination.
 
Most importantly, in order to arrive at its LTS determination, the SEIR inappropriately,
in the name of SF's Transit First Policy, grants the Reservoir Project the privilege of
adding an additional Reservoir-related 4 minutes on top of the City Charter-specified
4-minute late standard for MUNI.  I have discussed this in my 9/5/2019 submission to
you entitled "Inappropriate SEIR Definition of Transit Delay."  I hope that you have
read it.
 
I present findings based on the SEIR/Kittelson Travel Demand Memo, Transit Delay
Memo's own "quantitative" figures, below.
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Comment on 3.B.6 Impacts & Mitigation Measures (p. 3.B-34)



Operation (p. 3.B-35)

Approach to Analysis



Roadway Network Features (p. 3.B-36)

Circulation changes implemented by the proposed project include the extension of Lee Avenue...



The operational impact analysis includes the following significance criteria:

· Cause substantial additional VMT or substantially inducing additional automobile travel by increasing physical roadway capacity in congested areas (i.e., by adding new mixed-flow travel lanes) or by adding new roadways to the network;...

· Result in a loading deficit and the secondary effects would create potentially hazardous conditions for people walking, bicycling, or driving; or substantially delay public transit

Despite the fact that the Lee Extension would induce "additional automobile travel by increasing physical roadway capacity in a congested area" and would substantially delay many MUNI lines on Ocean Avenue, no mention is made here regarding impacts on these significance criteria.  (And as mentioned before, the PEIR had already rejected a Lee Extension from being included in the BPS program-level FEIR because its adverse impact on transit.  The PEIR's discussion regarding the Lee Extension is brought up in 3.B.3.  Yet, its relevance and applicability to the Reservoir Project's Lee Extension is omitted.)

********************************



Operational Impacts (p. 3.B-46)

Public Transit Delay (p. 3.B-52)



The department uses a quantitative threshold of significance and qualitative criteria to determine whether the project would substantially delay public transit. For individual Muni routes, if the project would result in transit delay greater than equal to four minutes, then it might result in a significant impact.96



Footnote 96:  

96 The threshold uses the adopted the Transit First Policy, City Charter section 8A.103 85 [sic--should be 8A.103 (c)1--aj], percent on-time performance service standard for Muni, with the charter considering vehicles arriving more than four minutes beyond a published schedule time late.



It is critically important to understand the meaning and (mis)interpretation of the citation of SF Charter's MUNI 85% on-time performance standard.  The critical language in  City Charter 8A.103 (c)1 is as follows:

1. On-time performance: at least 85 percent of vehicles must run on-time, where a vehicle is considered on-time if it is no more than one minute early or four minutes late as measured against a published schedule that includes time points



The draft SEIR engages in an egregiously unsupported case of overreach. The SEIR reinterprets the MUNI 4-minute lateness standard to allow the Reservoir Project itself to independently contribute an additional 4 minutes of transit delay before the Project's impact "might" be considered significant.



Example:  The 43 line runs on a 12 minute headway.  A four-minute Project-related contribution to delay added to a  City Charter defined 4-minute late standard for a MUNI line's on-time performance would create an eight-minute delay.   So, for the 43 line, instead of a 12-16 wait, the Project interprets that a wait of 16-20 minutes at Kahlo/Ocean (City College Bookstore time point) is acceptable and less-than-significant.  



NO! It is NOT OK to consider this to be non-significant.  



The City Charter’s Section 8A.103 (c)1 does not authorize the Project to impose an additional Reservoir-related 4 minutes of delay at the City College Bookstore time point.



The SEIR’s self-defined threshold of significance would grant the Project the privilege of doubling the lateness standard relative to the MUNI schedule from 4 minutes to 8 minutes.  



This violates both the language and intent of City Charter  Article VIIIA’s Section on Service Standards and Accountability--8A.103 (c)1.



The draft SEIR is fundamentally flawed in highjacking and misapplying the SFMTA/MUNI 4-minute lateness standard.  The 4-minute lateness standard is relative to MUNI schedules.  The Project's self-entitled contribution of an additional 4-minutes of lateness to transit delay is neither permitted or acceptable--by law, legislative intent, and especially by common sense--in City Charter VIIIA.  This constitutes a fundamentally arbitrary and capricious arrogation of authority to substantively and substantially worsen transit reliability for the  broader public.  



There is no substantive rationale to justify a 4-minute contribution by the Project to transit delay.  



There is no substantial evidence--if any evidence at all-- to permit the Reservoir Project to consider its own 4-minute delay standard to be non-significant.

******************



Impact Evaluation

Existing plus Project



Impact TR-4: Operation of the proposed project would not substantially delay public transit. (Less than Significant)



Transit Delay

Developer’s Proposed Option (p. 3.B-74)



As shown in Table 3.B-18, vehicle and transit trips generated by the Developer’s Proposed Option would increase transit delay by a maximum of 73 seconds along Frida Kahlo Way (southbound direction, weekday p.m. peak hour), a maximum of 100 seconds along Ocean Avenue (westbound direction, weekday p.m. peak hour), and a maximum of 81 seconds along Geneva Avenue (westbound direction, weekday p.m. peak hour). The majority of the transit delay increase is attributable to the increase in passenger boarding delay resulting from the project-generated transit riders. The Developer’s Proposed Option would not create additional transit reentry delay during the a.m. or p.m. peak hours.



The Developer’s Proposed Option would not result in transit delay greater than or equal to four minutes. Therefore, the Developer’s Proposed Option would result in a less-than-significant impact related to transit delay.



The Additional Housing Option would not result in transit delay greater than or equal to four

Minutes. 123   Therefore, the Additional Housing Option would result in a less-than-significant

impact related to transit delay.  [FOOTNOTE 123 refers back to Footnote 122 which then refers to Fire Code 503.2.1 which has nothing to do with transit delay.—aj]





RESERVOIR-RELATED DELAY FOR 43 MASONIC

The SB Kahlo figures of 73 sec (for Option 1), and 83 sec (for Option 2 are presented in the SEIR as the applicable 43 delay between Judson and Ocean.



These figures fail to reflect the Transit Delay for the 43 route segment between CCSF Bookstore (Ocean) to Balboa Park Station (Geneva/San Jose).  This route segment is located in the Area Plan area and must be included to properly assess Reservoir-related delay for the 43 Masonic.



In order to reflect the full effect of Reservoir-related delay in the Balboa Park Station Area Plan area, another 42 seconds (using Table 3.B-18 Transit Delay Analysis) for the 43’s EB Geneva segment  must be added to the 73 seconds cited by the SEIR. So instead of just 73 seconds of delay, Reservoir-related delay totals 115 seconds (1.9 min) of for Option 1.



For Option 2, the 43’s delay (using Table 3.B-18 Transit Delay Analysis) should be the sum of SB Kahlo (83 sec) and EB Geneva (58 sec), which totals 141 seconds (2.4 min) of Reservoir-related delay in the BPS Area Plan area.



The scheduled running time between Monterey/Gennessee to Balboa Park Station is 7 minutes.



Option 1’s “ Project-Related Increase in Delay” of 115 seconds (1.9 minutes) represents a 27.4%  increase in travel time for the 7-minute running time segment.between Monterey/Gennessee and Balboa Park Station.  



Option 2’s contribution of 141 seconds (2,4 minutes) of Reservoir-related delay represents a 33.6% increase in travel time over the scheduled 7 minute running time between Monterey/Gennessee to Balboa Park Station.



A 115-141 second delay for this  short 43 segment (from Monterey/Gennessee to BP Station) is substantial.  it is NOT insignificant as the SEIR purports.  Only with willful disregard for reality could a 27.4% to 33.6% increase in travel time be considered less than significant.



Relative to the City Charter-mandated MUNI on-time standard of 4 minutes:



· Option 1’s 115 second contribution to MUNI delay constitutes 48.0% of the 4 minutes of lateness allowed the SB 43 at the Geneva/San Jose time point;

· Option 2’s 141 second contribution to MUNI delay constitutes 58.8% of the 4 minutes of lateness allowed the SB 43 at the Geneva/San Jose time point.



Unless willfully blind, a 48.0% or a 58.8% contribution towards a 4-minute late standard is SIGNIFICANT.



The way that the SEIR tries to evade this problem of objectively contributing significantly towards MUNI’s 4-minute standard is ingenious.



Incorporating Footnote 96 on p. 3.B-52, the SEIR, insinuating City Charter and “quantitative” authority, proclaims:



The department uses a quantitative threshold of significance and qualitative criteria to determine

whether the project would substantially delay public transit. For individual Muni routes, if the

project would result in transit delay greater than equal to four minutes, then it might result in a

significant impact.





[bookmark: _GoBack]The SEIR blows open a gigantic hole of an extra four minutes for itself before a delay “might” (!!)  be significant.  But contrary to the Project's arrogation to itself of a four-minute privilege to hold up MUNI before its contribution to delay counts to be significant, the City Charter citation of a 4 minute is relative to the MUNI schedule--not relative to the Reservoir Project SEIR's own standard.



So, the "less-than significant impact" to transit delay is a result of an inappropriate definition and standard of "transit delay."  



I discuss this in more detail in my 9/5/2019 submission “INAPPROPRIATE SEIR DEFINITION OF TRANSIT DELAY”.  Please refer to it.

******************************************

City College Terminal

Given the considerations described above, the Developer’s Proposed Option and Additional Housing Option would have a less-than-significant impact on transit delay.

Mitigation: None required.



The TR-4 section ends with the pronouncement of less-than-significant impact requiring no mitigation.  This overall TR-4 conclusory statement misleadingly follows and is slid into a section that actually discusses City College Terminal.



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



*************************

Comparison of Impact TR-4 to PEIR Impact Analysis (p. 3.B-77)

As discussed in SEIR Section 3.B.3, Summary of Balboa Park Station Area Plan PEIR TransportationSection, p. 3.B-1, under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario, ….. Project operation would result in a less-than significant impact related to public transit. Therefore, the proposed project would not have any new or substantially more severe effects than those identified in the PEIR.



The statements that “Project operation would result in a less-than-significant impact related to public transit.  Therefore, the proposed project would not have any new or substantially more severe effects than those identified in the PEIR” is unsupported by anything contained in SEIR 3.B.3. It appears out of thin air.  In fact, 3.B.3 states the opposite:



· Transit

Significant transit impacts were also identified under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario on the K

Ingleside line and at Ocean Avenue/Geneva Avenue/Frida Kahlo Way and the new Geneva

Avenue/I-280 NB Off-Ramp and Geneva Avenue/I-280 SB On-Ramp intersections.



Furthermore, the claimed L-T-S impact of the Introductory paragraph for this section is contradicted once again in the body on p. 3.B-78:

· The PEIR identified significant impacts to transit delay under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario and project-level analysis of 1150 Ocean Avenue (former Kragen Auto Parts site).



The introductory paragraph expresses a desired outcome of less–than- significant impact on public transit in the form of an unsupported assertion/conclusion.  The SEIR is deficient by making unsupported conclusions.



********************************

Operation of the Balboa Reservoir Project would result in a less-than-significant impact related to

transit delay. Therefore, the proposed project would not have any new or substantially more-severe

effects than those identified in the PEIR related to transit delay impacts.



This concluding paragraph for TR-4 is nothing but a claim unsupported by evidence.  It’s a tautology:  The Reservoir Project results in less-than-significant impact on transit delay………Therefore (?!!) it will not have new transit delay impacts.  



Where is the logic in this conclusion?!!!



The SEIR Significance Criteria states:  

The guidelines implementing CEQA direct that this determination be based on scientific and factual data, including the entire record for the project, and not on argument, speculation, or unsubstantiated evidence.



SEIR’s determination of less-than-significant impact on transit delay (TR-4)  is not based on the standard of substantial evidence.  Rather it is based on tautology.  FAIL…FUBAR!  



This SEIR does not qualify for certification.



Submitted by:  

Alvin Ja
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The SEIR's "less-than-significant" determination requiring "no mitigation" is not
supported by a more comprehensive analysis of the information.
 
Please do not just rubber-stamp this fatally flawed SEIR.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
 
--Alvin Ja 
 
 
 

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

·         Cause substantial additional VMT or substantially inducing additional automobile
travel by increasing physical roadway capacity in congested areas (i.e., by adding new
mixed-flow travel lanes) or by adding new roadways to the network;...

·         Result in a loading deficit and the secondary effects would create potentially
hazardous conditions for people walking, bicycling, or driving; or substantially delay public
transit

Despite the fact that the Lee Extension would induce "additional
automobile travel by increasing physical roadway capacity in a
congested area" and would substantially delay many MUNI lines on
Ocean Avenue, no mention is made here regarding impacts on these
significance criteria.  (And as mentioned before, the PEIR had already
rejected a Lee Extension from being included in the BPS program-level
FEIR because its adverse impact on transit.  The PEIR's discussion
regarding the Lee Extension is brought up in 3.B.3.  Yet, its relevance
and applicability to the Reservoir Project's Lee Extension is omitted.)

********************************



 

Operational Impacts (p. 3.B-46)

Public Transit Delay (p. 3.B-52)

 

The department uses a quantitative threshold of significance and qualitative criteria to
determine whether the project would substantially delay public transit. For individual Muni routes,
if the project would result in transit delay greater than equal to four minutes, then it might result in
a significant impact.96

 
Footnote 96:  

96 The threshold uses the adopted the Transit First Policy, City Charter section 8A.103 85 [sic--should be 8A.103 (c)1--aj],
percent on-time performance service standard for Muni, with the charter considering vehicles arriving more than four minutes
beyond a published schedule time late.

 

It is critically important to understand the meaning and (mis)interpretation of the
citation of SF Charter's MUNI 85% on-time performance standard.  The critical
language in  City Charter 8A.103 (c)1 is as follows:

1. On-time performance: at least 85 percent of vehicles must run on-time, where a vehicle is considered
on-time if it is no more than one minute early or four minutes late as measured against a published
schedule that includes time points

 

The draft SEIR engages in an egregiously unsupported case of overreach. The SEIR
reinterprets the MUNI 4-minute lateness standard to allow the Reservoir Project itself
to independently contribute an additional 4 minutes of transit delay before the
Project's impact "might" be considered significant.

 

Example:  The 43 line runs on a 12 minute headway.  A four-minute Project-related
contribution to delay added to a  City Charter defined 4-minute late standard for a
MUNI line's on-time performance would create an eight-minute delay.   So, for the 43
line, instead of a 12-16 wait, the Project interprets that a wait of 16-20 minutes at
Kahlo/Ocean (City College Bookstore time point) is acceptable and less-than-
significant. 

 

NO! It is NOT OK to consider this to be non-significant. 

 

The City Charter’s Section 8A.103 (c)1 does not authorize the Project to impose an
additional Reservoir-related 4 minutes of delay at the City College Bookstore time



point.

 

The SEIR’s self-defined threshold of significance would grant the Project the privilege
of doubling the lateness standard relative to the MUNI schedule from 4 minutes to 8
minutes. 

 

This violates both the language and intent of City Charter  Article VIIIA’s Section on
Service Standards and Accountability--8A.103 (c)1.

 

The draft SEIR is fundamentally flawed in highjacking and misapplying the
SFMTA/MUNI 4-minute lateness standard.  The 4-minute lateness standard is
relative to MUNI schedules.  The Project's self-entitled contribution of an
additional 4-minutes of lateness to transit delay is neither permitted or
acceptable--by law, legislative intent, and especially by common sense--in City
Charter VIIIA.  This constitutes a fundamentally arbitrary and capricious
arrogation of authority to substantively and substantially worsen transit
reliability for the  broader public. 

 

There is no substantive rationale to justify a 4-minute contribution by the
Project to transit delay. 

 

There is no substantial evidence--if any evidence at all-- to permit the Reservoir
Project to consider its own 4-minute delay standard to be non-significant.

******************

 

Impact Evaluation

Existing plus Project

 

Impact TR-4: Operation of the proposed project would not substantially delay
public transit. (Less than Significant)

 

Transit Delay

Developer’s Proposed Option (p. 3.B-74)



 

As shown in Table 3.B-18, vehicle and transit trips generated by the Developer’s Proposed
Option would increase transit delay by a maximum of 73 seconds along Frida Kahlo Way
(southbound direction, weekday p.m. peak hour), a maximum of 100 seconds along Ocean
Avenue (westbound direction, weekday p.m. peak hour), and a maximum of 81 seconds along
Geneva Avenue (westbound direction, weekday p.m. peak hour). The majority of the transit delay
increase is attributable to the increase in passenger boarding delay resulting from the project-
generated transit riders. The Developer’s Proposed Option would not create additional transit
reentry delay during the a.m. or p.m. peak hours.

 

The Developer’s Proposed Option would not result in transit delay greater than or equal to four
minutes. Therefore, the Developer’s Proposed Option would result in a less-than-significant
impact related to transit delay.

 

The Additional Housing Option would not result in transit delay greater than or equal to four

Minutes. 123   Therefore, the Additional Housing Option would result in a less-than-significant

impact related to transit delay.  [FOOTNOTE 123 refers back to Footnote 122 which then refers
to Fire Code 503.2.1 which has nothing to do with transit delay.—aj]

 

 

RESERVOIR-RELATED DELAY FOR 43 MASONIC

The SB Kahlo figures of 73 sec (for Option 1), and 83 sec (for Option 2 are presented
in the SEIR as the applicable 43 delay between Judson and Ocean.

 

These figures fail to reflect the Transit Delay for the 43 route segment between CCSF
Bookstore (Ocean) to Balboa Park Station (Geneva/San Jose).  This route segment is
located in the Area Plan area and must be included to properly assess Reservoir-
related delay for the 43 Masonic.

 

In order to reflect the full effect of Reservoir-related delay in the Balboa Park Station
Area Plan area, another 42 seconds (using Table 3.B-18 Transit Delay Analysis) for
the 43’s EB Geneva segment  must be added to the 73 seconds cited by the SEIR.
So instead of just 73 seconds of delay, Reservoir-related delay totals 115 seconds
(1.9 min) of for Option 1.

 

For Option 2, the 43’s delay (using Table 3.B-18 Transit Delay Analysis) should be
the sum of SB Kahlo (83 sec) and EB Geneva (58 sec), which totals 141 seconds
(2.4 min) of Reservoir-related delay in the BPS Area Plan area.



 

The scheduled running time between Monterey/Gennessee to Balboa Park Station is
7 minutes.

 

Option 1’s “ Project-Related Increase in Delay” of 115 seconds (1.9 minutes)
represents a 27.4%  increase in travel time for the 7-minute running time
segment.between Monterey/Gennessee and Balboa Park Station. 

 

Option 2’s contribution of 141 seconds (2,4 minutes) of Reservoir-related delay
represents a 33.6% increase in travel time over the scheduled 7 minute running
time between Monterey/Gennessee to Balboa Park Station.

 

A 115-141 second delay for this  short 43 segment (from Monterey/Gennessee to BP
Station) is substantial.  it is NOT insignificant as the SEIR purports.  Only with willful
disregard for reality could a 27.4% to 33.6% increase in travel time be considered
less than significant.

 

Relative to the City Charter-mandated MUNI on-time standard of 4 minutes:

 

·         Option 1’s 115 second contribution to MUNI delay constitutes 48.0% of the 4
minutes of lateness allowed the SB 43 at the Geneva/San Jose time point;

·         Option 2’s 141 second contribution to MUNI delay constitutes 58.8% of the 4
minutes of lateness allowed the SB 43 at the Geneva/San Jose time point.

 

Unless willfully blind, a 48.0% or a 58.8% contribution towards a 4-minute late
standard is SIGNIFICANT.

 

 

The way that the SEIR tries to evade this problem of objectively contributing
significantly towards MUNI’s 4-minute standard is ingenious.

 

Incorporating Footnote 96 on p. 3.B-52, the SEIR, insinuating City Charter and
“quantitative” authority, proclaims:



 

The department uses a quantitative threshold of significance and qualitative criteria to determine whether
the project would substantially delay public transit. For individual Muni routes, if the project would result in
transit delay greater than equal to four minutes, then it might result in a significant impact.

 

 

The SEIR blows open a gigantic hole of an extra four minutes for itself before a delay
“might” (!!)  be significant.  But contrary to the Project's arrogation to itself of a four-
minute privilege to hold up MUNI before its contribution to delay counts to be
significant, the City Charter citation of a 4 minute is relative to the MUNI schedule--not
relative to the Reservoir Project SEIR's own standard.

 

So, the "less-than significant impact" to transit delay is a result of an inappropriate
definition and standard of "transit delay." 

 

I discuss this in more detail in my 9/5/2019 submission “INAPPROPRIATE SEIR
DEFINITION OF TRANSIT DELAY”.  Please refer to it.

******************************************

City College Terminal

Given the considerations described above, the Developer’s Proposed Option and
Additional Housing Option would have a less-than-significant impact on transit
delay.

Mitigation: None required.

 

The TR-4 section ends with the pronouncement of less-than-significant impact
requiring no mitigation.  This overall TR-4 conclusory statement misleadingly follows
and is slid into a section that actually discusses City College Terminal.

 

This concluding determination regarding TR-4 Transit Delay is invalid for the
reasons already presented above:

 

The SEIR is egregiously deficient in formulating its less-than-significant
determination of the Project’s contribution to transit delay: 



·         It omits applicability of the PEIR’s analysis of the Lee Extension
causing significant impact;

·         It arrogation of a four-minute Project-related delay standard is
based on misapplication of City Charter 8A.103 (c)1 whose 4-minute
standard is relative to the MUNI schedule;

·         In the example of the 43 Masonic, the SEIR’s fails to account for
the route segment between CCSF Bookstore and Balboa Park Station,
thus grossly lowballing the Project’s contribution to transit delay.

·         The Kittelson Travel Demand Memo and Kittelson Transit Delay
Memo fail to evaluate EB left turns at Brighton.  It fails to assess the
(high--aj) probability that BR residents will turn left at Brighton, cut
through Whole Foods ingress/egress, and then turn left again onto
Lee.

 

Finally, the TR-4 determination fails the substantial evidence standard of the
Significance Criteria:

The guidelines implementing CEQA direct that this determination be based on scientific and factual data,
including the entire record for the project, and not on argument, speculation, or unsubstantiated evidence.

 

*************************

Comparison of Impact TR-4 to PEIR Impact Analysis (p. 3.B-77)

As discussed in SEIR Section 3.B.3, Summary of Balboa Park Station Area Plan PEIR
TransportationSection, p. 3.B-1, under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario, ….. Project operation
would result in a less-than significant impact related to public transit. Therefore, the proposed
project would not have any new or substantially more severe effects than those identified in the
PEIR.

 

The statements that “Project operation would result in a less-than-significant impact
related to public transit.  Therefore, the proposed project would not have any new or
substantially more severe effects than those identified in the PEIR” is unsupported
by anything contained in SEIR 3.B.3. It appears out of thin air.  In fact, 3.B.3 states
the opposite:

 

·         Transit

Significant transit impacts were also identified under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario on the K

Ingleside line and at Ocean Avenue/Geneva Avenue/Frida Kahlo Way and the new Geneva



Avenue/I-280 NB Off-Ramp and Geneva Avenue/I-280 SB On-Ramp intersections.

 

Furthermore, the claimed L-T-S impact of the Introductory paragraph for this section
is contradicted once again in the body on p. 3.B-78:

·         The PEIR identified significant impacts to transit delay under the 2025 with Area Plan scenario and
project-level analysis of 1150 Ocean Avenue (former Kragen Auto Parts site).

 

The introductory paragraph expresses a desired outcome of less–than-
significant impact on public transit in the form of an unsupported
assertion/conclusion.  The SEIR is deficient by making unsupported
conclusions.

 

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

 

This concluding paragraph for TR-4 is nothing but a claim unsupported by evidence. 
It’s a tautology:  The Reservoir Project results in less-than-significant impact on transit
delay………Therefore (?!!) it will not have new transit delay impacts. 

 

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

 

SEIR’s determination of less-than-significant impact on transit delay (TR-4)  is
not based on the standard of substantial evidence.  Rather it is based on
tautology.  FAIL…FUBAR! 

 



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
Subject: FW: Support 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 8:42:18 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Guy Carson <guy@urbangroupsf.com> 
Sent: Saturday, September 07, 2019 7:02 PM
To: MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Board of Supervisors, (BOS)
<board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; officeofcannabis@sf.gov.org; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Horn, Jeffrey (CPC) <jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>
Cc: 258NoeStore@gmail.com
Subject: Support 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
 

 

Dear SF Planning Department and District Supervisor Mandelman,

I’m writing to ask for your yes vote on the Conditional Use request for a cannabis
retail store at 258 Noe Street scheduled for hearing on September 19, 2019.  

 

My name is Guy Carson. I formerly owned the Cafe DuNord at 2170 Market Street 
(about a block away from 258 Noe Street) and have been involved with the
merchants of upper Market and the Castro for many years. I support a well-
run Cannabis retail store at Noe and Market for I know it will positively impact a
neighborhood in need of new and more frequent shoppers by boosting commercial
diversity; namely, a needed cannabis destination.

 

My support for this project derives from my personal experience with Terrance and
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his investor/partners.  I have personally known Terrance for many years and have
engaged with him in many different settings and capacities - on the Board of the
California Music and Culture Association, as President of the Entertainment
Commission, countless neighborhood meetings, ad-hoc tasks forces and in various
business associations. In my opinion he belongs to a rather small class of what I call
“Enlightened Entrepreneurs.” He loves this City and is highly invested in the health
and well-being of its local culture. In his 20 plus years of advocacy, he has provided
fair and reasoned leadership, and has always been willing to put his money on the
table for the greater good of the community. 

 

Terrance Alan and Focus 415 Capital Investments Group have a long history in
cannabis advocacy and legislation. Terrance distinguished himself as Chairperson of
the SF Cannabis Task force and was pivotal in helping to establish the Office of
Cannabis and the Equity Program of San Francisco.  

 

Frankly, I can’t think of a more qualified candidate for this CUP than Terrance and
Company. They will be excellent operators, great neighbors and community partners
too.

 

Please register my support. I urge you to vote “Yes” for a cannabis retail store at 258
Noe Street.

 

Sincerely,

 

Guy Carson

Resident at Large                                                

415-420-8048



 
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
Subject: FW: IMPORTANT: Support 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 8:42:07 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Clemetine Clarke <clemclarke1@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, September 08, 2019 7:46 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Horn, Jeffrey (CPC)
<jeffrey.horn@sfgov.org>; MandelmanStaff, [BOS] <mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org>; Board of
Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Office of Cannabis (ADM)
<officeofcannabis@sfgov.org>; 285NoeStore@gmai.com
Cc: 285NoeStore@gmail.com
Subject: IMPORTANT: Support 258 Noe Street Retail Cannabis Case # 2018-002060CUA
 

 

Dear SF Planning Department and District Supervisor Mandelman,

My name is Clem Howard and I am writing to ask for your “yes” vote on the Conditional Use
request for a cannabis retail store at 258 Noe Street scheduled for hearing on September 19,
2019.  Cannabis retail at 258 Noe will be a positive impact on the surrounding businesses,
bringing new and much needed shoppers, add heightened security, offer good paying jobs and
give a boost to the commercial diversity of the Upper Market and Castro areas. 

 As a resident here in San Francisco, I know that Terrance Alan (whom I’ve known for well over 17
years) and his team will follow through on their commitments. I trust Terrance and I want to see 258
Noe Street cannabis open because I believe that they will revive that area by providing jobs and they
will give back to the surrounding community by supporting local events and good causes through
their philanthropic initiatives
 
Also, my support for this project comes from my personal experience with Terrance and his
investor/partners.  I’ve seen his commitment to an inclusive family, diverse community and City, his
hands-on knowledge of operating a small business in San Francisco and his positive role in the three-
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year civic conversation that resulted in the establishment of the Office of Cannabis and the Equity
Program of San Francisco.
 

For your edification, the store is owned by the equity applicant, Terrance Alan and Focus 415
Capital Investments Group, a small group of investors each with a long history in cannabis,
social advocacy, and business.  The renovations proposed will strip back decades of ugly
exterior “modernization” and sensitively house a modern retail operation inside tastefully
updated Victorian era storefront.   

Please register my support and I urge your vote “Yes.”
 

Sincerely,

Clem Howard

September 8, 2019
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
Sent: Monday, September 09, 2019 7:42 AM
To: Kaitlin Roth <kroth@pradogroup.com>
Cc: Zushi, Kei (CPC) <kei.zushi@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
Board of Supervisors, (BOS) <board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org>; Gibson, Lisa (CPC) <lisa.gibson@sfgov.org>;
Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>
Subject: Re: Support the 3333 California Proposed Development - Planning Commission Hearing Tomorrow
9/5
 

 

Good morning Kaitlin, its Monday, Sept 9, 2019. I'm responding to your email of (9/4/2019)- 
below. I'm a native San Franciscan. Seventy five plus years.Own a home here in the city,
district 7. I attempted to sign this petition. I did not know it was so complicated, it did not
accept me. I do not use Facebook and the other social media, which I guess makes me the
minority. But again I did attend the full 9/5/2019 meeting. It was a bit longer than my
schedule allowed. Was there an extension for this DEIR Certification (30 days)? I had
originally requested for a hard copy of the DEIR, only because the online doc seems to
consistently crash my system. Either way I'm still trying for a copy of this doc, however I'm in
full support of this project. From what I was able to see online, it's another fine job by the SF
Planning Department. Here are my personal comments and response to the DEIR. Sorry for
my rambling email.
 
Other than asking for a quick turn around for this project. We need housing, this project has
done a grand job with the housing issue/s and open space. Great community out reach. I
could not had asked for anything more from this project. I often shopped around the Laurel
Village and miss several retailers that have since gone and currently leaving. With all the
opposition and delays I can see why we can't get there fast enough. Need to certify this
before the State and or the Feds get involved with more delays. Simply put, after eight years
of reviewing and commenting on these DEIRs this is one of the projects that exceeds its
scope of most of the DEIRs that I have personally commented on with my opinions. Enough
said, lets move on.  
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Please use my email in full support of the project at the next hearing and my input for this
project. I may also add some additional comments in support if there is another hearing. But
rest assure, you have my support. I have also cc'd the Board of Supervisors, the Planning
Commission if this comes up again and Mr. Zushi referencing this Project.
 
If you have any questions or concerns to my email, please feel free to chime back to me.
 
Best, Dennis
 
    -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 
On Wednesday, September 4, 2019, 5:33:47 PM PDT, Kaitlin Roth <kroth@pradogroup.com> wrote:
 
 

Good Evening,

 

 

Thank you for your support of the 3333 California proposed development.  We request that you please consider
further showing your support by signing the petition linked below and attending the Planning Commission hearing
tomorrow as well.

 

 

Show up and speak.  The Planning Commission Hearing is on 9/5/2019 at 3 pm at
San Francisco City Hall (1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 400). We would
ideally like our supporters and public speakers to show up early (around 2:45
pm) to secure a seat in the main hall and turn in your public comment card. We are
first on the agenda, and we expect public comment to start around 3:30
pm.  Sample support talking points will be shared with you in advance. Please provide
us with your best email and cell # (for timing update texts) to stay connected on the
day of the hearing.  If you are able to join, we would be grateful for your willingness to
engage in the public process!

 
Sign the support petition.  This link is to our Petition Page to show public support.
Please visit https://www.causes.com/campaigns/923904-build-the-proposed-3333-
california-st-development  and sign the petition.  YOU CAN forward this link to invite
your other friends and supporters to do the same.  

 

Thank you again for your support.  We look forward to seeing you tomorrow!

 

 

 

Regards,

mailto:kroth@pradogroup.com
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.causes.com_campaigns_923904-2Dbuild-2Dthe-2Dproposed-2D3333-2Dcalifornia-2Dst-2Ddevelopment&d=DwMGaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=LhkH6JGD2hQnBbE0sUGmL084Jtz85qiJ8TbYfsEK3Tg&m=cVO5JXXDLy2_MULHaOeorDwDlWR713IzRu50FLddeek&s=i-vwzECxPbffPbM7ahniFfeKB4D04DKDcO_-hJISmtw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.causes.com_campaigns_923904-2Dbuild-2Dthe-2Dproposed-2D3333-2Dcalifornia-2Dst-2Ddevelopment&d=DwMGaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=LhkH6JGD2hQnBbE0sUGmL084Jtz85qiJ8TbYfsEK3Tg&m=cVO5JXXDLy2_MULHaOeorDwDlWR713IzRu50FLddeek&s=i-vwzECxPbffPbM7ahniFfeKB4D04DKDcO_-hJISmtw&e=


 

Kaitlin

 

 

 

Kaitlin Roth

Investor Relations and Project Coordinator

Prado Group, Inc.

150 Post Street, Suite 320

San Francisco, CA 94108

kroth@pradogroup.com

T: 415.857.9322 | C: 209.756.5702

www.PradoGroup.com

 

This message contains information which may be confidential and privileged.  Unless you are the addressee (or
authorized to receive for the addressee), you may not use, copy or disclose to anyone the message or any
information contained in the message.  If you have received the message in error, please advise the sender by
reply kroth@pradogroup.com, and delete the message.  Thank you very much.

 

mailto:kroth@pradogroup.com
http://www.pradogroup.com/
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
Subject: FW: Opposition letters, 1025 Howard Street project
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 8:40:40 AM
Attachments: SOMCAN Statement on 1025 Howard St_PC .pdf

BEC 1025 Howard Street Opposition Letter (SF Planning) .pdf
JWJ-1025Howard-5-20-19 .pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Cynthia Gómez <cgomez@unitehere2.org> 
Sent: Friday, September 06, 2019 5:12 PM
To: Samonsky, Ella (CPC) <ella.samonsky@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>;
Son, Chanbory (CPC) <chanbory.son@sfgov.org>
Subject: Opposition letters, 1025 Howard Street project
 

 

Hello Ms. Samonsky, Mr. Ionin, and Ms. Son,
 
I wanted to pass along these letters of opposition to the proposed hotel at 1025 Howard Street. I
believe they're already in the file, but could you kindly forward them on to the Planning
Commissioners? 
 
Thank you,

--
Cynthia Gómez
Senior Research Analyst
UNITE/HERE, Local 2
209 Golden Gate Avenue
San Francisco, CA 94102
cgomez@unitehere2.org
415.864.8770, ext. 763

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
mailto:cgomez@unitehere2.org
tel:415.864.8770
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May	
  20,	
  2019	
  
	
  
San	
  Francisco	
  Planning	
  Commission	
  
City	
  Hall,	
  1	
  Dr.	
  Carlton	
  B.	
  Goodlett	
  Place	
  
San	
  Francisco,	
  CA	
  94102	
  
	
  
	
  
Re: 1025 Howard Street 
	
  
 
Dear Commissioners, 
 
We are writing to express opposition to the proposed 1025 Howard Street project, an eight-story, 
170 room hotel located between 6th and 7th Streets on Howard. 
 
This project will cast new shadows on Gene Friend Recreation Center (Gene Friend). The 
quantitative findings of the shadow analysis explain that there is a +0.31% annual increase in 
shade that would occur for six (6) months out of the year for an average of 1 hour and 17 minutes 
(and up to 1 hour and 43 minutes from June-July). Areas of Gene Friend affected by new shadow 
include the	
  basketball	
  court,	
  playground,	
  bleachers/benches, and grassy area.  
 
Gene Friend is the only recreation center in the entire South of Market and contains a 0% 
shadow tolerance for new shadows. Gene Friend is heavily used by all community members,	
  
especially	
  children,	
  youth,	
  and	
  families	
  and	
  is	
  utilized	
  by	
  several	
  youth-­‐serving	
  
neighborhood	
  organizations.	
  Further,	
  District 6 has the least amount of open space per-capita 
in the city	
  while	
  at	
  the	
  same	
  time	
  absorbing	
  80%	
  of	
  all	
  new	
  development. It is unacceptable 
that any new project encroach on the very limited public open space that exists in the South of 
Market, of which Gene Friend is a vital component of. Further, it is unclear how this project is 
able to move forward when it is creating shadow impacts on a Rec Center that has a zero percent 
shadow budget. 
 
This project is located within the SOMA Youth and Family Special Use District which was 
created in 2008 to protect and enhance the health and environment of youth and families in the 
South of Market, especially through the provision of affordable housing. Hotel uses go against 
the goals of the Youth and Family Special Use District. The area where the project is proposed is 
a residential area of the South of Market and hotel uses are inappropriate. The dividing line for 
hotel uses in the South of Market is 5th street - this line should be kept and the residential areas 
of the neighborhood must be respected. 
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There are also traffic and safety concerns related to this project	
  regarding	
  the	
  use	
  of	
  Uber,	
  Lyft,	
  
and	
  other	
  TNCs by those who stay at the hotel, and the use of surrounding	
  streets for deliveries 
to the hotel. The South of Market neighborhood already has an extremely high rate of pedestrian 
and bicycle injuries, and these dangers will only be exacerbated by this project. 
 
We urge the Planning Commission to stand with neighbors and vote NO on this project. 
What is needed in this area of the South of Market is affordable housing and affordable 
nonprofit/commercial space, not luxury hotels. The proposed hotel, located within the Youth and 
Family Special Use District, does not serve the people that live in the immediate area and 
negatively impacts their quality of life by shadowing a nearby Rec Center and increasing traffic 
hazards. 
 
Sincerely, 
 


  
 
Angelica Cabande 
Organizational Director 
South of Market Community Action Network (SOMCAN) 
 
	
  













	


	
Jobs with Justice San Francisco 
209 Golden Gate Avenue 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Tel: (415) 967-3710    Email: solidarity@jwjsf.org    Web: www.jwjsf.org 


 
Executive Board 
 
Guillermina 
Castellanos 
La Colectiva De 
Mujeres 
 
Ian Lewis 
Unite Here Local 2 
 
Conny Ford 
SF Clout 
 
Roberto Eligio Alfaro 
HOMEY 
 
Sarah Jarmon 
Senior and Disability 
Action 
 
Annelisa Luong 
Chinese Progressive 
Association 
 
Jane Martin 
SEIU United Service 
Workers West 
 
Ramsés Teón-Nichols 
SEIU Local 1021 
 
Neva Walker 
Coleman Advocates 
for Children and 
Youth 
 
California Nurses 
Association 
 
Javier Bremond 
Community Housing 
Partnership 
 
Anabel Ibañez	
United Educators of 
San Francisco	


Sheila R. Tully 
California Faculty 
Association 
 
Keane Chukwuneta 
National Union of 
Healthcare Workers


 
 
 
20 May 2019 
 
Ella Samonsky 
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street, 4th floor 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
RE: Proposed hotel, 1025 Howard Street 


 
Dear Ms. Samonsky: 


On behalf of Jobs with Justice San Francisco, a long term alliance of 30 labor and 
community groups in the city, I am writing to join the opposition of many neighbors, 
labor, and community organizations and express strong opposition to the proposed 
hotel project at 1025 Howard Street.  


The neighborhood needs affordable housing, affordable office space for nonprofits, and 
open space. A hotel is not an appropriate project for a residential neighborhood in the 
middle of the Youth and Family Special Use District.  


Shadow on public space. This proposed hotel would cast a shadow on the Gene Friend 
Recreation Center, the only recreation center in SOMA. The SOMA neighborhood has 1 
percent of the open space in the entire city. With so few parks in SOMA, and so many 
residents living in SROs or other cramped apartments with no access to open space, 
park access is critical. The quantitative findings of the shadow analysis explain that there 
would be a +0.31% annual increase in shade that would occur for six months out of the 
year for an average of 1 hour and 17 minutes (and up to 1 hour and 43 minutes from 
June-July). Areas of Gene Friend affected by new shadow include the basketball court, 
playground, bleachers/benches, and grassy area. It’s not clear why the proposed hotel 
has been allowed to advance to this point given that Gene Friend has a “shadow 
budget” of zero new net shadow. 


We need affordable space. This proposed hotel is neither necessary nor desirable for 
the neighborhood. SOMA is experiencing rapid development and displacement of its 
working-class families. The neighborhood desperately needs affordable housing and 
affordable space for neighborhood-serving organizations.  
 
Unfair traffic & safety burden. The traffic and safety impacts would also be heavy. The 
two intersections nearest the hotel were rated at service levels “D” and “F.” Then there 
will be traffic from the development in the Central SOMA plan; the Uber and Lyft trips 
that the hotel would generate; and the blocking of Harriet Street due to hotel deliveries 
– all this in a neighborhood that already has a very high rate of pedestrian and bicycle 
injuries. This is an unfair and inequitable burden for our seniors and children. 
 
 







We urge the Recreation and Parks Commission to reject this project on the basis of its potential 
shadow impacts, and we urge the Planning Commission to reject this project's approvals. We 
would welcome any proposed project that would truly serve the neighborhood and the 
community by increasing affordable housing, space for nonprofit organizations and/or open 
space.  


 
Sincerely, 
 


 
 
Tracey Brieger 
Campaign Director 


 
 


cc San Francisco Recreation and Park Commission (via email to recpark.commission@sfgov.org) 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







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
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED AND CITY ATTORNEY DENNIS HERRERA ON CITY’S

HISTORIC OFFER TO PURCHASE PG&E EQUIPMENT IN SAN FRANCISCO
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 8:40:25 AM
Attachments: 09.09.19 PGE Statement.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Sunday, September 08, 2019 7:04 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON N. BREED AND CITY ATTORNEY DENNIS HERRERA ON
CITY’S HISTORIC OFFER TO PURCHASE PG&E EQUIPMENT IN SAN FRANCISCO
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Sunday, September 9, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 
 

*** STATEMENT***
 

MAYOR LONDON N. BREED AND CITY
ATTORNEY DENNIS HERRERA ON CITY’S

HISTORIC OFFER TO PURCHASE PG&E
EQUIPMENT IN SAN FRANCISCO

 
San Francisco, CA— Mayor London N. Breed and City Attorney Dennis Herrera issued the
following statement outlining details of the City’s competitive offer to purchase PG&E
electricity assets—an idea supported by an overwhelming majority of San Francisco
residents:
 
“The City and County of San Francisco has taken an important step toward energy
independence by submitting an official offer letter to Pacific Gas and Electric Company
(PG&E) of $2.5 billion for the acquisition of electric distribution and transmission assets that
serve San Francisco. Following PG&E’s bankruptcy protection filing in January, the City

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



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR  LONDON N. BREED 
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
     
 


 


1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 
 


 


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
following statement outlining details of the City’s competitive offer to purchase PG&E electricity 
assets—an idea supported by an overwhelming majority of San Francisco residents: 
 
“The City and County of San Francisco has taken an important step toward energy independence 
by submitting an official offer letter to Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) of $2.5 billion 
for the acquisition of electric distribution and transmission assets that serve San Francisco. 
Following PG&E’s bankruptcy protection filing in January, the City began a study to consider 
the feasibility of purchasing PG&E infrastructure. This marks the culmination of months of hard 
work from the City and its advisors on that effort.  
 
Our offer to PG&E is the result of detailed financial analysis conducted by industry experts and 
encompassing an extensive examination into the company’s assets in San Francisco. The offer 
we are putting forth is competitive, fair and equitable. It will offer financial stability for PG&E, 
while helping the City expand upon our efforts to provide reliable, safe, clean and affordable 
electricity to the residents and businesses of San Francisco. It also considers equity for PG&E’s 
remaining customers and the City’s responsibility for ongoing costs. 
 
We look forward to positive, collaborative discussions with PG&E on this critical issue. 
Throughout this process we will protect the best interests of our City as we strive toward the 
independent energy future that San Francisco deserves.”   
 
 


### 
 





		FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:

		*** STATEMENT***

		###







began a study to consider the feasibility of purchasing PG&E infrastructure. This marks the
culmination of months of hard work from the City and its advisors on that effort.
 
Our offer to PG&E is the result of detailed financial analysis conducted by industry experts
and encompassing an extensive examination into the company’s assets in San Francisco. The
offer we are putting forth is competitive, fair and equitable. It will offer financial stability for
PG&E, while helping the City expand upon our efforts to provide reliable, safe, clean and
affordable electricity to the residents and businesses of San Francisco. It also considers equity
for PG&E’s remaining customers and the City’s responsibility for ongoing costs.
 
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
Subject: FW: Final DR arguments: 33 Capra Way -2018-001940DRP-02
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 8:40:13 AM
Attachments: 33 CapraMF-DRarg.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Franco Maurice <maurice1950@comcast.net> 
Sent: Sunday, September 08, 2019 10:58 AM
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
Cc: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Winslow, David (CPC) <david.winslow@sfgov.org>
Subject: Final DR arguments: 33 Capra Way -2018-001940DRP-02
 

 

Dear Commissioners,
 
I just reviewed the package prepared by SF Planning for the hearing that is to occur on September 12
via the link available on Planning’s web site.
 
On August 21, I submitted to Planning my updated DR arguments. 
They seem to inadvertently be missing from the package so I am forced to send it to you
individually. 
 
This document should replace my initial and preliminary DR Package dated May 2019:
 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration and understanding,
 
 

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/



Arguments supporting M, Franco's
Request for Discretionary Review


in opposition of,


3 3 Capra Way


Building Permit ApPlication No.
2018.0601 .0822


Project Application Record No.
201 8-001 940PRJ


August ?0, 2O19







Section 7 - Reasons for DRrequest


I. HISTORIC RELEVANCE OF THE FAEADE


L. Integrity


This buildingmeets all of the integrity criteria: location, design, setting materials,
workmanship, feeling and association (Tim Kelley Consulting,9 /LB).
It has remained unaltered since its construction in !926, with the exception of a


sunroom addition in 1933.


2. Evaluation of Historic Status


According to the Planning Department Preservation Team review, this building falls


into Category A and is an eligible historic resource under Criterian 1 and 3
(Allison Vanderslice, t0 /5 /LB).
We argue that it also meets CriterionZ, since Frank D. Fragale (a famous BA opera


composer) lived in the property.


3. The subject building is a contributor to the Marina Corporation Histaric
Districtby the following character defining features:


a. Two story single-family residence
b. Mediterranean Revival architectural style
c. Prominence of smooth and textured stucco and red clay tile roof


materials
d. Wood-sash multi-light windows in arched or rectangular punched


openings
e. Curvilinear and diagonal layout of streets


fExhibit #1J


4. This building, although modest in architectural significance, is one of the few
H.C. Bauman authentic Marina bungalows, circa 1926,that remain in the
district.
In addition, 33 Capra with adjacent 39 Capra, represent a rare example of
"twin bung alows" (Exhibit # 1).


5. The "Year Built" map of the area, further attests to the homogenous and
coherent character of the area surrounding the subject property fExhibit #2J.


Neither design nor materials of the proposed project respect the historic
importance of the fagade.
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Section 7 - Reasons for DR reqaest


II. PROIECT IS OUT OF SCALE IN HEIGHTAND BULK


The traditional pattern of the Marina architecture involves 4 or 5 stories htgh
corner apartment buildings and 2 to 3 stories,lower scale buildings, in between'


The proposed four-story conversion of this classic Marina Bungalow would be


precedent setting for further similar development with the gradual loss of this


unique neighborhood-defining pattern (Exhibits #3 & 4).


Here is depiction of "corner" (RED) versus "mid block" (BLACKJ, expressed in
square footage and number of units (Exhibit #5J'


This is in direct contradiction with Section IV of the Residential Design Guidelines,


which states that:
" If a proposed building is taller than surrounding buildings, or a new floor (in this
case floorsJ is added to an existing building, it may be necessary to modify the
building height or depth to maintain existing scale at the street. By making these


modifications, the visibility of the upper floor (floorsJ is limited from the street, and


the upper floor ffloorsJ appears subordinate to the primary fagade. The key is to
design a building that complements other buildings on the block and does not stand


out, even while displaying an individual design."


These guidelines were not followed in the proposed proiect.
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Section 7 - Reasons for DR reqaest


III. INACURATE REAR YARD AVEMGING


In the plans approved by the SF Planning department, inaccurate measurements
were used for rear yard averaging.


At the time of our DR application, irrefutable photographic evidence of this fact was


provided to the planner in the case. The information was then transmitted to the
sponsor.


I believe that the most recent plans have cotected this issue'


9







Section 2 - Unreasonable impact


I. REDUCTION OF THE MIDBLOCK OPEN SPACE


Block 0463A of the Marina is a wide, irregular trapezoid.
It comprises Capra to the West, Alhambra to the East, Mallorca to the North and


Pierce to the South.


This diagram clearly depicts, a block with a strong mid-block open space.


The only exception is the building at 25 Capra, circa L927 (Exhibit #6).


Section IV of the Residential Design Guidelines, subsection Building Scale at the Mid-
Block Open Space section, states the height and depth of a proposed building
expansion, even when permitted, may not be appropriate if they are


uncharacteristically deep or tall (Exhibit #7).


These guidelines were not abserved in the proposed proiecL
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Section 2 - Unreasonable impact


II, MAJOR LIGHT AND AIR IMPACT-


L. The proposed project will be adf acent to a L7-unit apartment building at 25


Capra way. Currently, there are 1"5 unobstructed windows facing South in
this building that provide mid day and afternoon light to half of its units.
The proposed projectwill block 700o/o of the light and airfrom 9 of these
windows [Exhibit #B & 9).


?. on the other flank, the proposed proiect is next to its twin bungalow.
The two bungalows have a shared light well that provides the only source of
light for rhe kitchens (Exhibit #10).
The proposed projectwould turn the kitchen in 39 Capra into a cave.


3. The height and bulk of the proposed design will block the morning light and


cast significant shadows on 'l-0,39,45,49 and 51 Capra.


The Residential Design Guidelines recommend the following design modifications to
mitigate significant light and air interference: setbacks on the upper floors,
incorporation of sloped roof form, shared light wells, etc.


The only allowance in the proposed project is a 77 foot shared light well with 2 5
Capra which is 2 feet smaller than the existing one.
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Section 2 - Unreasonable impact


III. PRIVACY IMPACT OF A FOURTH FLOOR ROOF DECK


The Marina is a dense urban neighborhood where most homes are attached.
Roof decks pose privary issues for the surrounding neighbors.


Roof decks have been uncommon in the history of the Marina'
In the last seven years they started to proliferate at an exponential rate, in number
and in size (Exhibit #11).


A fourth floor roof deck is out of scale because, in the Marina, most four-floor
buildings do not have roof decks. Most of the roof decks are found on three story
buildings.


Let's remember that roof decks are permanent amenities that, due to the San


Francisco weather, are used less than l\o/a of a calendar year.


The proposed roof deck would create privacy invasion, visual clutter and noise
intrusion. The requirement of a penthouse staircase for accessing a fourth floor roof
deck adds to the unnecessary bulk and mass of the proposed building.


The proposed fourth floor roof deck represents an element that will get little use


batwill unnecessarily increase the price of the unit.
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Section 3 - Alternative or changes thatwould respond to the
exceptional and extraordinary circumstances and reduce the
adverse effects noted in Sections 7 & 2:


1. Preserve the historic fagade, restoring and enhancing its intrinsic
original features.


2. Incorporate 1,?-faot front setbacks to any additional floor.


3. Incorporate 3-foot side setbacks between 33 and 25 Capra.


4. Building not to exceed three stories.


5. Eliminate the fourth floor roof deck.


6. Preserve the shared light well between 33 and 39 Capra.


Respectfully submitted.
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Maurice Franco
maurice1950@comcast.net
221+219 Mallorca Way
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Hub Plan DEIR Comments
Date: Monday, September 09, 2019 8:40:00 AM
Attachments: 2019 HVNA HUB DEIR Comments.pdf

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
From: Jason M Henderson <Jhenders@sonic.net>
Sent: Monday, September 09, 2019 7:10 AM
To: White, Elizabeth (CPC) <elizabeth.white@sfgov.org>; Rahaim, John (CPC) <john.rahaim@sfgov.org>;
Langlois, Lily (CPC) <lily.langlois@sfgov.org>
Cc: Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; kathrin Moore <mooreurban@aol.com>; Melgar, Myrna
(CPC) <myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; richhillissf@gmail.com; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>; Haney,
Matt (BOS) <matt.haney@sfgov.org>; Brown, Vallie (BOS) <vallie.brown@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Mandelman, Rafael (BOS) <rafael.mandelman@sfgov.org>
Subject: Hub Plan DEIR Comments

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Mrs White, Director Rahaim, San Francisco Planning Commission, and Supervisors Brown, Haney, and
Mandelman,

Please find attached Hayes Valley NA Transportation and Planning Committee's Comments on the Hub DEIR.
Comments are due today at 5pm.

thank you

-jh

--
Jason Henderson
San Francisco CA
94102

mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org



 
 


 
 
 
 
September 9th 2019  
 
Elizabeth White 
Senior Environmental Planner 
SF Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street Suit 400 
San Francisco CA  94103 
elizabeth.white@sfgov.org  
 
 
Re: DEIR Hub Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue, 98 Franklin Street, & Hub Housing 
Sustainability Project  
 
 
Dear Mrs. White, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft EIR for the Hub. Several members of 
HVNA provided comments at the Planning Commission hearing on August 29th.  These are 
HVNA Transportation and Planning Committee’s written comments regarding the adequacy of 
the EIR. We also provide mitigations that strengthen the Hub plan and reduce harmful impacts.  
 
Transportation and Circulation (Section 3.B) 
 
The baseline existing conditions on traffic reported in the DEIR (p.3.B.8) are worse than this 
document reveals, and this means there is an incomplete picture of the chronic congestion that 
starts in the am peak, peaks multiple times during the day, and lasts much longer than the pm 
peak defined in the DEIR.  
 
The Planning Department 2019 guidelines for transportation impacts acknowledge that different 
periods might need to be studied, but this DEIR studies only the PM peak.  


 
For example the DEIR does not acknowledge the westbound congestion on Haight and Page 
Streets at the Octavia Boulevard. This traffic is coming from the direction of the HUB plan area 
and 98 Franklin, and is congested morning, evening, and weekends. It has a significant impact on 
pedestrians and cyclists, as well as transit.  
 



mailto:elizabeth.white@sfgov.org





 
 


Acknowledging this traffic is important because it can help determine mitigations such as 
restricting private car access on these streets, which were not intended to carry these large 
volumes of freeway-bound traffic.  
 
The report also undercounts pedestrian and cycling volumes because it misses the AM peak (3.B 
15 – 19 & 3.B-22).  The AM peak volumes of cycling are higher and especially concentrated, 
whereas the PM peak is more spread-out and dispersed.  
 
Transit Delay: Why are the Haight Street buses (6 & &) omitted from the study? (p. 3.B-71). 
These are important buses that carry thousands of passengers through the Hub daily.  


Vehicle Miles Traveled  
 
The DEIR concludes (p. 3.B-10) the Hub “would not cause substantial additional VMT” or 
induce automobile travel.  This conclusion is based on using a threshold of significance of 14.5 
miles/day to analyze per capita daily vehicle miles travel (VMT). 
 
Consider that a round trip car ride from 1 South Van Ness to Cow Palace, on the far outer edge 
of San Francisco, is 13 miles. A driver could commute that far each day and not be considered in 
this study.  The Chase Arena in Mission Bay is 5 miles round trip. The De Young Museum in 
Golden Gate Park is 6-miles round.  Someone could drive round trip to these locations twice and 
not be included in this study.  Tens of thousands of short round trip driving trips such as these 
examples are incredibly significant and must be mitigated, but the threshold does not capture 
them.   
 
Based on Table 3.B-8, the DEIR shows significant increased person trips by car (about 6,500 
during PM peak and almost 30,000 daily) created by the project. It assumes most of those trips 
would be within the city. For per capita VMT, many of these trips would likely add up to under a 
per capita of 14.5 miles. The DEIR projects up to 30 percent more traffic volume on some streets 
(3.B-50) – How much of this congestion is from car trips under per capita 14.5?  The DEIR also 
acknowledges significant  particulate air pollution from traffic and suggests mitigation by 
reducing vehicle trips – yet is vague on how (suggested mitigations are offered below).  None of 
this is captured in mitigation discussion because the VMT threshold is too high (14.5 miles per 
day). 


The analysis also leaves out TNC VMT. There are many short TNC trips and the DEIR does not 
account for TNC deadheading or the distances TNCs travel from outside of the city.   
 
The tolerance for additional VMT in the Hub is zero. Therefore the proper threshold of 
significance for this analysis should reflect 1 VMT per capita. (3-B).  The city can decide how to 
analyze VMT impacts and the selection of a high, suburban standard does not fit in the dense 
urban core. By using the Bay Area per capita VMT, the department misses an opportunity for 
stronger mitigations of traffic and fails to understand the impact of short car trips and TNC trips 
– which is significant and harmful for cycling, walking, and transit, as well as Pm 2.5 particulate 
pollution.  
 







 
 


HVNA recommends specific mitigations for traffic impacts: 
 


1) Rapid deployment of the proposal to restrict private automobiles on Market Street 
between 11th and 12th Street, and extending the restrictions west to Gough Street. Do not 
wait years to implement this.  Do it now as preemptive mitigation for the Hub.  
 


2) Conversion of 12th Street between Market and Mission/Van Ness into a car-free street 
 


3) Deployment of traffic control personnel at chronically blocked pedestrian crossings such 
as Franklin/Page/Market to ensure pedestrians can safely cross streets.  
 


4) Restrictions on private auto access at 98 Franklin to avoid traffic caused by students 
being dropped off or picked up by car.  
 


5) Metering (using traffic signals) of private car and truck traffic through this area to avoid 
congestion and hazardous impacts on cyclists, pedestrians, and transit passengers 


 
 
 
Commercial and passenger loading (TR-8)  
 
E-commerce and TNC loading impacts are acknowledged to be  significant, and city reports have 
shown TNCs are causing major congestion and traffic safety hazards. Yet in transport impact 
TR-8 (pp. 3.B-84-85) the DEIR declares that “there is no feasible mitigation to reduce this 
impact.” This is not true and some ideas for mitigation are provided below.  


HVNA recommends specific mitigations for loading impacts: 
 


1) Geo fencing TNCs and e-commerce delivery vehicles to ensure that the dense 
residential district is not swarmed by thousands of additional vehicles every day.  
 


2) Provision of a ‘break-bulk’ transfer staging station under the Central Freeway to shift 
deliveries from large, bulky vans and trucks to a fleet of cargo bicycles or small push 
carts.  
 


3) Provision of curbside taxi stands and loading areas on the perimeter of the residential 
district, with one to the south of the district (perhaps on South Van Ness) and one to 
the north of the district on Franklin and Oak Streets.  


 
Construction Management (Impact TR-1) (p. 3.B-54) 
 
The construction management plan should dovetail with the Better Market Street Plan to restrict 
cars on Market between 11th and 12th Streets (and extend west to Gough).  


 







 
 


HVNA’s Transportation & Planning Committee respectfully asks that these mitigations be 
included in the Final EIR in order to address impacts of private car traffic, e-commerce delivery, 
TNCs.  
 
 
Sincerely,   
 
 
 
Jason Henderson  
Chair, Transportation & Planning Committee   
Hayes Valley Neighborhood Association 
300 Buchanan Street, #503 
San Francisco, CA 
94102 
(415)-255-8136 
Jhenders@sonic.net  
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED SWEARS IN 84 APPOINTED COMMISSIONERS
Date: Friday, September 06, 2019 2:14:00 PM
Attachments: 09.06.19 Commissioners.pdf

Commissioners.JPG

 
 
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
Sent: Friday, September 06, 2019 1:22 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED SWEARS IN 84 APPOINTED
COMMISSIONERS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, September 6, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED SWEARS IN 84 APPOINTED

COMMISSIONERS
Appointees bring broad range of experience and expertise to City commissions and boards,

reflect Mayor Breed’s commitment to diversity in City government
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today held a ceremonial swearing-in for 84
commissioners she has appointed or re-appointed to various City commissions and boards. To
date, Mayor Breed has appointed or re-appointed 159 commissioners representing a wide
variety of backgrounds, expertise, and lived experiences, a reflection of Mayor Breed’s
commitment to equitable representation and diversity in City government.
 
“These commissioners and board members are tasked with not only addressing some of the
most important issues facing our City, but also identifying challenges we will face in the
future,” said Mayor Breed. “In order to effectively do this, we need to make sure that all San
Franciscans are represented, which is why we have appointed qualified, committed individuals
who represent the diversity of San Francisco.”
 

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


date, Mayor Breed has appointed or re-appointed 159 commissioners representing a wide variety 


of backgrounds, expertise, and lived experiences, a reflection of Mayor Breed’s commitment to 


equitable representation and diversity in City government.  


 


“These commissioners and board members are tasked with not only addressing some of the most 


important issues facing our City, but also identifying challenges we will face in the future,” said 


Mayor Breed. “In order to effectively do this, we need to make sure that all San Franciscans are 


represented, which is why we have appointed qualified, committed individuals who represent the 


diversity of San Francisco.” 


 


Of Mayor Breed’s 159 appointees, over 50% are women and a majority are people of color. In 


total, 15 commissioners are from the LGBT community, including 11 that were appointed or re-


appointed today.  


 


“San Francisco has been my home for over 13 years. It has saved my life, shown me the value in 


paying it forward and has never failed at keeping me on my toes. I’m honored and very excited 


to be given this opportunity to serve my community even more. It’s the least I can do for a city 


that has given me so much,” said Adrian Caratowsa, Transbay Citizens’ Advisory Committee 


Member. 


 


“I am grateful to Mayor Breed for the appointment as a Southeast Facility Commissioner. With 


over 30 years of experience in education, I am proud to be collaborating with the City to expand 


my efforts on serving our communities. I hope this will not only benefit our residents within the 


Southeast neighborhoods, but also everyone in San Francisco,” said Marlene Tran, Southeast 


Facility Commissioner.   


 


“I am thrilled to serve the City of San Francisco and bring my legal experience to the Board of 


Appeals. I want to thank Mayor Breed for the opportunity, and I am proud to be part of the 


diverse group of Commissioners who are working to move our city forward,” said Eduardo 


Santacana, Board of Appeals Member. “This Board hears difficult cases of the utmost 
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SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


importance to citizens of our city. As a lawyer, I will strive in every case to ensure each party 


receives a fair hearing, and to apply the law faithfully.” 


 


A full list of City commissions and their responsibilities can be found at 


https://sf311.org/services/centralized-commission-database 


 


Full list of commissioners sworn-in today: 


 


Janet Spears, Aging and Adult Services Commission 


Paul Woolford, Arts Commission 


Michele Anderson, Ballot Simplification Committee 


Eduardo Santacana, Board of Appeals Commission 


Mollie Matull, Children, Youth and Their Families Oversight and Advisory Committee 


Siobhan McHugh, Citizen's General Obligation Bond Oversight Committee 


Elizabeth Salveson, Civil Service Commission 


Jacqueline Minor, Civil Service Commission 


Bivett Bracket, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure 


Mara Rosales, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure 


Heather Stephenson, Commission on the Environment 


Mike Sullivan, Commission on the Environment 


Debbie Mesloh, Commission on the Status of Women 


Andrew Cheng, Eastern Neighborhoods Citizens Advisory Committee 


Ben Bleiman, Entertainment Commission 


Claudine Cheng, Film Commission 


Jon Rubin, Film Commission 


Kate Black, Historic Preservation Commission 


Darpun Sachdev, HIV Community Planning Council 


Helen Lin, HIV Community Planning Council 


Irma Parada, HIV Community Planning Council 


Juba Kalamka, HIV Community Planning Council 


Michelle Spence, HIV Community Planning Council 


Mike Shriver, HIV Community Planning Council 


Ney Nascimento, HIV Community Planning Council 


Wayne Rafus, HIV Community Planning Council 


James Loduca, Human Rights Commission 


Joseph Sweiss, Human Rights Commission 


Mark Kelleher, Human Rights Commission 


Helen Pelzman, Mayor's Disability Council 


Lily Marshall-Fricker, Mayor's Disability Council 


Stephen Herman, Mayor's Disability Council 


Tiffany Yu, Mayor's Disability Council 


Yoyo Chan, Mission Bay Citzens Advisory Committee 


Amanda Eaken, Municipal Transportation Agency 


Steve Heminger, Municipal Transportation Agency 


Frank Fung, Planning Commission 



https://sf311.org/services/centralized-commission-database





OFFICE OF THE MAYOR   LONDON N.  BREED  
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
     
 


 


1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


Sophie Maxwell, Public Utilities Commission 


Tim Paulson, Public Utilities Commission 


Malik Wade, Reentry Council 


Sheenia Branner, Reentry Council 


Dave Crow, Rent Board Commission 


Reese Isbell, Rent Board Commission 


David Wasserman, Rent Board Commission 


Fala Satele, Southeast Community Facility Commission 


Marlene Tran, Southeast Community Facility Commission 


Susan Murphy, Southeast Community Facility Commission 


Adrian Caratowsa, Transbay Citizens Advisory Committee 


Gabriella Folino, Transbay Citizens Advisory Committee 


Michael Sizemore, Transbay Citizens Advisory Committee 


Ike Kwon, Treasure Island Development Authority 


Ruby Bolaria, Treasure Island Development Authority 


Ikram Mansori, Veterans Affairs Commission 


Jeff Marshall, Veterans Affairs Commission 


Myles Tucker, Veterans Affairs Commission 


Raymond Wong, Veterans Affairs Commission 


Belva Davis, War Memorial Board of Trustees 


Stanlee Gatti, War Memorial Board of Trustees 


Thomas Horn, War Memorial Board of Trustees 


Alex Randolph, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Andrew Lindsay, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Angela Tamayo, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Bob Nibbi, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Brian Morton, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Charley Lavery, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Edward Battista, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Jeanine Cotter, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Jeffrey Chiu, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


John Doherty, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Jorge Tapia, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Julie Fallon, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Kevin Carroll, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Paul Giusti, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Ramon Hernandez, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Ruben Santana, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Sam Rodriguez, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Theresa Woo, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Vikrum Aiyer, Workforce Investment San Francisco 


Alexander Hirji, Youth Commission 


Arianna Nassiri, Youth Commission 


Arsema Asfaw, Youth Commission 


Nora Hylton, Youth Commission 
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Sarah Ginsburg, Youth Commission 


Stephen "Rocky" Versace, Youth Commission 


 


### 


 











Of Mayor Breed’s 159 appointees, over 50% are women and a majority are people of color. In
total, 15 commissioners are from the LGBT community, including 11 that were appointed or
re-appointed today.
 
“San Francisco has been my home for over 13 years. It has saved my life, shown me the value
in paying it forward and has never failed at keeping me on my toes. I’m honored and very
excited to be given this opportunity to serve my community even more. It’s the least I can do
for a city that has given me so much,” said Adrian Caratowsa, Transbay Citizens’ Advisory
Committee Member.
 
“I am grateful to Mayor Breed for the appointment as a Southeast Facility Commissioner.
With over 30 years of experience in education, I am proud to be collaborating with the City to
expand my efforts on serving our communities. I hope this will not only benefit our residents
within the Southeast neighborhoods, but also everyone in San Francisco,” said Marlene Tran,
Southeast Facility Commissioner.  
 
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
Cc: CTYPLN - SENIOR MANAGERS; CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; STACY, KATE (CAT); YANG, AUSTIN (CAT);

JENSEN, KRISTEN (CAT)
Subject: CPC Calendars for September 12, 2019
Date: Friday, September 06, 2019 12:47:11 PM
Attachments: 20190912_cal.docx

20190912_cal.pdf
Advance Calendar - 20190912.xlsx
CPC Hearing Results 2019.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for September 12, 2019.
 
Enjoy the weekend,
 
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
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[bookmark: _GoBack]Notice of Hearing
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Agenda





Commission Chambers, Room 400

City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place

San Francisco, CA 94102-4689



Thursday, September 12, 2019

1:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting



Commissioners:

Myrna Melgar, President

Joel Koppel, Vice President

Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson, 

Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



Commission Secretary:

Jonas P. Ionin





Hearing Materials are available at:

Website: http://www.sfplanning.org

Planning Department, 1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor, Suite 400

Voice recorded Agenda only: (415) 558-6422





Commission Hearing Broadcasts:

Live stream: http://www.sfgovtv.org

Live, Thursdays at 1:00 p.m., Cable Channel 78

Re-broadcast, Fridays at 8:00 p.m., Cable Channel 26







Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

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

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.

 

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance. 



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing to help ensure availability. 



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.



CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的

至少48個小時提出要求。



TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 



RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания. 





ROLL CALL:		

[bookmark: _Hlk429617]		President:	Myrna Melgar		Vice-President:	Joel Koppel

		Commissioners:                	Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson, 

			Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards



A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



1.	2015-006825CUA	(V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173)

367 HAMILTON AVENUE – between Burrows and Bacon Streets; Lot 022 of Assessor’s Block 5987 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to allow demolition of an existing 950 square foot single-family home and unauthorized dwelling unit and new construction of a three-story 3,115 square foot single-family home with an Accessory Dwelling Unit on the ground floor per Ordinance 95-17. The project site is located within a RH-1 (Residential, House – One Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

(Continued from Regular hearing on July 11, 2019)

(Proposed Continuance to November 7, 2019)



B.	CONSENT CALENDAR 



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing



2.	2019-005613CUA	(K. PHUNG: (415) 558-6373)

382 21ST AVENUE – south side between Geary Boulevard and Clement Street; Lot 022 of Assessor’s Block 1452 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 712, to establish a Service, Instructional Use (dba Dance Training Center/San Francisco) within a 6,979 square foot second floor and mezzanine level of an existing vacant space most recently used as a Retail Sales Use within a NC-3 (Neighborhood Commercial, Moderate Scale) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. Only interior tenant improvements are proposed to the second floor and mezzanine for the new dance studio facilities. No exterior modifications are proposed to the building and there are no proposed modifications to the existing 1st floor commercial space. This project was reviewed under the Community Business Priority Processing Program (CB3P). This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



3.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for August 29, 2019



4.	Commission Comments/Questions

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Planning Commission.


D.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



5.	Director’s Announcements



6.	Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic Preservation Commission

	

E.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment may be moved to the end of the Agenda.



F. REGULAR CALENDAR  



The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



7.	2016-004403CUA	(S. YOUNG: (415) 558-6346)

2222 BROADWAY – north side between Webster and Fillmore Streets, Lot 070 in Assessor’s Block 0564 (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 178(e)(2), 209.1, and 303 to increase the enrollment cap for an existing school, Schools of the Sacred Heart (Broadway campus), with a student enrollment increase from 850 to 1050 students and an increase in the number of faculty and staff from 200 to 205. The proposal will involve modifying conditions of a prior Conditional Use Authorization under Case No. 1999.217C (Motion No. 16082) and to legalize the continued operation of the school with this current range of student enrollment. No physical alterations to the existing school buildings and surrounding sidewalks and streets are proposed. The Project Site is located within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



8.	2018-011446CUA	(X. LIANG: (415) 575-9182)

[bookmark: _Hlk15314708]399 FREMONT STREET – north side of Fremont Street between Folsom Street and Harrison Street; Lot 320 in Assessor’s Block 3747 (District 6) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 827.37, to allow the conversion of a portion of the existing accessory parking garage for the residential units to an “Automobile Parking Garage, Community Commercial” use for a total of 30 parking spaces within a RH DTR (Rincon Hill Downtown Residential) Zoning District and 85/400-R Height and Bulk District. Currently, the project site contains a 37-story residential building with 448 dwelling units and 251 accessory off-street parking spaces. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 

Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions



G. [bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR  



The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors.



9.	2017-006245DRP	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

50 SEWARD STREET – between 19th and Douglass Streets; Lot 024A in Assessor’s Block 2701 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2017.0419.4301 for construction of a horizontal front addition and a third-story vertical addition to an existing two-story two-family house within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve

(Continued from Regular hearing on August 29, 2019)

Note: On June 6, 2019, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to July 18, 2019 by a vote of +5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent).

On July 18, 2019, without hearing, continued to August 29, 2019 by a vote of +5 -0 (Richards, Hillis absent).

On August 29, 2019, without hearing, continued to September 12, 2019 by a vote of +5 -0 (Johnson and Richards absent).



10.	2018-006557DRP-02	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

20 INVERNESS DRIVE – between Sloat Boulevard and Ocean Avenue; Lot 023 in Assessor’s Block 7210 (District 7) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.0403.5346 for construction of a 774 s.f. 3rd- story vertical addition to an existing 2-story single-family dwelling within a RH-1 (Residential-House, One Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve



11.	2018-001940DRP-02	(D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159)

33 CAPRA WAY – between Mallorca and Pierce Streets; Lot 032 in Assessor’s Block 0463A (District 2) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2018.0601.0822 for construction of a 2- story vertical addition and 17’ deep horizontal rear addition to an existing 2-story single-family dwelling to create a 3 family dwelling within a RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve



H. 2:30 P.M.

Items listed here may not be considered prior to the time indicated above. It is provided as a courtesy to limit unnecessary wait times. Generally, the Commission adheres to the order of the Agenda. Therefore, the following item(s) will be considered at or after the time indicated.

	

12.	2018-007883ENV	(J. POLING: (415) 575-9072)

BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT – (Assessor’s Block 3180, Lot 190) – Public Hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact Report. The 17.6-acre project site is the western portion (the “lower basin”) of the Balboa Reservoir located west of City College and north of Ocean Avenue in the Balboa Park Station Plan Area. The publicly owned project site currently functions as a surface vehicle parking lot. Two different options for the site’s residential density are under consideration: (1) the Developer’s Proposed Option (1,100 dwelling units), proposed by Reservoir Community Partners LLC; and (2) the Additional Housing Option (1,550 dwelling units), proposed by the City. Overall, the proposed project would construct up to approximately 1.8 million gross square feet of uses, including between approximately 1.3 and 1.5 million gross square feet of residential space, approximately 10,000 gross square feet of community space, approximately 7,500 gross square feet of retail, up to 550 residential parking spaces and 750 public parking spaces in the Developer’s Proposed Option, and up to 650 residential parking spaces in the Additional Housing Option. The buildings would range in height from 25 to 78 feet in the Developer’s Proposed Option and from 25 to 88 feet in the Additional Housing Option. Approximately 4 acres would be devoted to publicly accessible open space. The project site is located in a Public (P) Zoning District and 40-X and 65-A Height and Bulk Districts. 

NOTE: Written comments will be accepted at the Planning Department until 5:00 p.m. on September 23, 2019.

Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment



ADJOURNMENT


Hearing Procedures

The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair.

3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers.

4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing.

7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it.

8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three (3) minutes.

9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.

10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff.

2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor.

3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each.

4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors.

5. Testimony by members of the public in support of the project would be up to three (3) minutes each.

6. DR requestor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

7. Project sponsor(s) or their designees are given two (2) minutes for rebuttal.

8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings.



The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed.



Hearing Materials

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part of the public record for any public hearing. 



Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing.



Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary (commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record.



These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission.



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.  



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Office Allocation

		OFA (B)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit Development

		CUA (C)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Building Permit Application (Discretionary Review)

		DRP/DRM (D)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		EIR Certification

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Coastal Zone Permit

		CTZ (P)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Planning Code Amendments by Application

		PCA (T)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Variance (Zoning Administrator action)

		VAR (V)

		10 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Large Project Authorization in Eastern Neighborhoods 

		LPA (X)

		15 calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown Residential Districts

		DNX (X)

		15-calendar days

		Board of Appeals



		Zoning Map Change by Application

		MAP (Z)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors







* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision letter.



**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184. 



An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code

If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision.



Protest of Fee or Exaction

You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.   



The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun.
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
Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity. For more information about 
the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 
252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics. 
  
Accessible Meeting Information 
Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at 
the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  
 
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
 
Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, real time captioning, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or 
other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 72 hours in 
advance of the hearing to help ensure availability.  
 
Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (415) 558-6309, or 
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. 
 
Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings. 
 
SPANISH: Agenda para la Comisión de Planificación. Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato 
para asistencia auditiva, llame al 415-558-6309. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia. 
 
CHINESE: 規劃委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電415-558-6309。請在聽證會舉行之前的 
至少48個小時提出要求。 
 
TAGALOG: Adyenda ng Komisyon ng Pagpaplano. Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig 
(headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa 415-558-6309. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga  (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.  
 
RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по планированию. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым 
устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру 415-558-6309. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов 
до начала слушания.  



mailto:sotf@sfgov.org

http://www.sfbos.org/sunshine

http://www.sfgov.org/ethics

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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ROLL CALL:   
  President: Myrna Melgar 


 Vice-President: Joel Koppel 
  Commissioners:                 Frank Fung, Rich Hillis, Milicent Johnson,  
   Kathrin Moore, Dennis Richards 
 
A. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE 
 


The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may 
choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or 
to hear the item on this calendar. 
 
1. 2015-006825CUA (V. FLORES: (415) 575-9173) 


367 HAMILTON AVENUE – between Burrows and Bacon Streets; Lot 022 of Assessor’s Block 
5987 (District 9) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code 
Sections 303 and 317 to allow demolition of an existing 950 square foot single-family 
home and unauthorized dwelling unit and new construction of a three-story 3,115 square 
foot single-family home with an Accessory Dwelling Unit on the ground floor per 
Ordinance 95-17. The project site is located within a RH-1 (Residential, House – One 
Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the 
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
(Continued from Regular hearing on July 11, 2019) 
(Proposed Continuance to November 7, 2019) 
 


B. CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the 
Planning Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or 
staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing 


 
2. 2019-005613CUA (K. PHUNG: (415) 558-6373) 


382 21ST AVENUE – south side between Geary Boulevard and Clement Street; Lot 022 of 
Assessor’s Block 1452 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to 
Planning Code Sections 303 and 712, to establish a Service, Instructional Use (dba Dance 
Training Center/San Francisco) within a 6,979 square foot second floor and mezzanine 
level of an existing vacant space most recently used as a Retail Sales Use within a NC-3 
(Neighborhood Commercial, Moderate Scale) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk 
District. Only interior tenant improvements are proposed to the second floor and 
mezzanine for the new dance studio facilities. No exterior modifications are proposed to 
the building and there are no proposed modifications to the existing 1st floor commercial 
space. This project was reviewed under the Community Business Priority Processing 
Program (CB3P). This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the 
purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).  
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 


 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/planning/article3zoningprocedures?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_303

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/planning/article3zoningprocedures?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_317

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2019-005613CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04
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C. COMMISSION MATTERS  
 


3. Consideration of Adoption: 
• Draft Minutes for August 29, 2019 


 
4. Commission Comments/Questions 


• Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may 
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to 
the Commissioner(s). 


• Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take 
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that 
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of 
the Planning Commission. 


 
D. DEPARTMENT MATTERS 


 
5. Director’s Announcements 
 
6. Review of Past Events at the Board of Supervisors, Board of Appeals and Historic 


Preservation Commission 
  


E. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
 


At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items.  With 
respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the 
item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to 
three minutes. When the number of speakers exceed the 15-minute limit, General Public Comment 
may be moved to the end of the Agenda. 


 
F. REGULAR CALENDAR   


 
The Commission Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; followed by the project 
sponsor team; followed by public comment for and against the proposal.  Please be advised that 
the project sponsor team includes: the sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 
expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
7. 2016-004403CUA (S. YOUNG: (415) 558-6346) 


2222 BROADWAY – north side between Webster and Fillmore Streets, Lot 070 in Assessor’s 
Block 0564 (District 2) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning 
Code Sections 178(e)(2), 209.1, and 303 to increase the enrollment cap for an existing 
school, Schools of the Sacred Heart (Broadway campus), with a student enrollment 
increase from 850 to 1050 students and an increase in the number of faculty and staff from 
200 to 205. The proposal will involve modifying conditions of a prior Conditional Use 
Authorization under Case No. 1999.217C (Motion No. 16082) and to legalize the continued 
operation of the school with this current range of student enrollment. No physical 
alterations to the existing school buildings and surrounding sidewalks and streets are 
proposed. The Project Site is located within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning 
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for 



https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/20190829_cal_min.pdf

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2016-004403CUAc1.pdf
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the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code 
Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions 
 


8. 2018-011446CUA (X. LIANG: (415) 575-9182) 
399 FREMONT STREET – north side of Fremont Street between Folsom Street and Harrison 
Street; Lot 320 in Assessor’s Block 3747 (District 6) – Request for a Conditional Use 
Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 827.37, to allow the conversion 
of a portion of the existing accessory parking garage for the residential units to an 
“Automobile Parking Garage, Community Commercial” use for a total of 30 parking spaces 
within a RH DTR (Rincon Hill Downtown Residential) Zoning District and 85/400-R Height 
and Bulk District. Currently, the project site contains a 37-story residential building with 
448 dwelling units and 251 accessory off-street parking spaces. This action constitutes the 
Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).  
Preliminary Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 


 
G. DISCRETIONARY REVIEW CALENDAR   
 


The Commission Discretionary Review Hearing Procedures provide for presentations by staff; 
followed by the DR requestor team; followed by public comment opposed to the project; followed 
by the project sponsor team; followed by public comment in support of the project.  Please be 
advised that the DR requestor and project sponsor teams include: the DR requestor and sponsor or 
their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors. 


 
9. 2017-006245DRP (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159) 


50 SEWARD STREET – between 19th and Douglass Streets; Lot 024A in Assessor’s Block 
2701 (District 8) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 
2017.0419.4301 for construction of a horizontal front addition and a third-story vertical 
addition to an existing two-story two-family house within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two 
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
Note: On June 6, 2019, after hearing and closing public comment, continued to July 18, 
2019 by a vote of +5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent). 
On July 18, 2019, without hearing, continued to August 29, 2019 by a vote of +5 -0 
(Richards, Hillis absent). 
On August 29, 2019, without hearing, continued to September 12, 2019 by a vote of +5 -0 
(Johnson and Richards absent). 
 


10. 2018-006557DRP-02 (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159) 
20 INVERNESS DRIVE – between Sloat Boulevard and Ocean Avenue; Lot 023 in Assessor’s 
Block 7210 (District 7) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application 
No. 2018.0403.5346 for construction of a 774 s.f. 3rd- story vertical addition to an existing 
2-story single-family dwelling within a RH-1 (Residential-House, One Family) Zoning 
District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for 



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-011446CUA.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2017-006245DRP-03c1.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-006557DRP-02.pdf
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the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code 
Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 


 
11. 2018-001940DRP-02 (D. WINSLOW: (415) 575-9159) 


33 CAPRA WAY – between Mallorca and Pierce Streets; Lot 032 in Assessor’s Block 0463A 
(District 2) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 
2018.0601.0822 for construction of a 2- story vertical addition and 17’ deep horizontal rear 
addition to an existing 2-story single-family dwelling to create a 3 family dwelling within a 
RH-3 (Residential-House, Three Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. 
This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, 
pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). 
Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take Discretionary Review and Approve 
 


H. 2:30 P.M. 
Items listed here may not be considered prior to the time indicated above. It is provided as a 
courtesy to limit unnecessary wait times. Generally, the Commission adheres to the order of the 
Agenda. Therefore, the following item(s) will be considered at or after the time indicated. 
  
12. 2018-007883ENV (J. POLING: (415) 575-9072) 


BALBOA RESERVOIR PROJECT – (Assessor’s Block 3180, Lot 190) – Public Hearing on the 
Draft Environmental Impact Report. The 17.6-acre project site is the western portion (the 
“lower basin”) of the Balboa Reservoir located west of City College and north of Ocean 
Avenue in the Balboa Park Station Plan Area. The publicly owned project site currently 
functions as a surface vehicle parking lot. Two different options for the site’s residential 
density are under consideration: (1) the Developer’s Proposed Option (1,100 dwelling 
units), proposed by Reservoir Community Partners LLC; and (2) the Additional Housing 
Option (1,550 dwelling units), proposed by the City. Overall, the proposed project would 
construct up to approximately 1.8 million gross square feet of uses, including between 
approximately 1.3 and 1.5 million gross square feet of residential space, approximately 
10,000 gross square feet of community space, approximately 7,500 gross square feet of 
retail, up to 550 residential parking spaces and 750 public parking spaces in the 
Developer’s Proposed Option, and up to 650 residential parking spaces in the Additional 
Housing Option. The buildings would range in height from 25 to 78 feet in the Developer’s 
Proposed Option and from 25 to 88 feet in the Additional Housing Option. Approximately 
4 acres would be devoted to publicly accessible open space. The project site is located in a 
Public (P) Zoning District and 40-X and 65-A Height and Bulk Districts.  
NOTE: Written comments will be accepted at the Planning Department until 5:00 p.m. on 
September 23, 2019. 
Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment 
 


ADJOURNMENT  



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://commissions.sfplanning.org/cpcpackets/2018-001940DRP-02.pdf

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll/California/administrative/chapter31californiaenvironmentalqualitya?f=templates$fn=default.htm$3.0$vid=amlegal:sanfrancisco_ca$anc=JD_31.04

https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents
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Hearing Procedures 
The Planning Commission holds public hearings regularly, on most Thursdays. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year 
and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.  
 
Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.  
 When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  


Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder 
sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended. 


 
Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are 
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or 
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use 
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings). 
 
For most cases (CU’s, PUD’s, 309’s, etc…) that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the 
Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue(s) by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation of the proposal by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes sponsor or their designee, lawyers, architects, 


engineers, expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed 10 minutes, unless a written request 
for extension not to exceed a total presentation time of 15 minutes is received at least 72 hours in advance of the 
hearing, through the Commission Secretary, and granted by the President or Chair. 


3. A presentation of opposition to the proposal by organized opposition for a period not to exceed 10 minutes (or a 
period equal to that provided to the project sponsor team) with a minimum of three (3) speakers.  The intent of the 10 
min block of time provided to organized opposition is to reduce the number of overall speakers who are part of the 
organized opposition.  The requestor should advise the group that the Commission would expect the organized 
presentation to represent their testimony, if granted.  Organized opposition will be recognized only upon written 
application at least 72 hours in advance of the hearing, through the Commission Secretary, the President or Chair.  
Such application should identify the organization(s) and speakers. 


4. Public testimony from proponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) 
minutes. 


5. Public testimony from opponents of the proposal:  An individual may speak for a period not to exceed three (3) 
minutes. 


6. Director’s preliminary recommendation must be prepared in writing. 
7. Action by the Commission on the matter before it. 
8. In public hearings on Draft Environmental Impact Reports, all speakers will be limited to a period not to exceed three 


(3) minutes. 
9. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
10. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened 


by the Chair; 
11. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or 


continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission. 
 
Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of 
four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any 
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members 
present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission). 
 
For Discretionary Review cases that are considered by the Planning Commission, after being introduced by the Commission 
Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order: 
 


1. A thorough description of the issue by the Director or a member of the staff. 
2. A presentation by the DR Requestor(s) team (includes Requestor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period not to exceed five (5) minutes for each requestor. 
3. Testimony by members of the public in support of the DR would be up to three (3) minutes each. 
4. A presentation by the Project Sponsor(s) team (includes Sponsor(s) or their designee, lawyers, architects, engineers, 


expediters, and/or other advisors) would be for a period up to five (5) minutes, but could be extended for a period not 
to exceed 10 minutes if there are multiple DR requestors. 



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
8. The President (or Acting Chair) may impose time limits on appearances by members of the public and may otherwise 


exercise his or her discretion on procedures for the conduct of public hearings. 
 
The Commission must Take DR in order to disapprove or modify a building permit application that is before them under 
Discretionary Review.  A failed motion to Take DR results in a Project that is approved as proposed. 
 
Hearing Materials 
Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be 
received by the Planning Department eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be 
delivered to1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) hardcopies and a .pdf copy must be 
provided to the staff planner. Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission after eight days in advance of a hearing 
must be received by the Commission Secretary no later than the close of business the day before a hearing for it to become a part 
of the public record for any public hearing.  
 
Correspondence submitted to the Planning Commission on the same day, must be submitted at the hearing directly to the 
Planning Commission Secretary. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. Correspondence submitted in any other fashion 
on the same day may not become a part of the public record until the following hearing. 
 
Correspondence sent directly to all members of the Commission, must include a copy to the Commission Secretary 
(commissions.secretary@sfgov.org) for it to become a part of the public record. 
 
These submittal rules and deadlines shall be strictly enforced and no exceptions shall be made without a vote of the Commission. 
 
Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Planning Commission, 1650 
Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to 
the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Planning Commission and made part of the official record.   
 
Appeals 
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Planning Commission 
hearing. 
 


Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body 
Office Allocation OFA (B) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals** 
Conditional Use Authorization and Planned Unit 
Development 


CUA (C) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 


Building Permit Application (Discretionary 
Review) 


DRP/DRM (D) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


EIR Certification ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Coastal Zone Permit CTZ (P) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Planning Code Amendments by Application PCA (T) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
Variance (Zoning Administrator action) VAR (V) 10 calendar days Board of Appeals 
Large Project Authorization in Eastern 
Neighborhoods  


LPA (X) 15 calendar days Board of Appeals 


Permit Review in C-3 Districts, Downtown 
Residential Districts 


DNX (X) 15-calendar days Board of Appeals 


Zoning Map Change by Application MAP (Z) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors 
 
* Appeals of Planning Commission decisions on Building Permit Applications (Discretionary Review) must be made within 15 days of 
the date the building permit is issued/denied by the Department of Building Inspection (not from the date of the Planning Commission 
hearing).  Appeals of Zoning Administrator decisions on Variances must be made within 10 days from the issuance of the decision 
letter. 
 
**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project 
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an 
Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization. 
 



mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
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For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more 
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or 
board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program application may be made to the Board of 
Supervisors within 30 calendar days after the date of action by the Planning Commission pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
328(g)(5) and 308.1(b). Appeals must be submitted in person at the Board’s office at 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244. 
For further information about appeals to the Board of Supervisors, including current fees, contact the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors at (415) 554-5184.  
 
An appeal of the approval (or denial) of a building permit application issued (or denied) pursuant to a 100% Affordable Housing 
Bonus Program application by the Planning Commission or the Board of Supervisors may be made to the Board of Appeals within 
15 calendar days after the building permit is issued (or denied) by the Director of the Department of Building Inspection. Appeals 
must be submitted in person at the Board's office at 1650 Mission Street, 3rd Floor, Room 304. For further information about 
appeals to the Board of Appeals, including current fees, contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  
 
Challenges 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, (1) the adoption or amendment of a general plan, (2) the 
adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance, (3) the adoption or amendment of any regulation attached to a specific plan, (4) 
the adoption, amendment or modification of a development agreement, or (5) the approval of a variance, conditional-use 
authorization, or any permit, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing 
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
CEQA Appeal Rights under Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code 
If the Commission’s action on a project constitutes the Approval Action for that project (as defined in S.F. Administrative Code 
Chapter 31, as amended, Board of Supervisors Ordinance Number 161-13), then the CEQA determination prepared in support of 
that Approval Action is thereafter subject to appeal within the time frame specified in S.F. Administrative Code Section 
31.16.  This appeal is separate from and in addition to an appeal of an action on a project.  Typically, an appeal must be filed 
within 30 calendar days of the Approval Action for a project that has received an exemption or negative declaration pursuant to 
CEQA.  For information on filing an appeal under Chapter 31, contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at City Hall, 1 Dr. 
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, or call (415) 554-5184.  If the Department’s Environmental Review 
Officer has deemed a project to be exempt from further environmental review, an exemption determination has been prepared 
and can be obtained on-line at http://www.sf-planning.org/index.aspx?page=3447. Under CEQA, in a later court challenge, a 
litigant may be limited to raising only those issues previously raised at a hearing on the project or in written correspondence 
delivered to the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, Planning Department or other City board, commission or 
department at, or prior to, such hearing, or as part of the appeal hearing process on the CEQA decision. 
 
Protest of Fee or Exaction 
You may protest any fee or exaction subject to Government Code Section 66000 imposed as a condition of approval in 
accordance with Government Code Section 66020.  The protest must satisfy the requirements of Government Code Section 
66020(a) and must be filed within 90 days of the date of the first approval or conditional approval of the development 
referencing the challenged fee or exaction.  For purposes of Government Code Section 66020, the date of imposition of the fee 
shall be the date of the earliest discretionary approval by the City of the subject development.    
 
The Planning Commission’s approval or conditional approval of the development subject to the challenged fee or exaction as 
expressed in its Motion, Resolution, or Discretionary Review Action or the Zoning Administrator’s Variance Decision Letter will 
serve as Notice that the 90-day protest period under Government Code Section 66020 has begun. 
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

		Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringin...




Advance



				To:		Planning Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				September 12, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Rahaim - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2015-006825CUA		367 Hamilton Avenue				fr: 7/11		Flores

						317 tantamount to demo		to: 11/7

		2019-005613CUA		382 21st Avenue				CONSENT		Phung

						CB3P use size over 3,000 sf

		TBD		Balboa Reservoir 						Poling

						DEIR

		2016-004403CUA		2222 BROADWAY				fr: 1/24; 4/4; 5/2; 5/23; 7/11		Young

						increase the enrollment cap for Schools of the Sacred Heart (Broadway campus only) 

		2018-011446CUA		399 Fremont St						Liang

						public pay parking in the existing accessory parking garage

		2017-006245DRP		50 SEWARD ST				fr: 6/6; 7/18; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-006557DRP		20 Inverness 						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-001940DRP-02		33 Capra Way						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				September 19, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Rahaim - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-007313CND		31-37 Camp St. 				CONSENT		Westhoff

						E-Condo for 6 Units Condo Conversion

		2018-013320DRP		1520 DIAMOND ST				CONSENT		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-003627PCA		South of Market Community Advisory Committee 						Chen

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-011975PCA 		Jobs Housing Linkage Fee				fr: 7/25		Sanchez

						Planning Code Amendment

				1270 Mission Street						Teague

						Informational

		2017-003559ENV		3700 California St 				fr: 7/11		Poling

						DEIR

		2016-001794DNX		95 Hawthorne Street				fr: 6/27		Foster

						Downtown Project Authorization for SDB Project

		2018-009534CUAVAR		45 Culebra Terrace				fr: 6/6; 7/18; 8/22; 8/29		Adina

						Demolition of SFD, 2 dwelling new construction

		2018-002602CUAVAR		4118 21st St				fr: 8/29		Tran

						CU for tantamount to demo

		2017-000263CUAVAR		20 - 22 Church Street						Young

						dwelling unit density limit

		2017-002136CUA		340 Townsend Street						Christensen

						conversion of existing parking garage to public, paid garage

		2019-004691CUA		1347 27th Avenue 						Hicks

						demo of a single-family home and new construction of a 2-unit building 

		2018-002060CUA		258 Noe Street 						Horn

						Retail Cannabis

		2017-002545ENVAPL		2417 Green St 						Poling

						PMND Appeal

		2017-002545DRP		2417 Green St 				fr: 7/11		May

						Public Initiated DR

		TBD		2880 VALLEJO 						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-012718DRP		1980 EDDY						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				September 26, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Racial & Equity Training						Flores

						Training

				October 3, 2019 - Joint w/DPH

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				CPMC						Pearl

						Informational

				October 3, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-000362CUA 		1501B Sloat Blvd 				CONSENT		Cisneros

						Sprint		fr: 7/11

		2019-006951CUA		1401 19th Ave				CONSENT		Campbell

						CUA Type 20 ABC License within an Existing Fuel Station Café/Retail Establishment

		2019-005201CUA		298 Munich Street				CONSENT		Fahey

						Restaurant in a Limited and Nonconforming Use

		2019-005402CUA		50 Beale Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2019-001694CUA		1500 Mission Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Massage establishment in Equinox Gym

		2019-004164CUA 		1056-1062 Sanchez Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						CUA per PC Section 207

		2018-013963CUA		855 Geary Street				CONSENT		Asbaugh

						Partial change of use from Private Parking Garage to Public Parking Garage

		TBD		Exemption from Density Limits for Affordable & Unauthorized Units; Residential Care Facilities						Marlone

						Planning Code Amendment

				450 O’Farrell Street						Boudreaux

						Informational

		2017-000565CWP		Community Stabilization Strategy						Nelson

						Informational

		2019-005575IMP		555 Post Street						Tran

						Abbreviated Institutional Master Plan for Make School

		2016-003994CUA		55 Belcher Street 				fr: 6/13; 7/11		Townes

						CUA

		2019-005500CUA		2934 Cesar Chavez Street						Christensen

						171 sq ft Retail to Cannabis Retail

		2019-014433CUA		49 Duboce						Christensen

						legalization of existing cannabis cultivation facility

		2014.0334ENX		262 7th Street						Samonsky

						LPA for two 7-story bldg containing 96 SRO units & comm space

		2018-004614DRP		16 SEACLIFF AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013111DRP		240 CHENERY ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-009175DRP		3610 WASHINGTON ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-012253DRP		463 CASTRO ST						Campbell

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 10, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-012603CND		1046 14th Street				CONSENT		Pantoja

						6-unit Condo Conversion

		2018-017028PCA 		Controls on Residential Demolition, Merger, Conversion, and Alterations 						Butkus

						Planning Code Amendment

		2015-010192CWP		Potrero Power Station 						Schuett

						FEIR certification and project approvals 

		2014.0012E  		Better Market Street Project 						Delumo

						Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report

		2016-010589ENXOFA		2300 Harrison Street 				fr: 4/25; 5/9; 6/6; 7/18; 8/22		Hoagland

						6-story vertical addition, office/24 unit mixed use building, including State Density Bonus

		2018-015554CUA		95 Nordhoff St. 				fr: 4/11; 5/23; 6/27		Pantoja

						subdivision of an existing parcel into four new parcels

		2018-002179CUA		350 Masonic Ave 						May

						San Francisco Day School 

		2018-011717CUA 		1369 Sanchez Street						Cisneros

						Demo per PC Section 317

		2016-009538CUA 		905 Folsom Street						Jardines

						Demo (e) auto service station, NC 8-story residential bldg

		2018-016600CUA		2241 Chestnut Street						Wilborn

						CUA to for an Outdoor Activity Area

		2018-016040CUA		3419 Sacramento Street						Young

						legalize an existing Professional Office Use  (d.b.a. Kendall Wilkinson Design) 

		2018-016284DRP		1299 SANCHEZ ST						Washington

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 17, 2019 - Joint w/RP

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2015-005200CUAENX		1025 Howard Street						Samonsky

						Shadow

				October 17, 2019 - CLOSED

		Case No.		Koppel - OUT				Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-006948CUA		650 Jackson Street 				CONSENT		Lindsay

						Bona fide Public Eating Place license

		2016-003351CWP 		Racial & Social Equity Action Plan						C. Flores

						Adoption

		2019-014525PCA		Parking Requirements						Sanchez

						Planning Code Amendment

		2019-014960PCA		Fulton Street Grocery Store SUD						Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2018-004545PRJ		351 12th Street						Flores

						State Density Bonus

		2018-016625DNX		50 Post Street 				fr: 6/6; 7/11; 8/22		Perry

						Crocker Galleria

		2019-004451CUA		2075 Mission Street				fr: 7/25		Christensen

						cosmetic school to Cannabis Retail

		2019-000745CUAVAR		1100 Thomas Street						Christensen

						Legalization of (e) Industrial Agriculture facility (Cannabis Cultivation)

		2018-014774CUA		360 Spear Street 						Liang

						Internet Service Exchange (ISE) to Laboratory use.   

		2018-016955DRP		220 SAN JOSE				fr: 8/22		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2017-012939DRP		2758 23RD ST.						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 24, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-010555CUA		2412 Clay Street				CONSENT		Weissglass

						Macro wireless facilities

		2018-016814CUA		2575 Mission St 				CONSENT		Liang

						change of use from Bar to Restaurant use

		2014.1063DNX		633 Folsom Street 						Tran

						Public Art Informational

		2016-006860AHBENVIKA		65 Ocean Av						Flores

						HOME-SF, PMND, and In-Kind Agreement

		TBD		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning						Tong

						Initiation

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Initiation

				Prop M						Teague

						Office Allocation

				Water Supply 						Kern

						Informational

		2017-000655CUA 		458 Grove St						Tran

						Informational

		2017-014849CUA		220 Post Street				fr: 8/29		Adina

						Change of Use from Retail to Office on Floors 3-5

		2019-001568CUA		101 Bay Shore Boulevard 				fr: 8/29		Liang

						Convenience store (d.b.a. Extra Mile) that sells beer and wine in an existing gas station.  

		2018-013158CUA		2956 24th Street						Jardines

						limited restaurant to full-service restaurant 

		2018-009551DRPVAR		3847-3849 18TH ST				fr: 5/9; 7/18; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-005768DRP		2209 BRODERICK ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				October 31, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner





				November 7, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

						Initiation

				Retained Elements Special Topic Design Guidelines						Small

						Adoption

		2008.0023CUA		461 29th Street 				fr: 8/29		Townes

						Residential Demo 

		2015-006825CUA		367 Hamilton Avenue				fr: 7/11; 9/12		Flores

						317 tantamount to demo

		2018-000468CUA		3945 Judah Street						Pantoja

						HOME-SF, 20 new dwelling units

		2018-011441CUAVAR 		1846 Grove Street						Dito

						new construction of five dwelling units 

		2019-004664CUA 		57 Wentworth St.						Asbagh

						Retail to a Cocktail Bar/ Lounge

		2018-009548CUA		427 Baden St						Pantoja

						a lot line adjustment and construction of a new SFH

		2018-011430CUAVAR		1776 Green St						May

						TBD

		2018-003910DRP		3252 19th St 						Sucre

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-015288DRP		1130 POTRERO AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-003910DRP		3252 19th Street						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 14, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-017178CUA		1415 Market Street						Chandler

						formula retail use (DBA Philz Coffee) 

		2019-001627CUA  		459 Clipper Street						Horn

						Residential Demo 

		2018-011962DRP		869 ALVARADO ST				fr: 6/27; 8/29		Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-004377DRP		1301-1311 40th Avenue						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011031DRP-03		219-223 MISSOURI ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 21, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-003800CWP		Calle 24 Special Area Design Guidelines						Francis

						Adoption

		2016-013312CUADNXMAP		542-550 Howard Street (“Parcel F”)						Foster

		OFAPCAVAR				Project Adoption 

		2018-007725DRP		244 DOUGLASS STREET						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				November 28, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				December 5, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		TBD		Bayview Industrial Triangle Zoning						Tong

						Adoption

		2019-000013CUA		552-554 Hill Street						Campbell

						Legalization of Dwelling Unit Merger & Relocation

		2017-012887DRP		265 OAK ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013559DRP		2517 PACIFIC AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-013559DRP-02		2517 PACIFIC AVE						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 12, 2019 - Joint w/DPH

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				Health Care Services Master Plan						Nickolopoulos

						Adoption

				December 12, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2019-013522PCA		Code Clean-Up 2019						Flores

						Adoption

		2019-000503DRP		2452 GREEN ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-000503DRP-02		2452 GREEN ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2019-000503DRP-03		2452 GREEN ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 19, 2019

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

		2018-010941DRP		2028 LEAVENWORTH ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

		2018-011578DRP		2898 VALLEJO ST						Winslow

						Public-Initiated DR

				December 26, 2019 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner

				January 2, 2020 - CANCELED

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		Planner
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To:             Staff

From:       Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:            Hearing Results

          

NEXT MOTION/RESOLUTION No: 20517

 

NEXT DISCRETIONARY REVIEW ACTION No: 0662

                  

DRA = Discretionary Review Action; M = Motion; R = Resolution



September 5, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-008431DRP

		2220 Turk Boulevard

		Phung

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-008412DRP

		2230 Turk Boulevard

		Phung

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-013006DRP

		550 10th Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-013006VAR

		550 10th Avenue

		Winslow

		Acting ZA Continued to September 25, 2019

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 22, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for August 22, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Hillis, Richards, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-010192CWP

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		None - Informational

		



		R-20511

		2017-011878GPA

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		Initiated and Scheduled a hearing on or after October 10, 2019

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		DRA-0660

		2018-013317DRP

		333 Camino Del Mar

		Winslow

		Did NOT Take DR and Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		DRA-0661

		2017-013309DRP-04

		1 Winter Place

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20512

		2015-014028ENV

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Zushi

		Certified

		+7 -0



		M-20513

		2015-014028ENV

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Adopted Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

		+6 -1 (Richards against)



		R-20514

		2015-014028PCAMAP

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20515

		2015-014028DVA

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-20516

		2015-014028CUA

		3333 California Street (aka 3333 California Street Mixed-Use Project)

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+7 -0







August 29, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Continued to September 12, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2017-014849CUA

		220 Post Street

		Asbagh

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2019-001568CUA

		101 Bayshore Boulevard

		Liang

		Continued to October 24, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Acting ZA Continued to September 19, 2019

		



		

		2019-000297DRP

		1608-1610 Vallejo Street

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		M-20505

		2019-006116CUA

		2621 Ocean Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		M-20506

		2019-014314CUA

		49 Hopkins Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Limit the GSF to 3280 sq.ft.;

2. Eliminate the roofdeck; and

3. Provide an ADU with a minimum of 1,000 sq. ft. and two bedrooms.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20507

		2019-014759PCA

		Allowing Long Term Parking of and Overnight Camping in Vehicles and Ancillary Uses at 2340 San Jose Avenue (Board File No.190812)

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff modifications

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20508

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions and modification, eliminating the fourth floor.

		+4 -2 (Hillis, Richards against, Johnson absent) 



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		

		2015-000878DNXCUAOFA

		300 Grant Avenue

		Alexander

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-000940ENV, 

2017-008051ENV, 

2016-014802ENV	

		The Hub Plan, 30 Van Ness Avenue Project, 98 Franklin Street Project, and Hub Housing Sustainability District

		White

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20509

		2019-000268CUA

		121 Gates Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2008.0023CUA

		461 29th Street

		Townes

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to November 7, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602CUA

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued September 19, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-002602VAR

		4118 21st Street

		Tran

		ZA Continued to September 19, 2019

		



		M-20510

		2015-006356CUA

		336 Pierce Street

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-006356VAR

		336 Pierce Street

		Dito

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant.

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued October 24, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+4 -2 (Fung, Hillis against, Johnson absent) 



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		ZA Continued to October 24, 2019

		



		

		2018-011962DRP

		869 Alvarado Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued November 14, 2019 with direction from the Commission.

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-0659

		2018-002777DRP

		4363 26th Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with modifications, eliminating the fourth floor.

		+4 -2 (Hillis, Koppel against, Johnson absent) 







August 22, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+7 -0



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a motion not to disclose

		+7 -0







August 22, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Asbagh

		Acting ZA Continued to August 29, 2019

		



		

		2017-003545ENV

		2417 Green Street

		Poling

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-016625DNX

		50 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to October 17, 2019

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		2018-001592CUA

		1190 Gough Street

		Dito

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20499

		2018-011004CUA

		146 Geary Street

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20500

		2018-017311CUA

		5420 Mission Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		M-20501

		2017-013654CUA

		4720 Geary Boulevard

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 18, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 25, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 25, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2007.0903PHA

		Treasure Island Subphase 1C: C2.1 & C2.4

		Alexander

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Executive Directive on Housing (17-02) Report

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-016955DRP

		220 San Jose Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to October 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 10, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to October 10, 2019

		+7 -0



		M-20502

		2017-002951ENX

		755 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20503

		2014-003160CUA

		3314 Cesar Chavez Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20504

		2019-012580CUA

		61 Cambon Drive

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		

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

		







July 25, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to NOT Disclose

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)







July 25, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-011975PCA

		Jobs Housing Linkage Fee

		Sanchez

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20490

		2018-013387CUA

		88 Perry Street

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20491

		2019-001013CUA

		375 32nd Avenue/3132 Clement Avenue

		Jonckheer

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended, directing the Project Sponsor to continue working with the community on security mitigation measures

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 11, 2019

		Ionin

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Koppel absent)



		

		

		SB 35 Projects

		Conner

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-012970IMP

		Forty-Three (43) Properties Owned or Leased by the Academy of Art University (AAU) Located in the City and County of San Francisco

		Perry

		Closed the Public Hearing

		



		

		2013.0208PHA

		Mission Rock Phase 1 (aka Seawall Lot 337 and Pier 48)

		Snyder, Christensen 

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20492

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions as amended prohibiting corporate housing

		+5 -1 (Melgar against; Hillis absent)



		M-20493

		2015-012490ENX

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions with the necessary corrections

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20494

		2015-012490OFA

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions with the necessary corrections

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2015-012490VAR

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20495

		2014.1573CUA

		2050 Van Ness Avenue & 1675 Pacific Avenue

		May

		Approved with Conditions as amended prohibiting corporate housing.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2014.1573VAR

		2050 Van Ness Avenue & 1675 Pacific Avenue

		May

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20496

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Sucre

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent) 



		M-20497

		2018-013122CUA

		2966 24th Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2019-004451CUA

		2075 Mission Street

		Christensen

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to October 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20498

		2018-010465CUA

		349 3rd Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-0656

		2018-009355DRP

		63 Laussat Street

		May

		Took DR and Approved as revised and noting on the plans the area of the roof to be unoccupied.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-0657

		2017-000987DRP-02

		25 17th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised reverting the property to its previous condition

		+5 -1 (Fung against, Hillis absent) 



		DRA-0658

		2017-000987DRP-04

		27 17th Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised reverting the property to its previous condition

		+5 -1 (Fung against, Hillis absent)







July 18, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Winslow

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2017-013309DRP-04

		1 Winter Place

		Winslow

		Continued to September 5, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		R-20482

		2019-011895PCA

		Accessory Dwelling Units in New Construction [BF 190590]

		Flores

		Approved (with K. Moore comments)

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2018-003800CWP

		Calle 24 Special Area Design Guidelines

		Francis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		

		2016-010589OFA

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20483

		2017-000663PCAMAP

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20484

		2017-000663ENX

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20485

		2017-000663OFA

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		R-20486

		2017-000663DVA

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20487

		2019-003787CUA

		3301 Fillmore Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20488

		2017-004654CUA

		1901 Fillmore (aka 1913 Fillmore) Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)



		M-20489

		2015-015199CUA

		562 28th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		+4 -2 (Johnson, Richards against; Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		ZA After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 22, 2019

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		Adopted a Motion of Intent to Take DR and approve with two flats and a third ground floor unit, and Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Fung absent)



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		ZA After hearing and closed PC; Continued to August 29, 2019

		



		

		2018-007676DRP

		3902 Clay Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0655

		2017-013308DRM

		1 La Avanzada Street

		Lindsay

		Took DR and Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Fung absent)







July 11, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Continued to August 22, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		Acting ZA Continued to August 22, 2019

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



		

		2015-006825CUA

		367 Hamilton Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to September 12, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-002545DRP

		2417 Green Street

		May

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-003559ENV

		3700 California Street

		Poling

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2019-000362CUA

		1501C Sloat Boulevard

		Cisneros

		Continued to October 3, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street

		Jardines

		Continued to July 25, 2019

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

		Acting ZA Continued to July 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to October 3, 2019

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-013582DRP

		215 Montana Street

		Hicks

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20478

		2017-001427CUA

		2187 Market Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 20, 2019 – Joint With BIC

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 20, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 27, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		M-20479

		2019-004597CUA

		1509-1511 Sloat Boulevard

		Cisneros

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-000940CWP

		Market Octavia Plan Amendment

		Langlois

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20480

		2015-011274ENV

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		M-20481

		2015-011274CUA

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Melgar absent)



		

		2015-011274VAR

		150 Eureka Street

		Pantoja

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		







June 27, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-011962DRP

		869 Alvarado Street

		Chandler

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Durandet

		Continued to July 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-015554CUA

		95 Nordhoff Street

		Pantoja

		Continued to October 10, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-001794SHD

		95 Hawthorne Street

		Foster

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-001794DNX

		95 Hawthorne Street

		Foster

		Continued to September 19, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2019-000297DRP

		1608-1610 Vallejo Street

		Weissglass

		Continued to August 29, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20473

		2018-014378CUA

		733 Washington Street

		Phung

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20474

		2018-008277CUA

		952 Clement Street

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-008277VAR

		952 Clement Street

		Weissglass

		Acting ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 13, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		

		2013.1753CXV

		1066 Market Street

		Adina

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Senate Bill 330: Housing Crisis Act of 2019

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		After hearing and closing public comment and a Motion to Approve with Conditions failed +3 -2 (Moore, Richards against; Johnson, Melgar absent); Continued to July 11, 2019

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20475

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Limiting the floor to ceiling height of the living room to 12’6”; and 

2. Increasing the setback of the living room portion from 7’6” to 10’.

		+4 -1 (Richards against; Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20476

		2015-005763CUA

		247 17th Avenue

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended:

1. Provide five foot setbacks on the roof deck;

2. Provide an ADU behind the garage with direct access to the street; and

3. Eliminate the interior stair between ground and second level.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)



		M-20477

		2016-006164CUA

		2478 Geary Boulevard

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended, to provide a six foot opaque privacy screen.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Melgar absent)







June 20, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-017028PCA

		Controls on Residential Demolition, Merger, Conversion, and Alterations

		Butkus

		Reviewed and Commented

		







June 20, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 6, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards, Johnson absent)



		R-20469

		2019-006421PCA

		Temporary Uses: Intermittent Activities [BF 190459]

		Flores

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2000.0875CWP

		Downtown Plan Monitoring Report 2018

		Harris

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20470

		2014-000203ENX

		655 04th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved as amended by Staff and Corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20471

		2014-000203CUA

		655 04th Street

		Hoagland

		Approved as amended by Staff and Corrected

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20472

		2016-015814CUA

		5400 Geary Boulevard

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Johnson against; Hillis, Richards absent)



		DRA-0654

		2018-016871DRP

		3600 Scott Street

		Wilborn

		Did NOT Take DR

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Richards absent)







June 13, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-003994CUA

		55 Belcher Street

		Townes

		Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20463

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Oceanview Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Approved as Proposed

		+7 -0



		M-20464

		2015-007816CUA

		400-444 Divisadero Street and 1048-1064 Oak Street

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -2 (Fung, Moore against)



		

		2017-000663PRJ

		610-698 Brannan Street

		Samonsky

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20465

		2019-006418PCA

		North of Market Affordable Housing Fees and Citywide Affordable Housing Fund

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		ConnectSF

		Chan

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-016313CWP

		Public Land for Housing and Balboa Reservoir

		Hong

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20466

		2018-009861CUA

		1633 Fillmore Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20467

		2019-004216CUA

		3989 17th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -1 (Fung against; Koppel absent)



		M-20468

		2019-001048CUA

		1398 California Street

		Foster

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Fung against; Hillis, Koppel absent)







June 6, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to June 27, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2018-016625DNX

		50 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2019-000183CUA

		435-441 Jackson Street

		Adina

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-010589ENX

		2300 Harrison Street

		Hoagland

		Continued to July 18, 2019

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 16, 2019 – Closed Session

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 16, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 23, 2019 – Regular

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Fung absent)



		

		2011.1356

		Affordable Housing in Central SoMa

		Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2019-004406CRV

		Office Development Annual Limit

		Rahaim

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20457

		2015-010013IKA

		30 Otis Street

		Langlois

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20458

		2015-015203DNX-02

		135 Hyde Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20459

		2012.0640ENX

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and adding an 18 month update report

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20460

		2012.0640B

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff and adding an 18 month update report

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		R-20461

		2012.0640PRJ

		598 Brannan Street

		Hoagland

		Directed the Planning Director to enter into Agreement

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		M-20462

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2017-006245DRP

		50 Seward Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		+4 -1 (Richards against; Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534CUA

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		+5 -0 (Fung, Hillis absent)



		

		2018-009534VAR

		45 Culebra Terrace

		Adina

		ZA after hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019.

		







May 23, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Continued to June 6, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		Acting ZA Continued to June 6, 2019

		



		

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



		

		2016-004403CUA

		2222 Broadway

		Young

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to June 27, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2015-007816CUA

		400-444 Divisadero Street and 1048-1064 Oak Street

		Woods

		Continued to June 13, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 9, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		R-20453

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses at 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Approved with Modification, permitting office uses to participate in the legitimization program for up to three years.

		+7 -0



		

		2015-005255CWP

		Sea Level Rise Vulnerability and Consequences Assessment

		Varat

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2015-012490ENXOFA

		88 Bluxome Street

		Hoagland

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2014-000203ENX

		655 4th Street

		Hoagland

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20454

		2019-000189CUA

		1860 9th Avenue

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions as amended, for Sponsor to continue working with Staff in order to strengthen the ADU entrance.

		+7 -0



		M-20455

		2019-000186CUA

		828 Innes Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Restricting a Type 8 license; and

2. Informational update presentation, one year from operation.

		+6 -1 (Fung against)



		M-20456

		2019-000697CUA

		1370 Wallace Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		

		2016-009503DRP

		149 Mangels Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0653

		2018-008362DRP

		237 Cortland Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -1 (Moore against)







May 16, 2019 Closed Session Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Conference with Legal Counsel

		Ionin

		Asserted Attorney-Client Privilege

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Richards absent)



		

		

		Closed Session discussion

		Ionin

		Adopted a Motion to NOT Disclose

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)







May 16, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2015-007816CUA

		400-444 Divisadero Street And 1048-1064 Oak Street

		Woods

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20451

		2018-016996CUA

		517 Clement Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 2, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted as Amended

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2015-000937CWP

		Civic Center Public Realm Plan

		Perry

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-003559PRJ

		3700 California Street

		May

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20452

		2018-014905CUA

		1711 Haight Street

		Wilborn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)







May 9, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses at 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-013230CUA

		2215 Quesada Avenue

		Christensen

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Durandet

		Continued to June 27, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

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



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 25, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2019-006143CWP

		Youth Engagement in Planning

		Exline

		None - Informational

		



		R-20449

		2017-016416PCA

		Code Reorg. Phase 3: Chinatown [Board File TBD]

		Starr

		Approved with Modifications

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		R-20450

		2019-003581PCA

		Upper Market NCT and NCT-3 Zoning Districts (Board File No. 190248)

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications including a recommendation that the Board consider:

1. Including Health Services within the definition of Formula Retail; and 

2. Eliminating the Philanthropic Administrative Services use category.

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2011.1356

		Central SoMa Open Space

		Small

		None - Informational

		



		

		2012.0640

		598 Brannan Street

		Sucre

		None - Informational

		



		

		2018-009551DRP

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 18, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2018-009551VAR

		3847-3849 18th Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA Continued to July 18, 2019

		



		DRA-0652

		2017-013328DRP-02

		2758 Filbert Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with Staff modifications

		+4 -1 (Moore against, Johnson, Richards absent)







May 2, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2017-001270CUA

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2017-001270VAR

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued Indefinitely

		



		

		2018-007366CUA

		838 Grant Avenue

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



		M-20441

		2019-001017CUA

		1700 Irving Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20442

		2019-003637CUA

		2200 Market Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 18, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		

		CASA

		Pappas

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-20443

		2016-011011GPR

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Adopted Findings

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20444

		2015-016326CUA

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		M-20445

		2018-012709CUA

		990 Pacific Avenue

		Lindsay

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused, Melgar absent)



		M-20446

		2018-013395CUA

		10 29th Street

		Lindsay

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards recused; Moore, Melgar absent)



		M-20447

		2017-000280CUA

		915 North Point Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)



		

		2017-000280VAR

		915 North Point Street

		Perry

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20448

		2018-015127CUA

		4526 Third Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Melgar absent)







April 25, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		

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

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20433

		2018-017254CUA

		2750 Jackson Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2016-000240DRP

		1322 Wawona Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 11, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20434

		2018-011653PCA

		Temporary Uses on Development Sites

		Butkus

		Approved with Modifications

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2015-010192CWP

		Potrero Power Station

		Francis

		None - Informational

		



		R-20435

		2016-007303PCA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20436

		2016-007303DNX

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20437

		2016-007303CUA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+5 -1 (Koppel against)



		M-20438

		2015-015789ENX

		828 Brannan Street

		Durandet

		Approved with Conditions as Amended

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000547CUA

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to July 11, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000547VAR

		42 Ord Court

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; ZA Continued to July 11, 2019

		



		M-20439

		2018-010426CUA

		2675 Geary Boulevard

		May

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20440

		2017-012697CUA

		3944a Geary Boulevard

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		DRA-0651

		2018-003223DRP

		15 El Sereno Court

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0







April 18, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2019-002217PCA

		Legitimization Program for Certain Non-Residential Uses At 3150 18th Street (Board File No. 190165)

		Butkus

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2017-009224CUA

		601 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0



		

		2017-013841DRP

		295 Coso Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		

		



		M-20428

		2019-000475CND

		863 Haight Street

		Wilborn

		Approved 

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 4, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		1996.0013CWP

		2018 Housing Inventory Report

		Ambati

		None – Informational 

		



		M-20429

		2018-006127CUA

		201 19th Avenue

		Weissglass

		Disapproved

		+6 -0



		M-20430

		2018-016549CUA

		40 West Portal Avenue

		Weissglass

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20431

		2018-012416CUA

		1345 Underwood Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20432

		2018-013332CUA

		1555 Yosemite Avenue

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0







April 11, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		Continued to April 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003223DRP

		15 El Sereno Court

		Winslow

		Continued to April 25, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2015-016326GPR

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2015-016326CUA

		Seawall Lots 323 & 324

		Alexander

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-016667CUA

		3307 Sacramento Street

		Ganetsos

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20417

		2018-017057CUA

		1226 9th Avenue

		Lindsay

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 7, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20418

		2019-003571MAP

		915 Cayuga Avenue Project Zoning Map Amendments [BF 190251]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		R-20419

		2016-013850PCAMAP

		915 Cayuga Avenue Project Special Use District [BF 190250]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		M-20420

		2016-013850DVA

		915 Cayuga Avenue Development Agreement [BF 190249]

		Flores

		Approved with Staff Modifications

		+6 -0



		M-20421

		2016-013850CUA

		915 Cayuga Avenue

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		R-20422

		2019-001604PCA

		Building Standards

		Sanchez

		Approved with Staff Modifications and direction to Staff to pursue similar controls for RM districts.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Richards absent)



		R-20423

		2013.4117CWP

		San Francisco Biodiversity Resolution

		Fisher

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20424

		2017-016416PCA

		Code Reorganization Phase 3: Chinatown

		Starr

		Initiated and Scheduled a Hearing on or after May 9, 2019

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		

		2016-013156SRV

		Citywide Cultural Resources Survey

		LaValley

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2018-015554CUA

		95 Nordhoff Street

		Pantoja

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to May 23, 2019 with direction from the Commission

		+6 -0



		M-20425

		2018-004711DNX

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20426

		2018-004711CUA

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20427

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include an update memo in one year.

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		DRA-0649

		2018-007006DRP

		2000 Grove Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0



		DRA-0650

		2017-010147DRP

		1633 Cabrillo Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and approved per private agreement

		+6 -0







April 4, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		Acting ZA Continued to May 2, 2019

		



		

		2017-015590DRP

		4547 20th Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20409

		2019-000325CUA

		3600 Taraval Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 14, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20410

		2018-000532CUA

		468 Valley Street

		Ajello-Hoagland

		After being pulled off of Consent Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street

		Thomas

		Received Public Comment

		



		

		2019-004406CRV

		Office Development Annual Limit Program Update

		Teague; Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-013801CUA

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to May 23, 2019

		+6 -0



		

		2017-013801VAR

		250 Randolph Street

		Campbell

		After hearing and Closing public comment; ZA Continued to May 23, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		After hearing and Closing public comment; Continued to June 6, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20411

		2018-013413CUA

		1001 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2018-013230CUA

		2215 Quesada

		Christensen

		Continued to May 9, 2019

		+6 -0



		M-20412

		2018-015071CUA

		2166 Market Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. No Amplified music outdoors;

2. Outdoor activities limited to 10 pm daily;

3. Outdoor activities with amplified music limited to 12 am on NYE, Castro Street Fair, Folsom Street Fair, Pride Week, and Halloween, only; and 

4. Provide a Community Liaison.

		+6 -0



		M-20413

		2018-017008CUA

		3512 16th Street

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused)



		M-20414

		2017-010011CUA

		840 Folsom Street

		Liang

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Moore absent)



		M-20415

		2018-003066CUA

		1233 Connecticut

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended by Staff

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20416

		2018-003916CUA

		1326 11th Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel absent)



		[bookmark: _Hlk5010645]DRA-0647

		2017-013473DRP

		115 Belgrave Avenue

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved as revised per the private agreement

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel absent)



		DRA-0648

		2018-001541DRP

		2963 22nd Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+4 -0 (Richards, Melgar absent)







March 14, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-007303PCA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2016-007303DNXCUA

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Adina

		Continued to May 2, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-006127CUA

		201 19th Avenue

		Weissglass

		Continued to March 21, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-004711DNXCUA

		555 - 575 Market Street

		Adina

		Continued to April 11, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2016-009503DRP

		149 Mangels Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued to May 23, 2019

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2013.0655CUA

		1513A-F York Street

		Sucre

		Continued Indefinitely

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2013.0655VAR

		1513A-F York Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued Indefinitely

		



		M-20402

		2018-003264CUA

		2498 Lombard Street

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 28, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		

		

		Senate Bill 50: Planning and Zoning: Housing Development: Equitable Communities Incentive (2019)

		Ikezoe

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20405

		2018-003593CUA

		906 Broadway

		Tran

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20406

		2018-007204CUA

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include fire access to the roof be replaced by a shipladder.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-007204VAR

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20407

		2018-007460CUA

		1226 10th Avenue

		Young

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		M-20408

		2018-012687CUA

		657 - 667 Mission Street

		Adina

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0645

		2017-014420DRP

		2552 Baker Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a three-foot setback of the third-floor terrace railing.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0646

		2016-006123DRP-02

		279 Bella Vista Way

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with a condition to continue working with Staff on façade modifications.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)







March 7, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		

		2015-015129DRP

		1523 Franklin Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20397

		2018-012727CUA

		3327-3380 19th Street

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20398

		2018-000813CUA

		939 Ellis Street

		Jimenez

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2018-000813VAR

		939 Ellis Street

		Jimenez

		Assistant ZA closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20399

		2016-005805CUA

		430 Broadway

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		M-20400

		2017-008875CUA

		920 North Point Street

		Salgado

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 21, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0



		R-20401

		2019-000048PCA

		Small Business Permit Streamlining

		Butkus

		Approved with modification, requiring CU for outdoor bar uses.

		+5 -1 (Moore against)



		

		2018-013861PCAMAP

		Large Residence Special Use District

		Sanchez

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to April 11, 2019.

		+6 -0



		

		2018-010552PCA

		Employee Cafeterias Within Office Space

		Sanchez

		Disapproved

		+3 -3 (Hillis, Johnson, Koppel against)



		R-20403

		2018-016401PCA

		Accessory Dwelling Units in New Construction

		Flores

		Approved with Staff modifications, except No. 2

		+5 -1 (Richards against)



		M-20404

		2018-007253CUA

		3356-3360 Market Street

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0



		

		2017-007582CUA

		225 Vasquez Avenue

		Horn

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to May 9, 2019.

		+6 -0



		DRA-0643

		2016-005189DRP

		216 Head Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Approved with the condition that the lightwell be extended to accommodate the bedroom and bathroom windows.

		+5 -0 (Richards absent)



		DRA-0644

		2018-001681DRP

		120 Varennes Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+6 -0







February 28, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-007204CUA

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Continued to March 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007204VAR

		754 35th Avenue

		Ajello

		Acting ZA Continued to March 14, 2019

		



		

		2019-000048PCA

		Small Business Permit Streamlining

		Butkus

		Continued to March 7, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 14, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		R-20394

		2019-000931PCA

		Homeless Shelters in PDR and SALI Districts

		Conner

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20395

		2018-003324CUA

		2779 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Setback roof decks five feet from east and west property lines; and

2. Comply with the Planning Code.

		+4 -1 (Moore against; Johnson absent)



		

		2018-003324VAR

		2779 Folsom Street

		Jardines

		ZA Closed the PH and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		

		2009.3461CPW

		Area Plan Implementation Update and Inter-Department Plan Implementation Committee (IPIC) Report

		Snyder

		None - Informational

		



		M-20396

		2017-016520CUA

		828 Arkansas Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

1. Provide a matching lightwell in length; and

2. Provide a roof deck compliant with the Roof Deck Policy.

		+5 -0 (Johnson absent)







February 21, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-003593CUA

		906 Broadway

		Tran

		Continued to March 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2018-003916CUA

		1326 11th Avenue

		Dito

		Continued to April 4, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		2017-009224CUA

		601 Van Ness Avenue

		Woods

		Continued to April 18, 2019

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 7, 2019

		Silva

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20389

		2018-016400PCA

		Arts Activities and Nighttime Entertainment Uses in Historic Buildings

		Sanchez

		Approved with Modifications

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		R-20390

		2019-000592PCA

		C-3 Retail to Office Conversion [Board File No. 190030, Previously Board File No. 180916]

		Butkus

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2014.0012E

		Better Market Street

		Perry

		None - Informational

		



		M-20391

		2016-011101CTZ

		Great Highway

		Hicks

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		M-20392

		2016-015997CUA

		820 Post Street

		Perry

		Approved with Conditions as amended, to work with staff on wall coloring/treatment.

		+6 -1 (Moore against)



		M-20393

		2017-009635CUA

		432 Cortland Avenue

		Flores

		Approved with Conditions as amended: 

3. Work with staff on façade design;

4. Add Construction Impact Mitigation Plan; and

5. Remove roof deck & stair penthouse.

		+6 -1 (Melgar against)



		

		2017-013537CUA

		233 San Carlos Street

		Sucre

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 21, 2019.

		+7 -0



		

		2017-012929DRP

		830 Olmstead Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2016-004967DRP

		929 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		DRA-0642

		2014-002435DRP

		95 Saint Germain Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Proposed

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







February 14, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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

		Acting ZA Continued to April 4, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to April 4, 2019

		+5 -0 (Johnson, Richards absent)



		

		2017-005279VAR

		448 Valley Street

		Horn

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20380

		2018-013462CUA

		3995 Alemany Boulevard

		Hoagland

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 24, 2019 – Joint with HPC

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 24, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 31, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-20381

		2018-015439CUA

		205 Hugo Street

		Weissglass

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. Limiting hours of operation to 9 pm; and 

2. Restricting amplified music outdoors.

		+7 -0



		

R-20382

		2018-015471CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Approved

		+5 -0 (Hillis, Johnson absent)



		

		

		Executive Directive on Housing (17-02) Report

		Bintliff

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

R-20383

		2019-001351CRV

		Nonprofit Organizations’ First-Right-To-Purchase Multi-Family Residential Buildings [BF 181212]

		Ikezoe

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended, encouraging the pursuit of incentives.

		+6 -0 (Fong absent)



		

R-20384

		2018-016562PCA

		Inclusionary Housing Fee for State Density Bonus Projects [Bf 181154]

		Bintliff

		Disapproved

		+6 -0 (Fong absent)



		M-20385

		2016-007303ENV

		5 Third Street (Hearst Building)

		Pollak

		Upheld the PMND

		+7 -0



		M-20386

		2018-007049CUA

		3378 Sacramento Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -2 (Moore, Richards against; Hillis absent)



		M-20387

		2017-005279CUA

		448 Valley Street

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		M-20388

		2018-014721CUA

		1685 Haight Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-639

		2016-005555DRP-02

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Took DR and Disapproved the BPA

		+4 -1 (Fong against; Hillis, Richards absent)



		

		2016-005555VAR

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		ZA Closed the PH and took the matter under advisement.

		



		DRA-640

		2016-009554DRP

		27 Fountain Street

		Winslow

		Took DR and approved with conditions:

1. Provide an open to the sky  privacy screen for acoustic mitigation; and

2. Continue working with staff on a more defined entry to the garden unit.

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)



		DRA-641

		2017-014666DRP

		743 Vermont Street

		Winslow

		No DR

		+6 -0 (Hillis absent)







February 7, 2019 Special Off-Site Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2013.1543

		1979 Mission Street

		Sucre

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 31, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2017-009635CUA

		432 Cortland Avenue

		Flores

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

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



		

		2018-016494PCA

		Central SoMa “Community Good Jobs Employment Plan”

		Chen

		Continued Indefinitely

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2017-010630DRP

		1621 Diamond Street

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Continued to March 7, 2019

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-002409DRP

		1973 Broadway

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		



		M-20376

		2018-012850CND

		3132-3140 Scott Street

		Wilborn

		Approved

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		M-20377

		2018-009587CUA

		3535 California Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 17, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+4 -0 (Fong, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-016562PCA

		Inclusionary Housing Fee for State Density Bonus Projects [BF 181154]

		Bintliff

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to February 14, 2019

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		

		Housing Strategies and Plans

		Chion

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20378

		2018-007259CUA

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2018-007259VAR

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		M-20379

		2016-010079CUA

		3620 Buchanan Street

		Ajello

		Approved with Conditions

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel, Melgar absent)



		

		2016-010079VAR

		3620 Buchanan Street

		Ajello

		ZA closed the public hearing and indicated an intent to Grant

		



		DRA-638

		2015-008813DRP

		2337 Taraval Street

		Horn

		Took DR and approved with modifications:

1. Eliminating the roof deck; and

2. Providing a clear breezeway for the rear unit.

		+4 -0 (Richards, Koppel, Melgar absent)







January 24, 2019 Joint Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Communication Between Commissions

		

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		

		Retained Elements Policy

		

		Reviewed and Commented

		







January 24, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

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



		M-20373

		2018-011935CUA

		2505 Third Street

		Christensen

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		M-20374

		2018-010700CUA

		4018 24th Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 10, 2019

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		

		2018-015471CRV

		FY 2019-2021 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2016-003351CWP

		Racial & Social Equity Initiative

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-20375

		2018-008877CUA

		1519 Polk Street

		Ganetsos

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Koppel absent)



		DRA-637

		2015-011216DRP

		277 Judson Avenue

		Kwiatkowska

		Took DR and reduced the depth of the top floor seven feet (allowing a deck to replace the proposed addition) and staff recommended modifications.

		+5 -0 (Koppel, Richards absent)



		

		2016-005189DRP

		216 Head Street

		Winslow

		After hearing and closing public comment; Continued to March 7, 2018 with direction for additional information.

		+5 -0 (Fong, Koppel absent)



		

		2017-013175DRP

		1979 Funston Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		







January 17, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2016-005555DRP-02

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2016-005555VAR

		1794-1798 Filbert Street/2902 Octavia Street

		Woods

		Acting ZA  Continued to February 14, 2019

		



		

		2016-015997CUA

		820 Post Street

		Perry

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012092DRP

		299 Edgewood Avenue

		Winslow

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		2018-012330CUA

		447 Broadway

		Chandler

		Continued to January 31, 2019

		+7 -0



		

		2017-002545DRP

		2417 Green Street

		May

		Continued Indefinitely

		+7 -0



		

		

		Election of Officers

		Ionin

		Melgar – President;

Koppel - Vice

		+7 -0



		R-20369

		2018-015443MAP

		170 Valencia Street [Board File No. 181045]

		Butkus

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-20370

R-20371

		2018-007888CWP

		Polk / Pacific Special Area Design Guidelines

		Winslow

		Adopted Guidelines and Approved Amendment

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)



		

		

		Economic Trends and Housing Pipeline

		Ojeda

		None - Informational

		



		

		2015-004568PRJ

		10 South Van Ness Avenue

		Perry

		None - Informational

		



		M-20372

		2018-006212CUA

		145 Laurel Street

		Lindsay

		Approved Staff’s recommended alternative with Conditions as Amended

		+6 -0 (Richards absent)







January 10, 2019 Regular Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2018-007259CUA

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Continued to January 31, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007259VAR

		88 Museum Way

		Horn

		Acting ZA Continued to January 31, 2019

		



		

		2017-001270CUA

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-001270VAR

		3140-3150 16th Street

		Sucre

		Acting ZA Continued to February 14, 2019

		



		

		2014.0948ENX

		344 14th Street/1463 Stevenson Street

		Jardines

		Continued to February 14, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-009163CUA

		77 Geary Street

		Perry

		Continued Indefinitely

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2015-008351DRP-06

		380 Holladay Avenue

		Winslow

		Withdrawn

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-007888CWP

		Polk / Pacific Special Area Design Guidelines

		Winslow

		Continued to January 17, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2017-012929DRP

		830 Olmstead Street

		Winslow

		Continued to February 21, 2019

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20364

		2018-012050CUA

		927 Irving Street

		Chandler

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 13, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 20, 2018

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20365

		2016-007467CUA

		360 West Portal Avenue Suite A

		Hicks

		After being pulled off of Consent; Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		

		2018-017238CWP

		Tall Buildings Safety Strategy

		Small

		None - Informational

		



		M-20366

		2017-007943CUA

		3848 24th Street

		Pantoja

		Approved with Conditions

		+5 -0 (Richards recused; Johnson absent)



		M-20367

		2018-009178CUA

		2909 Webster Street

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		M-20368

		2018-001936CUA

		799 Van Ness Avenue

		Dito

		Approved with Conditions

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)



		DRA-636

		2018-001609DRP

		144 Peralta Avenue

		Winslow

		No DR, Approved as Proposed

		+6 -0 (Johnson absent)







image1.jpeg









 
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
Subject: FW: Letter Attached - Supporting Conditional Use Request - The Flore Store 258 Noe Street
Date: Friday, September 06, 2019 10:43:44 AM
Attachments: BWA Letter for 415 Focus Store - 258 Noe Street .pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Brian Webster <brian.e.webster@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 05, 2019 11:33 AM
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
Subject: Letter Attached - Supporting Conditional Use Request - The Flore Store 258 Noe Street
 

 

Attached please find my letter supporting the Conditional Use Request
for the Flore Store at 258 Noe Street in San Francisco.
 
The store is owned by the equity applicant, Terrance Alan and Focus
415 Capital Investments Group, a small group of investors each with a
long history in cannabis, social advocacy, and business.         
 
I believe a cannabis retail operation at 258 Noe will be a positive impact
on the surrounding businesses, bringing new and much needed
shoppers, add heightened security, offer good paying jobs and give a
boost to the commercial diversity of the Upper Market and Castro
areas. 
 

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



 
 


 
 
August 14, 2019 
 
Jeffrey Horn, Planner Commission Secretary 
San Francisco Planning Department 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
CC: District 8 Supervisor Mandelman 
 
Dear SF Planning Department, 
This letter is to support he Conditional Use request for a cannabis retail store at 258 Noe Street 
scheduled for hearing on September 19, 2019.   
 
The store is owned by the equity applicant, Terrance Alan and Focus 415 Capital Investments Group, 
a small group of investors each with a long history in cannabis, social advocacy, and business.          
I believe a cannabis retail operation at 258 Noe will be a positive impact on the surrounding 
businesses, bringing new and much needed shoppers, add heightened security, offer good paying 
jobs and give a boost to the commercial diversity of the Upper Market and Castro areas.  
 
I am a business development professional who has been working in San Francisco for over 30-years. 
I have worked closely with local government, business, union and community groups in California to 
adopt new cannabis laws and retail regulations. I am a founding member of the Brownie Mary 
Democratic Club. 
 
I have no business relationship with, or financial interest in, Focus 415 and the 258 Noe Street store. 
I have appeared before several Planning Commission hearings to speak, both for and against, new 
medical cannabis dispensary proposals. 
 
I urge the commission and the San Francisco Planning Department to approve the equity applicant, 
Terrance Alan and Focus 415 Capital Investments Group’s proposal. 
 
I am familiar with Terrance Alan’s years of excellent business operations and community service. He 
and his Focus 415 group has a great level of commitment to the local community. They have 
engaged in public outreach efforts and have garnered the support of local businesses, and 
community groups. 
 
I believe this new cannabis store at 258 Noe Street will bring good jobs to the local community and 
important tax revenue our city. I am sure they will bring a positive contribution the neighborhood, 
cooperate with local law enforcement to reduce crime in the area, and lend their support to local 
charities. 
 
I urge that this Conditional Use request be approved. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Brian Webster 
 
 


 


             190 O’Farrell Street #409, San Francisco, CA 94102 415-243-8900 www.brianwebster.com  



http://www.brianwebster.com/





I am a business development professional who has been working in
San Francisco for over 30-years. I have worked closely with local
government, business, union and community groups in California to
adopt new cannabis laws and retail regulations. I am a founding
member of the Brownie Mary Democratic Club.
 
I urge the SF Planning Commission and the San Francisco Planning
Department to approve the equity applicant, Terrance Alan and Focus
415 Capital Investments Group’s proposal.
 
Best Regards,
-Brian Webster
----
 
Brian Webster
Brian Webster and Associates
190 O'Farrell Street - Suite 409
San Francisco, CA 94102
Office & Mobile: 415-243-8900
Email: brian.e.webster@gmail.com
Web:  BrianWebster.com
BetterWorldAdvisors.net
 
 

mailto:brian.e.webster@gmail.com
http://www.brianwebster.com/
http://betterworldadvisors.net/


 
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
Cc: Poling, Jeanie (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: INAPPROPRIATE SEIR DEFINITION OF TRANSIT DELAY
Date: Friday, September 06, 2019 10:43:07 AM
Attachments: INAPPROPRIATE SEIR DEFINITION OF TRANSIT DELAY.docx

 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, September 05, 2019 11:42 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: roger marenco <rmarenco@twusf.org>; Kirschbaum, Julie (MTA) <Julie.Kirschbaum@sfmta.com>
Subject: INAPPROPRIATE SEIR DEFINITION OF TRANSIT DELAY
 

 

Planning Commission:
 
I am a Muni Railway retiree.  I worked for 33 years as Operator, Dispatcher,
Inspector, Instuctor for the the lines that will be directly affected by the Reservoir
Project.   
 
Given my--as well as other front-line MUNI workers'--direct experience, it is ludicrous
to claim that the Balboa Reservoir will have less-than-significant impact on transit
delay.
 
Please take the following submission into consideration in your evaluation of the
Balboa Reservoir EIR.
 
Thanks.
 
Alvin Ja
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INAPPROPRIATE SEIR DEFINITION OF TRANSIT DELAY

The City Charter/SFMTA late criterion is a 4 minute delay relative to MUNI schedule for the 43 Masonic at the Balboa Park Station (BPS).  [The 4 minute lateness criterion is relative to MUNI schedule for any particular MUNI time point.]

In comparison, the Reservoir late standard as applied for the segment from Monterey/Gennessee to Balboa Park Station allows for a 12 minute delay relative to MUNI schedule.  

The Reservoir Project SEIR, apparently without proper authority, appropriates a 4-minute delay standard for the each of the 43’s segments (Judson-Ocean and Ocean-Geneva/San Jose) in the BPS Area, thus giving the Project the privilege of contributing 8 minutes of Reservoir-related delay before its delay is considered significant. 

EXAMPLE:

If a 43 is running on time until the Reservoir Project, but the Project-related delay is allowed to be up to 8 minutes, then instead of 7 minutes to get to BPS, it would be considered by SEIR definition to be insignificant if a 43 got to BPS in 19 minutes. 

  

This constitutes a 171% increase over the scheduled running time of 7 minutes between Monterey/Gennessee and Balboa Park Station.  Yet the SEIR deems a 171% increase (from a scheduled 7 minutes to a travel time of 19 minutes to be insignificant.

		SOUTHBOUND 43 MASONIC DELAY:

MUNI STANDARD v. RESERVOIR STANDARD



		

		

		TIME POINT

		

		ON-TIME

		ADDITIONAL DELAY TIME



		

		

		

		

		MUNI on-time

		MUNI late standard

(4 min)

		Reservoir 

Late standard

(additional 4 min)



		

		

		Monterey/Gennessee

		

		0:00

		0:00

		0:00



		Monterey/Genn to Bookstore

Running time (r.t.)

		

		4 min running time

		

		0

		4 r.t. + 4 late

		4 r.t. +4 MUNI

+4 Reservoir



		ELAPSED TIME:

Monterey/Genn to Bookstore

		

		CCSF Bookstore

(City College Terminal)

		

		0:04

		0:08

		0:12



		Bookstore to BPS

Running time

		

		3 min running time

		

		+3 r.t.

		+3 r.t.

(4 min standard NOT allowed to be cumulative)

		+3 r.t. + 4 Reservoir

(4 min standard construed to accumulate)



		ELAPSED TIME:

Monterey/Gen 

to BPS

		

		Balboa Park Station

(Geneva/San Jose)

		

		

0:07

		

0:11

		

0:19









The SEIR justifies its arbitrary and capricious use of a generously defined 4-minute delay standard by citing the MUNI on-time performance standard contained in the City Charter:

The department uses a quantitative threshold of significance and qualitative criteria to determine whether the project would substantially delay public transit. For individual Muni routes, if the project would result in transit delay greater than equal to four minutes, then it might result in a significant impact.96



Footnote 96:  

96 The threshold uses the adopted the Transit First Policy, City Charter section 8A.103 85 [sic--should be 8A.103 (c)1--aj], percent on-time performance service standard for Muni, with the charter considering vehicles arriving more than four minutes beyond a published schedule time late.



[bookmark: _GoBack]It is critically important to understand  the meaning and (mis)interpretation of the citation of SF Charter's MUNI 85% on-time performance standard.  The critical language in  City Charter 8A.103 (c)1 is as follows:

1. On-time performance: at least 85 percent of vehicles must run on-time, where a vehicle is considered on-time if it is no more than one minute early or four minutes late as measured against a published schedule that includes time points



The draft SEIR engages in an egregiously unsupported case of overreach. The SEIR reinterprets the MUNI 4-minute lateness standard to allow the Reservoir Project itself to independently contribute an additional 4 minutes of transit delay before the Project's impact "might" be considered significant.



The SEIR is inadequate in its use of an egregiously generous definition of acceptable Reservoir-related transit delay.  The SEIR’s “less-than-significant” determination for Impact TR-4, Transit Delay cannot be considered valid.  

The Project's self-entitled contribution of an additional 4-minutes of lateness to transit delay is neither permitted or acceptable--by law, legislative intent, or by common sense--in City Charter VIIIA.  This constitutes a fundamentally arbitrary and capricious arrogation of authority to substantively and substantially worsen transit reliability for the  broader public.  There is no substantive rationale to justify a 4-minute contribution by the Project to transit delay.  There is no substantial evidence--if any evidence at all-- to permit the Reservoir Project to consider its own 4-minute delay standard to be non-significant.



Submitted by:

Alvin Ja

 



INAPPROPRIATE SEIR DEFINITION OF TRANSIT DELAY

The City Charter/SFMTA late criterion is a 4 minute delay relative to MUNI schedule
for the 43 Masonic at the Balboa Park Station (BPS).  [The 4 minute lateness criterion
is relative to MUNI schedule for any particular MUNI time point.]

In comparison, the Reservoir late standard as applied for the segment from
Monterey/Gennessee to Balboa Park Station allows for a 12 minute delay relative to
MUNI schedule. 

The Reservoir Project SEIR, apparently without proper authority, appropriates a 4-
minute delay standard for the each of the 43’s segments (Judson-Ocean and Ocean-
Geneva/San Jose) in the BPS Area, thus giving the Project the privilege of
contributing 8 minutes of Reservoir-related delay before its delay is considered
significant.

EXAMPLE:

If a 43 is running on time until the Reservoir Project, but the Project-related delay is
allowed to be up to 8 minutes, then instead of 7 minutes to get to BPS, it would be
considered by SEIR definition to be insignificant if a 43 gets to BPS in 19 minutes—
an additional 12 minutes.

 

This constitutes a 171% increase over the scheduled running time of 7 minutes
between Monterey/Gennessee and Balboa Park Station.  Yet the SEIR deems a
171% increase (from a scheduled 7 minutes to a travel time of 19 minutes to be
insignificant.

SOUTHBOUND 43 MASONIC DELAY:

MUNI STANDARD v. RESERVOIR STANDARD
    TIME POINT   ON-

TIME
ADDITIONAL DELAY TIME

        MUNI
on-time

MUNI late
standard

(4 min)

Reservoir

Late standard

(additional 4 min)
    Monterey/Gennessee   0:00 0:00 0:00
Monterey/Genn
to Bookstore

Running time
(r.t.)

  4 min running time   +4 r.t. +4 r.t. + 4 late +4 r.t. +4 MUNI

+4 Reservoir

ELAPSED TIME:

Monterey/Genn
to Bookstore

  CCSF Bookstore

(City College
Terminal)

  0:04 0:08 0:12



Bookstore to BPS

Running time

  3 min running time   +3 r.t. +3 r.t.

(4 min
standard NOT
allowed to be
cumulative)

+3 r.t. + 4 Reservoir

(4 min standard
construed to
accumulate)

ELAPSED TIME:

Monterey/Gen

to BPS

  Balboa Park Station

(Geneva/San Jose)

   

0:07

 

0:11

 

0:19

 

 

The SEIR justifies its arbitrary and capricious use of a generously defined 4-minute
delay standard by citing the MUNI on-time performance standard contained in the
City Charter:

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

 

It is critically important to understand of the meaning and (mis)interpretation of the
citation of SF Charter's MUNI 85% on-time performance standard.  The critical
language in  City Charter 8A.103 (c)1 is as follows:

1. On-time performance: at least 85 percent of vehicles must run on-time, where a vehicle is
considered on-time if it is no more than one minute early or four minutes late as measured
against a published schedule that includes time points

 

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

 

The SEIR is inadequate and defective in its use of an egregiously generous
definition of acceptable Reservoir-related transit delay.  The SEIR’s “less-than-



significant” determination for Impact TR-4, Transit Delay cannot be considered
valid. 

The Project's self-entitled contribution of an additional 4-minutes of lateness to
transit delay is neither permitted or acceptable--by law, legislative intent, or by
common sense--in City Charter VIIIA.  This constitutes a fundamentally
arbitrary and capricious arrogation of authority to substantively and
substantially worsen transit reliability for the broader public. 

 

There is no substantive rationale to justify a 4-minute contribution by the
Project to transit delay.  There is no substantial evidence--if any evidence at all-
- to permit the Reservoir Project to consider its own 4-minute delay standard to
be non-significant.

 

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
Cc: Zushi, Kei (CPC); Foster, Nicholas (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: 3333 California Street - Official Record
Date: Friday, September 06, 2019 10:41:55 AM
Attachments: 20190905132220.pdf

20190905132410.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Kathy Devincenzi <krdevincenzi@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 05, 2019 12:20 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
<jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>; Son, Chanbory (CPC) <chanbory.son@sfgov.org>
Subject: 3333 California Street - Official Record
 

 

  Re: 3333 California Street, San Francisco, CA  
        Record Number: 2015-014028CUA/PCA/MAP/DUA
        Certification of Final EIR
        Planning Commission Hearing: September 5, 2019 
 
To:  San Francisco Planning Commission and Commission Secretary
 
Please place in the official record the attached September 5, 2019 Letter of Laurel Heights
Improvement Association to San Francisco Planning Commission and attached Exhibits FF-LL.
 
I will bring paper copies to the hearing.
 
Laurel Heights Improvement Association of SF, Inc.
By:  Kathy Devincenzi, President
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR BREED AND OAKLAND MAYOR SCHAAF FORMALLY KICK

OFF BATTLE FOR THE BAY CLEANUP CHALLENGE
Date: Friday, September 06, 2019 10:41:35 AM
Attachments: 09.05.19 Battle for the Bay.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, September 05, 2019 12:16 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR BREED AND OAKLAND MAYOR SCHAAF
FORMALLY KICK OFF BATTLE FOR THE BAY CLEANUP CHALLENGE
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, September 5, 2019
Media Contacts: 
Oakland Mayor’s Office, 510-238-7072
San Francisco Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO MAYOR BREED AND OAKLAND MAYOR

SCHAAF FORMALLY KICK OFF BATTLE FOR THE BAY
CLEANUP CHALLENGE

Volunteer drives launched in both cities as part of Coastal Cleanup Day to improve
neighborhoods and combat illegal dumping

 
Bay Area, CA — Game on! Oakland Mayor Libby Schaaf and San Francisco Mayor London
Breed met on Treasure Island today to challenge each other and their respective cities to a
Battle for the Bay, a friendly volunteer competition to protect the shared Bay by cleaning up
coastal areas and neighborhoods in both cities.
 
The cleanup event will take place at worksites throughout San Francisco and Oakland on
September 21 as part of the annual California Coastal Cleanup Day. The challenge is on to
protect the treasured Bay by cleaning and greening both cities!
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
Breed met on Treasure Island today to challenge each other and their respective cities to a Battle 
for the Bay, a friendly volunteer competition to protect the shared Bay by cleaning up coastal 
areas and neighborhoods in both cities. 
 
The cleanup event will take place at worksites throughout San Francisco and Oakland on 
September 21 as part of the annual California Coastal Cleanup Day. The challenge is on to 
protect the treasured Bay by cleaning and greening both cities!  
 
Projects include trash removal, habitat restoration, tree planting, and beautification. The mayors 
made a joint call to turn the tide on trash and be a part of the global movement to keep our cities 
and shared waterways clean.  
 
Oakland and San Francisco will compete to make the most impactful cleanups measured by 
volunteer turnout, amount of debris removed, geographic area cleaned, beautification projects 
and most unusual object found by a volunteer. 
 
“Battle for the Bay will help protect our cherished Bay and is part of our broader efforts to keep 
every neighborhood in our City clean, green and beautiful,” Mayor Breed said. “San Francisco is 
known for being an environmental champion, and we’ll continue working together to keep San 
Francisco’s diverse communities looking good—not just on this one day, but every day. It’s a 
matter of need and civic pride.” 
 
“From the streets to the shores, this annual cleanup is an opportunity to shine that thousands of 
Oaklanders make a huge success every year,” Mayor Schaaf said. “This year we’re building on 
that success by bringing new support into our neighborhoods where the community faces illegal 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


— battleforthebay2019.org — 


dumping every day. This is a win-win, because sidewalk trash is just a few steps away from 
contaminating our natural waterways. By cleaning our neighborhoods we’re also protecting our 
Bay!” 
 
Mayor Schaaf and Mayor Breed also announced Thursday their convivial wager over which city 
will win the Battle for the Bay contest. The Mayor whose city has fewer volunteers will travel to 
the winning Mayor’s city to volunteer at a non-profit of the winning Mayor’s choosing. 
 
The challenge is dubbed The Battle for the Bay in honor of the 30th anniversary of the 1989 
“Battle of the Bay” Major League Baseball World Series between the San Francisco Giants and 
the Oakland A’s. Residents and businesses are invited to show love for Oakland, San Francisco, 
and the environment, by volunteering to help on Battle for the Bay. 
 
“Every day, somewhere in Oakland, our community is doing something to make our home more 
beautiful and clean. We’re here to support that work every day, and scale it way up with events 
like Battle for the Bay,” Oakland Public Works Director Jason Mitchell said. “In Oakland, we’re 
encouraging every resident to be Oaktown PROUD -- Prevent and Report Oakland’s Unlawful 
Dumping. With true partnership between our City and our community, our cities’ year-round 
strategies to clean and beautify neighborhoods and waterways will turn the tide on trash.” 
 
“Public Works is a proud partner of Coastal Cleanup Day,” San Francisco Public Works Director 
Mohammed Nuru said. “We are ready to sign up volunteers, clean up our neighborhoods and 
protect our bay. I want to thank our City partners, including the Recreation and Park Department 
and Port of San Francisco, as well as our steadfast, year-round community partners. I also would 
like to welcome new volunteers to Battle for the Bay on Coastal Cleanup Day. It requires a true 
team effort to keep our neighborhoods and our environment looking good.” 
 
The event has drawn major support from sponsors on both sides of the Bay. Sponsors who have 
committed funding and resources to Battle for the Bay include Recology, Alaska Airlines, Waste 
Management of Alameda County, Argent Materials, California Waste Solutions, Andes 
Construction, Clear Channel, Webcor, the Emerald Fund, the Warriors, and Black and Veatch.  
 
Key partners in the event include the California Coastal Commission, The Oakland Parks and 
Recreation Foundation, San Francisco Public Works, San Francisco Recreation and Park 
Department, Port of San Francisco, Caltrans, Golden Gate National Parks Conservancy, the 
National Park Service, the Presidio Trust and California State Parks.  
 
A press conference Thursday included community speakers from San Francisco’s St. Andrew 
and St. Phillips Missionary Baptist churches and the East Oakland Congress of Neighborhoods, 
and was supported by mascots Lou Seal from the Giants and Stomper from the A’s. 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


— battleforthebay2019.org — 


People of all ages and abilities are invited to join the event, which is part of the largest volunteer 
day in California and the world! On this day, thousands of volunteers remove litter 
from waterways and shorelines, as well as upstream areas across California, the nation, and in 
about 100 participating countries. At the Battle for the Bay, volunteers will pick up litter, clean 
up our neighborhoods and beaches and participate in other beautification projects in Oakland and 
San Francisco.  
 
Which City can turn out the most volunteers? Collect the most trash? Join your city’s team to 
show your civic pride make a difference! Choose from dozens of volunteer sites in Oakland and 
San Francisco. Be a part of it!  
 
To sign up as a site coordinator, find volunteer locations, register as a group, or for more 
information go to www.battleforthebay2019.org.  
 


### 
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Projects include trash removal, habitat restoration, tree planting, and beautification. The
mayors made a joint call to turn the tide on trash and be a part of the global movement to keep
our cities and shared waterways clean.
 
Oakland and San Francisco will compete to make the most impactful cleanups measured by
volunteer turnout, amount of debris removed, geographic area cleaned, beautification projects
and most unusual object found by a volunteer.
 
“Battle for the Bay will help protect our cherished Bay and is part of our broader efforts to
keep every neighborhood in our City clean, green and beautiful,” Mayor Breed said. “San
Francisco is known for being an environmental champion, and we’ll continue working
together to keep San Francisco’s diverse communities looking good—not just on this one day,
but every day. It’s a matter of need and civic pride.”
 
“From the streets to the shores, this annual cleanup is an opportunity to shine that thousands of
Oaklanders make a huge success every year,” Mayor Schaaf said. “This year we’re building
on that success by bringing new support into our neighborhoods where the community faces
illegal dumping every day. This is a win-win, because sidewalk trash is just a few steps away
from contaminating our natural waterways. By cleaning our neighborhoods we’re also
protecting our Bay!”
 
Mayor Schaaf and Mayor Breed also announced Thursday their convivial wager over which
city will win the Battle for the Bay contest. The Mayor whose city has fewer volunteers will
travel to the winning Mayor’s city to volunteer at a non-profit of the winning Mayor’s
choosing.
 
The challenge is dubbed The Battle for the Bay in honor of the 30th anniversary of the 1989
“Battle of the Bay” Major League Baseball World Series between the San Francisco Giants
and the Oakland A’s. Residents and businesses are invited to show love for Oakland, San
Francisco, and the environment, by volunteering to help on Battle for the Bay.
 
“Every day, somewhere in Oakland, our community is doing something to make our home
more beautiful and clean. We’re here to support that work every day, and scale it way up with
events like Battle for the Bay,” Oakland Public Works Director Jason Mitchell said. “In
Oakland, we’re encouraging every resident to be Oaktown PROUD -- Prevent and Report
Oakland’s Unlawful Dumping. With true partnership between our City and our community,
our cities’ year-round strategies to clean and beautify neighborhoods and waterways will turn
the tide on trash.”
 
“Public Works is a proud partner of Coastal Cleanup Day,” San Francisco Public Works
Director Mohammed Nuru said. “We are ready to sign up volunteers, clean up our
neighborhoods and protect our bay. I want to thank our City partners, including the Recreation
and Park Department and Port of San Francisco, as well as our steadfast, year-round
community partners. I also would like to welcome new volunteers to Battle for the Bay on
Coastal Cleanup Day. It requires a true team effort to keep our neighborhoods and our
environment looking good.”
 
The event has drawn major support from sponsors on both sides of the Bay. Sponsors who
have committed funding and resources to Battle for the Bay include Recology, Alaska
Airlines, Waste Management of Alameda County, Argent Materials, California Waste



Solutions, Andes Construction, Clear Channel, Webcor, the Emerald Fund, the Warriors, and
Black and Veatch.
 
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
and St. Phillips Missionary Baptist churches and the East Oakland Congress of
Neighborhoods, and was supported by mascots Lou Seal from the Giants and Stomper from
the A’s.
 
People of all ages and abilities are invited to join the event, which is part of the largest
volunteer day in California and the world! On this day, thousands of volunteers remove litter
from waterways and shorelines, as well as upstream areas across California, the nation, and in
about 100 participating countries. At the Battle for the Bay, volunteers will pick up litter, clean
up our neighborhoods and beaches and participate in other beautification projects in Oakland
and San Francisco.
 
Which City can turn out the most volunteers? Collect the most trash? Join your city’s team to
show your civic pride make a difference! Choose from dozens of volunteer sites in Oakland
and San Francisco. Be a part of it!
 
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
Subject: FW: 33 Capra Way - 2018-001940DRP-02 Planning Commission hearing date
Date: Friday, September 06, 2019 10:40:06 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Peter Fortune <peter.fortune@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 05, 2019 5:38 PM
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
Dito, Matthew (CPC) <matthew.dito@sfgov.org>
Subject: 33 Capra Way - 2018-001940DRP-02 Planning Commission hearing date
 

 

 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: Peter Fortune <peter.fortune@gmail.com>
Subject: 33 Capra Way -2018-001940DRP-02
Date: September 5, 2019 at 5:25:12 PM PDT
 
Dear Commissioners -
 
Since 1984 I have owned my home in the Marina, on Pierce Street just over one block
from the site of this proposed development at 33 Capra Way. I am quite familiar with
this site — I walk past it with my three dogs at least half a dozen times each week, and I
also chat with some of the neighbors who live in this block on Capra and nearby on
Mallorca.  
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I STRONGLY OPPOSE this proposed project to build three luxury condominiums on this
site, which would entail  demolishing the facade, adding two stories and a roof deck,
and building further into the mid-block open 
space.  
 
The comparatively massive scale of this project simply would not fit our neighborhood.
The mass of this project would be way out of scale in both height and bulk for buildings
in the middle of this and other Marina blocks. This result would violate Section IV of the
Residential Design Guidelines.  
 
Worse, if approved, this project could set an extremely poor precedent for the Marina.
We don’t want or need  full-length, four-story, mid-block buildings with roof decks. The
classic character of our Marina neighborhood has been fashioned -- for 80-90 years --
with large corner apartments and smaller two-floor bungalows or three-story, two-flat
buildings between these corner apartments. This classic pattern provides light and air
to numerous windows in the third- and fourth-floor units in the apartments. Though
currently non-conforming because many of these windows are at property lines, this
pattern permeates the entire Marina and is an integral part of our neighborhood
character.  
    
The proposed roof deck not only would exacerbate the out-of-scale height, but also
would NOT add any new housing. And ask almost any Marina resident: Roof decks are
almost useless due to the weather and winds in the Marina. Thus, a roof deck would be
merely a seldom-used amenity for the developer to seek a higher sales price. There
could be no reasonable justification for putting a roof deck on this new building.
 
We have an affordable housing shortage in our City.  But these three luxury
condominiums would not contribute one iota to solving this problem for those who
need affordable housing. 
 
This project could be built with three condominiums without going so high or so deep
into the lots. Other than perhaps greed, there is no reason for such an out-of-scale
project that would so negatively impact not only the classic Marina character of this
block on Capra Way, but also, as a dangerous precedent, the character of so many
other Marina blocks. 
 
Please: JUST SAY NO to this project.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Peter Fortune
3579 Pierce Street 
415-385-5177
 
 



 



From: Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC); Richards, Dennis (CPC); Fung, Frank (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC);

Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Rich Hillis
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: Re: AC still down in City Hall
Date: Thursday, September 05, 2019 11:39:32 AM

Can we move it to the Supervisor chambers?  With 3333 California it will be miserable!

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Sent: Thursday, September 5, 2019 11:15 AM
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC) <dennis.richards@sfgov.org>; Fung, Frank (CPC) <frank.fung@sfgov.org>;
Johnson, Milicent (CPC) <milicent.johnson@sfgov.org>; Koppel, Joel (CPC) <joel.koppel@sfgov.org>;
Moore, Kathrin (CPC) <kathrin.moore@sfgov.org>; Melgar, Myrna (CPC)
<myrna.melgar@sfgov.org>; Rich Hillis <richhillissf@gmail.com>
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>
Subject: AC still down in City Hall
 
Please be advised.
 
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
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